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STEWARDSHIP

Introduction

A MARK OF

Guided by integrity and accountability,  Gul Ahmed embraces stewardship as a pledge 
to create lasting value for its  business, society, and the environment.
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GROUP STRUCTURE NATURE OF BUSINESS

Gul Ahmed is one of Pakistan’s leading textile 
composite units, equipped with state-of-the-art 
machinery that supports fully integrated 
operations. The company manufactures across the 
entire textile value chain, producing yarn, greige 
and finished fabrics, home textiles, and apparel. Its 
advanced infrastructure ensures high-quality 
dyeing, stitching, and embroidery, with precision 
maintained at every stage of production.

The company has a strong presence in global 
markets while also catering to domestic consumers 
through its subsidiary Ideas (Pvt.) Limited, which 
operates more than 100 retail outlets across 
Pakistan. This balance between international reach 
and local expertise has positioned Gul Ahmed as a 
key player in the textile industry.

To support its operations, Gul Ahmed has invested 
in captive power plants equipped with tri-fuel 
engines, turbines, and backup generators, ensuring 
uninterrupted production. In line with its 
commitment to sustainability, the company has 
also undertaken significant investments in 
renewable energy, including the installation of 
rooftop solar panels, the adoption of biomass 
boilers, and the establishment of a cotton waste 
recycling plant. Complementing these initiatives is 
an effluent treatment facility that treats 100 
percent of the wastewater generated during 
production.

These measures reflect Gul Ahmed’s broader 
strategy to minimize its environmental footprint. 
The company’s initiatives toward net-zero 
emissions and zero liquid discharge have earned 
recognition from customers, regulators, and 
national organizations. With a legacy spanning 
more than 70 years, Gul Ahmed continues to 
uphold its reputation for quality, innovation, and 
customer satisfaction, while setting new 
benchmarks in sustainable textile manufacturing.
As part of its continued engagement with the 

textile sector and commitment to industry-wide 
development, Gul Ahmed is an active member of 
the following trade bodies and professional associ-
ations:

•  All Pakistan Textile Mills Association (APTMA)
•  Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry (KCCI)
•  The Karachi Cotton Association (KCA)
•  Pakistan Business Council (PBC)
•  Pakistan Textile Council (PTC)
•  Employers' Federation of Pakistan
•  Pakistan Textile Exporters Association
•  All Pakistan Textile Processing Mills Association
•  Pakistan Bedwear Exporters Association (PBEA)
•  Pakistan Hosiery Manufacturers & Exporters
   Association
•  Karachi Centre for Dispute Resolution
•  International Textile Manufacturers Federation

Gul Ahmed
Holdings (Pvt.)

Ltd (PAK)

Gul Ahmed
Textile Mills Ltd.

(PAK)

55.86%

Omnify
(Pvt.) Ltd 

(PAK)

100%
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Fusion (Pvt.)
Ltd (PAK)

100%
Elegant

Fashion (Pvt.)
Ltd (PAK)

100%

GTM USA
Corporation –

USA

100%
Sky Home

Corporation -
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100%

JCCO 406 
Limited - UK

100%

Vantona Home
Limited - UK

100%

GTM Europe
Ltd – (UK)

100%

Gul Ahmed
Ecofab (Pvt.)

Ltd (PAK)

100%
Gul Ahmed

International Ltd
(FZC) – (UAE)

100%
Gul Ahmed
Ecotex (Pvt.)

Ltd (PAK)

100%
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Circular Fabrics
(Pvt.) Ltd (PAK)

100% 100%
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Ltd (PAK)
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OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

YARN

Gul Ahmed exports a wide variety of yarn to countries 
across the globe, including China, several Asian 
nations, the Middle East, and Europe. Our diverse yarn 
portfolio includes package-dyed/cone-dyed, carded, 
combed, compact siro, fancy, plied, core-spun, slub, 
and gassed mercerized/dyed yarn, each meticulously 
crafted to meet the specific needs of our 
international customers.

FABRIC

At Gul Ahmed, we have the advanced capability to 
dye and print a wide range of home textile and 
apparel fabrics within our state-of-the-art facility. Our 
infrastructure also includes specialized processes like 
back coating and flock printing, allowing us to offer 
enhanced solutions tailored to our customers' diverse 
requirements. Our fabric portfolio is extensive, 
featuring plain fabrics, sheeting, poplin, canvas, 
oxford, duck, Bedford cord, herringbone, ottoman, 
twill, sateen, rib stop, slub, stretch, and mélange 
fabrics, all crafted to the highest standards of quality.

BLEACHED FIBER

Gul Ahmed’s production of high-quality absorbent 
bleached cotton, designed to meet the stringent 
requirements of the cosmetic and medical industries,
has continued to gain strong traction since its launch
over two years ago. Building on consistent positive 
feedback from export customers, the company has 
expanded its production capacity and upgraded its 
facilities to develop higher-grade varieties, further 
strengthening its position in this specialized market.

HOME TEXTILE

Our home textile products are crafted to meet all 
home and office décor needs, setting new trends and 
fashion standards with meticulous design. This 
product line includes a wide range of items, such as:
• Sheets and Pillowcases
• Comforters
• Quilt/Duvet Covers
• Bed-in-a-Bag Sets
• Decorative Pillows
• Curtains
• Upholstery Fabrics

Each product is thoughtfully created to enhance the 
aesthetic and comfort of any space.

Gul Ahmed has continually broadened its product o�erings to keep pace with changing customer needs, demonstrating an 
unwavering focus on quality and innovation. The company combines advanced technology with deep industry expertise to 
create a wide variety of products that bring together functionality and design excellence. Every product is crafted to the 
highest standards while staying in line with modern trends and consumer expectations. Alongside this, Gul Ahmed integrates 
sustainability into both its products and packaging, highlighting its long-term commitment to environmentally responsible 
practices. The company’s current portfolio includes:

VISION
Enriching Lives by Inspiring Change.

MISSION
To deliver value to our stakeholders through innovative technology, teamwork and by fulfilling our social and 
environmental responsibilities.

VALUES

 INTEGRITY:
 We always act with honesty and transparency in all that we do. We do what we say and  
 believe in keeping our promises and commitments.

RESPECT:
 We treat our people and business partners with respect, fairness and humbleness. We also 
 encourage people to share their opinions even if it differs from our own.

 PASSION:
 We believe passion is the fuel that inspire and drives us to lead and move forward.

 QUALITY:
 We demonstrate quality and strive for excellence through all our actions.

 TEAMWORK:
 We are one team and committed to an environment where every person is a valued member 
 and treated with respect. We encourage togetherness believe in recognizing team efforts.

OUR PLEDGE
I hereby commit to Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited. that: 

I will fulfill all my duties with Integrity, Passion, and Ownership. 

I will treat my fellow employees and business partners with Respect. 

I will demonstrate Quality and Strive for Excellence through all my actions. 

I will support every member of my team and, through Teamwork, ensure that together we make our company a great 
organization.

Annual Report 2025   |   1211   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



LEGACY AND MILESTONES

The business started 
near the turn of the 
century as a humble 

family-owned 
enterprise 

The private company 
is converted into a 
public company as
Gul Ahmed Textile 

Mills Limited.

Gul Ahmed 
International Limited 
FZC is incorporated in 

Sharjah UAE, as a 
wholly owned 

subsidiary of Gul 
Ahmed Textile
Mills Limited

Gul Ahmed’s Effluent 
Treatment Plant (ETP) 
became operational 

with a processing 
capacity of 1.0 million 

gallons per day. 
Comprising two 

treatment trains of 0.5 
MGD each, the facility 
was designed to fully 

comply with the 
National 

Environmental Quality 
Standards (NEQS).

Gul Ahmed’s 
state-of-the-art Fiber 

Bleaching Plant 
became operational, 
marking the first of its 
kind in Pakistan. The 
facility enables the 

company to convert 
waste cotton into 

medical-grade 
bleached absorbent 

cotton, widely used in 
both medical and 

cosmetic products.

Gul Ahmed entered 
the local retail market 

with Ideas by Gul 
Ahmed, offering 

quality apparel and 
home textiles through 

its outlets across 
Pakistan.

Under a scheme of 
arrangement, Ideas is 

demerged to form 
Ideas (Pvt) Limited,

a wholly owned 
subsidiary of
Gul Ahmed.

Gul Ahmed completed 
the installation 2 MW 
rooftop solar panel 
system as part of an 

overall plan to establish 
20 MW rooftop solar 
panel systems on all 
units of the company

Gul Ahmed Textile 
Mills Limited is listed 
on the Karachi Stock 
Exchange (now the 

Pakistan Stock 
Exchange)

The growth of the 
family business led to 
the incorporation of 

Gul Ahmed as a private 
limited company.

1900s 1955 2002 2006 2022

1953 1970 2003 2021

2025

2024
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BOD Meeting - 
Audited Annual 
Accounts for the 

year ended 
June 30, 2024

September 
2024

72nd  Annual General 
Meeting was held in 

Karachi

October 
2024

BOD Meeting - 
Accounts for the 
Quarter ended 

September 30, 2024

October 
2024

BOD Meeting - 
Accounts for the 
Half Year ended 

December 31, 2024

February 
2025

BOD Meeting - 
Accounts for the Nine 
Months ended March 

31, 2025

April 
2025

YEAR IN REVIEW
NOTABLE EVENTS NOTABLE FINANCIAL EVENTS

FIRE DRILL & SAFETY EVENTS

Gul Ahmed 
partnered with Deaf 

Reach Pakistan to 
support their efforts 

and extent a
helping hand

August
2024

Independence Day 
Celebrations held 
in all units of Gul 

Ahmed

August
2024 In collaboration 

with AMTF Blood 
Donation Drives 

were conducted in 
various units of Gul 

Ahmed

August
2024

Employee Wellness 
Events including 
Panel Discussion 

on Holistic 
Well-Being

October
2024

Performance 
Recognition Events

November
2024

Sustainability Initiatives 
-Awareness Programs

December 
2024

Gul Ahmed 
participated in 

Annual Heimtextil 
Exhibition held in 

Germany

January 
2025

Company Vision & 
Values - Awareness 

Sessions

February 
2025

Annual Women’s 
Day Celebration

March 
2025

28KW Solar Panel 
System installed at 

Al-Mustafa 
Orphanage

March 
2025

AI Enabled 
Organization - 

Training & Awareness 
Sessions

April 
2025

Operational 
Excellence - Training 

& Awareness

May 
2025

June 
2025

Safety/HSE Week - 
Multiple Events

July 
2024

Fire Drill & Safety 
For the 1st Quarter 

FY 2024

August 
2024

Fire Drill & Safety For 
the 2nd Quarter

FY 2024

November 
2024

Fire Drill & Safety 
For the 3rd  Quarter 

FY 2025

February 
2025

Fire Drill & Safety 
For the 4th Quarter 

FY 2025

May 
2025

Awareness Session - 
Income Tax Filling 

made easy
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Corporate Governance

LEADERSHIP
A MARK OF

With a legacy, built on vision and values, we continue to lead the industry 
through innovation, excellence and responsible growth



PROFILE OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Mohomed Bashir
Chairman

Mr. Mohomed Bashir joined the Board of Gul Ahmed 
Textile Mills Limited in 1982. He is a fellow member of 
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants 
(CIMA), United Kingdom.

In recognition of his services he has been awarded 
Sitara�e�Imtiaz by the President of Pakistan in 2006 
and was also conferred with Justice of Peace. On 
April 7, 2017 he was awarded with the Grade d’ 
Officier in the National Order of Merit by the 
President of the French Republic.  On 19 February 
2020, Mr. Bashir was awarded the Knight of King, 
Northern Star Order, first class by the King of Sweden, 
Mr. Carl Gustaf.

Mr. Mohomed Bashir has a very rich and extensive 
experience in commerce and industry. He is currently 
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Gul Ahmed 
Textile Mills Limited. He is also serving on the Boards 
of the following organizations:

• Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited
• Ideas (Private) Limited.
• Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
• GTM (Europe) Limited – UK
• Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC) – UAE
• Habib University Foundation
• Gul Ahmed Energy Limited
• Education Fund for Sindh
• International Cotton Association Limited (ICA)
• International Textile Manufacturers Federation (ITMF)

Presently his honorary Government, Trade & Industry 
and Consular positions include:

• President – International Cotton Association (ICA) 
 (2024-2025)
• Chairperson – Apparel, Made-Ups and Technical 
 Textile Council, Ministry of Commerce.
• Member – Sindh Doing Business Reform Council
• Member – National Export Development Board 
 (NEDB)
• Member – Pakistan China Business and 
 Investment Forum
• Member – Prime Minister’s Council of Business 
 Leaders, Government of Pakistan, Ministry of  
 Commerce and Textile. 
• Member – Task Force on Textile Policy, 

 Government of Pakistan, Ministry of Commerce 
 and Textile.
• Member – Pakistan France Business Council
• Member – Pakistan German Business Council
• Member – Pakistan Swedish Business Council

Previously, he also held the following honorary 
Government and Trade & Industry positions;

• Vice President – International Cotton Association 
 (ICA) (2023 – 2024)
• Honorary Consul General of Sweden – Sindh / 
 Baluchistan (2015 to 2023)
• Chairman – Pakistan Business Council 
 (2014 to 2015)
• Founder/Director – Pakistan Business Council 
 (2005 to 2022)
• President – International Textile Manufacturers 
 Federation (ITMF) (2010 to 2012)
• Member – Tax Reform Commission, Ministry of 
 Finance (2014 to 2016)
• Member – Tax Advisory Council, FBR (2014 to 2016)
• Founder/Trustee – Fellowship Fund For Pakistan 
 (2003 to 2013)
• Member – Advisory Committee, Federal Tax 
 Ombudsman, Government of Pakistan 
 (2011 to 2014) 
• Member – Economic Advisory Council, 
 Government of Pakistan (2001 to 2003 and 
 2008 to 2013)
• Member – Export Promotion Board, Government 
 of Pakistan (1995 to1997 and 2002 to 2007)
• Member – National Strategy on Textiles 
 (2006 to 2007)
• Chairman – Pakistan Britain Advisory Council 
 (2002 to 2005)
• Chairman – All Pakistan Textile, Mills Association 
 (1989 to 1990)
• Vice Chairman – All Pakistan Textile Mills 
 Association (1982 to 1985)
• Chairman – Pakistan Swiss Trade and Industry 
 Committee (1981 to 2000)
• Member of Governing Board – Pakistan Design 
 Institute (1981 to 2000)
• Member – Advisory Board of CPLC, Government 
 of Sindh (2010)

ORGANOGRAM  

Board of
Directors

Human
Resource &

Remuneration
Committee

Chief
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Officer

Director
Human
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Marketing
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Directors
Business
Finance

Chief
Financial
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Company
Secretary

Chief
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Internal
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Mr. Zain Bashir
Vice Chairman/Executive Director

Mr. Zain Bashir has been a member of the Board 
since May 1997 and currently serves as the Vice 
Chairman of the Company. He is a Certified Director 
from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 
(PICG). In addition to his responsibilities within the 
Company, he serves as Chief Executive Officer on the 
Board of the Landhi Infrastructure Development and 
Management Company, which is responsible for the 
development and enhancement of infrastructure in 
the Landhi Industrial Area.

He has also held several key leadership positions in 
industry associations, including serving as Chairman 
and President of the Landhi Association of Trade and 
Industry during 2009–2010, 2015–2016, and 2018–2019. 
From 2012–2013, he served as Chairman of the Pakistan 
Bedwear Exporters Association. Furthermore, he has 
been an Executive Committee Member of the Landhi 
Association of Trade and Industry. He also serves as 
Chief Executive Officer of the Group’s associated 
companies, namely Swisstex Chemicals and Winstar.

With extensive experience in the textile industry and 
active representation of Karachi’s industrial sector 
through various associations, Mr. Bashir possesses 
deep insights into the industry’s operations, 
dynamics, and challenges.

Mr. Mohammed Zaki Bashir
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Mr. Mohammed Zaki Bashir joined Gul Ahmed Textile 
Mills Limited in 2005 and became a member of the 
Board in 2008. He currently serves as the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company. He holds a 
graduate degree in International Business from 
Regents Business School, UK, and is a certified 
director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance (PICG).

In addition to his academic qualifications, he plays an 
active role in several industry organizations. He is a 
member of the Executive Committee of the All 
Pakistan Textile Mills Association (APTMA) and has 
been a member of the Entrepreneurs Organization 
(EO) since 2014. EO is a global, peer-to-peer network 
of over 12,000 influential business owners, with 173 
chapters in 54 countries. He is also a member of the 
Pakistan Textile Council, where he serves on the 
board of directors, as well as a member of the Young 
Presidents Organization (YPO) Pakistan.

He has also been appointed to the Heimtextil 
Advisory Board, becoming the first Pakistani industry 
leader to join the prestigious global panel.

Through his in-depth understanding of the Company 
and the industry, he has significantly contributed to 
its overall growth and success. In addition to his role 
at Gul Ahmed, he serves on the boards of the 
following companies:

• Arwen Tech International Limited (FZC) – UAE

• Gul Ahmed Power Company (Private) Limited

• Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC) – UAE

• GTM (Europe) Limited – UK

• GTM USA Corp. – USA

• Ideas (Private) Limited

• Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited

• Sky Home USA Corp. – USA

• Pakistan Textile Council

Mr. Ziad Bashir
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ziad Bashir has been a member of the Board 
since February 1999. He holds a bachelor’s degree in 
Entrepreneurial Studies from Babson College, USA, 
and brings extensive experience in the textile sector. 
He is also a certified director from the Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG).

Throughout his career, he has held several prominent 
positions in industry and trade organizations. He has 
served as Chairman of the Landhi Association of 
Trade and Industry and is currently on the Board of 
Landhi Infrastructure Development and Management 
Company. Additionally, he has been the President of 
the Young Presidents Organization (YPO) Pakistan 
and has served on the Executive Committee of the 
Pakistan Board of Investment. He is also a member of 
the Central Managing Committee of the All Pakistan 
Textile Mills Association (APTMA), as well as a Director 
on the Board of the Pakistan Business Council. He 
currently chairs the Pakistan Retail Business Council 
and serves as the Honorary Consulate General of 
Denmark in Pakistan. He has been acknowledged by 
H.E. King of Denmark, Frederik André Henrik 
Christian, with the Knight’s Cross of the Order 
of Dannenberg.

In addition to his industry roles, he has been actively 
involved in advising on national economic policies 
having served on various Prime Minister’s Economic 
Advisory Committees, focusing on key areas such as 
domestic commerce and information technology. 
With a longstanding commitment to promoting 
provincial trade and investment, he has been 
associated with the Punjab Board of Investment and 
Trade for nearly a decade. Furthermore, he is a 
member of several Federal Board of Revenue 
committees, working to enhance the efficiency of the 
tax system and contribute to the overall economic 
development of the country.

Furthermore, he is leading an initiative in the food & 
beverage sector, introducing Ideas Café, which 
started in Karachi and aims to expand to 10 more 
locations nationwide over the next 2 years.

Mr. Ehsan A. Malik
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ehsan A. Malik joined the Board of Directors of the 
Company in June 2016 and serves as a member of its 
Audit Committee. He is a fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and 
an alumnus of both the Wharton and Harvard 
Business Schools. He is also a certified director from 
the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) 
and currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Pakistan Business Council.

From September 2006 to October 2014, he was the 
Chief Executive Officer of Unilever Pakistan Limited 
and a Director of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited. 
Prior to this, he was Chairman and CEO of Unilever Sri 
Lanka Limited. His international appointments 
include Unilever’s regional businesses across Egypt, 
Lebanon, Jordan, Syria, and Sudan, as well as at 
Unilever’s Head Office in the UK. Before these 
international assignments, he held senior commercial 
and financial positions at 
Unilever Pakistan.

He also serves on the boards of Abbott Laboratories 
Pakistan Limited, National Foods Limited, 
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited, and 
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited.



Ms. Zeeba Ansar
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zeeba Ansar joined the Board as an independent 
non-executive director in April 2020. She is also the 
Chairperson of the Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee of the Company. 

She has over 28 years of private and corporate 
banking experience. She did her Bachelors in 
Economics and Statistics from the University of 
Punjab and then completed her MBA in Marketing 
and Finance from the Institute of Business 
Administration. She is a certified director from 
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. 
In her career as a banker she has worked with 
Deutsche Bank AG as Manager Corporate Banking 
Department and Faysal Bank as Senior Vice President 
and Corporate Head-South. She then joined UBL as 
Executive Vice President and Regional Corporate 
Head-South and retained the position for 10 years. 
Her most recent professional engagement was with 
NIB Bank as Group Head-Corporate and Investment 
Banking where she worked till 2017. 
She is serving as an independent director on the 
Board of Directors of Cherat Cement Company 
Limited, SAMBA Bank Limited and Lucky Investments 
Limited. In addition to her directorship, she is a 
Chairperson of Audit Committee and member of 
Board Risk Committee of the Lucky Investments 
Limited. 

Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza is a Chartered Accountant, qualifying 
in November 1968 from the United Kingdom. He began 
his career in Pakistan as an auditor with A.F. Ferguson & 
Co. before transitioning in December 1970 to Abbott 
Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited, a leading multinational 
pharmaceutical and healthcare company. Initially joining 
as Chief Financial Officer, he became one of the youngest 
Managing Directors of Abbott Pakistan in 1977, a position 
he held for 29 years.

He served as Chairman of the Export Processing Zones 
Authority from February 2007 to March 2009 and then 
proceeded to take on the role of Chief Executive Officer 
of the Pakistan Business Council (PBC), where he served 
until December 2015. During his tenure he represented 
PBC on the Board of Investments (“BOI”) and other 
Government Bodies and Institutions.

Currently, he serves on the boards of Colgate Palmolive 
(Pakistan) Limited, Askari Bank Limited, Rafhan Maize 
Products Company Limited, and the Education Fund 
for Sindh (EFS), where he previously held the position of 
Chairman from December 2012 to October 2016.

Throughout his distinguished career, Kamran Mirza has 
held several notable leadership positions. He served as 
Director on the Boards of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), 
Chairman of the Pakistan Mercantile Exchange (PMEX) 
and the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE), as well as 
President of the Overseas Chamber of Commerce & 
Industry (OICCI) and the American Business Council 
(ABC). He also chaired the Pharma Bureau, an 
association of multinational pharmaceutical 
companies. His past board memberships include 
prominent organizations such as the Pakistan State Oil 
(PSO), International Steels Limited, National Bank of 
Pakistan (NBP), Sarmaya-e-Pakistan Limited, Bank 
Alfalah Limited, Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited, 
Pakistan Textile City Limited, Competitiveness Support 
Fund, Genco Holding Company, NAVTEC and Safari 
Club of Pakistan Limited. He also served as chairman of 
Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited, Phillip Morris (Pakistan) 
Limited and Karwan-e-Hayat. 

Mr. Mirza has been actively involved in various 
government and advisory roles. He chaired a task 
force on the pharmaceutical industry for the Planning 
Commission, served on the Federal Government's 
Economic Advisory Board, and was a member of the 
Sindh Wildlife Board. 

Additionally, he contributed to the Quality Control 
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) and has also lectured at the Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG).

Audit Committee
1. Composition
•   Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza - Chairman and Member 
•   Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member 
•   Mr. Ehsan A. Malik - Member
•   Mr. Salim Ghaffar – Secretary

2.  Terms of Reference
  The committee shall be responsible for:

• Reviewing the system of internal controls, risk 
management and the audit process besides assisting 
the Board in reviewing financial statements. 

• Recommending to the Board of Directors the 
appointment of external auditors, determining 
audit fees and settling other related matters. 

• Determination of appropriate measures to 
safeguard the Company’s assets. 

• Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual finan-
cial statements of the Company, prior to their 
approval by the Board of Directors.

Major judgmental areas:
• Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

• The going concern assumption;

• Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

• Compliance with applicable accounting standards; 

• Compliance with listing regulations and other 
statutory and regulatory requirements;

• Review of preliminary announcements of results 
prior to publication; 

• Facilitating the external audit and discussion with 
external auditors of major observations arising 
from interim and final audits and any matter that 
the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence 
of management, where necessary);

• Review of the management letter issued by 
external auditors and management’s response 
thereto; 

• Ensuring coordination between the internal and 
external auditors of the Company;

• Review of the scope and extent of internal audit 
and ensuring that the internal audit function has 

adequate resources and is appropriately placed 
within the Company;

• Consideration of major findings of internal investi-
gations and management’s response thereto;

• Ascertaining that the internal control system 
including financial and operational controls, 
accounting system and reporting structure are 
adequate and effective;

• Review of the Company’s statements on internal 
control system prior to endorsement by the Board 
of Directors;

• Instituting special projects, value for money 
studies or other investigations on any matter 
specified by the Board of Directors, in consultation 
with the Chief Executive and considering remit-
tance of any matter to the external auditors or to 
any other external body;

• Determination of compliance with relevant 
statutory requirements; 

• Monitoring compliance with the best practices of 
corporate governance and identification of 
significant violations thereof; and 

• Consideration of any other issue of matter as may 
be assigned by the Board of Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES
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EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
& DEVELOPMENT

At Gul Ahmed, we remain dedicated to building a 
workplace culture where employees feel respected, 
supported, and motivated to excel. Our focus 
continued to be on fostering an environment that 
prioritizes employee well-being, professional 
development, and equitable opportunities.

Through progressive HR policies and 
employee-focused initiatives, we ensure fair 
compensation, a safe working environment, and 
access to continuous learning and growth 
opportunities. Our people strategy emphasizes 
enablement, engagement, and empowerment, 
enabling employees to realize their potential while 
driving collective organizational success.

With a strong commitment to talent management, 
we have further strengthened our ability to attract, 
develop, and retain high-performing professionals. 
This approach not only supports the aspirations of 
our workforce but also reinforces Gul Ahmed’s 
position as a leading player in the textile industry.

Employee Benefits
The well-being of our people remains central to Gul 
Ahmed’s values, and we ensure full compliance with 
all applicable laws and regulations governing 
employee remuneration. Oversight is provided by the 
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee, 
which advises the Board on compensation policies 
and ensures fair practices for directors and senior 
management.

During the fiscal year ended June 2025, the Company 
disbursed Rs. 20.04 billion in employee remuneration, 
compared to Rs. 18.08 billion in 2024. This increase 
highlights our ongoing commitment to fair 
compensation, reinforced by strict adherence to 
government-mandated minimum wage standards to 
guarantee that every employee is paid at or above 
prescribed levels.

Beyond salaries, Gul Ahmed offers a broad range of 
benefits designed to enhance the financial security 
and quality of life of its workforce. These include 
health and life insurance, Employees’ Old-Age 
Benefits (EOBI), Workers’ Welfare and Profit 
Participation funds, paid leave (casual, sick, annual, 
and maternity), as well as subsidized transportation, 
dining facilities, and retirement benefits. Together, 
these measures reflect the Company’s holistic 
approach to employee care and development.

Employee Engagement & Well Being
We actively organize and implement Employee 
Engagement initiatives that are well-received by both 

employees and management. These initiatives 
include training sessions on AI, Tax Filing, health and 
exercise session conducted by Trifit and 
departmental sports events, annual women’s day 
celebration and free medical check-ups. 

Our recent "Wellness Month: Sehatmand Gul Ahmed" 
campaign focused on promoting the eight distinct 
pillars of well-being: Mental, Social, Intellectual, 
Occupational, Environmental, Financial, Spiritual, and 
Emotional. The Human Resource department 
conducted various activities throughout the month to 
address each of these pillars.

The primary focus of these activities is to provide a 
platform where employees' voices are heard and 
valued. Gul Ahmed recognizes the heart and soul of 
the organization are the staff, management, and 
every dedicated worker who plays a vital role in 
shaping our success. These programs celebrate our 
people and recognizes that a healthy and happy 
workforce is the cornerstone of a thriving 
organization.

Training, Development & Succession Planning
Gul Ahmed is committed to providing its employees 
with the training and development opportunities 
they need to succeed. By offering a variety of training 
programs, both internal and external, we are 
empowering our team members to expand their 
skills, knowledge, and career horizons. Additionally, 
we implement job enrichment and enlargement 
initiatives to facilitate employee development and 
engagement. These strategies involve expanding job 
responsibilities and providing employees with greater 
autonomy and decision-making authority, leading to 
increased job satisfaction and motivation.
Our training programs are carefully designed to cater 
to the specific needs of each employee level, 
ensuring that they receive the most relevant and 
effective instruction. We offer a diverse range of 
training sessions, including:

• Skills Development: These sessions focus on 
enhancing employees' technical skills and 
competencies.

• External Trainings: Conducted by industry experts, 
these trainings provide employees with exposure 
to the latest trends and best practices.

• Leadership Programs: Designed to equip 
employees with the skills and knowledge they 
need to take on leadership roles, these programs 
contribute to our succession planning efforts.
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
1.
• Ms. Zeeba Ansar - Chairman and Member 
• Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member 
• Mr. Zain Bashir - Member 
• Mr. Salim Ghaffar - Secretary

2. Terms of Reference
 The committee shall be responsible for:

• Recommend to the Board for consideration and 
approval a policy framework for determining 
remuneration of directors (both executive and 
non-executive directors and members of senior 
management). The senior management shall 
include the first layer of management below the 
chief executive officer level; 

• Undertaking annually a formal process of evalua-
tion of performance of the Board as a whole and 
its committees either directly or by engaging 
external independent consultant and if so 
appointed, a statement to that effect shall be 
made in the directors’ report disclosing name, 
qualifications and major terms of appointment; 

• Recommending human resource management 
policies to the Board; 

• Recommending to the Board the selection, 
evaluation, development, compensation (includ-
ing retirement benefits) of Chief Operating Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and 
Head of Internal Audit; 

• Consideration and approval on recommendations of 
Chief Executive Officer on such matters for key 
management positions who report directly to Chief 
Executive Officer or Chief Operating Officer; and 

• Where human resource and remuneration consul-
tants are appointed, their credentials shall be 
known by the Committee and a statement shall 
be made by them as to whether they have any 
other connection with the Company.

• Ensuring that appropriate procedures exist to 
assess the remuneration levels of the 

• Chairman, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Non-Execu-
tive Directors, Executive Directors, Board Commit-
tees and the Board of Directors as a whole. 

• Ensuring that the Company adopts, monitors and 
applies appropriate remuneration policies and 
procedures. 

• Ensuring that reporting disclosures related to 
remuneration meet the Board’s disclosures 
objectives and all relevant legal requirements. 

• Making recommendations to the Board on 
appropriate remuneration, in relation to both the 
amount and its compositions, for the Chairman, 
CEO, Non-Executive Directors, Executive Directors 
and Senior Executives. 

• Developing and recommending to the Board 
performance-based remuneration incentive 
programs such as bonus schemes, long-term 
incentive plans. 

• Developing, maintaining and monitoring appro-
priate Human Resource Policies and Procedures. 

• Developing, maintaining and monitoring appro-
priate talent management programs including 
succession planning, recruitment, development, 
retention and termination policies and procedures 
for senior management. 

• Developing remuneration related disclosure 
objectives for the Company and ensuring that 
publicly disclosed information meets those 
objectives, all legal requirements, and is accurate; 
and 

• Developing and monitoring Workplace Health and 
Safety metrics and initiatives to ensure a safe 
working environment

Composition



By investing in our employees' development, we are 
not only helping them to advance their careers but 
also strengthening our organization's overall 
performance.

Training Organization Outside of Practice (TOoP)
Following our recognition as a Training Organization 
Outside of Practice (TOoP) by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in May 2024, Gul Ahmed 
has continued to actively nurture the professional 
growth of aspiring chartered accountants. In 2025, our 
focus has been on providing structured training and 
comprehensive learning opportunities to our first batch 
of CA trainees.

To ensure well-rounded development, we have 
designed a rotational training program across key 

departments, including Taxation, Treasury, Financial 
Reporting, Internal Audit, and other critical business 
functions. This approach allows trainees to gain 
hands-on exposure to diverse areas of the business, 
enhancing both their technical expertise and 
practical understanding of the textile industry.

Through mentorship, professional guidance, and 
real-time project involvement, we are equipping 
these young professionals with the skills and 
knowledge required to excel in their careers. Gul 
Ahmed remains committed to strengthening the 
accounting profession by investing in future leaders 
who will contribute meaningfully to the corporate 
and financial sectors of Pakistan.

HEALTH, SAFETY & 
ENVIRONMENT (HSE)

Gul Ahmed is committed to provide a safe and 
healthy working environment to its employees where 
they can work securely without the fear of injury or 
illness. Our Health and Safety Management (“HSE”) 
System is designed in compliance with the local 
regulations (Sindh Occupational Safety & Health Act 
2017), international standards such as Sustainable 
Textile Production (STeP) and buyers specific Code of 
Conducts that are communicated and implemented 
across the organization. 

The HSE Management System implemented at Gul 
Ahmed is based on the methodology of Plan-
ning-Doing-Checking-Acting (“PDCA”) cycle in 
accordance with ISO 45001 -2018, covering all 
processes of our operations. 

HSE Training at Gul Ahmed 
At Gul Ahmed, we prioritize the health and safety of 
our workforce by mandating comprehensive HSE 
(Health, Safety, and Environment) training for all 
employees and contractors upon induction, ensuring 
they are equipped with the necessary knowledge 
before commencing their assigned tasks. This 
approach has significantly enhanced overall safety 
awareness, leading to a marked reduction in 
accidents and injuries in the workplace.

Beyond induction, our HSE department regularly 
conducts specialized training sessions throughout 
the year, led by qualified HSE professionals. These 
trainings cover critical areas such as Firefighting, 
Workplace Safety & Ergonomics, First Aid, and Mock 
Evacuation Drills. These ongoing training initiatives 
reinforce our commitment to safety and help embed 
best practices within the workforce.

Furthermore, we have implemented a robust Permit 
to Work (PTW) system as an integral part of our HSE 
management framework. The PTW system ensures 
that all hazardous or non-routine tasks, which pose 
potential risks, are executed safely and efficiently. This 
system involves a thorough process of requesting, 
reviewing, and authorizing tasks, with a strong 
emphasis on documentation and de-conflicting of 
concurrent jobs. It guarantees that all relevant 
personnel are fully aware of the nature and hazards 
associated with the task, and that safety precautions 
are in place before work begins. This structured 
approach minimizes the risk of critical injuries and 
ensures that all work is completed safely and correct-
ly, further reinforcing our safety culture at Gul Ahmed. 

Gul Ahmed HSE Committee 
The HSE Committee holds quarterly meetings with 
equal representation from both workers and man-
agement to promptly address occupational health 
and safety issues. These meetings provide a platform 
to discuss and resolve concerns, fostering a healthy 
work environment and facilitating communication 
between management and workers. Detailed 
minutes of each meeting are compiled, shared, and 
displayed for transparency. Workers are encouraged 
to report hazards through phone calls, safety rounds, 
and training sessions. All issues raised by the commit-
tee are evaluated using the Hazard Identification and 
Risk Assessment (HIRA) format to continuously 
improve workplace conditions.
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WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

Gul Ahmed has a whistleblowing policy in place. Such 
policies are essential for creating an open and 
transparent work environment where employees can 
raise concerns about potential violations of legal or 
regulatory requirements, financial misrepresentations, 
or any other misconduct without fear of retaliation. 

Having a well-defined whistleblowing policy 
demonstrates the Company's commitment to ethical 
behavior and accountability. It encourages employees 
to report any issues they may encounter, helping to 
identify and address problems early, which can 
ultimately prevent more significant issues from arising.

This policy not only benefits the organization by 
promoting ethical conduct but also helps protect the 
rights and interests of employees who may otherwise 
hesitate to report wrongdoing. It's an important 
component of maintaining trust, integrity, and 
compliance within the Company. 

The purpose of this policy is to provide a channel to 
raise concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory 
requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation of any 
financial statements and reports, etc. without fear of 
punishment or unfair treatment. 

Guiding Principles 
Gul Ahmed has outlined a set of measures to ensure 
the effectiveness and fairness of its whistleblowing 
policy. These measures are crucial for creating an 
environment where employees feel safe and 
encouraged to report any concerns or wrongdoing. 
Let's break down these key points: 

i) Protection from Victimization: Guaranteeing that 
individuals who report protected disclosures 
(whistleblowers) or those responsible for 
processing these disclosures are not subjected to 
any form of victimization is fundamental. This 
protection helps build trust and encourages 
employees to come forward with their concerns 
without fear of retaliation.

ii) Treatment of Victimization as a Serious Matter: 
Making it clear that victimization is taken seriously 
and that appropriate disciplinary action will be 
taken against anyone involved in such behavior is 
a strong deterrent. This sends a clear message 
that retaliation will not be tolerated.

iii) Confidentiality: Ensuring complete confidentiality is 
vital for the integrity of the process. Whistleblowers 
need to have confidence that their identity and the 

information they provide will be protected. This 
encourages more open reporting. 

iv) Preservation of Evidence: The commitment not to 
hide or destroy evidence related to protected 
disclosures is crucial for maintaining transparency 
and accountability. This ensures that investigations 
can proceed effectively. 

v) Disciplinary Action for Evidence Tampering: Taking 
disciplinary action against anyone found 
tampering with or concealing evidence related to 
protected disclosures reinforces the seriousness of 
maintaining transparency and integrity. 

vi) Opportunity for the Involved Parties to Be Heard: 
Providing an opportunity for all parties involved to 
be heard is essential for a fair and unbiased 
investigation process. This ensures that the 
concerns of all parties are considered and 
evaluated objectively. 

Overall, these measures help create a robust and 
effective whistleblowing system that not only 
protects the rights of whistleblowers but also 
promotes ethical conduct and accountability within 
the organization. 

Whistle Blowing Committee 
The Whistle Blowing Committee comprises the 
following officials of the Company: 

i. Chief Financial Officer 

ii. Head of Human Resource

iii. Head of Internal Audit 

Procedure - Raising Protected Disclosure
Whistle-blowers may report their protected disclo-
sures to the Whistle Blowing Committee through the 
following methods:

i. Confidential Call

ii. Email: whistleblowing@gulahmed.com or 
bol@gulahmed.com 

iii. Whistle Blower Drop Box

Handling Protected Disclosures 
The commitment to fully investigate each protected 
disclosure received by the Whistle Blowing Commit-
tee is a crucial aspect of an effective whistleblowing 
policy. Here's why this is important: 

i) Ensures Accountability: Full investigations hold 
individuals and entities accountable for their 
actions. This means that allegations of 
wrongdoing are taken seriously, and those 
responsible are identified and held responsible. 

ii) Promotes Transparency: Thorough investigations 
promote transparency within the organization. 
When employees see that their concerns are 
being investigated seriously, it builds trust in the 
whistleblowing process and the Company's 
commitment to ethical behavior.

iii) Prevents Retaliation: Employees are more likely to 
come forward with concerns if they believe that 
their reports will lead to a comprehensive 
investigation. This reduces the risk of retaliation 
against whistleblowers.

iv) Protects Reputation: Investigating and addressing 
misconduct proactively helps protect the 
Company's reputation. It shows stakeholders, 
including employees, customers, and investors, 
that the organization takes ethics and compliance 
seriously.

v) Identifies Systemic Issues: Comprehensive 
investigations can uncover systemic issues within 
the organization. Addressing these root causes 
can help prevent similar problems from occurring 
in the future.

vi) Legal and Regulatory Compliance: In many 
jurisdictions, there are legal and regulatory 
requirements for investigating protected 
disclosures. Failure to do so can result in legal 
consequences for the organization.

vii) Improves Organizational Culture: When 
misconduct is addressed promptly and 
thoroughly, it sends a message that unethical 
behavior will not be tolerated. This helps shape a 
culture of integrity and ethical conduct within the 
Company. 

Overall, committing to fully investigate protected 
disclosures is a critical step in ensuring that a whis-
tleblowing policy is effective in promoting ethical 
behavior and compliance with laws and regulations. 
It demonstrates the organization's dedication to 
maintaining a culture of integrity and accountability.
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STATEMENT OF BUSINESS 
CONDUCT AND ETHICS CODE

Our commitment to ethical behavior is the foundation 
upon which we build relationships with business 
partners, colleagues, shareholders, and the public. This 
code of business conduct and ethics serves as a guide 
to uphold these values.

Upholding Ethical Principles
When making ethical choices, it's crucial to use sound 
judgment and avoid any actions that might seem 
questionable, even if remotely so. If you're unsure 
whether an action follows the guidelines of the Code, 
it's important to contemplate:

1. Is it consistent with the Code?  

2. Is it ethical?  

3. Is it legal?  

4. If it were made public, would I be comfortable?

If the answer is “No” to any of these questions, don’t do 
it. If you are still uncertain, ask for guidance. You can 
seek help from any of the following:

1. The Management  

2. Legal Department 

3. Human Resource Department 

4. Company Secretary

Compliance With Laws, Policies And Procedures 
1. Directors/employees shall not make, recommend 

or cause to be taken any action known or believed 
to be in violation of any law, regulation, or 
corporate policy. 

2. Directors/employees shall not make, recommend 
or cause to be made any expenditure of funds 
known or believed to be in violation of any law, 
regulation, or corporate policy.

Integrity And Respect For Others 
1. Directors/employees shall conduct their activities 

with the highest principles of integrity, 
truthfulness, objectivity, and honor. 

2. Directors/employees shall neither use their 
position to engage in unfair, deceptive or 
misleading practices nor shall they offer, promise or 
provide anything to a customer or supplier in 
exchange for an inappropriate advantage for himself 
or even for the Company. 

3. Any person representing the Company to the third 
parties shall not allow himself/herself to be placed 
in a position in which an actual or apparent 
conflict of interest exists.

Confidentiality 
1. Directors/employees shall not use or disclose the 

Company’s trade secrets, proprietary information, 
or any other confidential information gained in the 
performance of duty. 

2. Every employee must be cautious and discreet 
when using information categorized as “classified” 
or “confidential-restricted access.” Such 
information should be shared only with the 
Company’s employees who have a legitimate 
“need to know.” Outside parties should have 
access to such information only if they are under 
binding confidentiality agreements and have a 
“need to know.” 

3. Similarly, when handling sensitive information that 
has been entrusted to our Company by others, we 
must always treat it with the maximum care. 
Doing so, it can protect the Company from 
potential liability.

4. We must also comply with all laws, regulations, 
and contractual commitments regarding the valid 
and enforceable intellectual property rights of 
third parties, including patents, copyrights, trade 
secrets, and other proprietary information. 

5. If anyone has a question about the use of 
patented or proprietary information, including the 
computer software of third parties, he/she should 
contact Legal Department. In order to use 
copyright material such as articles, charts, maps, 
films, and music, permission must be obtained 
from the copyright owner.

Avoiding Conflict Of Interest
1. It is always expected from every director/employee 

to act in the best interests of the Company. This 
means that business decisions should be made free 
from any conflict of interest. They should also appear 
impartial. Decisions must be made on sound 
business reasoning.

2. Directors, employees and their close relatives – must 
never: 

 a) Compete against the Company. 

 b) Use their position or influence to secure an 
  improper benefit for themselves or others.

 c) Use Company information, assets or resources 
  for their personal gain or the unauthorized 
  benefit of others.

 d) Take advantage of inside information.

3. It is also a conflict of interest for a director or 
employee to give or receive gifts or cash in any 
amount to or from people or companies doing or 
seeking to do business with the Company. Therefore, 
we must not: 

 a) Accept fees or honoraria in exchange for services 
provided on behalf of the Company.

 b) Provide or accept gifts or entertainment from 
anyone doing or seeking business with the 
Company or any of its affiliates. Generally, 
modest forms of gifts and entertainment (like 
souvenirs of the company or magazines and 
lunch/dinner in connection while performing 
their duties to the Company) received from 
vendors are acceptable and do not create a 
conflict of interest. Consult with Legal 
Department to learn about the guidelines. 

4. Insider Trading

 a) It is illegal to purchase or sell securities of the 
Company if you have “material nonpublic 
information” concerning the Company. 

 b) If anybody engages in insider trading then 
he/she will face disciplinary actions including 
significant civil and criminal penalties. 

Company Records And Internal Controls
1. The Company’s books and records must be 

prepared accurately and honestly, both by our 
accountants who prepare records of transactions 
and by any of us who contribute to the creation of 
business records.

2. The Company shall maintain accounting records 
and issue financial statements as required by the 
local laws to ensure transparency of information on 
the Company’s financial performance.

3. Reliable internal controls are critical for the security 
of the Company’s assets, proper, complete and 
accurate accounting, and financial reporting. 
Everyone must understand the internal controls 
relevant to his/her position and follow the policies 
and procedures related to those controls. Everyone 
is encouraged to talk to their managers or 

supervisors immediately if ever in a doubt that a 
control is not adequately detecting or preventing 
inaccuracy, waste, or fraud.

4. Audits performed by internal and external auditors 
help ensure compliance with established policies, 
procedures, and controls. Audits also help identify 
potential weaknesses so these may be fixed 
promptly. Everyone is required to cooperate fully 
with internal and external auditors. This means 
always providing clear and truthful information and 
cooperating fully during the audit process.

5. Engaging in any scheme to defraud anyone — of 
money, property or honest services — violates 
Company’s policy and carries severe penalties. These 
consequences apply to all dishonest or fraudulent 
activities, including misusing or stealing assets. The 
Company relies on its internal controls and the 
personal integrity of all its directors, employees and 
contractors to protect assets against damage, theft 
and other unauthorized use.

Dealing With Various Stakeholders
Every business unit or section of the Company shall 
follow policies and procedures which are consistent 
with the Code while dealing with different stakeholders.

1. Customers
a) Treat customers fairly and honestly.

b) Provide high standards of services and quality 
products. 

c) Operate effective complaint processes to deal with 
situations where these standards are challenged.

d) Aim to provide and promote a range of products 
and services that meet customer requirements and 
needs.

e) Maintain the confidentiality of customer 
information, except where the law requires/permits 
disclosure, or the customer has given prior written 
consent.

2. Employees
a) The Company has maintained a suitable working 

environment that provides appropriate training, 
transparent career growth opportunities and 
competitive remuneration packages including 
benefits that are also in compliance with the 
employment-related laws and regulations of 
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 Pakistan as well as other relevant countries.

b) It is ensured that all the values and standards 
required by our business practices are 
communicated to each employee.

c) Provide a clean, healthy and safe work environment, 
stressing the obligation on all employees to take 
every reasonable precaution to avoid injury to 
themselves, colleagues and members of the public.

d) Provide appropriate facilities to fulfill the needs of 
special employees

e) The Company follows the laws that prohibit 
discrimination in employment practices. It is 
Company’s policy to provide equal employment 
opportunities and to treat applicants and 
employees without bias. It is our policy that no one 
is ever subject to discrimination on the basis of: 

 • Race
 • Religion  
 • Color  
 • National origin   
 • Age   
 • Sex   
 • Disability   
 • Personal/Political preference 

3. Suppliers of Goods and Services
a) Encourage dealing with those suppliers/vendors 

who operate with values and standards similar to 
those of the Company.

b) Work together with suppliers/vendors following the 
laws and policies to improve all aspects of 
performance.

c) Agree terms of payment when orders for goods and 
services are placed and pay in accordance with 
those terms.

d) No one shall engage in unfair, deceptive or 
misleading practices including receiving or 
demanding of any favors or benefits from a supplier 
as an advantage for him to win a bid or contract.

4. Communities
a) Contribute to the social and economic wellbeing of 

communities connected to the places of business of 
the Company.

b) Encourage employees to participate in projects and 
initiatives for the welfare of these communities.

c) Work and plan operations of business to minimize 
adverse environmental impact.

5. Competitors
a) Conduct business in accordance with the Code and 

compete vigorously but honestly.

b) Avoid disclosing any confidential information except 
as required by the law.

c) The Company competes fairly and complies with all 
applicable competition laws wherever the Company 
operates. These laws often are complex and vary 
considerably from country to country. Penalties for 
violation can be severe. Therefore, 
directors/employees should seek legal advice.

6. Governments and Regulators
a) Comply with all applicable laws, rules and 

regulations under which the Company operates.

b) Maintain a constructive and open relationship with 
regulators to foster mutual trust, respect and 
understanding.
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Strategy and 
Resource Allocation

PURPOSE
A MARK OF

With purpose woven into our foundation, we strive to create 
lasting impact throughevery decision and direction we take.



OBJECTIVES & STRATEGIES

Well-defined objectives, robust strategies, and effective planning are vital to an organization’s success, as 
they establish measurable goals and align efforts across all levels. For Gul Ahmed, strategic initiatives 
provide a clear roadmap to overcome competitive and operational challenges, while detailed planning 
ensures optimal use of resources. This integrated approach allows the Company to stay agile, respond to 
changing market dynamics, and sustain its competitive advantage. The strategic objectives and 
supporting plans that guide Gul Ahmed’s growth and long-term success are outlined below.

Objectives

Priority

Timeline

Current 
Status

Strategy

Resource 
allocation

KPIs

High

Long Term

On Going:
Gul Ahmed has consistently 
been recognized among 
Pakistan’s leading exporters 
and is expected to remain 
within the top five textile 
exporters in the country this 
year.

Gul Ahmed’s strategy 
emphasizes innovation, 
advanced manufacturing, 
and expansion into 
high-growth markets, while 
strengthening supplier 
partnerships.

1. Financial Capital
2. Manufactured Capital
3. Intellectual Capital
4. Social & Relationship 
 Capital

• Increase in market share
• Improvement in ranking 
 of top exporters of 
 Pakistan

High

Long Term

On Going:
In FY 2025, Gul Ahmed 
recorded a 10.3% growth in 
sales, reflecting continued 
demand for its products. 
However, higher gas tariffs, 
changes in taxation policies, 
and the need to maintain 
elevated stock levels put 
pressure on margins, 
resulting in a 14.9% decline 
in net profit.

The Company aims to 
strengthen its global 
presence by entering new, 
untapped markets while 
continuing to deliver quality 
products to its existing 
customer base. In parallel, it 
is focusing on optimizing 
costs and phasing out less 
profitable segments, 
thereby improving 
profitability and ensuring 
sustainable long-term 
growth.

1. Financial Capital
2. Manufactured Capital

• Increase in revenue and 
 profits as compared to 
 last year

High

Short Term

On Going:
Gul Ahmed will commission 17 MW of 
rooftop solar capacity and is actively 
pursuing further renewable initiatives, 
including wind power and biomass boilers  
to expand its sustainable energy portfolio. 
In parallel, the Company operates its own 
Effluent Treatment Plant, recycling 60% of 
treated wastewater for reuse in 
manufacturing, while its cotton waste 
recycling facility processes up to 200,000 
kg of production waste each month, which 
is reintroduced into spinning operations.

Increase the use of renewable energy by 
exploring additional sources, such as wind 
power, to reduce energy costs and align 
with Global Carbon Regulations. This will 
position the company to successfully enter 
new product markets thus allowing for 
sustained future growth.

1. Financial Capital
2. Manufactured Capital
3. Natural Capital

• Increase in ratio of renewable energy in 
 our energy mix
• Reduction in energy intensity ratio
• Achieving Net Zero Emissions

To become the leader in 
the Pakistan textile 
industry

To increase revenue and 
profits year on year

To incorporate environmentally friendly 
practices into our manufacturing 
process to reduce our overall 
carbon footprint

Medium

Medium Term

On Going:
The Fibre Bleaching Plant, which commenced operations 
in 2022, produces premium-quality bleached cotton for 
cosmetic and medical applications. Since inception, the 
segment has expanded significantly, recording sales of Rs. 
4.4 billion in FY 2025.

Gul Ahmed’s expansion strategy is driven by market 
research, demand analysis, and customer feedback to 
identify high-value opportunities. By diversifying into 
emerging segments and tailoring products to evolving 
needs, the Company aims to strengthen competitiveness, 
enhance profitability, and ensure long-term sustainability.

1. Intellectual Capital
2. Social & Relationship Capital

• Growth in sales of Fibre Bleaching division
• Entry into new geographical markets and product 
 segments.

Medium

Short Term

On Going:
During the year, Gul Ahmed sourced approximately 64.2 
million kg of raw material locally, representing 40% of 
total consumption. The Company also contributed Rs.119 
million in donations to various organizations and 
supported community initiatives, including the 
installation of a 28KW solar system at Al-Mustafa 
Orphanage 
(refer to Notes 28.5 and 28.6 of the unconsolidated 
financial statements for details).

Gul Ahmed’s strategy centers on strengthening local 
supply chains, including the sourcing of cotton from the 
Balochistan Organic Cotton Project developed in 
partnership with WWF, while providing employment to 
over 15,000 people. The Company is also establishing new 
subsidiaries to advance sustainable textile production, 
promote import substitution, and create localized job 
opportunities.

1. Social & Relationship Capital
2. Human Capital

• Increase in proportion of local purchases
• Increase in contribution made towards society and 
 CSR initiatives

To expand our business into new markets and 
capitalize on diversification opportunities

To support local businesses, industries and contribute 
towards sustainability of the society
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) serve as vital benchmarks for measuring the Company’s progress against its 
strategic objectives. Aligned with organizational goals, they provide a clear picture of performance, highlight areas 
for improvement, and support data-driven decision-making. By linking strategy with execution, KPIs ensure that 
every effort contributes to sustainable growth and long-term success. The following section presents the 
Company’s key KPIs along with an evaluation of its performance against these measures.

Financial Performance (Financial Capital) Indicators:
Objective: To maximize shareholder value

NON-FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Capital 
Type

Manufactured
Capital

Human 
Capital

Natural 
Capital

Social & 
Relationship 
Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Investing in and optimizing 
physical assets (including 
buildings, machinery and 
technology infrastructure) to 
improve efficiency, increase 
production capacity, and 
support long-term value 
creation.

Cultivate and harness the 
skills, knowledge, and 
abilities of the workforce, 
while ensuring a safe and 
supportive work 
environment that empowers 
employees to thrive and 
advance in their careers.

Sustainably manage and 
utilize natural resources 
such as water, air, land, and 
biodiversity, ensuring they 
are preserved and 
replenished for future use.

Cultivate and strengthen 
relationships with 
stakeholders to effectively 
navigate social expectations, 
address stakeholder needs, 
and create shared value, 
ultimately enhancing 
business resilience and 
contributing to societal 
well-being.

To cultivate, manage, and 
utilize knowledge, 
innovations, patents, 
trademarks, and other 
intellectual assets—including 
brand reputation, 
proprietary processes, and 
employee expertise—to 
introduce innovation, 
safeguard the company’s 
market position and 
generate long-term value.

Capital expenditure and 
investments made during 
the year for the purpose of 
enhancing and optimizing 
operational efficiency.

Employee engagement 
programs and training 
sessions conducted 
throughout the year.

HSE measures 
implemented across all 
Gul Ahmed premises.

Record of accidents and 
fatalities that occurred 
during the year.

Usage of sustainable and 
recycled raw material in 
production

Reduction in production 
and non-production 
waste

Treatment and recycling 
of waste water 

Increasing usage of 
renewable sources of 
energy

Contributions to CSR 
initiatives

Ensuring full compliance 
with legal and regulatory 
requirements to avoid 
penalties and legal 
actions.

Track new customer 
acquisition, market 
expansion, and new 
product introductions to 
gauge business growth. 
Monitor market share and 
brand recognition to 
assess the effectiveness of 
marketing strategies and 
competitive positioning.

Gul Ahmed has incurred approximately Rs. 
5,486 million in upgrading and expanding 
its operational facilities including 
investment in renewable energy 
generation.

For further details refer note 4.2.1 of the 
unconsolidated financial statements

In FY 2025, the Learning & Organizational 
Development department implemented 
key initiatives, including Wellness Month, 
AI-enabled training sessions, and an 
income tax filing walkthrough, to enhance 
workforce skills and well-being. 
Concurrently, the HSE department 
conducted quarterly fire drills to 
strengthen emergency preparedness, 
resulting in zero fatalities or serious injuries 
during the year.

Gul Ahmed is among the largest 
consumers of Better Cotton Initiative (BCI) 
certified cotton, and through its cotton 
waste recycling plant, the Company has 
further enhanced the use of sustainable 
raw materials while minimizing 
production waste. In addition, the Effluent 
Treatment Plant ensures that all 
discharged wastewater complies with 
environmental and regulatory standards. 
Demonstrating its commitment to 
renewable energy, In July 2025, Gul 
Ahmed has successfully installed a 17 MW 
rooftop solar system, with an additional 11 
MW scheduled for implementation in the 
coming year.

Gul Ahmed has contributed Rs. 119 million 
to various initiatives through its dedicated 
CSR partners.
For further details kindly refer note 28.5 & 
28.6 of the unconsolidated financial 
statements.

No non-compliances of any laws or 
regulations have been reported during 
the year

Gul Ahmed recorded year-on-year sales 
growth across all key regions, including 
Europe, the UK, North America, and the 
Middle East.

Refer note 36 of the unconsolidated 
financial statements for further details.

Objective Key Performance Indicator Performance in 2025

Direct
Export Sales

2025
109,265 million

2024
102,286 million

6.82 %

Indirect
Export Sales

2025
43,992 million

2024
35,374 million

24.36 %

Local Sales

2025
17,996 million

2024
14,300 million

25.85 %

Profit before 
levies and 
income tax

2025
5,660 million

2024
6,537 million

-13.42 %

Gross Profit

2025
18,978 million

2024
17,191 million

10.39 %

Profit after 
levies and 
income tax

2025
4,023 million

2024
4,728 million

-14.91 %

Earning
Per Share

2025
Rs. 5.44 Per Share

2024
Rs. 6.39 Per Share

-14.91 %

EBITDA

2025
16,312 million

2024
16,463 million

-0.75 %

Return
on Equity

2025
8.60%
2024
11.15%

-22.87 %

Short Term
Borrowings

2025
52,158 million

2024
42,006 million

24.17 %
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Stakeholder engagement remains central to Gul Ahmed’s long-term success, particularly given the scale of our 
operations and the complexity of our supply chain. By actively engaging with suppliers, customers, employees, and 
communities, we work to understand their expectations and address their concerns. This collaborative approach 
fosters stronger relationships, informs our decision-making, and ensures our business practices remain ethical, 
sustainable, and mutually beneficial.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
& INVESTOR RELATIONS

Stakeholders

Shareholders

Customers

Suppliers

Academia

Employees

Local 
Communities 
/ NGOs / Civil 
Societies

Policy Makers/ 
Governments

Regular

Regular

Regular

As Needed

Regular

Regular

As needed or 
on request

AGM/EOGM,
company website,
corporate briefing 
sessions, official press 
releases

Customer surveys, 
exhibitions, trade fairs, 
customer visits

Request for quotations,
transaction negotiations,
suppliers surveys and 
evaluations

Field trips organized by 
educational institutes,
job fairs

Training sessions, 
employee grievance 
handling procedures,
HR interactions

Welfare and donation 
drives, meetings, 
employee engagement

Meeting with government 
officials, Information  
provided to various 
government 
organizations,
vsits and conferences

Company performance, on-going 
economic viability, return on investment,
corporate governance, future plans and 
developments

Product design and development,
sustainability alliances, cost and quality of 
products

Product development, availability & quality 
of supplies, terms and conditions of 
transactions, adherence to code of 
business conduct and other local and 
international laws

Hiring of young graduates and providing 
employment / internship opportunities, 
communication in regard to key skills that 
employers are currently seeking

Training & career development, employee 
benefits and performance appraisals,
occupational safety and well�being,
implementation of labor laws

Support provided by the company to the 
local community in terms of improving 
living standards, extending medical 
assistance, providing quality education 
and developing infrastructure

Compliance with laws and regulations, 
changes in monetary and fiscal policies, 
direct and indirect tax contributions, 
approval and renewal of licenses and 
permits

Engagement 
Frequency

Engagement 
Methods

Key Topics Key Topics Response & Action Taken

The directors and management provided shareholders with a comprehensive overview of the company’s performance 
during the annual general meeting, including the approved plans for the future as endorsed by the board of directors.

Shareholders have received timely notifications of quarterly and annual results through the dissemination of 
information via PSX

Gul Ahmed has consistently adhered to various regulations & quality standards set by our international customers. 
Compliance with these standards is verified through periodic quality and compliance audits.

Furthermore, Gul Ahmed actively participates in various international exhibitions, such as Heimtextil, to expand its 
reach & connect with potential customers.

We maintain strict supplier evaluation protocols to guarantee compliance with both local and international regulations. 
Our marketing teams regularly engage in sessions with suppliers to ensure alignment with our quality standards, 
empowering customers to create organic and sustainable products. This approach aids in minimizing the 
environmental footprint of our supply chain

Our HR team actively engaged in university job fairs to attract top graduates for the MTO program. Gul Ahmed has also 
been accredited by ICAP as a Training Organization Outside Practice, enabling Chartered Accountancy students to 
complete their mandatory articleship with the Company. Through participation in ICAP seminars and events, our 
representatives continue to guide students and strengthen industry impact.

Employee appraisals are conducted annually, with performance serving as the basis for any annual increments, which 
are aligned with the economic climate of the country. 

Additionally, annual bonuses are granted to employees based on the Company’s performance.

We regularly organize training sessions to enhance the skills of our employees, along with sessions led by professionals 
focused on promoting physical and mental well-being.

Mandatory fire evacuation drills & relevant demonstrations are conducted quarterly to underscore the importance of 
worker safety.

Throughout the year, Gul Ahmed has donated over Rs.119 million to various NGOs, aimed at extending support to local 
communities. This includes Rs.100 million paid to Indus Hospital and Health Network for the development of ""School 
of Medical Technology and Allied Health"" Additionally, Gul Ahmed conducted its annual blood donation drive in 
partnership with the Afzaal Memorial Thalassemia Foundation.

Continuous monitoring ensures strict compliance with laws and regulations to prevent any violations. Our Directors and 
senior management actively engage in advisory boards, offering expertise to shape government policies. 
In terms of tax contributions, Gul Ahmed has paid Rs. 1.64 billion in final and income taxes during the year.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The global textile industry is facing unprecedented 
pressure to transform as the European Union (EU) 
intensifies its climate agenda. With new regulations 
targeting carbon neutrality and the EU Waste 
Framework Directive reinforcing stricter sustainability 
standards, businesses are being compelled to adapt 
rapidly. Adding to this, major European customers 
have instructed their supply chains to achieve 
net-zero emissions by 2030. For textile manufacturers 
in Pakistan, this shift is redefining business models, 
leaving little choice but to prioritize renewable energy 
and sustainable practices in order to remain 
competitive.

Gul Ahmed has long recognized the importance of 
sustainability and, over the years, has steadily built 
renewable and circular assets such as its Effluent 
Treatment Plant, Waste Heat Recovery Boilers, Cotton 
Recycling Facility, and participation in the 
Balochistan Organic Cotton Project. In recent years, 
these initiatives have accelerated significantly. 
Subsequent to the year end the Company has 
successfully installed 17 MW of rooftop 
solar panels, providing a substantial alternative to its 
fossil fuel–based powerhouse setup. Additionally, 32 
tonnes-per-hour biomass steam boilers have been 
commissioned to replace gas-fired boilers, while 
battery energy storage systems are being deployed to 
maximize the efficiency of solar energy capture. 
These investments mark critical steps in transitioning 
Gul Ahmed toward cleaner, more resilient energy 
solutions.

Beyond environmental stewardship, Gul Ahmed’s 
efforts create meaningful financial and social impact. 
In FY 2025, the Company generated foreign exchange 
inflows of Rs. 109 billion (USD 391 million equivalent) 
through exports, while contributing Rs. 1.6 billion in 
taxes and Rs. 282 million in export development 
surcharges to the national exchequer. The Company 
disbursed approximately Rs. 20 billion in salaries and 
benefits to nearly 15,000 employees, strengthening 
household incomes and supporting livelihoods. Gul 
Ahmed also contributed Rs. 119 million in community 
development, including Rs. 100 million towards Indus 
Hospital’s School of Medical Technology and Allied 
Health, which will train over 100 medical 
professionals annually.

Looking ahead, Gul Ahmed intends to build on this 
momentum by expanding renewable energy 
capacity through additional rooftop solar 
installations, exploring opportunities in wind energy 
harvesting, and investing in biomass boilers. These 
forward-looking initiatives reflect the Company’s 
commitment to aligning with global sustainability 
goals, supporting national economic development, 
and ensuring long-term resilience in an evolving 
regulatory landscape.
and ensuring long-term resilience in an evolving 
goals, supporting national economic development, 
and ensuring long-term resilience in an evolving 

installations, exploring opportunities in wind energy 
harvesting, and investing in biomass boilers. These 
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External Environment & 
Risk Management

VIGILANCE
A MARK OF

Through vigilance, we uphold the highest standards of quality 
and sustainability while creating textiles that inspire trust 
across markets worldwide



Organizations are shaped not only by external forces but also by their internal strengths and weaknesses. 
Understanding these internal dynamics, along with external opportunities and threats, is crucial for strategic 
planning. The SWOT analysis below highlights the critical factors influencing Gul Ahmed’s strategic direction 
and operational effectiveness.

SWOT ANALYSIS PESTEL ANALYSIS

STRENGTHS

Strong Brand Legacy:
With over 70 years of excellence, our

commitment to quality has earned us a trusted 
reputation and enduring customer loyalty.

Diverse Production Capabilities:
Our advanced and flexible manufacturing processes 

enable us to deliver a wide spectrum of textile 
products, catering to the evolving demands of local 

and international markets.

Reliable In-House Power:
Self-sustained energy generation enables uninterrupted 
production and enhances operational efficiency across 

all facilities, while steadily lowering costs as a greater 
share of power is sourced from renewables.

Skilled and Dedicated Workforce:
The expertise and innovation of our experienced 

professionals drive superior product standards and 
continuous improvement.

Global Collaborations:
Strategic partnerships with renowned international 

brands strengthen our market presence and broaden 
our global footprint.

WEAKNESSES

High Dependence
on Borrowings:

Significant reliance on external financing
can increase financial vulnerability

and interest costs.

Labor-Intensive Production:
Heavy dependence on manual labor may lead to higher 

operational costs and lower efficiency compared to 
more automated processes.

High Energy Requirements:
Our production processes require substantial energy, 

resulting in higher costs, challenges in energy 
management, and environmental concerns.

Dependence on Imported Raw Materials
and Spare Parts:

A strong reliance on imported raw materials and 
machinery spares exposes us to supply chain disruptions, 
foreign exchange fluctuations, and higher procurement 

costs.

OPPOURTUNITIES

Collaborating for Net Zero:
Strategic partnerships with international

companies to achieve net-zero emissions will
enhance competitiveness and help capture greater 

market share as European carbon regulations
become stricter.

Increased Circularity:
Strengthening recycling and circular production 

practices can reduce costs, optimize resource use, and 
support long-term sustainability goals.

Renewable Energy Adoption:
Investments in solar and biomass technology offer 

opportunities to lower power costs while minimizing our 
environmental impact.

Product Diversification:
Expanding into new product categories allows us to 
meet changing consumer preferences and unlock 

additional market potential.

Technological Innovation:
Embracing advanced production technologies can 

improve efficiency, reduce waste, and elevate
product quality.

THREATS

Rising Energy Prices:
Escalating energy costs continue to put

pressure on profit margins, increasing the overall
cost of operations Leading the company to explore

other alternative power sources.

Adverse Taxation Policies:
Recent changes in tax regulations have heightened
the financial burden on export-oriented industries, 

negatively affecting profitability.

Global Shipping Disruptions:
Ongoing geopolitical tensions and restrictions have 

disrupted shipping routes, resulting in longer lead times 
and higher logistics expenses.

Exposure to U.S. Tariffs:
The imposition or potential increase of tariffs on textile 
exports to the United States poses a significant risk to 

market access and competitiveness.

Factors

Political

Economic

Social

Technological

Environmental

Legal

The uncertain political environment in Pakistan 
continues to create challenges for investor 
confidence and long-term planning. Policy 
instability and delays in government reforms 
affect the ease of doing business. Additionally, U.S. 
trade policies and tariff structures on textile 
imports from Pakistan have raised concerns, as 
any unfavorable changes could reduce 
competitiveness in international markets.

Rising gas and energy tariffs have significantly 
increased production costs, putting pressure on 
margins. While interest rates have recently 
decreased, offering some relief for financing and 
working capital requirements, changes in income 
tax laws have increased compliance and tax 
liability for businesses, further straining 
profitability.

Consumers remain price-sensitive due to inflation 
and reduced disposable income, increasing 
demand for affordable textile products. At the 
same time, global customers are more conscious 
about ethical sourcing, sustainability, and social 
responsibility. For employees, evolving workplace 
expectations emphasize skills development, 
digital literacy, and fair treatment.

The rapid integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI) 
and automation in the textile industry is 
reshaping operations, customer service, and 
supply chain management. Companies that fail to 
adopt these technologies risk losing efficiency 
and competitiveness.

Sustainability remains a key priority as buyers 
demand eco-friendly products, while rising gas 
costs and energy constraints challenge 
operational efficiency. Pressure to cut carbon 
emissions, conserve water, and adopt renewable 
energy is intensifying, particularly from European 
and U.S. clients. Additionally, climate 
change-driven recurring floods in Pakistan have 
caused cotton shortages, raising costs and 
impacting quality.

Compliance with evolving tax and regulatory 
frameworks remains critical. Recent changes in 
income tax laws have added compliance 
complexities, and stricter monitoring of export 
documentation has increased the need for robust 
legal oversight. Failure to comply could result in 
penalties, increased costs, or reputational risks.

Senior management continues to closely monitor 
political and trade developments, especially 
regarding U.S. tariffs. Proactive engagement with 
government bodies, industry associations, and 
trade partners is being pursued to safeguard 
market access. Efforts are also being made to 
strengthen domestic market reliance, while 
simultaneously lobbying for favorable trade 
agreements to protect export growth.

Gul Ahmed is tackling rising production costs by 
investing in renewable energy and reducing 
reliance on conventional power. Lower interest rates 
are being utilized to support capital expenditures 
and maintain higher stock levels at favorable 
financing costs. The Company is also reassessing 
segmental performance to focus on profitable 
areas while phasing out less profitable segments.
 At the same time, enhanced tax planning is being 
pursued to optimize compliance and reduce overall 
tax burden.

The Company remains focused on delivering 
competitively priced, high-quality products while 
expanding CSR initiatives in education, healthcare, 
and community development. Employee training 
programs on AI tools, tax awareness, and sustainable 
practices are being introduced, aimed at 
strengthening professional skills and providing life 
skills that benefit employees beyond the workplace.

Gul Ahmed has accelerated investment in AI-driven 
solutions for demand forecasting, inventory 
optimization, and predictive maintenance of 
machinery. The Company is also exploring AI-based 
customer engagement tools to strengthen 
e-commerce platforms. Combined with ongoing 
upgrades in plant and machinery, these initiatives 
help reduce costs, improve efficiency, and keep the 
Company ahead of regional competitors.

Gul Ahmed is expanding investments in renewable 
energy, including solar and biomass, to offset rising 
gas costs and lower carbon dependence. The 
Company continues sourcing sustainable raw 
materials through BCI Cotton, recycled cotton 
waste, and increased procurement from the 
WWF-backed organic cotton project in Balochistan. 
With recurring floods and local shortages driving 
greater reliance on imported cotton, higher stock 
levels are being maintained to ensure supply chain 
stability and cost control.

The Company continues to engage top legal and 
tax experts to ensure timely compliance with all 
updated laws, including new income tax 
requirements. A strong compliance framework is 
maintained to avoid penalties and safeguard 
business continuity. Gul Ahmed emphasizes 
transparent corporate governance and prides itself 
on maintaining a clean track record free from major 
legal violations.

Implication on Gul Ahmed Gul Ahmed’s Response

Organizations are significantly influenced by their external environment, and it is impossible for them to 
operate in isolation. The various elements of the external environment that impact Gul Ahmed are as follows:
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In today's complex global economy, effective risk management is vital for a company's success. It’s no longer about 
avoiding risk but strategically managing it to create value. As markets, customers, regulations and shareholder 
demands evolve, risk management has become an essential part of business strategy, helping companies navigate 
modern challenges and thrive.

Risk Management Methodology:
At Gul Ahmed, our risk management methodology is built around a structured four-step process designed to 
identify potential risks and implement countermeasures to mitigate their adverse impacts on operations and 
financial performance. These steps include:

The below mentioned decision tree shows the framework that we employ to determine how to tackle risks that are 
present at all levels of a business process. This allows us to ensure that our risks remain in-check while optimizing 
the use resources required to do so: 

RISK MITIGATION

Identification and
analysis of Risk

Should the risk
be retained?

Can the risk
be avoided?

No Yes

Can the risk
be transferred?

Yes No

No Yes

Risk Retention:
Risk may be retained if it 
is manageable, inherent 
to the business process 
or where the measures 

required are not feasible 
to implement

Risk Avoidance:
Avoid any unnecessary 
steps or decisions that if 
taken could risk harming 

the Company’s
performance or

reputation 

Risk Reduction:
Implement measures
to reduce the impact

or likelihood of
identified risks.

Risk Transfer:
Whenever possible we 

transfer certain risks 
through mechanisms 

like insurance or 
contractual

arrangements

Identification of
Business Process:

The first step involves identifying 
business processes that are of 

utmost significance to the 
company and therefore are 

essential to be protected from any 
adverse impacts.

Identification of 
Associated Risks:

Once the business process is 
identified, the next step is to 

assess its susceptibility to 
principal risks. These are the risks 
most likely to emerge due to the 

inherent characteristics and 
vulnerabilities of the

business process

Analysis of 
Associated Risks:

This involves assessing the 
likelihood of each risk occurring, 
identifying its sources—whether 

internal or external—and 
evaluating the potential impact 

on the business. This analysis 
helps in prioritizing and 

addressing these
risks effectively.

Mitigating Risks:

Once the risk analysis is complete, 
the final step is to take 

appropriate action based on our 
risk management framework. This 
involves implementing strategies 

to mitigate the identified risks and 
reduce their potential impact on

the business.
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The following table presents an overview of potential risks associated with our business operations. It includes a 
detailed analysis of each identified risk, evaluating factors such as likelihood, impact, and sources. Additionally, the 
table outlines the strategies and measures implemented to mitigate these risks.

Category of
Risk

Strategic Risk

Commercial
Risk

Operational 
Risk

Financial Risk

Political and economic 
uncertainty

Adverse changes in 
government policies

Increased competition

Changes in customer 
preferences

Shortage of raw material 
and adverse fluctuation in 
raw material prices

Production breakdown due 
to mechanical failure

HSE threat to employees, 
assets and inventory

Employee Turnover

High debt burden, 
increasing finance cost and 
worsening working capital 
structure

Adverse changes in 
exchange rates

External

External

External

External

External

Internal

Internal

Internal

Internal

External

Medium

High

High

Low

High

Low

Low

Medium

Medium

Medium

High

High

High

Medium

High

High

High

Medium

High

Medium

Social & Relationship Capital,
Financial Capital

Social & Relationship Capital,
Financial Capital

Social & Relationship Capital,
Financial Capital

Social & Relationship Capital,
Financial Capital, 
Intellectual Capital

Social & Relationship Capital,
Financial Capital, 
Natural Capital

Manufactured Capital,
Finanical Capital

Human Capital,
Manufactured Capital

Human Capital

Financial Capital

Financial Capital

Risk Source Forms of Capital Impacted Effect on Strategic Objectives Risk Mitigation InitiativesLikelihood Magnitude

Key Topics Response & Action Taken
The uncertainty created by these factors limits 
management's ability to make informed decisions, 
allocate resources effectively, and pursue long-term 
growth opportunities. This unpredictability can disrupt 
operations, affect cost structures, and compromise 
overall profitability.

As new players enter the market or existing competitors 
become more aggressive, the company may experience 
price pressure, shrinking market share, and declining 
margins.

Shifts in consumer demand can render the company's 
current offerings obsolete, jeopardizing its market relevance 
and hindering growth objectives such as increasing brand 
loyalty or penetrating new customer segments

A shortage of raw materials can significantly increase 
production costs, delay manufacturing timelines, and 
reduce profitability. Moreover, it may necessitate an 
over-reliance on imports, exposing the company to the 
risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations and 
geopolitical instability.

Mechanical failures can cause production stoppages, 
affect delivery timelines, increase costs, and reduce 
customer satisfaction, thereby compromising the 
company’s strategic objectives of efficiency and 
profitability.

HSE risks can lead to operational shutdowns, legal 
penalties, reputational damage, and injuries to employees, 
all of which negatively impact strategic goals such as 
employee retention, operational efficiency, and 
sustainability.

High turnover disrupts operations, reduces efficiency, 
increases recruitment and training costs leading to 
adverse financial impact, moreover, the loss of talented 
employees leads to stagnation in business process 
innovation thereby hampering operational excellence 
and resource optimization.

Excessive debt can severely limit a company's financial 
flexibility, increase financial risk, and restrict capital 
allocation, hindering growth opportunities, diminishing 
profitability, and jeopardizing overall financial stability, 
particularly in the face of rising interest rates.

Exchange rate fluctuations can significantly impact the 
company's profitability, operational planning, and 
competitiveness. A rise in exchange rates can increase 
costs for imports, especially raw materials and fuel, 
while a sudden decline can reduce export revenue. 
Unexpected changes can also create uncertainty in 
financial modeling, hindering strategic decision-making 
and eroding the company's global market position.

The Company recognizes that mitigating political risks requires 
open and constructive communication with government and 
political institutions. By clearly conveying how policy changes 
could negatively impact business and competitiveness, the 
Company aims to influence decisions, minimize short-term 
disruptions, and better prepare for long-term regulatory 
changes, ensuring continued resilience and competitiveness.

In order to maintain its competitiveness the company adjusts 
its pricing strategies, develops new markets for its products, 
enhances product differentiation, and invests more in 
marketing and innovation in order to create a distinct brand 
image which emphasizes quality and value for money.

The company is fully capable of adapting its product lines to 
match customer preferences along with sourcing new 
materials and developing designs that align with emerging 
trends in fashion, sustainability, and consumer preferences. 

To mitigate the challenges posed by raw material shortages, 
the company seeks to diversify its supplier base, build 
strategic partnerships, implement effective inventory 
management techniques, explore alternative materials and 
reduce material wastages.

To improve machinery reliability and minimize downtime, the 
company implements preventive maintenance schedules, 
invests in regular upgradation of its equipment, establishes 
redundancies, maintains a buffer capacity for critical 
manufacturing processes and provides comprehensive 
employee training.

The company implements comprehensive HSE policies, 
provides ongoing safety training for employees, and invests in 
safety equipment and infrastructure. In addition to this 
quarterly mock evacuation drills are conducted which help 
create a safer working environment, reduce accidents, and 
ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.

To create a positive and productive work environment, the 
company offers competitive compensation and benefits, 
provides opportunities for career development, fosters 
employee engagement and implements effective training 
and onboarding programs.

To mitigate the challenges of high debt in the textile industry, 
the company employs several strategies. By optimizing capital 
expenditures, improving inventory management, and utilizing 
subsidized financing from the SBP, the company effectively 
manages its liquidity and financial risk while minimizing 
finance costs.

The company utilizes forward contracts and the SBP Export 
Finance Scheme to mitigate exchange rate risks. These 
instruments allow the company to restrict its future exchange 
rates whereby helping to manage foreign exchange exposure 
and enhance financial resilience.
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The Company acknowledges that it is exposed to various external factors that are beyond its control. These external 
factors can have a significant impact on the Company's performance, profitability, and ultimately, its share prices. To 
provide a snapshot of the share price performance in relation to the PSX 100 Index, here is a summary of the share 
prices at each month end during the reviewed year. The comparison of the Company's share price to the PSX 100 
Index over these months provides insights into how external factors, market conditions, and investor sentiment 
may have influenced the company's performance and share price movements.

SHARE PRICE
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Month

July-24

Aug-24

Sep-24

Oct-24

Nov-24

Dec-24

Jan-25

Feb-25

Mar-25

Apr-25

May-25

Jun-25

19.37

18.68

18.90

19.03

21.98

25.31

25.49

23.37

24.72

22.32

24.24

27.47

77,887

78,488

81,114

88,967

101,357

115,127

114,256

113,252

117,807

111,327

119,691

125,627

Company's Share Price PSX 100 Index

Sensitivity analysis is an essential practice to assess and mitigate the impact of various external factors on the 
company's profitability and share price. Here are the key external factors affecting the share price of the company, 
along with their potential impacts: 

• Cotton Market Dynamics:
 Any shortage or excess of cotton in the market, 

both locally and internationally, can disrupt 
profitability. Shortages may lead to higher 
purchasing costs, impacting margins. 

• Exchange Rate Fluctuations:
 Exchange rate fluctuations can affect export sales 

when the company deals in multiple currencies. 
Unfavorable exchange rates can make the 
company less competitive in comparison to 
regional competitors. 

• Interest Rate Fluctuations:
 Changes in interest rates can impact the 

Company's finance costs and influence 
management decisions regarding expansion and 
modernization. Anticipated interest rate increases 
may affect profitability and share prices. 

• Government Pronouncements:
 Government decisions related to rebates, taxes, 

duties, and refinance rates are highly 
price-sensitive. These decisions can significantly 
affect the Company's performance and 
management's strategic choices.

• Foreign Government Actions: 
 Actions by foreign governments, such as granting 

GSP Plus status by the European Union to 
Pakistan, can boost the export revenue of the 
textile industry. Conversely, actions like subsidies 
to competitors in energy prices or lower tax/duty 
rates in competing countries can affect the 
competitiveness of Pakistan's textile industry. 

• Economic Growth in Export Markets:
 Economic growth in countries where the 

company exports its products is crucial. Strong 
economic performance in these markets can drive 
demand for the company's products and 
positively impact profitability and share prices.

Conducting sensitivity analysis helps the Company 
assess the potential risks and opportunities 
associated with these external factors. By monitoring 
trends, analyzing historical results, and testing the 
effects of critical variables, the Company can make 
informed decisions to safeguard profitability and 
shareholder value in a dynamic business 
environment.
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Review & 
Representations

TRANSPARENCY
A MARK OF

With a seal of transparency, we make accountability visible in every decision. It reflects our 
commitment to honesty, fairness, and responsible business practices.



The Audit Committee (the Committee) has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the 
Company during 2025 and reports that: 

• The Company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has 
also been reviewed and certified by the Auditors of the Company. 

• Understanding and compliance with Company codes and policies have been affirmed by the members of 
the Board, the management and employees of the Company individually. Equitable treatment of 
shareholders has also been ensured. 

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied. All core and other applicable International 
Accounting Standards were followed in preparation of financial statements of the Company and 
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, for the financial year ended June 30, 2025, 
which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equities of 
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year under review. 

• The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer have endorsed the financial statements and 
consolidated financial statements of the Company. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and fair 
presentation of the Company’s financial condition and results, compliance with regulations and applicable 
accounting standards and establishment and maintenance of internal controls and systems of the 
Company. 

• Directors’ Report is drafted and endorsed by the Board of Directors, and is presented in compliance with 
the requirements of Companies Act, 2017. The Committee has reviewed and endorsed the report as to the 
compliance with regulations and acknowledges that business of the Company is fairly discussed in the 
Directors’ Report. 

• Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting 
records have been maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. The financial 
statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 and the 
external reporting is consistent with management processes and adequate for shareholder needs. 

• All Directors have access to the Company Secretary. All direct or indirect trading and holdings of Company’s 
shares by Directors and Executives or their spouses were notified to the Company Secretary along with the 
required information which was notified by the Company Secretary to the Board. All such holdings /have 
been disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholdings. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificates are being 
filed regularly within stipulated time. 

• Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the Chief 
Executive and executives of the Company from dealing in Company’s shares, prior to each Board meeting 
involving announcement of interim/final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, 
which could materially affect the share price of the Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of 
all business information.

Internal Audit 
• The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an independent outsourced 

Internal Audit function established by the Board which is independent of the External Audit function. 

• The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for 
effectiveness and adequacy. 

• The Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial 
reporting and control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders wealth at 
all levels within the Company.

• The Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking appropriate action or bringing the 
matters to the Board’s attention where required. 

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and the Committee 
has ensured staffing of personnel with sufficient internal audit acumen and that the function has all 
necessary access to the management and the right to seek information and explanations.

• Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and 
contribution to the Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance 
with laws and regulations.

External Auditors 
• The statutory Auditors of the Company, Yosuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, have completed their Audit 

assignment of the “Company’s Financial Statements”, the “Consolidated Financial Statements” and the 
“Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” for the financial year ended June 30, 
2025 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 73rd Annual General Meeting.

• The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors. 

• The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness, independence and 
objectivity of the Auditors has thereby been ensured. The Auditors attended the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company during the year and have confirmed attendance of the 73rd Annual General Meeting 
scheduled for October 25, 2025.

Karachi          Kamran Y. Mirza 
September 29, 2025           Chairman Audit Committee                                                                               
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• The Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking appropriate action or bringing the 
matters to the Board’s attention where required. 

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and the Committee 
has ensured staffing of personnel with sufficient internal audit acumen and that the function has all 
necessary access to the management and the right to seek information and explanations.

• Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and 
contribution to the Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance 
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External Auditors 
• The statutory Auditors of the Company, Yosuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, have completed their Audit 

assignment of the “Company’s Financial Statements”, the “Consolidated Financial Statements” and the 
“Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” for the financial year ended June 30, 
2025 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 73rd Annual General Meeting.

• The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors. 

• The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness, independence and 
objectivity of the Auditors has thereby been ensured. The Auditors attended the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company during the year and have confirmed attendance of the 73rd Annual General Meeting 
scheduled for October 25, 2025.

Karachi          Kamran Y. Mirza 
September 29, 2025           Chairman Audit Committee                                                                               

                   
                                                                                                                                     

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

It is with pride and confidence that I present the 
Chairman’s Review for the year ended June 30, 2025, in 
compliance with the Companies Act, 2017, and the 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. This review highlights our continued 
commitment to transparency, governance excellence, 
and delivering enduring value to our stakeholders.

This year was marked by global economic moderation, 
selective demand recovery, and domestic challenges 
including tight fiscal space, high debt servicing, and 
persistent energy cost pressures. In this context, 
Pakistan’s GDP grew by 2.68%, inflation fell to multi-year 
lows, and monetary easing began in the second half of 
the year—creating a cautiously optimistic outlook.

For the textile industry, currency stability and trade 
facilitation improved export competitiveness, while 
vertically integrated players like us maintained 
operational agility and market responsiveness 
leading to:

• Turnover: USD 550M+ equivalent, highest ever 
despite volatile demand.

• Export Share: Strengthened position in core U.S. 
and EU markets through targeted high-value 
products.

• Vertical Integration Advantage: Maintained 
end-to-end control from spinning to finishing, 
enabling cost efficiency, quality consistency, and 
supply chain resilience.

• Operational Efficiencies: Enhanced capacity 
utilization and lean process initiatives offset part of 
the energy cost escalation.

• Renewable Energy Investment: Commissioned 
18.2 MW solar capacity to lower long-term energy 
costs and reduce carbon footprint.

In the year ahead, we will focus on expanding high-value 
home textiles, accelerating renewable projects to meet 
over 50% of power needs by 2027 and 90% by 2030, and 
investing in automation to boost efficiency and quality. 
We will deepen key export relationships, target growth in 
the Middle East and Asia-Pacific and maintain strict 
financial discipline to navigate currency and interest rate 
volatility. In line with our strategic review, we have also 
resolved to discontinue the export apparel segment to 
concentrate resources on other businesses with stronger 
growth potential.

The Board’s annual self-evaluation for FY2024–25 
delivered satisfactory results, confirming the 
effectiveness of its composition, governance, and 
strategic oversight. With a balanced mix of 
independent and non-executive directors, the Board 
brings diverse expertise, enabling informed 
decision-making and the ability to adapt to evolving 
market conditions.

The review also reaffirmed the strength of our 
governance framework, which upholds transparency, 
ethical conduct, and adherence to best practices. 
Constructive communication, collaboration, and 
effective conflict resolution remain central to fostering 
cohesive Board dynamics and driving the Company’s 
long-term objectives.

My deepest gratitude goes to our shareholders, 
employees, and partners for their consistent support 
and commitment. United by our shared vision, we are 
well-positioned to advance our strategy, expand our 
achievements, and deliver sustainable value with 
confidence and integrity.

Mohomed Bashir
Chairman
Karachi: September 29, 2025

�� � ��ہ
ء ���  2025 ��� ��� 30 � ���� ��� �� � ��� ��� ��� �������� ��� ��� ��� �������  ����� � ���

 � ��� �� ��� �� ��� ��� �� �� ��� � �� ٔ��� ��� ��� �� ������ٔ �� ��� �������  �� ���� ����� ���� ���� ��� � �� ��
�

 �ٔ ��� ���� ��� �� � �� ������� ����� �� ��� ����) �� �� �� ����
�
 �� ��� ء ��� ��ِ 2017 ��� ���� �� �� �� ����

�

 � �� ������� ، �� �� ���� ّ�� ���  � �� ٔ��� ��� � ��۔ ��� � �� ء �� ������� 2019 ���� �� ������ ��� �( ���� ����

 �� ������ �
����� �� �� ��� � ������� � ��� ��� ����� ��� � �� ����� �������� � ��� �� ����� �� ��� ��� �� ��� � ����

��۔ � � ������ ���� ����ُ ��� � ���� �����
�

 ���� ���

 ��� ،���� ��� �� �� ��� � ���� ����� ،�� ������ ��� ����� ��� �� �� ����� ������� ���� � ���

 �� ��� ��� � ���� �� ��� ��� �� ، �� ٔ��� �� ���� ����� ������ �� ��������� ���� ��� �� �
�
�

 �� �� ��� �� ���� �
�

�
�

 �����

 �� ����� ��� � ������ �� �ٔ� ���� � �� ����
�

 �� ��� ����� ���� �� �ٔ��� ����� ��� ��� ،�� ��� �� ٔ�����

 ���� ��ٔ�� �ٔ���� �� ���� ،�� ����� %2.68 � ��� � �� � �� ��� ��� ������ ��� � ���� �
�

��� �� ��۔ ِ�� ��� ���

 �� ��� ������� � ���� �� ّ���� ��� ��� ����� �� ���� ��� ،��ٔ���ٓ ���� �
�

�
�

 ������ ��� ��� ���

 ��� ����
�� ���� � ������ُ��� ���� ���� �� ����� � ���� � �� � ���،�� ��� ��� ����ٓ ��� ������ � ���� �� ����� ���

 �� ���� �� ��� ��� ���� ����� �� �� ������ ، �������  �� ��� ���� � ٔ��� ���� �� �۔ ��� ���� �� �� ���

 �� ��������� ���� ��� �� �� ��� ،� ���� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� �� �� ������� �����ٓ���� � �� ����� ����� ����

 ��� ������ �� ��� �� �������� ��� � ���� ����� � �� ������ ��� ���� ���� ���� ������

 �� �� ��� � ������� � ��� �� ���� � ���� �� � �� ���� ��� ���� �� � ��� ،����� ���� ������ ����ِ �ّ� �� ������� ��

� �� ٔ��� ��� ������

  ����� ��� ���
�
�

 � �� �� � ��� ،� ٔ��� �� �� ���� �� �� ��� ��� �� ����� 550 :���� ������  •

��۔ � ������ ��� � ��� ��� ��� �� ��
�

�� ��� �� ����� ��� ��  

  �ٔ���� �� � ���� �� ��� �� ���� ��� �� �� ���� ��� � ��� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� �� �� ��� :� ّ��� �����ٓ����  •

۔ �� ����� ��� ��� �� �� ���� ������� � �� �� ������ ����� � ��� ����  

  ����
�
 � ��� � �� �� �� ��� ��� �� �� � �� �� ����� :�� ٔ��� ��� ��� ��� �� ���� ������  •

  � ���� �� ����� ، �� �� ��� ��� ������ � �� � ��� ،� ���� ����� ���� ������   ����� ����  

�۔ ���� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� ��� ���� �� ���� ��� �� �� ��� �ٔ���� ���� ��� ،���� ��
�

 

  ����� � ����ٔ����� ���� ����� ��� ��� �� �� �� �������� : ����� � ����ٔ�� �����  •

�۔ ���� ��� ��� ���� ���� �� �� ��� ��� ������ � ���� ����� ��� �ٔ��� ����� ��� � �� ������� ����  

  ������ ���� �� ���� 18.2 :����� � �������� � ���� �ٔ��� ����� ��� � ���� �� ��� �ِ ���� ���  •

  ��� ��� ����� ���� �� �ٔ��� ����� ��� �� ��ّ ��� � ������ ���� ��� � ���� � ���� ��� ����ٓ ��� �� ��������  

۔ � ��������
�

 ( ��������� �� ��� �� �������)����� ��� ���� ���� �� ��������� ��� �� ���  

 �ِ ���� ��� ،� ����� ��� ��� � ٔ��� ���� �� ��� �� ��� �� ��� �� ��� � �� ��� �ٰ���� �
�� ،� ���� ���� �� �� ��� �ٓ

 ��� %50 ��� �� �� ��
�

 � ����2027 ء ��� ��� � ���� � �� �� ��� � ���� �� ����� ���� � ���� �� ���

 ����� � �������� � ���� �� �� ����� ��� �ٓ ���، ������ � ��� ��� ��� ����� �� %90 � 2030 ء ���

 �
۔ �� ������  � ��� � ���� � ��� ���� � ���� �� ����� ��� ����������� ���� ��� �� ������� ������� � ّ ��� ��� ����

 � �� ������ ��� �ٰ���� ِ ��� ���� ،�� ������� ��� ��� � ��� ��� ��� ��� ���� ��� �����ٓ���� �� �����

 � ���� �� ُ�� �ِ� �� � �� ������ ��� �� ������� ������ � ������� �� �ّ��� ��� � ���� � �� ��� �� ���

� ��۔  ������ ���� ������ �
�� ��� �� ��� ������� �� ���� �������  �� ������ � ���� ��� ��� �ٔ��� �� ��� �� ��� �ُ

 �� ����ٓ���� ��� ������ ����� � �� �
�� ، ��� ��� �� �� ����� ��� � �� ٔ��� ��� � �� �� �������� � �� ����

 ������ ��� �������� ��� ��� � ٔ������ ���� ��� �� � � ���� �� ��
�

 ��� �� ��� ��� � ����� � �� ��� ��� � ������ ����

��۔ � �� ������ �� �������� ��� � ّ��� ��� ��� ��� �� � ���� �� ��� ������  � ��� � ���� ������� ����

 � ��ٔ��� ��� �� ����������� � �������� ��� ���� ��� ������� ����� ���� 2024-25 ء �� 

 ��� � �� ������� ، �� ������ ��� ���� ��� �� � ��� �������  �� �� ��� �� ٔ�
�

� �� ��� �� �� �
�
�

 ��ّ� ��� � ��

 � �� ��� ��� ��� ���� ��� ��� ��� �� ���ٔ�۔ ٓ��� ��� �� ��� �� ��� ��� ����� � ����ٔ�� ��� �� ����� ��� � �� �� ��������

 � ������ �
����� �� � �� ����� ���� �� �� ���� ���� ��� ،� ������ �� ��� ������ �� ���� ���� �� ������ ���� ٔ��� ��

 �
�� �� ������� �� �������� ��ٔ� ��� ������� � ��� ��� � ����� � �� ������� ���� ��� ���� ��� � ��� �� �

��۔ � � ������ �� �� ��� �� �������� ��� � ������� � � ��
����ٓ

 �� �� ���� ��� �� ��
�

 ��� ���� �� ���� ��� ���� � ����� �� � �� ������� ���� ��� � �� � ��ٔ��� ��� ��ِ

��۔  � ���� ��� ���� ���� ���� �ٔ �� �� ������ �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� � ّ ���� � ���� ���� ، �� �� ���� ّ�� ��� � ��� ،���

 ���� ��� �� �������� ��� � ����� ��� �� ��� �� ��� � ����ٔ�� ��� ، ����� ��� ، ���������� ������ ���

 ���� ���� �� ��ّ ��� � ������ �� ��� ����
�
 ��� �������� � ����� �� ��� ��� ����� ���� � ��

����ٓ �
�� ��

����۔ �� � ��������
�

� �� �� �� ���� � ������ � ���� ����� ��

 ��� ����� ��� �����
�

 �� �� ��� ����� ����� ��� ��� �� ���� ������ ، ��� ����� ��� ��ٔ �� ��� ���� ���

 ���� ����۔ ��� �� ��� ���
�
�

 �� � ���� ��� ��� ������ ���� �� ��� �� �� ���� � ��� �
�� � �� � ����

 ،������ ����� ���ٓ � ��� ��� ��� ����� ِ ������ � �� ���� �
�� ��� ��� �� ������ ��� ������ ����

 � ����� �
����� �� ���� ����� ��� ��� ��� �� ٔ�� � ��� ��� �������� � ������ ��� �� �� ��� � ������� � �� ����

����۔ �� �� ّ �� ��� ���� ��� ��� � ������ �� ������ ���� ��� ������� � �������  ��

� ������ � �� ����� �����

�� ���� ��ٔ �� ���

2025 � ��� ���� 29 :� ������

Annual Report 2025   |  6059   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



CEO’S MESSAGE
I am delighted to present another year of strong 
performance for Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited, marking 
a significant milestone in our journey. Despite the 
challenges posed by a global slowdown, we have once 
again proven our resilience and adaptability, achieving the 
highest revenue in the company’s history.

This achievement, however, came against the backdrop of 
rising raw material costs, increased energy tariffs, and 
adjustments to minimum wage regulations, which have 
impacted our margins. Nonetheless, our ability to navigate 
these headwinds reflects the strength of our leadership, 
the commitment of our team, and the strategic decisions 
made in the face of adversity.

Our unwavering commitment to acting responsibly and 
conscientiously has been at the heart of how we 
overcame these challenges. From taking decisive steps 
to safeguard the welfare of our employees to ensure 
that we continue to deliver value to our customers and 
shareholders, every decision made has been with the 
long-term success of the Company and its stakeholders 
in mind.

Gul Ahmed continues to be a force for good in the 
communities we serve. Our Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) efforts are focused on impactful 
areas such as education, women’s empowerment, 
healthcare, environmental conservation, and 
community development. Our commitment to social 
responsibility is further reinforced by our adherence to 
the highest standards of Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) practices. We firmly believe that 
sustainable, long-term value can only be realized when 
we remain fully aligned with these principles.

Sustainability is a cornerstone of our strategy, and we 
are proud to have completed the deployment of our 
18.2 MW solar power project, bringing us closer to our 
goal of relying on energy needs from renewable 
sources. We are also in the process of expanding our 
solar capacity by an additional 10-15 MW and also in a 
process to deploy up to 5 – 10 MW of wind within our 
factory premises, reinforcing our commitment to a 
greener, more sustainable future.

Our commitment to sustainability not only strengthens
our competitive edge in key export markets but also
ensures we uphold the highest ethical and
environmental standards. We recognize our people as
the foundation of our success and continue to foster a
culture of inclusivity, innovation, and professional
growth.

Looking ahead to FY 2026, we remain confident despite
global uncertainties, including climate change,
inflationary pressures, and geopolitical shifts. With
supportive monetary policies on the horizon, we are
ready to leverage strategic investments in capacity,
technology, and sustainability to drive long-term value.

As part of this focused strategy, we have exited the
export apparel segment to concentrate resources on
high-value home textiles, premium product lines, and
other growth opportunities. This sharper allocation of
capital and talent positions Gul Ahmed to strengthen
margins, deepen market leadership, and create
sustainable growth for all stakeholders.

Thank you for your continued trust and partnership.

Mohammad Zaki Bashir
Chief Executive Officer

DIRECTORS` REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors are pleased to present the financial results of 
the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

Economic & Industrial Overview

Global Economic Landscape
At the start of FY 2025-26, the global economy is expected 
to continue on a moderate growth path, building on the 
gradual recovery observed over the past two years. Global 
trade is projected to expand steadily, supported by strong 
demand for technology, industrial goods, and 
manufactured exports from Asia, although overall growth 
remains below the levels seen in the two decades prior to 
the pandemic. Financial conditions are anticipated to 
remain broadly stable, with easing interest rate pressures 
in some advanced economies and moderate inflation 
providing a supportive backdrop for investment and 
trade. While supply chain disruptions have moderated 
compared to previous years, continued geopolitical 
tensions and sporadic logistical bottlenecks may still 
create localized volatility.

Global inflation is expected to gradually ease, averaging 
around 3.4–3.5% in FY 2025-26, as energy prices stabilize 
and core inflationary pressures soften. Nevertheless, risks 
remain from persistent geopolitical uncertainties 
including ongoing conflicts in Eastern Europe, Middle 
East, strained U.S. - China relations, and protectionist trade 
measures which could impact commodity prices, trade 
flows, and investment patterns. Climate-related events, 
such as extreme weather affecting agricultural and 
industrial production, and evolving sustainability 
regulations in major markets, may also affect operational 
and supply chain resilience. Against this backdrop, 
businesses are likely to face both challenges and 
opportunities, requiring agility, robust risk management, 
and strategic alignment to navigate uncertainty while 
capitalizing on emerging global trends.

Pakistan’s Economic Landscape
In FY 2025, Pakistan’s economy demonstrated clear signs 
of recovery and resilience. GDP growth reached 2.68%, 
while inflation declined sharply from 23.4% to 4.5%, 
supported by a lower policy rate, exchange rate stability, 
and prudent macroeconomic management. The current 
account recorded its first annual surplus in 14 years and 
the largest in 22 years, driven by stronger exports, robust 
remittances, and rising foreign exchange reserves.
Fiscal discipline improved as the fiscal deficit was 
contained at 3.7% of GDP for July–May FY 2025, supported 
by substantial increases in both tax (25.9%) and non-tax 
(62.7%) collections, which together drove a 41.1% growth in 
net federal revenues.

During FY 2024–25, exports rose by $1.37 billion, from $30.7 
billion in the same period last year to $32.04 billion, while 

imports increased by $3.61 billion, reaching $58.39 billion. 
Remittances from overseas workers surged 26.6% 
year-on-year to $38.3 billion, contributing to a turnaround 
in the current account from a $2.07 billion deficit in FY 
2024 to a $0.328 billion surplus in FY 2025.

Industrial activity presented a mixed picture. The 
cumulative Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) output 
declined by 0.74% during July–June FY 2025, following 
marginal growth of 0.9% the previous year. However, 12 
out of 22 sectors recorded positive growth, including 
textiles, wearing apparel, coke & petroleum products, 
beverages, and pharmaceuticals. The automobile sector 
also exhibited strong performance during FY 2024–25, 
highlighting pockets of industrial resilience amid broader 
challenges.

Looking ahead, FY 2025–26 is expected to consolidate 
these gains, with moderate growth, continued easing of 
inflation, and strengthening external balances, while the 
economy navigates ongoing fiscal and global trade 
challenges.

Pakistan’s Textile Sector
In the financial year FY24-25, Pakistan’s 7.39% export 
growth reflects resilience in a competitive global 
environment. The shift from commodities to value-added 
products aligns well with global consumption patterns. 
Below is the breakup of Textile Exports category wise:

The sector continues to encounter significant challenges, 
including volatility in raw material prices, increasing 
energy costs, and intensified global competition, which 
collectively exert pressure on margins and operational 
efficiency. Furthermore, recent policy changes, such as 
adjustments in customs duties, transitions in the tax 
regime, and delays in refund processing, may adversely 
affect export competitiveness and liquidity.

Operational & Financial Performance
Despite challenges such as pricing pressures in export 
markets, geopolitical instability, elevated financing costs 
(which eased later in the year), and fluctuating energy 
prices, the Company successfully expanded order 
volumes and operated at optimal production capacity 

Category 2024-25 USD 2023-24 USD Change

Knitwear

Readymade garments

Bed wear

Cotton Cloth

Towels

Cotton Yarn

Made up Articles

Others

Grand Total

5,010,467

4,128,556

3,112,848

1,808,997

1,082,611

680,700

775,791

1,287,068

17,887,038

4,407,573

3,563,647

2,802,670

1,865,964

1,055,109

955,510

715,333

1,290,092

16,655,898

13.68%

15.85%

11.07%

-3.05%

2.61%

-28.76%

8.45%

-0.23%

7.39%
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essential to ensuring the segment’s long-term 
sustainability.

An overview of the Company’s performance across its 
business segments is provided in the operating segment 
results within the attached financial statements; for more 
details, please refer to Note # 35.

Home Textile
The Home Textile segment continues to be the 
cornerstone of the Company’s operations, contributing 
85% of total export volume through the manufacture and 
export of a wide range of value-added textile products.

During FY25, the segment recorded a notable increase in 
total net sales in PKR terms, rising by approximately 11.4% 
compared to the SPLY. The segment delivered a robust 
12.6% increase in exports in USD terms compared to the 
SPLY. This growth reflects strong revenue generation and 
an expanding market footprint despite prevailing 
geopolitical challenges. While the cost of sales increased 
due to higher minimum wages and rising power and fuel 
costs, gross profit margins improved from 7.25% to 9.59%, 
underscoring the Company’s ability to enhance 
profitability in a challenging environment.

The improvement in margins is primarily attributable to 
enhanced operational efficiency, strengthened process 
management, and effective cost controls. Furthermore, 
improved procurement policies and timely 
decision-making contributed significantly to maximizing 
production efficiency and achieving cost savings.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 
approximately 19.98%, largely in line with higher sales 
volumes and a rise in freight costs, the latter being driven 
by geopolitical uncertainties.

An overview of the Company’s performance across its 
business segments is provided in the operating segment 
results within the attached financial statements; for more 
details, please refer to Note # 35.

Management Objectives and Strategies
Gul Ahmed continues to stand as a leading and trusted 
name in Pakistan’s textile sector. Over the past year, we 
have advanced our commitment to sustainability and 
innovation while strengthening our technological 
capabilities to stay competitive in a dynamic global 
market. Our focus on operational efficiency and product 
excellence has not only helped us navigate economic 
challenges but also reinforced long-term value creation for 
our stakeholders. By aligning customer-centric innovation 
with financial resilience, we remain dedicated to 
delivering quality, trust, and sustainable growth. For a 
detailed overview of our strategic priorities and the 

measures undertaken to achieve them, please refer to 
page 37 of our Annual Report.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties
In today’s dynamic environment, businesses face a wide 
spectrum of risks and uncertainties that, if not effectively 
managed, could significantly impact performance and 
long-term sustainability. The Company has established a 
robust framework for identifying, evaluating, and 
mitigating such risks. The principal risks currently under 
focus include:

• Credit Risk – exposure to defaults on receivables, 
particularly from local sales.

• Market & Input Risks – volatility in cotton and yarn 
prices, imposition of customs duties on raw material 
imports, rising utility tariffs, and fluctuating markup 
rates that exert pressure on margins.

• Technological Risk – rapid global advancements in 
textile manufacturing and automation require 
continuous adaptation to maintain competitiveness.

• Regulatory & Fiscal Risk – new duties and taxes on 
existing taxpayers increase cost pressures; the 
transition from Final Tax Regime (FTR) to Normal Tax 
Regime (NTR) reduces exporters’ competitiveness; 
while the withdrawal of EFS zero-rating on local 
supplies and imposition of 18% GST create liquidity 
constraints through delayed refunds.

• Energy Risk – declining domestic gas reserves and 
dependence on imported fuel-based thermal 
generation expose operations to price volatility from 
global energy markets and PKR depreciation.

• Climate & ESG Risks – rising climate variability, 
including floods, droughts, and heatwaves, threatens 
cotton availability and operational continuity. At the 
same time, heightened global demand for 
compliance with sustainability, labor, and traceability 
standards requires investment and adaptation, with 
potential market access risks if standards are not met.

• Supply Chain Disruption Risk – global uncertainties, 
including geopolitical tensions, shipping bottlenecks, 
and currency fluctuations, may affect the timely 
availability and cost of raw materials, logistics, and 
export deliveries, impacting reliability of supply to 
international buyers.

While risk management has always been integral to our 
operations, the evolving expectations of markets, 
regulators, customers, employees, and shareholders have 
elevated it into a key driver of business strategy. A 

during FY24-25. Export revenue in USD registered a 
growth of 4.07 %, rising from USD 368.9 million in the SPLY 
to USD 383.6  million in FY25. This performance translated 
into a notable increase in net sales, which rose by 10.31 % 
to Rs. 157.9 billion from Rs. 143.14 billion in the previous year. 
However, despite this strong top-line performance, 
profitability at the gross, operating, and net levels was 
adversely affected by the aforementioned challenges. The 
key financial metrics for the year ended June 30, 2025, are 
summarized below:

* All amounts are in PKR Million except for Earnings per share which is in Rupees per share

Sales Performance
In PKR terms, export revenue increased by 6.45%, 
primarily attributable to favorable exchange rate 
movements and higher export volumes in USD. Indirect 
exports recorded further growth of 16.38% during FY25 as 
compared to the SPLY. Local sales, meanwhile, posted a 
significant increase of 26.47% over the same period. This 
overall growth in sales underscores the effectiveness of 
the Company’s strategic initiatives, including timely 
investments and an enhanced focus on both international 
and domestic markets.

Costs and Financial Metrics
The company experienced a 10.30% rise in the cost of 
sales, driven by multiple factors including higher raw 
material prices, increased energy tariffs, and adjustments 
in minimum wage regulations.

In response, the company has taken proactive steps to 
manage energy costs and enhance sustainability. A 18.2 
MW rooftop solar installation is already operational now. 
Additionally, plans are underway to expand solar capacity 
by another 10–15 MW across company-owned sites, 
supported by a robust battery storage system. The 
company is also exploring the deployment of Wind 
Turbines within its Factory locations to diversify its energy 
mix and reduce reliance on conventional gas-based 
power. These strategic investments are aimed at 
controlling long-term energy costs and protecting 
margins amid ongoing utility price volatility.

Selling costs have risen significantly by 17.19%, primarily 
driven by a 24.0% increase in freight expenses and a 10% 
rise in salaries and wages. The prevailing geopolitical 

uncertainties have continued to disrupt global trade flows, 
resulting in longer transit times, supply chain 
inefficiencies, and elevated freight costs as shipping lines 
are compelled to adopt alternative routes. In contrast, 
administrative expenses have seen an increase of  18% 
driven up by increase of 57% in travelling & conveyance on 
account of increasing customer base, 91% in donations 
and 9% in salaries, wages and benefits.

Despite an increase in borrowings by PKR 11.6 billion, 
largely driven by higher gas prices and rising working 
capital requirements due to increased sales, the Company 
successfully maintained finance costs at stable levels 
compared to last year as interest rates began to normalize. 
Borrowings increased by 19.38% over the SPLY, while 
finance costs rose by only 11.96%. This outcome reflects 
the effectiveness of strategic financial planning and 
optimization. A key driver of this performance was the 
proactive approach in securing EFS and FE financing at 
favorable rates. By leveraging these lower-cost financing 
facilities and maintaining prudent debt management, the 
Company was able to mitigate the impact of higher 
borrowings and keep overall finance costs relatively 
contained.

Segmental Review of Business Performance
The Company operates across multiple business 
segments; however, only the key segments of material 
significance are highlighted below:

Spinning
Gul Ahmed operates a state-of-the-art spinning plant, 
which is central to both our revenue growth and 
profitability. This segment is critical in supplying 
high-quality yarn to domestic textile manufacturers while 
also serving the Company’s internal production needs. 
Leveraging advanced technology and a strategic 
operational approach, our spinning plant enables us to 
remain competitive, responsive to market demands, and 
reinforces our leadership position within the textile sector.

In FY25, the Spinning Division achieved a notable increase 
in net sales of approximately 10.34% compared to the 
SPLY. However, this growth was accompanied by higher 
costs, driven primarily by increases in minimum wages, 
power and fuel expenses, and other overheads. As a result, 
gross margins contracted to 10.80% as compared to 
11.67% SPLY, reflecting the impact of cost pressures on 
overall profitability. While sales performance remained 
strong, the margin erosion underscores the challenges 
posed by the rising cost environment despite 
management’s continued focus on efficiency and 
operational discipline.

These measures are particularly vital in the current 
challenging business environment, as effective cost 
management and operational improvements are 

Description 2025 2024 Variation %

Export Sales 

Indirect Export Sales

Local Sales 

Total Sales

Gross Profit

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

EBITDA

Earnings per share

105,815

37,279

14,811

157,905

18,978

5,660

4,023

16,312

5.44

99,403

32,031

11,711

143,145

17,191

6,537

4,728

16,436

6.39

6.45%

16.38%

26.47%

10.31%

10.39%

-13.42%

-14.91%

-0.75%

-14.87%
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comprehensive overview of our risk management 
philosophy, governance structure, and principal risks and 
opportunities is provided on pages 47 to 54 of this Annual 
Report.

Policies and Procedures
The Company has established a robust framework of 
policies and procedures that underpin effective 
governance, regulatory compliance, and operational 
efficiency. These policies span all critical areas of our 
business, including financial management, risk control, 
and ethical conduct. To remain aligned with evolving 
regulations, industry standards, and global best practices, 
we review and update these policies on a regular basis, 
ensuring that our governance framework remains both 
current and resilient.

Information and Monitoring System
The Company has invested in advanced information 
systems to ensure the timely and accurate flow of 
information across all operations. These systems provide 
management with real-time insights to monitor 
performance, track variances, and maintain effective 
oversight. By embedding digital tools, automation, and 
data analytics into our processes, we are fostering a 
data-driven culture that enhances decision-making and 
strengthens organizational agility. This commitment to 
digital transformation enables us to anticipate challenges, 
seize opportunities, and respond swiftly to changes in the 
business environment.

Internal Audit
The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to 
an independent external firm, ensuring an objective and 
unbiased evaluation of our control environment. 
Reporting directly to the Audit Committee, the firm 
provides expert assessments on the effectiveness of 
internal controls and recommends improvements where 
needed. The Audit Committee regularly reviews these 
comprehensive reports, enabling timely actions that 
strengthen governance, enhance operational 
effectiveness, and reinforce stakeholder confidence.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control
The Board of Directors has instituted a comprehensive 
system of internal financial controls designed to ensure 
the efficient and secure operation of the Company. These 
controls cover key areas such as fraud prevention, asset 
safeguarding, legal and regulatory compliance, accurate 
financial reporting, and the timely provision of reliable 
information. To maintain their effectiveness, the controls 
are subject to regular review and enhancement in line 
with evolving laws, regulations, and best practices. This 
reflects our ongoing commitment to strong financial 
governance, transparency, and accountability.

Further details on the Company’s risk management 
framework are provided on page 49 of this Annual Report.

Human Resource (HR)
The Company places strong emphasis on effective 
human resource management as a driver of 
organizational success and sustained competitiveness. 
Our HR policies are structured to attract, develop, and 
retain skilled professionals while ensuring full compliance 
with employment laws and regulations. Core elements of 
our strategy include performance management, 
employee development, and market-aligned 
compensation, all of which enable us to nurture talent 
and strengthen engagement.

Beyond meeting current talent needs, we are committed 
to developing the next generation of professionals. As a 
registered Training Organization under the ICAP CA 
Trainees Program, we offer article ship opportunities to 
aspiring Chartered Accountants, equipping them with the 
knowledge and experience to excel in their careers. This 
initiative reflects our long-term vision of building a strong 
talent pipeline that will contribute to the continued 
success and growth of the Company and the broader 
industry.

Information Technology (IT)
The Company has implemented a comprehensive IT 
management framework to ensure that its systems 
remain reliable, secure, and aligned with business needs. 
This framework encompasses regular upgrades and 
maintenance of hardware and software, integrating the 
latest technological advancements to optimize 
performance and strengthen resilience. In parallel, we 
invest in continuous training and development of our IT 
teams, equipping them with the skills required to address 
emerging challenges and support the Company’s digital 
transformation journey.

IT Governance Policy
Our IT governance framework plays a vital role in 
safeguarding information assets, preventing unauthorized 
access, and mitigating cybersecurity risks. It also provides 
a structured mechanism for the ongoing monitoring and 
enhancement of security measures. The policy sets clear 
guidelines for the creation, storage, use, archiving, and 
disposal of information across the organization, ensuring 
data integrity and compliance with best practices.

Acknowledging the critical role of technology in driving 
business success and meeting the evolving needs of our 
users, we continuously review and upgrade our 
management information systems. These systems are 
designed to:

• Monitor and enhance organizational performance.

• Provide real-time, reliable data to support strategic 
decision-making.

• Assess and demonstrate departmental effectiveness.

• Establish robust checks and balances to safeguard 
assets and ensure accountability.

Through this governance framework and our sustained 
investment in technology, we are committed to 
maintaining a secure, efficient, and future-ready 
information environment that underpins our business 
objectives and strengthens long-term resilience.

Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
The Company has established a comprehensive Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) to safeguard the resilience and 
sustainability of its operations against unexpected 
disruptions. The plan sets out clear strategies for 
sustaining essential business functions during adverse 
events such as natural disasters, supply chain disruptions, 
or other emergencies. It incorporates structured 
procedures for risk assessment, crisis management, and 
recovery, ensuring that critical operations can be 
maintained with minimal interruption. To strengthen 
preparedness, regular drills, simulations, and reviews are 
conducted, allowing us to continuously test, refine, and 
enhance the effectiveness of the BCP. This proactive 
approach enables the Company to respond swiftly, 
protect stakeholders’ interests, and ensure long-term 
operational stability.

Safety of Records
To ensure the safety, integrity, and accessibility of its 
records, the Company has outsourced record-keeping to 
specialized third-party service providers. This approach 
enables secure storage and efficient retrieval of critical 
documents while ensuring compliance with best 
practices. Primary data is safeguarded through remote 
backup sites, ensuring continuity and availability in the 
event of a disaster or system failure. In addition, the use of 
Oracle Cloud provides advanced security protocols, 
scalability, and robust protection against data loss or 
unauthorized access. Through these measures, the 
Company upholds the reliability of its information assets 
and supports seamless, uninterrupted business 
operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate social responsibility is discussed in detail on 
page 43 of the Annual report. 

Environment and Social Governance
As one of the country’s leading exporters, the Company 
places the highest priority on safeguarding the health and 

safety of its workforce and stakeholders. A dedicated ESG 
(Environmental, Social, and Governance) compliance 
team has been established to drive and oversee our 
initiatives in these critical areas, reflecting management’s 
strong commitment to sustainable and responsible 
business practices.

Our facilities are fully aligned with environmental and 
safety standards, with proactive measures in place to 
eliminate the release of hazardous substances and 
minimize environmental impact. This commitment not 
only reinforces our responsibility toward the environment 
but also demonstrates our dedication to the well-being of 
the communities in which we operate. Through our 
integrated ESG strategy, we remain focused on 
embedding sustainability, ethics, and accountability 
across all aspects of our operations.

Gender Pay Gap
Our company is committed to fostering an inclusive and 
equitable workplace where every employee is valued, 
respected, and empowered to succeed. As an equal 
opportunity employer, we ensure that all employment 
decisions including recruitment, hiring, training, 
promotion, and compensation are based solely on merit 
and qualifications, without discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, gender, age, disability, or any other 
characteristic protected by law.

We believe that diversity fuels innovation and 
strengthens our overall performance. Accordingly, we 
are dedicated to maintaining a workplace where all 
employees have equal opportunities to grow, thrive, 
and contribute to our shared success.

For the reporting period, the mean pay gap shows that 
male employees earn on average 0.54% more than 
female employees, compared to -0.07% in 2024. In 
contrast, the median pay gap indicates that female 
employees earn 14.33% more than their male colleagues, 
broadly consistent with 14.51% in 2024. These results 
demonstrate stability across reporting periods and 
reaffirm the Company’s commitment to maintaining 
gender equity. We remain mindful, however, that pay 
equity is a continuous journey and are committed to 
further strengthening our practices in this area.

Holding Company
The Company remains a subsidiary of Gul Ahmed 
Holdings (Private) Limited, which holds 55.86% of its 
shares.

Subsidiary Companies
The Company has both direct and indirect wholly owned 
subsidiaries, as disclosed in Note 1 of the audited financial 
statements.
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Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
The management of the Company is committed to 
implementing good corporate governance and 
complying with best practices. As required under the 
Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased 
to state as follows:

i) The financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Company present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and 
changes in equity.

ii) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been 
maintained.

iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of financial 
statements, and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment.

iv) International Financial Reporting Standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the 
preparation of financial statements.

v) The system of internal control is sound in design and 
has been effectively implemented and monitored. 

vi) The directors of the Board are well aware of their 
duties and responsibilities as outlined by corporate 
laws and listing regulations. In compliance with the 
provisions of the Listing Regulations, six of our directors 
have attended and completed the Corporate 
Governance Leadership Skills program under the 
Board Development Series of Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance (PICG).

vii) One director, i.e., the Chairman, with the compulsory 
knowledge and experience is exempt from the 
requirement of attending the directors’ training 
program.

viii) There are no significant doubts about the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern.

ix) There has been no material departure from the best 
practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the 
listing regulations.

x) The value of investment of provident fund based on its 
unaudited accounts as on June 30, 2025 is Rs. 3.3 
billion (FY2024: Rs. 2.6 billion as per audited accounts)

xi) Statements regarding the following are annexed in the 
notes to the financial statements:

• Number of Board meetings held and attendance by 
directors.

• Key financial data for the last six years.

• Pattern of shareholding.

The trading and holding of Company’s shares by the 
Directors & their Spouses or Executives, along with the 
price, the number of shares and nature of the transaction, 
were notified by the Company Secretary to the Board, 
SECP & PSX, within the stipulated time. All such holdings 
have been disclosed in the enclosed Pattern of 
Shareholding.

Investors’ Grievance and complaints
The Company is committed to transparency and ensures 
equal access to information for all shareholders, including 
prospective investors. Shareholders are encouraged to 
seek information regarding the Company’s operations, 
their investments, dividend entitlements, and regulatory 
disclosures issued by the Company. We prioritize timely 
and comprehensive responses to such requests, in full 
compliance with statutory requirements.

Investor grievances are managed through a centralized 
and structured mechanism designed to address queries 
and concerns promptly. This approach not only ensures 
effective resolution but also reinforces shareholder 
confidence and strengthens transparency in our 
engagement with investors.

Composition of the Board
The Board of Directors as at June 30, 2025 is as follows:
Total number of directors

a) Male 06
b) Female 01

Particulars No. Name of Directors
a) Independent 2 Ms. Zeeba Ansar
 Directors  Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza

b) Executive 2 Mr. Mohammad Zaki Bashir
 Directors  Mr. Zain Bashir

c) Non Executive 3 Mr. Mohomed Bashir
 Directors  Mr. Ziad Bashir
   Mr. Ehsan A. Malik

d) Female  - -
 Non-Executive 
 Directors

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee
• Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza – Chairman
• Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member
• Mr. Ehsan A Malik – Member

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
• Ms. Zeeba Ansari – Chairman
• Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member
• Mr. Zain Bashir – Member

Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors
The Company has established a structured remuneration 
policy for its Non-Executive and Independent Directors, 
designed to ensure fairness, transparency, and alignment 
with best governance practices. The key principles of the 
policy are as follows:

• Remuneration is market-competitive and reflects the 
Director’s experience, expertise, and contribution.

• Independent Directors do not receive any fixed salary; 
they are compensated solely through meeting fees for 
attending Board and Committee meetings.

• Meeting fees for all Directors are recommended by the 
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
(HR&RC) and approved by the Board. For Independent 
Directors, such fees are strictly linked to their actual 
attendance.

• Directors are entitled to reimbursement of travel, 
accommodation, and other reasonable expenses 
incurred while attending Board, Committee, or 
General Meetings.

• In cases where Directors are required to perform 
assignments beyond their statutory responsibilities, 
they may be granted additional remuneration as 
determined and approved by the Board.

Director’s Training
The Directors of the Company are suitably qualified and 
adequately trained to discharge their duties, with a clear 
understanding of their powers and responsibilities under 
the Companies Act, 2017, and the Regulations of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Rule Book.

Board’s Evaluation
In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, 
2017, the Board has approved a structured mechanism for 
evaluating its performance. This mechanism includes a 
comprehensive questionnaire covering the Board’s scope, 
objectives, functions, as well as the Company’s overall 
performance and monitoring practices. Inputs from each 

Director are incorporated into the process, enabling the 
Board to evaluate its effectiveness collectively and identify 
areas for continuous improvement.

Conflict of Interests
Each Director actively exercises the right to participate in 
Board proceedings, with decisions reached through 
consensus. Any concerns raised by Board members on 
specific agenda items are duly documented in the 
meeting minutes, ensuring transparency and 
accountability.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Business 
Ethics, which not only ensures compliance with regulatory 
requirements but also requires Directors to formally 
disclose any interests that could give rise to actual or 
perceived conflicts of interest. This reinforces the Board’s 
commitment to ethical governance and responsible 
decision-making.

Review of Related Party Transactions
In line with the Companies Act, 2017, the Code of 
Corporate Governance (CCG), and other applicable laws 
and regulations, all related party transactions are 
comprehensively reviewed and presented to the Audit 
Committee on a regular basis. Based on the Committee’s 
recommendations, these transactions are subsequently 
considered and approved by the Board. Furthermore, any 
transactions in which a majority of Directors have an 
interest are presented annually to the shareholders for 
approval, ensuring full transparency and strict compliance 
with governance requirements.

This structured process safeguards shareholder value by 
ensuring that all related party transactions are conducted 
at arm’s length, on fair commercial terms, and in the best 
interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

CEO’s Performance Review
Each year, the Board establishes a set of objectives and 
strategies aligned with the Company’s mission. Progress 
against these milestones is systematically measured to 
assess performance and evaluate their contribution to the 
Company’s growth. The review covers multiple 
dimensions, including alignment with the mission, 
achievement of short- and long-term goals, sustainability 
of profitability, enhancement of shareholder value, and 
adherence to sound governance and statutory reporting 
practices. The Board also provides constructive feedback 
to further strengthen and support the CEO’s role in 
leading the organization.

This structured process reinforces accountability, ensuring 
that management remains answerable to both 
shareholders and stakeholders while driving sustainable 
growth and long-term value creation.
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Role Of Chairman And CEO
The Chairman serves as the custodian of the Company on 
behalf of the Board and stakeholders, leading the Board 
of Directors to ensure its efficiency and effectiveness. The 
Chairman is committed to fostering the Company’s 
sustainable growth, protecting its reputation and that of 
its subsidiaries, and maintaining a balanced Board 
composition that reflects diverse expertise in business 
operations, economic insight, and strategic acumen.

The CEO, in turn, holds primary responsibility for driving 
the Company toward its vision, mission, and long-term 
objectives. Acting as the key link between the Board and 
management, the CEO oversees day-to-day operations 
while executing long-term strategies, plans, and budgets 
aimed at enhancing shareholder value. In addition to 
representing the Company before shareholders, 
regulators, government authorities, and the public, the 
CEO plays a central role in inspiring employees, leading 
organizational change, and making critical decisions that 
support the achievement of targeted goals.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding, along with additional 
information as of June 30, 2025, is disclosed in the Annual 
Report of the Company. As of June 30, 2025, associated 
companies and public sector entities collectively hold 
69.4%, banks, insurance companies, and mutual funds 
hold 14.7%, Directors hold 7.4%, while individual 
shareholders account for 8.5% of the total shareholding.

Auditors
The present External Auditors, M/s. Yousuf Adil & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, have completed the statutory 
audit for the year ended June 30, 2025, and issued an 
unqualified (clean) audit report. They will retire at the 
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for 
reappointment. Based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, the Board proposes their 
reappointment as the Company’s auditors for the financial 
year ending June 30, 2025.

Future Economic Outlook
Global trade is projected to remain subdued in FY 
2025-26, with the WTO expecting a 0.2% contraction in 
merchandise trade volumes before a modest rebound in 
2026. Heightened trade tensions, maritime disruptions, 
and geopolitical uncertainties continue to weigh on the 
outlook, while inflation worldwide is on a declining path, 
offering some relief in input costs.

Pakistan enters FY 2025-26 with improved 
macroeconomic stability achieved in the prior year, as 
GDP grew by 2.7%, inflation declined to 4.6%, and the 
policy rate was eased significantly, lowering financing 

costs. Fiscal consolidation has also reduced the 
debt-to-GDP ratio, reflecting stronger management and 
creating a foundation for recovery.

Nevertheless, challenges remain for the export-oriented 
textile sector, including high energy costs, volatile cotton 
prices, import duties on raw materials, and delayed tax 
refunds under the revised regime, all of which pressure 
margins and liquidity. With the withdrawal of EFS on 
Cotton, Yarn and Grey Cloth, It may possess further 
challenge to compete with Regional Competitors as such 
will create a Liquidity issue for the Exporters whose Sales 
Tax and Income Tax refunds would get stuck. Climate 
vulnerabilities and global trade weakness add to risks. 
Looking ahead, FY 2025-26 is expected to be a year of 
consolidation, supported by stable inflation, 
accommodative monetary policy, and structural reforms, 
with progress dependent on consistent execution to 
strengthen competitiveness and resilience.

Subsequent Events
The Board of Directors of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited,
in its meeting held on September 29, 2025, has resolved
to discontinue the business operations of the Company’s
Export Apparel Segment. This decision has been taken
following a comprehensive strategic review of the
segment’s performance and future outlook.

Other than the above, no material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
company have occurred between the end of the financial 
year and the date of this report.
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��۔ � � ���� ����� �
�� ���ِ �ّ�� � ���� ��� ّ�� ��� ��� ���� ������ �� ��� ������� ���(IFRS)

 �� �� ���� �� ������ �� � ���� ��
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 � ���� ��� �� ��� � ���� ���� �� ������ ��� � � �� ��� ِ�� ��� �� �� ����� �� ����� �� ��� ���� ��� �� �� ��� ���� ��

 � ��� ���� ��� ،���� ���� �� � ���� ��
�

 ��� ���� �� ������ ��� � � �� ��� ��۔ ��ِ � � ����

 � �� ������� ����� �� ��� ���� ���ٓ ��� �� �� �� ��� ��
�
� ��� ������ ��� � �� ������ ���� ٔ��� ��

 ����� �� ��� ���� ��� ��� �� ����� � ��� ����� ���
�

� ��� �� ���� ��� ��(PICG)

�۔ ���� ����
�
 ��� ��� ����� �� � ���� ���������� ������� �� ���� �� ���� � �� �������

 ���� � �� ��� ��� � ����� ��� ��� ���� �� ���� �������� � ، �� ������ٔ �� ��� � ��� ��� ���� ���� ٔ��� �� � ����  07
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Going)“ ���� ���� � �� ������” ��� ��� �� ��� ����
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 �� ����� ��� �ٔ����� � ���� ��� ��� �� � ������� � ��� ���(Concern

����۔ �� � �� �� ��� �� ������ ��� �� �� ��� � ���� ���

 ����� ���� �� ����� ��� �ٔ����� �� ��� ��� ������� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� � �� ������� ����� �� ��� ����  09

��۔ � ���� � ���� ���� �� ������ ��� � � �� ��� ِ�� ��� �� �� ��� �� ��� � �� �� ���

30 ��������� �� � �� ����ٔ���� �� ��� �����ٓ � �� �� ، �� ������� ��� ����� � �������� � ���� �� ����� ����� �����������  10

 �� ��� �� �� (�����  ���� 2024ء: ٓ��� � � ���� �� ��� ��� 2025 ء ��� 3.3 ��� ���

�)۔ ���� �� ��� ��� 2.6  ��������� �� � �� ��� �ٔ����

 � ���� ( ��� ��������)� ���� ��� �� ���� ������ �� ��� ������� ��� ���� �� ��� � ��� �� ����  11

 :���� �� ��� ����

 �� ّ��� ������ � ������� �� ��� � � ��� ��� ����ُ ��� � �� ��� � � ّ��� ��� ،� �� ��� � ��ّ �� ��� � ��� ،� ������� ����  

 ، �� ��� ���� ،� ���� ،�� ��� �� ��� ��� �� ��� �� ����� ���� � �� �� ��� �� �� ���� ������

 � �� ��� � �� ّ��� ��� ��� ���� ��� ������� �� ������ ��� ��� �ٔ����� � ��� ��� ����� ،���� ،� �� ���

��۔ ��� ���� �� �� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ���� ��� ��� ������ �ً ������ ���� ���

 ���� ��� ��� �� � � �� ��� � ����� �� ��� ���ّ ��� �� �� ��� ��� ���� �� � ��������
�

� �� �� �� ��� �
��  

 ������� ������� � �
�� ������� ��۔ ���  � � ������ ��� ���

�
�

 ��� ����������� ����� ���
�

 �� ��� �� �� ���� ������ ��� ��� �� �� ��� ���� �� � ����� ُ��� �������  �� �� �� ��� ��

 ���� ��� ��� � ���� ����� ���ٓ ،������� � ّ��� ��� �� ���� ��� �� ��� � ������� ������

 ��� �� ��� �� �� ��� �� �� ���� � �۔ �� ����� �� �� � ّ��� � ���� � ���� ������� ������ ����

 �� �� ��� ،���� �� ��� ��� �� 0.54%�ً����� �� �� �� ����� ��� ���� ���� �� �� ��
�
 ��� �� ���� ������ ���

 �� ��� �� ��۔ �� �� ��������، ���� ��
�

 0.07%- �� �� � ��� � 2024 ء ����

�� ������� �� �� ���� � ��(Median)

 ��� � ��� ،�� � ��� ��� �� 14.33%�� ����� ������ٓ ��� �� ���� ������ �� �� ����� ���  

 �� ٔ�
�

� �� ��� � ��۔ ��� � �����
�
� �� �� ������� � 2024 ء ���14.51% �� ������

 � �� ����
�
 ��� ���� �� � ����� �� �� ��� ��� ���� ����� ������ �� �� �� ��� � �� ��� � �� ����� ��� �

 ،�
��� ����۔ ��� �� � ����� ��� ���

�
�

 � ��� ��� ��� � ���� �� ��� ��� �� ���� � �� �� �� ��� ��

 �����
�

 � ���� �������� � ���� �� ����� �� �� ��
�
 ��� ���� �� � ����� � ���� �

�
�
 � ��� �

��

 �� �� ���� � ��� ��� ��� �� ��� ����� ��� � �� ���� � ���� � ������ ���� �� �
�� ��� ،�� � �����

����۔ �� � ����� ُ��� �������  �� ���� �� ���

��� ����
�
 � ��� ����� ���

 ،�� � ��� ����
�
 �� ��� �� ��� �� �� �����( ������ �� ٔ�������) ��� ��� ����� ��� ����� ��� �� ����� ��� � �� ����

�
 

��۔ � ������ ��� ���� 55.86%�� �� � ���

�� �� �� ����
�
  �� ��� ��

  � �� ������ ����
�
 ��� ���� �� ����� ��������� ��� ��� ������ �� ��� �� ��� �� ��� ����
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  �� ���� ������ �� ��� ������� �� ��� �� ���ٓ ��� �� �� ��� ،���� �� �� ������ �� �� �� ����
�
 �� ��� ��  

��۔ � ���� � ���� 1 ��� ���  

 (CCG) �� ���� ��� ��� � �� ������� ����� �� ��� ����

  �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� �� ��� �� � �� ������� ����� �� ��� ���� �� �
�
�

� � ����� �� �� ���� ��� � �� ����
�

 

��۔ � ������� �
����� �� ����� ����  

 � ������ ����� �� ��� ����) ���� ��ّ �� � ������ �� ��� ��� �����  

 ���� ��� �� ��� ��� ���� ��ّ �� � ������ �� ��� ��� �����(CSR-���� ��� ��
�
� �������

����۔ �� ��ٔ�� ��� �
����� �� ����  43�� �� �� �� ���� ��� � � �������� ��ِ

(ESG-� �� ������� � ������ �� �� ���� ����� ���� ٔ���� ����) �� �������� � ������  

 � �� ���� � �� ����
�
 ،���� ���� �� � ���� �� � ���� ��� ����� ���� ���� � ����� �� ����  

 �� �����ّ� ��� � �������� � ����� ��� ��� ����� ��� � �� ����� ��� ��� �� ����

ESG) ���� ��� � ���� �������  �� �� ��۔ �� ���� � ��� ��� � � �� �
�
�

� ���

(Environmental, Social, and Governance

 ���� ��� � ���� �� ��� ��� �
��� ��� � ��� �� � ��ٔ�� ��� � ٔ��� ��� � �� ��

�
 � �� ����� �����

 �� ����� �� �� ��
�
�
 � ��۔ ��� � ������� ��� �� ��� ��� �� ����� ��� ��� ������� ���� ��� �� ��� ����� ���

 ��� ّ��� ��� � ���� � �� �� ��� �� ���� ِ ����� ��� �������� ��� ��ّ �� ��� ��� �� ٔ�� � ���

��۔ � � ������

 �� ������� �� ����� ����� � ��
�

��� ���� ��� �� ��� ���������� ��� ����� ���� ��� � �� ����
�

 

 ��ٔ����  �������  ������� ���� �� �� �� ��� ������� � ��� ،���� �� � ��
����ٓ �

�� ���� ���� ����
�

 �� ��� ���������� ��� � ����� � �� ��
�

 ��� ���� ���� �� ���ّ��� � ���� � ��� ���� ��

 ���� � ��� � ���� � ����۔ ��� �� �������� � ���� � ���� � ����� ��� �� ��� ��� ��������

 ��� ��� ��� �� � � ������ ���� ����ُ ��� ���� ��ّ �� ���� ��� ��� �� ّ��� ��� �� �������

 � ������ �� �� ��� ��� �� �����
�
�� ���� ��� �� ��

�
 �������  �� �� �� �� ��� � ��� ��� ��� �� �� �� ���� �����

 ����� ِ ������ ESG �� ����� � �� ����۔���� �� � ����� ���� �
�� � ���� �� ��� �� �

 ��� ���� ����� ��� ، ��� �� ����� ���� ،���� �� ٔ�� � ��� � ّ ��� ��� ���� ��� ������� � �� ��

��۔ � ������� ���� � ����� ���� ��� � ���� �� ��������� ��� ��� � �� ����

(Gender Pay Gap ) ����� ��� ��� �� �� ��� � ���� ��� ����ُ

  �������  �� ������ �
����� �� ������� ������ ��� � �� ������ ��� � ���� � �� ����

�
 

 ،� ��� ������� ��� ��ُ ،��ٔ� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� � ������ �� � �� �� ��� �� � � ����� ُ���

 � ۔ ������ ������� ������  � ������ ��� ��� ��� � ��� ��� ��� ������� ���ُ ���

Equal Opportunity)ے آجر��� ������ �
����� ��

 ��� ��� ��� ���� �� � ��� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� �
��،���� ���� ��(Employer

  ���� � ��� ����ُ،������ ��� ��� �� ���� ������ ��ٔ� ����  �� ��������� � �� ������� ���� ���� ���� �� ���� ����

 �� �� ���� �������  �� ���� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� ��� ���� ����� ��� �� ّ��� ��� �� �� ���� ����  •

۔ ������  � ��� � ���� � ٔ��� ��� � ��� �� ��
�
 �� �� ���� � �� ���

 (BCP - ���� ��� �� ��� �� �� �� �� ���
�

 � ��� �����) � ����� ���� ��� ���� ��
�
 ��� ��������  

 � �� �� ��� ���� �� ٔ�� � ��� ��� � ���� ��� ���� ����������ٓ �������� � ���� ��� �� � � ���� � ��� �� ��
�

 � ��
�

�� ���� ��� � ۔ ��� ������  � ��� � ���� �� ��� ��� ����� ���� ��� �� �� �������� � ���� ����

 �� �� ��� �ٔ���� ���� ، ��� ����ٓ �� ���� ��� ���� ��� �� � � ������ �
����� �� �� ������ ِ ������

 ������ �� ���� ����� � �� ���� �� ��������� ������� ���� �� ��� �� ��� � � ��� ،�� ��� � ����

 ����ِ � �۔ �� ���� ����� �� ��� ��� ��� ���� ��� �������� ��� �� �� ���

 �� ����� �������  �� ���� ��� � ��� ����� �� �� ��
�
�
 �� ٔ������ ، ������ ���

�
�

 �� � ّ�� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ���� ����������ٓ �
��� ���� ��� ���� �� ���� ��� ���� �ٔ �� �� ������

 � ����� ��� ،�� �� ���� ����� ���� ��� � �� ����
�
 ،��ٓ���� � ��� ۔��� ������  � ��� ����� ���� ������ � ������

 �� ����� �� �� ���� ��� ��� ّ�� ��� � �� ���� ������� � �� �� � ��ٔ��� ��� ��� ،�� ��� �����

 ��� � ���� ���� �� ���� ��
�
 ��� �������� � ��� �

�� �� � ��� ،�� �

 ��� � ����� �� �� ���� ��� ،���� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ، � ��������
�

���� �����
�

 ��� ����� �� ����

 ، �������� � ����ِ �ّ� ��� �� ��� � �� ����
�
 �����ِ ������ ��� ��� � ��۔ ��� � � ����� � ������

 �� ��ّ ��� � ������ ��� ،������ �� ّ��� ��� ��� ����� ���� �� ��� ����� ��� � �� �����

��۔ � ����� �� ��� � ���� ��� �� ���� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� ��� ���� ����� �����

؛ ��
�

��� ���� ��� �� ����� ����  

 �� ���� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� ��� � ���� �� ����� ��� �� �����  ��� ، �� ���� ���� ��� �� ����� ��� �  

 �� ���� ��� ���� ��� ��� ���
�

 � ���� ���� ��� � ��������
�

� ����� ��� � � �� ��� ����
�
 �������

 �
��� ���� �ٔ �� �� ������ � ��۔ ��� � ����� ����� ��� �� �� ٔ��������� ����

 � ���� �� ��� �����
�

 ��� �� ���� ��� ��� ��� � ����ٔ�� ��� �� ��
�

�� ����� ��� ����� ��� ��� ������� �����

��۔  � � ���� �� ��� � �� �� �� ��� �� ��
�

 ��� ����ٓ�� ���� ���� ���� �ٔ �� �� ������ �� ��� ��� �� ��� �� �� ��� �� �

 � ���� ��� ����� ������� � �� �� � �� ������ ���َ � �� ��� ���� ��� � ��� � �� ��� �� ��� �� �� ���

 � ���� ������ ��� ������ ��� ��� � ���
�
�

 � ��� �� ����ٓ ���� ���� ��� �� � � ���� ���

��۔ �� �� ������،   �� ���� ������ � ��� � �� ����� ��� ���� ��
�

 � ���� ��� �� ���� ����� ��(Oracle Cloud) ���ٔ���� �� ��� ���

 �ٔ������ ��� ���� � �� �� � ��� ��� � �� ��� �� ��� ،� ��� �� ���� � ������ ، �������� �������� �� ���� �����

 �� ������� ��۔ ��� ���� � � ���� ��� � ���� �
����� �� �� ّ��� ��� �� �� ���� ���� ��� ��
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 ��� � ����� ����� ���� ��� ������ ��� �ٔ�� � ����� ��� � �� ��� ����
�
 � ���� ���� ��� �� ��

 ��� ������ ۔ 18.2 ���� �������  ������� ���� ��� ��� �������  �� ���� �� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ���� �� ٔ�� � ���

 ��� � �� ����
�
 ��� � ��� � ��� ��۔ ��� � �� ��� � ��� ��� ��� � �� � � ���������  �� �� ����� ��� ���� ������ ��� ��� ����

 �� �������� ������ � ��� ���� � ��� ������ ���� 15 �� 10 ���� � �� ������ ���� �� ������

 �� ��
�

�� ����� ���� �� ��� �� �� ���� � ���� ������� ���� �� ��� ��� � ���� ���� �� ������ �����

 ����� �� ��� � �� ���� � �� ����
�
����۔ �� �� ������  ��� ������ ���������� ��� � ���

�
�

 �� �ٔ��� ����� ��� ���� ��� �� � � ��� ��� �� �� �� ��
�

 ���� ��� �� ��� �� ���� ��� � ���� ��� �� ���� � ���� ���� �� �������

�۔  ��� ��� ���� ���� ���� �� �� ��
�

 � �� ������ � �� ���� ���� � ���� ��� ������  � ��� � ����� �� �� ��� � ���� � ٔ�� �� ��

 � ��������
�

� � ���� � ���� ��� ��� ������ ��� �ٔ�� � ����� ��� �� ��ّ ��� � ������ �� ������� � �������� � �� �� �������� � ���

 ��� ����� ��� ���� ������ ������ �� �ٔ��� �� ��� �� ��� �ُ ��� ��� � ���� �� ��� �� ��
�
 � ��� �� ���� ��� ���

����۔ �� � ��� � ��� ��� �������  �� ���� �� ���

 � ��� � ����� ��� � ��� ،�� ��� � ��� ���� �� ����� ��� ��� 17.19% � ���� ��� ����� ���� � �� ������ ��

 � ���� �� ���� ����ُ��� �� ����� �� �� ��
�
 ��� � ��� ���� 24% � ���� ��� ����� ���� �������� �� ���

 � �� ��� ������� � �� �� �� ��� � �� �� ��� ���� �ٔ��� �� ������� ��� ��� ��۔ ������ ��� � ��� ���� 10%

 ��� ����� �� �������� � ���� �� � �� ���� ��� ���� �� � ��� ،� ���� �� �� ��� � �� �������� � ���� �ٔ� �� ��� �� ���� �� ��� �������

 �� ���� ����� � �� �� ��� ��� �� ����� ����� � ����ٔ�� � �� �� ��� �� �� ��� �ٔ���� ���� ، ��ٔ����  � ��� � ������

 � ��� ���� � ���� ��� ����� ���� ���������� ��� ����� ��� �� ������ �� �� �� ���� ������� �� ��� �� ����

 � ��� ،�� ��� � ��� ���� 18 %� ���� ��� ����� ���� ��� �� �� ��۔ ِ�� �� ��������، ���� ���

 �� ���� ��� �ٔ��� ��� � ���� ����� ��� ���� ����� � ��� ���� 56 %� ���� ���� ��� ���� ��� �� �� ��� ���

 ��� ����� � ��� ���� 91 %،� ���� ��� ����� ���� �� ���� � � �� ��� � ������ �� ����

��۔ � ���� ��� � ���� � ٔ���� �� �� ��� ���� �� ���� ����ُ ،�� ����� �� �� ��
�
 � ��� ���� 9 %��� ،� ����

 � ��� � ����� ��� � ��� ، ��ٔ����  � ����� � ���� ���� 11.6 � ���� �� �� ��� ����
�
 � ������

 � ���� ����� ��� � �� �� ���
�

 � ������ � ���� �� � �� ���� ��� ���� �� �� ������ �� ��� ��� �� ��� � �� ��� �� ��
�
 � ��� ��� ��� � ����

 � �� ��� ���� ��� ������ �� ��� ������� � �� ��� ����
�
 �� ����� ��� �� �� ،� ��� ��� ��� ������ �� �ٔ��� ���

 ��� �� � ��� �ٓ ���� � ���� �� ُ�� �ِ� �� �� ���� ���� ����� ��� ���
�
�

 � ���� ������� � ���� �� ����

 � ��� ���� 19.37 %� ���� ������� � ���� �� ���� � �� ��� ���� � ���� �� ����� ��۔ �� ��
�

 ��ٔ��� ���

 � ��۔ ��� ��� ����� ��� � � ��� ���� 11.95 % ���� � ���� ��� ����� ���� �� ��� ������� �� �� ��� ،�� ���

 �� �� ��� ��� � ���� ������� ��� ����� ِ ������ ��� �� ��� ��� �� �� ��� � ����� ���� ����� � �� �� �������� � �� �� �� ���

 ���� ����� ��� � ��� ���� �� ��� FE ��� EFS� ��� � ����� � ��۔ �� ����������� ��� ���� � � ������

 � ��� ���� �� ��۔ ��� ������ ��� ��� ��� ���� ��� ��� ��� � ����� ������ ���� ����� ��

 ���� ������ ��� ��� ��� � �
�� ��� �� ��� ��� � ���� �� �� ����� ��� ��� �� ����ُ �� ٔ��� ��� �� �� ����� ����

 ����� ���
�

 ��� � ����� ��� ��� �������� �� �� ����� �� ��� ��� �� � �� ����
�
 ��ٔ� ��� � ��������

�
�
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 ���� ���� �� �������� ������ �� ��� �� ��� ��� �� ���� 2024-25 ء �� ������ ���

 ��� ���� � �� �������
�

�
�

 � ��� ��� ����� 4.07 %� ���� ������ �� �� ��� ��� � �� �� ���� ��� �۔����ٓ����� � ����

� ��� ����� ���� 2025 ء  ����� �� ���� �� �� ��� ��� �� ����� 368.9 � ���� ��ّ ��� ���ِ

 � ���� �� � �� ���� ��� �۔ �� ����������� �� ���� ���� �� �� �� �
�
�

 � ��� ���� �� �� ��� ��� �� ����� 383.6 � ����

 � �� �������
�

�
�

 � ������ �� � ��� ���� 10.31 %� ����� ��� � ��� ���� �� ����� ��� � ���� ��� ���� �� �� ���

 � ��� � ���� ���� 157.9 ��� � ����� �� � ���� ���� 143.14 �� ����

 ،����� ���
�

 ،�� ����� ��� �� � ������ ������� �� ٔ���� ��� ��� �� �� ���� �� ،�
��� ��ٔ��۔���

�۔  ���� � ���� ���� � �� ���� ��� �� �
�
�

 ��� ��� ����� ���� ��� � �� �� �
�
�

 � ���� ���� ���� �
�

�
�

 �� �� ��� ��� � �� �� ��������ٓ

 �� �� � ������� �� ����� �� ���� ����� ���� ���� ��� � �� ��
�

��� 2025 ء ���  ��� 30

:���� �� ��ٔ����  �������  ���� � ���� � ��� �� � ���� ����

:����������� � �� ��������

 ����� ��� � � ��� ���� 6.45% � ���� � �� �� ���� ��� � �����ٓ���� � ���� �
�

��� �� ��� �� � ���� ����� ������ ���

 � ���� ���� �� �� ��� ��� ��� ����� �� ��� ���� �����ِ �� ���� ����� � ��� ��� �� �� ��� ��� � ���� ���� � ����

�� ����� ���� 2025 ء  ��
�

 � ���� �������ٓ���� ��������� ��۔ ��� ��� � ���
�

 �����ٓ���� ��� ��� ��

��۔ ِ���  ��� � ��� ���� 16.38 %� ���� ������� � ���� �� ���� � �� ��� ���� ������ ��

�۔  ���� ��� ���� � ��� ���� �� ����� ��� ��� 26.47 %� ���� �� ������ �� ��� ���� ������

 �� ����� �� �� ��� ��� � ���� ������� ��� ����� ِ ������ ��� � �� ����
�
 �� ��� ����� ���

�
 � ��� � ���� �� ������ ��

 �� ����� ��� ���� � ���� ����� ���� ��� ��� ����� � �������� �� �������� � ���� � ��� ،�� �

��۔ � ���� ��� � ّ ��� ��� ��� ��� �� ���� �� ��� �� ����

� ���� ���� ���� � ������� ��� ������

 � ����� ��� � ��� ،� ����� � ������ �� ��������� � ��� ���� 10.3% � ���� ������ ��� �� ������ �� ��� � �� ����
�

 ��� ،� ��� ���� � ���� �� ������� �� �ٔ��� ����� ��� ،� �� ��� �� ��
�
 �ٔ��� ��� � ���� ����� ��� ���� �� ��� ���� ��� ����

�۔ ��� ��� (� �� ������ �
�
�

�� ����)�� ������ � ���� � ����� ��� �� ��� ����ُ ��� ��� ���

 �� �� �� ��� � ������� ��� � �ٔ�� ����� ���� 2025-26 ء ���� ��� � � �������
� ��

�
� ���ٓ

 ���� � ��� ��� � ���� � �� �ِ��� ��� ،� ّ��� ��� �� ����� � ���� � ��� ،�� � � ���� ��� ��� � ��� ��� ��� ���
�
�

 ��� �� ��� ������� ��� �� �� ����� �� �������� ،���� ��� ���� ��� ���� �� ��� � ���� �� ���� ��� �� ���� �� ��� ���

�� ���۔ �� � ������� ��� �� �� ��� �� �
�
�

 �� ���� �� ��� �������

:���� ���� � ٔ��� ���� �� ��� ��� ��� ������ ���

 � ��� ���� 7.39% � ���� �������ٓ���� ��� ��� ������ ��� � ����� ���� 2024-25 ء ����

 ���� �� ��۔��� � � ������ �� �� ��� ��� ����� �� ����� � ���� ������� � �� �� ������� ������� � ��� �� ���

 ��� ����� ���� �� �� �� ������� ������� �� �� �� ���� ������ ��� ��� ������ ����� �� ��� �ِ ���� ��� ��

 (��� �� ����)��� �� ��� �������ٓ���� � ٔ��� ���� �� ��� � ���� � ��� ��۔ �� � � ��
����ٓ �

�� ��

�� � � ��� � ��� ��� �� �� ��� � ��� �� ��
�

 �� ������ ��

 ���� �� ��� � ���� �� ��� �� � � ������� ��� �� �� ��� �� �
�
�

 �� ����� ��� �� ��
�

 ��� ��� ���� ���� � ٔ��� ���� �� ���

 ������� ��� ،� ��� ���� � ���� ��� ����� ���� �� �ٔ��� ����� ��� ،�ٔ��� �� ��� �� ��� �ُ � ���� �� ��� �� ��
�
 ���

 �ِ� �� � ��� ��� ���� ������ ���� ���� ����� ���
�

 � ��� ���� �� ���� ��� �� �� ������� �ٔ��� ��� � ���� ����� ���� �
�

�
�

 �� ����� ��� � ������� ،��ٓ���� � ��� ����۔ ��� �� ������� � �� �ٔ� ���� ���� ����� � ����ٔ�� � �� ����
�
�����ٓ ��� � ���� ����

 ،�� ��� ���� �� ��� � ���� � �� �
�
�

� �� �� ��� ،� �� ������ �
�
�

�� ���� � ���� �� �� ���� ��� �� � ���
�
�

 �� ��������� �� ��� ���� �� ���

 � �� ���� ���� � �� ��� �� ����� ���� ��� �� �� ������� �����ٓ���� � �� ��� ��� � ���� � ��� ��������� ��� �� �� �� ���� ���

����۔ �� � ����� �� �� � ����

:����������� � ��� � ������� ��� ����
�

 ��� ���� �ٔ��� �� ������� ��� ،�ٔ� ���� �� �� ��� �� ��
�
 � ���� �� ��� �� ���� �����ٓ���� ��� � �� ����

�
 � ������

 ��� � ���� � ���� � ����ٓ �� ���� � ���) ������ �� ��� ������� � ��� ��� ،��� ������� � �� �� �� ��� � �� ��

 ،�� ��� � ������� ��� �� �� ��� �� �
�
�

 �� ��������� �ٔ��� �� ��� �� ��� �ُ � ���� �� ��� �� ��
�
 ��� �ٔ�� � ����� ��� ��� ،(� �� ٔ��� ���

 ����� ��� � ���� � ��� ���� ��� ������� � ���� � ���
�

 �� � ����ٓ � �� ��� ����
�
 �� ����� ��� �� ��

 ��ٔ� ��� � ���� ����ُ ��ٔ� ��� � ��� ��� � ���� ��� ���� ������� � �� �� �� ��� � �� �� ���� ��� �� � ���� ��

۔ ������  � ��� � ����� ����ُ �� ٔ��� ��� �� ��� ����� ���� �������

:��� ����
�� ���� � ������ ��� ��� ������ ���

 ����� �� ����� ��� ���� ��� � �� �� �� ����� ��� ��� ������ ��� � ����� ���� 2025 ء ����

 �ِ��� ��� �� �� ��� �� ��� � ��� ���� 2.68% � ���� � ��� � �� � �� �����ٔ��۔ �� ��� �ٓ � ��
�

�� ��

 ��� ���� ����� �� ،���� � ���� �� ُ�� �ِ� �� � ���� ���� �ٓ ���� 4.5 %��� � ��� ��� �� 23.4 %� ��

 �����
�

 � ���� �� � �� ���� ��� ���� �� �� �� �� ���� ���� ����� ��� ���� � ����� ��� �� ����� ��� ���� ����� �� �� ��

 � ���� ����� ��� � �� ��� �� � �������� �� ��� �� �� ��� �� ��� ����� 14 � ��۔ �������� ����ٔ������ �� ���

 �� �� ���� ،���� �� ��� � ���� �������ٓ���� � ��۔ ��� ��� � ����� �� ���� � ���� �������� 22 � ���

��۔ ��� �����
�

 �� � ��� ���� � ���� � ٔ��� ��� �� �� ���� �����ِ �� ��� � �� ِ ���� ��������

 ����� ��ٔ�� � ��� �ٔ����� ��� ���� ��� �� ��� ������� �� ���� ���� �ٔ���ٓ ���� �� ��� �� ��
�

 � ���� � �� ��� � �
�� ��� �� ��� �������

 ��� ��� ���(25.9%) �� �� ����ٓ �� �� ��� ������� �� ��� 3.7 %��� � ��� � �� � �� � ���� 25ء ����

 � ��� ��� �����۔ �� �� ���� ���� � �� � ��� ���� ������� ��� � ����(62.7%) �� �� ����ٓ �� �� ���

��۔ ��� � ��� ���� 41.1%���� ���� ����� ���
�

 � ���� � �� �� ���� ��� �

 �� ��� � ��� ���� ��� ���� �� �� ��� ��� 1.37 � ���� �������ٓ���� � ����� ���� 2024-25 ء ����

32.04 ��� � ����� �� ���� �� �� ��� ��� 30.7�� ���ّ�� ���ِ ��� ���� � �� �������
�

�
�

 � ��� ���

 ��� �� ��� � ��� ���� ��� ���� �� �� ��� ��� 3.61 � ���� �������ٓ�� �� �� ��� ،� �� �� �� �� �
�
�

 � ��� ���� �� �� ��� ���

 ��� �� �� ��� � ������ ��� � �� ��
�
�

 ���� ِ ������ �۔ ��� �� �� �� �� �
�
�

 � ��� ���� �� �� ��� ��� 58.39 � ���

 ���� �� �� ��� ��� 38.3 � ��� ��� �� ��� � ��� ���� ���� � ��� ���� 26.6 %� ���� ���� ��������

� �� �������� ����ٔ������ ����� ���� 2024 ء �� 2.07 ��� � ���ٔ�� �� �� �� �
�
�

 � ���

 �� ��� ��� 0.328 � �� ��� ����� ���� 2025 ء ���� ��� �� ���� ��� ���� �� �� ��� ���

�۔ ���� �ٓ ���� �� ��� �� ���� ��

 ��� � ���� �� ��� � �۔ ����� ��� �� ��� ���� ����������� ��� �� ��������� � ��� ����

� ��� ����� ���� 25 ء ���� ��� � ��� �ٔ����� ��� ����� �� ��� ����� ���
�

 ���(LSM) � ������� �� ��
�
� �� ����

 � ���� 22 �
��� ��۔ ��� ��

�
 �� ����� 0.9 %� ��� ���� � �� �������

�
�
�

 �� �� ��� �ٔ��� ��� ��� 0.74 %

 ����� ، ������ ����� ،� ٔ��� ���� �� ��� � ���� �� ��� �ٔ������� � ّ��� ��� �� �� ���� � �� ������ ���� 12 ��

 � ��� ����۔ ٓ� �� ���� ��� ���� �� ���� ��������� ��� ��� ��� ����� ���� ، ������ ����� � ���
�

���� �� ��� ���

 ����������� ��� �� �� ����� ���� 24-25 ء �� ������ ��� ��
�

 � �� ���� ���� � ٔ��� ������

��۔ � � ������ ��� ّ��� ��� � ���� � ��� ���� �� ����� ��� �� ���� ��� �� �
�
�

 ����� ���
�

 � ��� ،�ٔ�������

 ���� ����� ���� ���� ��� � �� ��
�

��� 2025 ء ���  ��� 30�� ��� ����
�
 ��� ������ ���� ٔ��� ��

��۔ � � ��� � ��� �����
�

 � ��� ��� ��ٔ� ��� � ����� �� �� ��� �� ٔ�
�

� �� ��� ����� ��

� ��ٔ��� ��� � ��� ���� � � ������

:��� ����
�� ���� � ������ �������

 �� ��
�

�� �� ��� �� �� ����� ������� ��� �� � � ���� ��� ���� ��� ����� ���� 2025-26 ء �� ٓ����

 �� �� �� ������ ���� ��� ��� � ّ��� ��� �� ����� ��ٔ� ��� � ������� � � ٔ��� ��� ���� ���� ���� �� ���� ���

 ���� �� ����۔ ������� ��� ��� � �� ���� ���� ���� �� ��� ��ٔ�� ��� �
�
�
� � ���� �������� �� � �� ��� ���� � ��� ���

 � �� ������ ��� ������ ����� � ��� ���� ،� ������ ��� �� ��� ������� �� � � ���� ���� � ��� ���� �� ��
�

�� �� ��� � ����

 ����� ���
�

 �
��� ��� �� ���۔ ��� ���� ����� �� �� ���� ��� �������ٓ���� �� ��� �� ّ �� ��� ��

 ��� �� ��
�

 ��� �� �
�

�
�

 ��� �� �� ٔ�� �� ��� �� �� � �� ��� �� � ���� � �������� �� �� ��� � ّ��� ���

 �� �� ��� ،�� � � ���� ��� ��� � ������� � ��� ���
�
�

 ���� ���� ������ ������� �� ��� ��۔ ������� �

 �� ����� ��� ���� � ���� �ٔ� ���� �� �� ُ�� �ِ� �� � ���� �� �� �� ����� � �� ���� ��� � ّ��� ��� ��� ���

 ���� �
����� �� �

�� ���� ���� ���� ����� �������  �� ���� �� ��� ��� ����� � �������� �ٔ���� �� ����

 �
��� ��� ،���� �� �� ��� � ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� � ����� � �� �������� � ���� �� �� ��� �ٔ���� ���۔ ����

 ���� ����� ���� ���� �
�

�
�

 ��� ���� � ٔ������ � ��� ����� ��� �ٔ� �� ��� ��� ���� �ٔ��� �� ������� ���

����۔ �� � ��������� ��� �� �� ���

 � ��� 3.4 �ً����� � � ��� ����� ���� 2025-26 ء ���� ��� ��� �� ��
�

�� �� ��� �ٔ���� �� ���� �������

 ��� �� �� ��� ��� ���� �� �
�� ���

�
�

 � �� ��� �� ��
�
 ��� �ٔ�� � ����� ��� �� ���� ���� �� � � ���� ��� ��� � ������� � %3.5

 ������� ��� ���� � �� �� �� ��� � �� �� �
��� ��۔ ��� � � ����ٓ ���� �� ��

�
 � ���� �ٔ� ���� �� �ٔ���� �� ����

 �� �� ���-�� ��� ��� ، ����� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� � ���� �ٰ���� ِ ��� ���� ��� ���� ��� � ��� ���� �� ���������

 ،�� ��� �� ��
�
 ��� ���� �� ��� ������� ���� �� ���� �� ��� �� ��� �� ّ��� ��� ��� ،���� �� ���� � ���� ��� ���� ���
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUL AHMED TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Gul Ahmed Textile 
Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of 
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance 
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of 
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control 
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related party transactions. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related 
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Following instances of non-compliances with the requirements of the Regulations were observed which 
are not stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Section 32.7 of the regulation states that “It is mandatory that every company requires the external auditors 
to furnish a management letter to its Board within 45 days of the date of audit report”

However, the management letter was issued by the external auditors beyond the prescribed timeframe, 
resulting in non-compliance with the stated requirement.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our 
attention which causes us to believe that then Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect 
the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations 
as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as 
reflected in the note / paragraph referred below where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Date: October 3, 2025 Yousuf Adil                                                                                         
Karachi Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202510091yl9zLovTf

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS 2019

Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “The Company”) has complied with 
the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations,2019 (“the 
Regulations”) in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are Seven 
 (7) as per the following: 

 a.  Male:  Six   (6)

 b.  Female:  One (1)

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

 a) Independent Directors
  Ms. Zeeba Ansar
  Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza

 b) Non-Executive Directors
  Mr. Mohomed Bashir
  Mr. Ziad Bashir
  Mr. Ehsan A. Malik

 c) Executive Directors
  Mr. Zain Bashir
  Mr. Mohammed Zaki Bashir

 d) Female Directors
  Ms. Zeeba Ansar 

Following the election of Directors, the Board of 
Directors (the Board) was reconstituted on 1 April, 
2023 comprising 7 directors including 2 
independent directors. One third of 7 come to 
2.33 and the fraction was not rounded upward to 
one to have 3 independent directors. The reason 
for such rounding down is because the Board 
considers that two (2) independent directors are 
sufficient to fulfill the roles and obligations of the 
independent director as per requirements of the 
applicable law and regulations. 

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of 
them is serving as a Director on more than 
seven (7) listed companies, including this 
Company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of 
Conduct and has ensured that appropriate 
steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the Company along with its 
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. The 

Board has ensured that complete record of 
particulars of the significant policies along 
with their date of approval or updating is 
maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders 
as empowered by the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these 
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided 
over by the Chairman and, in his absence, 
by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose. The Board has complied with 
the requirements of the Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, 
recording and circulating minutes of 
meeting of Board. However, minutes of 
three meeting of Board were circulated 
late by 2, 3 & 14 days respectively.

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy 
and transparent procedures for remuneration 
of directors in accordance with the Act and 
these Regulations.

9. All the directors, except chairman, have 
attended and completed directors’ training 
course conducted by Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance (PICG). The Chairman 
has the prescribed education and 
experience required for exemption under 
clause 19(2) of CCG Regulations accordingly, 
he is exempted from attending directors’ 
training program pursuant to the clause 
19(2) of the CCG Regulations. 

10. The Board has approved appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company 
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms 
and conditions of employment and 
complied with relevant requirements of the 
Regulations.   

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer duly endorsed the financial 
statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees 
comprising of members given below:

 a)  Audit Committee:
   Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza - Chairman
   Mr. Ehsan A. Malik  - Member
   Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member

S. No. Paragraph 
Reference

1 12

Description

Section 12 of the regulation states that, “A copy of the draft minutes of meeting 
of board shall be furnished to every director within fourteen days of the date of 
meeting. However, during the course of our review, we have obtained the 
evidence of circulation of the board meeting minutes and observed instances of 
non-compliance with the prescribed timeframe, as three out of four of the 
minutes were not circulated to the directors within the specified timeframe.

For the year ended June 30, 2025

Annual Report 2025   |  8281   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



 b)  HR and Remuneration Committee:
   Ms. Zeeba-Ansar  - Chairperson
   Mr. Mohomed Bashir - Member
   Mr. Zain Bashir  - Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid
 committees have been formed, documented
 and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee
 were as per following:  

 a)  Audit  Four quarterly
   Committee  meetings

 b)  HR and 
   Remuneration   Two
   Committee  Meetings

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit
 function to BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered
 Accountants, who are considered suitably
 qualified and experienced for the purpose
 and are conversant with the policies and
 procedures of the Company. The Company 
 has also designated a full-time employee as
 Head of Internal Audit.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have
 confirmed that they have been given a
 satisfactory rating under the quality control
 review program of Institute of Chartered
 Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered 
 with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that
 they and all their partners are in compliance
 with International Federation of Accountants
 (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted
 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
 Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
 firm involved in the audit are not a close
 relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
 non-dependent children) of the Chief 
 Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head
 of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or 
 Director of the Company.

17. 1The statutory auditors or the persons
 associated with them have not been
 appointed to provide other services except in
 accordance with the Act, these regulations or
 any other regulatory requirement and the   
 auditors have confirmed that they have 
 observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of 
 regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
 Regulations have been complied with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with
 non-mandatory requirements i.e. other than
 regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

 (i)  The requirement of Nomination
  Committee is optional in Regulation No. 29. 

  The Board takes care of the responsibilities
  prescribed for nomination committee so a 
  separate nomination committee is not
  considered necessary.

 (ii) The requirement of Risk Management
   Committee is optional in Regulation No. 30.
   The risk management is carried out at the
   overall Company level by the executive 
  management of the Company headed by
  the CEO. The Company’s management
  monitors potential risks and risk 
  management procedures are carried out to
  identify, assess and mitigate any identified 
  or potential risks. Therefore, it is not 
  considered necessary to have a separate
  committee of the Board in this respect.

 (iii) Since the requirement with respect to
   disclosure of significant policies on the
   website is optional in Regulation No. 35 (1),
   the Company has uploaded only limited 
  information in this respect on the
  Company’s website. However, significant
  information related to policies, like risk
  management, etc. is disclosed in the annual 
  reports of the Company which are duly
  uploaded on the website and are available
  for everyone accessing the website. The
  Company will however, review and place 
  key elements of other policies if considered
  necessary.

 (iv) The Board is responsible for governanc
    and oversight of sustainability risks and
   opportunities by setting the company's
   sustainability strategies, priorities and 
   targets to create long term corporate value
   and ensures that policies to promote
   diversity, equity and inclusion (DE&I) are in
   place. The board may establish a dedicated
   sustainability committee having at least
   one female director, or assign additional 
   responsibilities to an existing board
   committee.

Since the requirement of the Code of Corporate 
Governance 2019 S.R.O. (I)/2024, Regulation 10(A) is 
optional, therefore at present and under its 
mandate, the Board takes care of the 
responsibilities, insofar practicable, for the 
compliance of the above clause.

Mohomed Bashir Mohammed Zaki Bashir
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi
September 29, 2025 

Annual Report 2025   |  8483   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



Analysis of 
Financial Information

TRUST
A MARK OF

Our unwavering commitment to quality and reliability fosters lasting 
relationships, earning the trust and loyalty of our customers worldwide.



Profit & Loss

Sales

Gross profit

Earnings before interest and tax

Profit / (loss) before final tax and income tax

Profit / (loss) after tax

Cash dividend

Bonus share

Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible

Long term investment, loans, advances & deposits

Net current assets

Total assets employed

Represented by

Share capital

Reserves

Shareholders' equity

Long term loans

Deferred and other long-term liabilities

Total capital employed

Cash Flow Statement

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

Rs. Million

2025               

157,905 

    18,978 

     11,736 

5,660 

4,023 

-   

-   

50,895 

45 

3,769 

10,803 

65,512 

7,401 

41,452 

48,853 

16,142 

517 

65,512 

(6,362)

(5,416)

14,232 

(2,312)

2024             

143,146 

17,191 

11,964 

6,537 

4,728 

-   

-   

50,024 

45 

3,755 

6,119 

59,942 

7,401 

37,353 

44,754 

14,592 

599 

59,945 

(2,449)

(3,889)

2,984 

(4,766)

2023               

111,968 

16,695 

11,297 

5,949 

3,986 

-   

1,233 

50,122 

38 

3,792 

6,903 

60,855 

7,401 

32,671 

40,072 

20,117 

689 

60,878 

16,269 

(7,931)

(9,405)

(1,412)

2022        

100,257          

17,368         

13,138         

10,469           

8,862              

428                  

-   

          

45,842                  

52           

3,816           

9,495         

59,205 

           

6,167          

29,966          

36,133          

20,551            

1,774          

58,458 

           

(1,635)          

(9,867)           

6,837        

(28,852)

2021       

78,774          

12,869           

7,506           

5,562           

4,425              

891              

713 

         

38,351                 

78           

3,747            

5,539          

47,715 

                    

5,312          

21,952          

27,264          

18,571            

1,880          

47,715 

               

(20)          

(8,806)           

2,298        

(24,998)

2020          

53,941            

9,069           

1,932               

(76)            

(479)              

891 

-

          

23,936                  

90            

2,861               

606          

27,493 

                    

4,278            

9,685          

13,963          

13,446               

172          

27,581 

              

160           

(4,899)              

875        

(18,470)

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Profitability ratios

Gross profit ratio
Operating leverage ratio
EBITDA margin to sales
Net profit to sales
Profit before tax margin
Return on equity
Return on capital employed

Liquidity ratios

Current ratio
Quick / acid test ratio
Cash to current liabilities
Cash flow from operations to sales

Capital structure ratios

Financial leverage ratio
Weighted average cost of debt
Debt to funding ratio
Interest cover ratio

Turnover ratios

Inventory turnover days
Inventory turnover ratio
Debtor turnover days
Debtor turnover ratio
Creditors turnover days
Creditors turnover ratio
Fixed assets turnover ratio
Total assets turnover ratio
Operating cycle

Investor information

Earnings per share
Price earning ratio
Price to book ratio
Dividend yield ratio
Cash dividend per share
Bonus shares issued
Dividend payout ratio
Dividend cover ratio
Break - up value per share
Market value per share
 at the end of the year
 high during the year
 low during the year
EBITDA

Percent
Times
Percent
Percent
Percent
Percent
Percent

Times
Times
Times
Times

Times
Percent
Percent
Times

Days
Times
Days
Times
Days
Times
Times
Times
Days

Rupees
Times
Times
Times
Rupees
Percent
Percent
Times
Rupees

Rupees
Rupees
Rupees
Rs. Million

2025
            

12.02             
(0.18)           
10.32              
2.55              
3.58              
8.60            
18.71 

             
1.13              

0.38              
0.00             

(0.04)

             
1.46              
9.26            

59.38              
1.93 

              
144              

2.53                  
54              

6.76               
100              
3.66              
3.13              
1.10                  
99 

             
5.44              
5.05              
0.42                   

-                     
-                     
-                     
-                     
-              

66.01 
           

27.47            
27.47            
17.99          

16,312 

2024
           

12.01              
0.21            
11.48              
3.30              
4.57            
11.15            

19.80 

             
1.08              
0.41              

0.00             
(0.02)

             
1.34              

9.58            
57.20              
2.20 

              
127              

2.88                  
61              

5.97               
111              

3.27              
2.86              
1.10                  
76 

             
6.39              
3.30              
0.35                   

-                     
-                     
-                     
-                     
-              

60.47 
           

21.10            
25.96            
16.83          

16,436 

2023
            

14.91             
(1.20)           
12.75              
3.56              
5.31            

10.46            
18.93 

             
1.11              

0.47              
0.01              
0.15 

             
1.33              

9.56            
57.14              

2.11 

              
140              
2.61                  
80              

4.57               
120              

2.68              
2.23              
0.91               
100 

             
5.39              
3.31              

0.33                   
-                     
-              

20.00                   
-                     
-              

54.15 
           

17.81            
32.94            
17.81          

14,271 

2022
            

17.32              
2.75            

15.73              
8.84            

10.44            
27.96            
24.75 

             
1.16              

0.56              
0.03             

(0.02)

             
1.62              
4.92            

61.78              
4.92 

              
130              
2.81                  

84              
4.36               
105              

3.26              
2.19              

0.85               
109 

           
11.97              
2.82              
0.58              
0.03              
1.00            

20.00              
0.08            
11.97            

58.59 
           

33.81            
60.80            
32.80          
15,773 

2021
             

16.34               
6.27             

12.28               
5.62               
7.06             

21.46             
19.94 

              
1.12               

0.57               
0.01             

(0.00)

              
1.84               
4.34             

64.80               
3.86 

               
140               

2.62                  
60               

6.03                
113               

2.92               
2.05               
0.83                  

87 

              
7.83               
6.48               
0.99               
0.05               
2.50                   

-               
(2.23)              

3.13             
51.33 

            
50.73             
58.32             
28.93             
9,677 

2020
            

16.81            
11.09              
7.21             

(0.89)            
(0.14)            
(3.27)             

7.44 

             
1.02              
0.29              
0.01              

0.00 

             
2.82              
5.04            
73.81              
0.96 

              
192              

1.90                  
43              

8.45               
175              
1.83              
2.25              
0.78                  

60 

            
(1.12)          

(25.56)             
0.88              
0.09              
2.50            

20.00              
0.25             

(0.45)           
32.64 

           
28.63            
49.62            
21.45            
3,891 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Cash and equivalents for the year 2025, 2024 and 2023 have been calculated after incorporating the impact of 
reclassification of ERF and Other short-term financing (other than running finance) from cash and cash 
equivalent to short term borrowings. 
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GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

Profitability Ratios

2020 2021 2022

GP Margin (%) NP Margin (%) EBITDA Margin (%)

2023 2024 2025

Turnover Days

202520242023202220212020

Cashflow from Activities ( Rs. in million)

Operating activities Investing activities Financing activities

192

140
130

140
127

144

43
60

84 80
61 54

175

113 105
120

103 100

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Inventory Debtor Creditor

 16.81  16.34 
 17.32 

 14.91 

12.01 12.02

 5.62 

 (0.89)

 8.84 

 3.56 3.30 2.55

 7.21 
 12.28 

 15.73 

 12.75 

11.48 10.32

 160  (20)
 (1,635)

 16,269 

 4,075 

 424 

 (4,899)

 (8,806)  (9,867)

 (7,931)  (3,889)
 (5,416)

 875  2,298 

 6,837 

 (9,405)

 (3,540)

 7,459 

Current ratio Quick/ acid test ratio

Investor Ratios

Liquidity Ratios

2020

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

202520242023202220212020

Debt to Equity Interest cover ratio Financial Leverage

Price Earning Ratio (%) Earning per Share (Rs. per share)

 (25.56)

 6.48 
 2.82  3.31 3.30 5.05

 (1.12)

 7.83 
 11.97 

 5.39 6.39  5.44 

1.02
1.12 1.16

1.11 1.08
1.13

0.29

0.57 0.56
0.47

0.41 0.38

 0.49  0.41  0.36  0.33 0.25 0.34

 0.96 

 3.86 

 4.92 

 2.11 2.20
1.93

 2.82 

 1.84 
 1.62 

 1.33 

1.34 1.46

Capital Structure Ratios
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Equity Growth (Rs. in million)
2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Fixed Assets (Rs. in million)
2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Market and Break Value per share

MPS BPS

Export & Local Sales (Rs. in million)

Export Sales (including indirect export) Local Sales

Assets 2025 Assets 2024

18,994

23,936

38,351

45,842

50,122

50,895

13,963

27,263

36,133

40,071

44,753

48,853

53,941

78,774

100,257

111,968

143,146

157,9052025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Sales Growth

28.63 50.73 33.81 17.81 21.1 27.47

32.64

51.33

58.59
54.15

60.47
66.01

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

 25,026  19,710  24,550 
 11,958  11,711  14,811 

 32,262  34,231 

 54,115 

 100,009 

 131,435 
 143,094 

 (479)

 4,425 

 8,862 

 3,986 

 4,728 

 4,023 

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Profit after tax

Current Asset
64%

Non- Current Asset
36%

Current Asset
61%

Non- Current Asset
39%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Amount
in 

Million 

48,853  

16,659  

85,583  

151,095  

54,709  

96,386  

151,095  

157,905  

(138,926) 

18,978  

(3,806) 

(4,105) 

(452) 

1,120  

11,736  

(6,076) 

5,660  

(1,637) 

4,023

Balance Sheet

Total equity

Total non-current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Total non-current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Profit & loss account

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Profit / (loss) before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Change 

(%)

 9.2 

 9.7 

11.8 

 10.7  

1.6 

 16.6  

10.7  

10.3 

 10.3  

10.4 

 17.2

  18.3  

(7.9) 

(43.5) 

(1.9) 

12.0  

(13.4) 

(9.5) 

(14.9)

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Amount 
in 

Million 

 44,753 

 15,190 

 76,545 

 136,488 

 53,824 

 82,663 

 136,487 

 143,146 

 (125,955)

 17,191 

 (3,247)

 (3,471)

 (491)

 1,983 

 11,964 

 (5,426)

 6,537 

 (1,810)

 4,728 

Change 

(%)

 11.7 

 (27.0)

 22.3 

 10.5 

 (0.2)

 18.9 

 10.5 

 27.8 

 32.2 

 3.0 

 47.5 

 1.3 

 13.6 

 199.1 

 5.9 

 1.5 

 9.9 

 (7.8)

 18.6 

Amount
in 

Million 

 40,071 

 20,806 

 62,610 

 123,488 

 53,952 

 69,514 

 123,466 

 111,968 

 (95,272)

 16,695 

 (2,201)

 (3,428)

 (432)

 663 

 11,297 

 (5,348)

 5,949 

 (1,963)

 3,986 

Change 

(%)

  10.9 

 (6.8)

 6.3 

 5.2 

 8.5 

 1.6 

 4.5 

 11.7 

 14.9 

 (3.9)

 12.4 

 54.4 

 (49.8)

 (18.1)

 (14.0)

 100.3 

 (43.2)

 22.2 

 (55.0)

Amount
in

Million 

  36,133 

 22,324 

 58,922 

 117,380 

 49,710 

 68,417 

 118,127 

 100,257 

 (82,889)

 17,368 

 (1,958)

 (2,221)

 (860)

 809 

 13,138 

 (2,669)

 10,469 

 (1,607)

 8,862 

Change 

(%)

  32.5 

 9.2 

 26.0 

 24.3 

 17.9 

 30.8 

 25.0 

 27.3 

 25.8 

 35.0 

 (41.2)

 (6.5)

 65.7 

 (6.0)

 75.0 

 37.3 

 88.2 

 41.3 

 100.3 

Amount
in 

Million 

 27,263 

 20,452 

 46,749 

 94,464 

 42,176 

 52,287 

 94,464 

 78,774 

 (65,905)

 12,869 

 (3,329)

 (2,375)

 (519)

 861 

 7,506 

 (1,944)

 5,562 

 (1,137)

 4,425 

Change 

(%)

  95.3 

 29.1 

 20.1 

 37.5 

 44.4 

 32.3 

 37.5 

 46.0 

 46.9 

 41.9 

 (26.5)

 (12.4)

 96.5 

 134.1 

 288.6 

 (3.2)

 (7,407.4)

 182.0 

 (1,023.0)

Amount
in 

Million

 13,963 

 15,844 

 38,914 

 68,721 

 29,201 

 39,520 

 68,721 

 53,941 

 (44,872)

 9,069 

 (4,528)

 (2,713)

 (264)

 368 

 1,932 

 (2,008)

 (76)

 (403)

 (479)

Change 

(%)

 (8.9)

 75.8 

 29.3 

 26.2 

 49.5 

 13.2 

 26.2 

 (5.8)

 (1.0)

 (24.3)

 (2.6)

 1.3 

 (15.3)

 (67.7)

 (64.8)

 36.3 

 (101.9)

 1.0 

 (113.3)

VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Amount
in

million

    48,853  

16,659  

85,583 

151,095  

54,709 

96,386  

151,095  

157,905  

(138,926) 

18,978  

(3,806) 

(4,105) 

(452) 

1,120  

11,736  

(6,076) 

5,660  

(1,637) 

4,023

Balance Sheet

Total equity

Total non-current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Total non-current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Profit & loss account

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expense

Other income

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Profit / (loss )before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit / (loss )after taxation

 (%)

   32.3  

11.0  

56.6  

100.0  

36.2 

63.8  

100.0  

100.0  

(88.0) 

12.0  

(2.4)

 (2.6) 

(0.3) 

0.7  

7.4 

 (3.8) 

3.6 

 (1.0) 

2.5 

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Amount
in

million

   44,753 

 15,190 

 76,545 

 136,488 

 53,824 

 82,663 

 136,487 

 143,146 

 (125,955)

 17,191 

 (3,247)

 (3,471)

 (491)

 1,983 

 11,964 

 (5,426)

 6,537 

 (1,810)

 4,728 

(%)

  32.8 

 11.1 

 56.1 

 100.0 

 39.4 

 60.6 

 100.0 

 100.0 

 (88.0)

 12.0 

 (2.3)

 (2.4)

 (0.3)

 1.4 

 8.4 

 (3.8)

 4.6 

 (1.3)

 3.3 

Amount
in

million

  40,071 

 20,806 

 62,610 

 123,488 

 53,952 

 69,514 

 123,466 

 111,968 

 (95,272)

 16,695 

 (2,201)

 (3,428)

 (432)

 663 

 11,297 

 (5,348)

 5,949 

 (1,963)

 3,986 

(%)

 32.4 

 16.8 

 50.7 

 100.0 

 43.7 

 56.3 

 100.0 

 100.0 

 (85.1)

 14.9 

 (2.0)

 (3.1)

 (0.4)

 0.6 

 10.1 

 (4.8)

 5.3 

 (1.8)

 3.6 

Amount
in

million

  36,133 

 22,324 

 58,922 

 117,380 

 49,710 

 68,417 

 118,127 

 100,257 

 (82,889)

 17,368 

 (1,958)

 (2,221)

 (860)

 809 

 13,138 

 (2,669)

 10,469 

 (1,607)

 8,862 

(%)

  30.8 

 19.0 

 50.2 

 100.0 

 42.1 

 57.9 

 100.0 

 100.0 

 (82.7)

 17.3 

 (2.0)

 (2.2)

 (0.9)

 0.8 

 13.1 

 (2.7)

 10.4 

 (1.6)

 8.8 

Amount
in

million

  27,263 

 20,452 

 46,749 

 94,464 

 42,176 

 52,287 

 94,464 

 78,774 

 (65,905)

 12,869 

 (3,329)

 (2,375)

 (519)

 861 

 7,506 

 (1,944)

 5,562 

 (1,137)

 4,425 

(%)

  28.9 

 21.7 

 49.5 

 100.0 

 44.6 

 55.4 

 100.0 

 100.0 

 (83.7)

 16.3 

 (4.2)

 (3.0)

 (0.7)

 1.1 

 9.5 

 (2.5)

 7.1 

 (1.4)

 5.6 

Amount
in

million

 13,963 

 15,844 

 38,914 

 68,721 

 29,201 

 39,520 

 68,721 

 53,941 

 (44,872)

 9,069 

 (4,528)

 (2,713)

 (264)

 368 

 1,932 

 (2,008)

 (76)

 (403)

 (479)

(%)

  20.3 

 23.1 

 56.6 

 100.0 

 42.5 

 57.5 

 100.0 

 100.0 

 (83.2)

 16.8 

 (8.4)

 (5.0)

 (0.5)

 0.7 

 3.6 

 (3.7)

 (0.1)

 (0.7)

 (0.9)
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COMMENTS ON 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Shareholder’s Equity
Shareholders’ equity increased by 9.2% during the year, rising from Rs. 44.75 billion to Rs. 48.85 billion, supported by 

a profit of Rs. 4.02 billion. This translated into an increase in break-up value per share from Rs. 60.5 to Rs. 66, 

reflecting stronger reserves. However, profitability ratios softened, with return on equity declining to 8.6% from 

11.15% and EPS decreasing to Rs. 5.44 from Rs. 6.39, mainly due to margin pressures in the textile sector. Considering 

the prevailing uncertainty and the need to maintain healthy cash flows, the Board has not recommended any 

dividend, opting instead to retain earnings to reinforce reserves and ensure long-term financial stability.

Non-Current & Current Liabilities
During the year, the Company recorded a notable rise in liabilities, reflecting both strategic investments and 

working capital pressures. Long-term borrowings increased from Rs. 14.6 billion to Rs. 16.1 billion, largely driven by 

capital expenditure on renewable energy initiatives, particularly solar and biomass projects. Short-term borrowings 

rose sharply from Rs. 42 billion to Rs. 52 billion, mainly due to the need to maintain higher inventory levels in 

response to changes in the Export Finance Scheme (EFS), anticipated shortages of raw materials, and significant 

cashflows tied up in pending income tax refunds. Rising power costs have further strained liquidity and 

contributed to the increase in short-term borrowing requirements. As a result, non-current liabilities grew from Rs. 

15.2 billion to Rs. 16.7 billion, while current liabilities expanded from Rs. 76.5 billion to Rs. 85.6 billion, underscoring 

the combined impact of long-term growth investments, energy cost pressures, and short-term funding needs.

Non-Current & Current Assets
Non-current assets rose from Rs. 53.8 billion to Rs. 54.7 billion, mainly due to an increase in capital work-in-progress 

from Rs. 607 million to Rs. 2.1 billion for ongoing renewable projects. Stock-in-hand grew from Rs. 49 billion to Rs. 61 

billion, while government receivables increased from Rs. 3.7 billion to Rs. 5.5 billion on account of income tax 

refunds. Liquidity ratios reflected mixed trends, with the current ratio improving from 1.08 to 1.13 but the quick ratio 

declining from 0.41 to 0.38, showing higher dependence on inventory. Operationally, inventory turnover days 

increased from 127 to 144, debtor days improved from 61 to 54, and creditor days stayed consistent, resulting in the 

operating cycle extending from 76 to 99 days. The longer cycle, coupled with rising power costs, has directly 

contributed to higher short-term borrowing needs.

Sales and Cost of Sales
Sales increased by 10% from PKR 143.1 billion to PKR 157.9 billion, with local sales rising from PKR 44.1 billion to PKR 

52.5 billion, including PKR 44 billion in indirect exports, while direct exports grew from PKR 102.3 billion to PKR 109.3 

billion. Regionally, sales to Germany increased from PKR 30.6 billion to PKR 32.2 billion and to the Netherlands from 

PKR 4.8 billion to PKR 7.0 billion, while sales to the UK, USA, Italy, France, and other European markets remained 

stable. Despite higher volumes, the appreciation of the PKR against the USD (FY 2024 average: 279.38 vs. 283.15 last 

year) adversely impacted export realizations. Segmentally, spinning sales declined from PKR 58 billion to PKR 52 

billion with gross margins slipping from 12% to 11% due to elevated raw material costs, whereas home textile sales 

rose from PKR 85 billion to PKR 93 billion with margins improving from 9% to 11%. However, higher administrative 

and selling expenses and increased financing costs from excess inventory eroded much of the profitability gains. At 

the consolidated level, gross profit margin remained at 12% as cost of sales grew proportionally, with raw material 

consumption and conversion costs increasing by 11% from PKR 95.2 billion to PKR 105.7 billion, salaries and wages 

up 11% from PKR 15.7 billion to PKR 17.4 billion due to minimum wage revisions and increments, and power and 

utilities expenses rising by 13% from PKR 12 billion to PKR 13.5 billion.

2025

Non Current & Current Assets (Rs. in Million)

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Total non-current assets

Total current assets

Sales

Other Income

Sales & Other Income (Rs. in million)

Equity & Liabilities (Rs in millions)

Equity
Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Cost of Sales
Selling, Admin & Other Expenses
Financial Expenses

Cost of Sales and Expenses (Rs in million)

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

54,709 95,958

157,905

48,853

44,048

40,071

36,133

27,263

13,963

125,955

82,889

65,905

44,872

45,306

36,050

16,659

15,190

20,806

22,324

20,452

15,844

6,380

5,039

6,224

7,444

7,637

6,459

5,426

2,559

1,944

2,008

1,473

987

85,155

76,545

62,610

58,922

46,749

38,914

143,146

111,968

100,257

78,774

53,941

1,120

1,983

663

809

861

368

53,824 82,663

53,952 69,514

49,710

42,176

29,201

68,417

52,287

39,520
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Operational Expenses, Other Income and Finance Costs
Selling and distribution expenses increased by PKR 600 million, primarily due to higher freight and shipping costs 
as cargo ships continue to avoid the Suez Canal because of regional conflicts, forcing reliance on longer and more 
expensive Cape of Good Hope routes, which also extended delivery lead times. Administrative expenses rose by 
PKR 633 million, largely driven by higher travelling and conveyance costs along with annual salary increments. 
Finance costs increased by PKR 649 million, reflecting higher charges on short-term borrowings and greater bank 
fees related to discounting of export bills. Other income declined compared to last year, as the significant exchange 
gains from currency realizations and derivative financial instruments recorded in the prior year did not recur at the 
same level.

Cashflows
Profit before tax declined from PKR 4.5 billion to PKR 4.0 billion, while working capital adjustments rose from PKR 
10.6 billion to PKR 12.8 billion due to higher stock-in-trade and reduced trade creditors, alongside a PKR 1.5 billion 
increase in levies and taxes paid, resulting in net cash outflows of PKR 6.4 billion from operating activities. Cash 
used in investing activities also increased to PKR 5.4 billion (vs. PKR 3.9 billion last year) on account of higher 
acquisition and construction of property, plant, and equipment. To offset these pressures, the Company relied on 
additional financing, with long-term borrowings rising by PKR 4.3 billion and short-term borrowings by PKR 4.4 
billion, leading to positive financing cashflows of PKR 14.2 billion. Consequently, despite a net increase of PKR 2.5 
billion during the year, cash and cash equivalents closed at a negative PKR 2.3 billion, underscoring ongoing 
liquidity challenges driven by rising power costs and higher inventory holdings.

DUPONT ANALYSIS

Percent

Times

Times

Percent

Percent

Percent

Percent

Return on Equity (ROE)

Asset Turnover

Leverage

Net Profit Margin

Interest Burden

Tax Burden

EBIT Margin

        8.60 

        1.10 

        3.09 

        2.55 

      48.23 

      71.07 

        7.43 

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

      11.15 

        1.05 

        3.22 

        3.30 

      54.64 

      72.32 

        8.36 

      10.46 

        0.91 

        3.24 

        3.56 

      52.66 

      67.00 

      10.09 

      27.96 

        0.85 

        3.73 

        8.84 

      79.68 

      84.65 

      13.10 

      21.46 

        0.83 

        4.58 

        5.62 

      74.10 

      79.55 

        9.53 

       (3.27)

        0.78 

        4.69 

       (0.89)

       (3.94)

    629.82 

        3.58 

2025

Asset
Turnover

1.10

Leverage
3.09

Return on
Equity
8.6%

Interest
Burden
48.23%

Profit
Margin
2.55%

Tax
Burden
71.08%

EBIT
Margin
7.43%

Tax
Burden
72.32%

EBIT
Margin
8.36%

Interest
Burden
54.64%

Profit
Margin
3.30%

Leverage
3.22

Return on
Equity
11.15%2024

Asset
Turnover
1.05 Times
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QUARTERLY
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

VALUE ADDITION & 
DISTRIBUTION

Rs. In ‘000s

      

167,366,998           

1,120,463 

168,487,461 

121,505,215 

5,203,729 

20,044,741 

11,516,325 

6,075,630 

119,047 

164,464,687 

4,022,773

Value Addition

Net Sales (including Sales Tax)

Other Income

Value Distribution

Cost of Sales

Distribution & Admin Expenses

Employee Remuneration

Government Tax

Providers of capital (Finance Cost)

Contributions to society

Value Retained

 (%)

99.3%

0.7%

100.0%

73.9%

3.2%

12.2%

7.0%

3.7%

0.1%

100.0%

2025 2024

Rs. In ‘000s

          

148,670,279              

1,982,933         

150,653,212 

          

110,278,792              

4,283,267            

19,823,186              

7,796,668              

5,426,456                    

62,095         

145,925,409 

4,727,803

(%)

98.7%

1.3%

100.0%

75.6%

2.9%

12.4%

5.3%

3.7%

0.0%

100.0%

42,078,103  

(38,509,492)        

3,568,611           

(1,104,047)

(947,022)

(47,605)

(2,098,674)            

1,469,937              

943,806           

(1,741,584)               

672,159               

(315,294)               

356,865                      

0.48

39,558,704         

(35,262,044)

4,296,660 

(896,375)

(1,042,760)

(87,031)

(2,026,166)

2,270,494  

97,527 

(1,648,051)

719,970  

(65,080)

654,890 

0.88

37,456,341         

(32,387,005)            

5,069,336               

(807,424)          

(1,096,982)                

(73,860)          

(1,978,266)            

3,091,070                

117,425           

(1,379,891)            

1,828,604               

(703,191)            

1,125,413                       

1.52

38,811,571         

(32,767,757)            

6,043,814 

(997,870)          

(1,018,345)              

(243,770)          

(2,259,985)

83,829                 

(38,295)          

(1,306,103)            

2,439,431               

(553,825)            

1,885,606                   

2.55

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution cost

Administrative cost

Other operating cost

Operating profit

Other income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

FY 24 - 25

(Rupees in '000)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 June 30, 2025

       35,641,767 

      (31,652,884)

          3,988,883 

           (743,861)

           (949,430)

              (91,562)

        (1,784,853)

     

2,204,030 

             504,259 

        (1,590,148)

          1,118,141 

           (521,354)

             596,787 

   

              0.81 

            33,459,964 

           (29,327,413)

               4,132,551 

                 707,563)

                (819,889)                   

(88,798)

             (1,616,250)

    

 2,516,301 

                  257,093 

             (1,576,914)

               1,196,480                  

(492,986)

                  703,494 

           

     0.95 

36,044,349           

(32,084,745)

             3,959,604 

               

(880,577)

              (952,423)

               (121,950)            

(1,954,950)

             

2,004,654 

                246,342 

               (745,218)

             1,505,778                

(496,427)

             1,009,351 

  

             1.36 

             37,999,764            

(32,889,780)

               5,109,984 

                 (915,464)

                 (749,725)

                 (188,830)

              (1,854,019)

            

   3,255,965 

                  975,239 

              (1,514,176)

               2,717,028                  

(298,858)

               2,418,170 

       

      3.27 

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution cost

Administrative cost

Other operating cost

Operating profit

Other income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

FY 23 - 24

(Rupees in '000)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

September 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024

Distribution of Value - 2024Distribution of Value - 2025

Cost of Sales

Distribution & Admin Expenses

Employee Remuneration

Government Tax

Providers of capital (Finance Cost)

Value Retained

Cost of Sales

Distribution & Admin Expenses

Employee Remuneration

Government Tax

Providers of capital (Finance Cost)

Value Retained

73.20%

72.12%
3.09%

11.90%

6.84%

3.61%
2.39%

2.84%

12%

5.18%

3.60%
3.14%
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Quarter 1:
The Company commenced the fiscal year with net sales of Rs. 42.08 billion, reflecting an 18% increase over the same 
period last year (SPLY). Export sales, including indirect exports, contributed Rs. 39.07 billion, while local sales stood at Rs. 
3.01 billion. Home Textile remained the dominant segment, accounting for nearly 75% of overall sales. Despite increase in 
sales, profitability was constrained by surging energy costs, with fuel, power, and water expenses rising to Rs. 2.09 billion. 
Selling and distribution expenses also increased by 48% compared to SPLY, primarily due to higher freight and shipment 
charges, while administrative expenses remained largely stable, reflecting effective cost control.

As a result, gross profit improved modestly to Rs. 3.57 billion, translating into a gross margin of 8%, significantly 
below SPLY (11%). Finance costs rose 10% YoY to Rs. 1.74 billion, exerting further pressure on earnings. Consequently, 
profit after tax stood at Rs. 356.9 million, reflecting a net margin of 1%. Earnings per share were reported at Rs. 0.81, 
broadly in line with SPLY.

Quarter 2:
The second quarter reflected a modest slowdown in sales activity, with net sales of Rs. 39.56 billion, though still showing 
18% growth compared to SPLY. Export sales including indirect exports amounted to Rs. 35.837 billion, while local sales 
reached Rs. 3.72 billion. Cost pressures persisted, particularly from fuel and power expenses of Rs. 2.1 billion, while 
inflation and wage adjustments also added to the burden. Selling & distribution costs declined in regard with previous 
quarter at Rs. 896 million vs. 1.1 billion, while admin expenses were higher at Rs. 1.04 billion vs. 820 million.

Gross profit increased to Rs. 4.30 billion, translating into an 11% margin. Finance costs remained high at Rs. 1.65 
billion, up 5% from SPLY. Despite these challenges, profit after tax rose to Rs. 654.9 million compared to Rs. 703.5 
million in SPLY, supported by improved cost management and timely operational adjustments. Earnings per share 
maintained at Rs. 0.95

Quarter 3:
Performance in the third quarter showed a strong recovery, with net sales of Rs. 37.46 billion, comprising Rs. 33.3 billion 
exports and Rs. 4.1 billion local sales. Total PKR sales increased 13% over SPLY, reflecting effective strategic initiatives. Cost 
of sales increased 14% overall, mainly from higher raw material prices, energy tariffs, and wage adjustments, selling and 
distribution expenses declined to Rs. 807 million, and other operating costs were effectively controlled.

Gross profit improved to Rs. 5.07 billion (14% margin), and profit after tax rose to Rs. 1.13 billion (3% margin). EPS 
increased to Rs. 6.08, compared to Rs. 1.36 last year. The improved results were driven by cost efficiencies, a stronger 
sales mix, and a 12% reduction in finance costs versus the previous quarter.

Quarter 4:
The Company closed the fiscal year on a strong note, with net sales of Rs. 38.81 billion, 2% higher than SPLY. Export 
sales increased to Rs. 34.885 billion including indirect export sales, while local sales, amounted to Rs. 3.92 billion. An 
Overall increase for the whole year in Fuel, power, and water expenses was 12.7% compared to last year, due to 
persistent inflationary pressures and higher energy tariffs.

Gross profit climbed to Rs. 6.04 billion, translating into a 16% margin, while operating profit reached Rs. 3.78 billion. 
Despite additional finance costs of Rs. 1.31 billion, profit after tax increased to Rs. 1.89 billion, representing a net 
margin of 5%. Earnings per share rose to Rs. 5.44. Strategic financial management and debt optimization helped 
sustain profitability despite macroeconomic headwinds.
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Unconsolidated Financial Statements & 
Consolidated Financial Statements

PRUDENCE
A MARK OF

Our prudent approach to reporting and control reinforces trust, 
ensuring clarity and reliability in our financial performance.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information 
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated 
statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so 
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the 
profit and comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Refer notes 3.18 and 25 to the unconsolidated 
financial statements.

The Company’s net revenue for the year ended 
June 30, 2025 was Rs. 157,904 million. The 
Company’s revenue is principally generated from 
the sale of textile goods and related processing 
services and consists of local and export sales.

We identified revenue as key audit matter because;

• revenue is one of the key performance 
indicators of the Company;

• there are large number of revenue 
transactions; and

• There is inherent risk that revenue could be 
recorded in an incorrect accounting period 
in order to achieve the financial targets and 
expectations. 

Refer notes 3.7 and 9 to the unconsolidated 
financial statements.

As at June 30, 2025, the Company held 
stock-in-trade of Rs. 60,911 million. Several 
estimates and judgments are involved in the 
valuation of stock-in-trade, in determining 
the net realizable values, and in assessing 
the appropriate level of provisioning required 
for the stock-in-trade. This includes the 
assessment of available facts and circumstances, 
the physical condition of the stock-in-trade, 
utilization, market selling prices, and the 
estimated selling cost of the stock-in-trade. 

We have considered this matter as key audit 
matter because of the significance of the 
balance and due to the estimates and 
judgments involved in the valuation.t

Our audit procedures in this area, amongst others, 
included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the accounting 
 policy and Company’s accounting process for revenue 

recognition and tested the design 
 and implementation of relevant controls;

• Performed verification of sample of revenue 
transactions recorded during the year with underlying 
documentation including sales 

 invoices and other dispatch documents;

• Performed cut-off procedures on sample basis on 
revenue transactions recorded just before and after the 
year end with the underlying goods delivery notes, bill 
of lading, invoices and other relevant documents to 
assess whether the revenue has been recognised in the 
appropriate accounting period; and 

• Evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures in the 
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements of the accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan.

Our audit procedures in this area, amongst others,
included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the Company’s 
policies and procedures with respect to valuation of 
stock-in-trade;

• Assessed appropriateness of the Company’s 
accounting policies for valuation of stock-in-trade 
and compliance of those policies with accounting 
and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan;

• Assessed the adequacy of the allowance for 
obsolescence, by taking into consideration the status 
of ageing conditions of the stock-in-trade and 
historical usage pattern; 

• Compared the net realizable value, on a sample 
basis, to the carrying value of stock-in-trade to assess 
whether any adjustments are required to value of 
stock-in-trade in accordance with the applicable 
accounting framework; and

• Assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in 
the notes to the unconsolidated financial 
statements, in accordance with the requirements of 
the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan.

S. No.

1

Key audit matters

Revenue Recognition

How the matter was addressed in our audit

2 Valuation of Stock-in-trade
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
reports thereon. 

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
unconsolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether 
 due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit   
 evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a   
 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve  
 collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
 Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates  
 and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based  
 on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may  
 cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material  
 uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  
 unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our   
 conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future  
 events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including  
 the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions  
 and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of unconsolidated financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the   
 unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and  
 the unconsolidated statement of cash flow together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in   

conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of  
 the Company’s business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 were audited by 
another firm of Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report 
dated October 4, 2024. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil.

 Date: October 03, 2025        Yousuf Adil
 Karachi          Chartered Accountants
 UDIN: AR202510091oKb1QC5VU
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As at June 30, 2025

    2025 2024 

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 50,894,607 50,023,808 
Intangible assets 5 45,221 45,484 
Long term investments 6 3,601,461 3,591,206 
Long term loans 7 21,487 17,939 
Long term deposits  146,240 145,595 
Total non-current assets  54,709,016 53,824,032 
      
CURRENT ASSETS
Store, spares and loose tools 8 2,725,457 2,298,322 
Stock-in-trade 9 60,911,875 49,014,078 
Trade debts 10 22,155,562 24,567,107 
Loans, advances and other receivables 11 4,810,814 2,638,317 
Short term prepayments  73,298 63,612 
Receivables from government 12 5,542,398 3,705,858 
Short term investments  - 1,243 
Cash and bank balances 13 166,429 375,876 
Total current assets  96,385,833 82,664,413  
      
Total assets  151,094,849 136,488,445  
  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 14 7,400,594 7,400,594 
Reserves 15 41,452,343 37,352,629 
Total share capital and reserves  48,852,937 44,753,223

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 16 16,142,475 14,591,587 
Deferred income - government grant 17 50,620 74,655 
Defined benefit plan - staff gratuity 18 466,178 523,996 
Total non-current liabilities  16,659,273 15,190,238

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 19 27,690,959 28,775,841 
Accrued mark-up / profit 20 788,421 1,391,643 
Short term borrowings 21 52,157,704 42,005,502 
Current portion of non-current liabilities 22 3,152,215 3,262,187 
Unclaimed dividend  9,365 9,840 
Unpaid dividend 23 23,505 23,505 
Taxation-net  1,760,470 1,076,466 
Total current liabilities  85,582,639 76,544,984

Total equity and liabilities  151,094,849 136,488,445 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24 - - 

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the year ended June 30, 2025

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

   2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Revenue from contracts with customers 25 157,904,719  143,145,844 

 Cost of sales 26 (138,926,298) (125,954,822)

 Gross profit  18,978,421  17,191,022 

 Selling and distribution cost 27 (3,805,716) (3,247,465)
 Administrative cost 28 (4,105,109) (3,471,467)
 Other expense 29 (452,266) (491,140)

   (8,363,091) (7,210,072)

 Operating profit  10,615,330  9,980,950 

 Other income 30 1,120,463  1,982,933 

 Finance costs 31 (6,075,629) (5,426,456)

 Profit before levies and taxation  5,660,164  6,537,427 

 Levies 32 (1,688,647) (2,043,969)

 Profit before taxation  3,971,517  4,493,458 

 Taxation 33 51,257  234,344 

 Profit for the year   4,022,774  4,727,802 

     2025 2024
         ------------------ (Rupees) ------------------

 Earnings per share - basic and diluted 34 5.44  6.39

 The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ 
 Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended June 30, 2025

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

--------------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------------------

Reserves

Share Capital
Capital reserve -

against long term 
investments,

capacity expansion
and BMR

Capital
Reserve -

Amalgamation
Reserve

Revenue
Reserve -

Unappropriated
Profit

Total
Reserves

Total

For the year ended June 30, 2025

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

    2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

  Profit for the year  4,022,774 4,727,802 

   Other comprehensive income / (loss)

   Items that will not be reclassified to unconsolidated
   statement of profit or loss subsequently
   Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 18.3 76,940 (41,421)
   Reversal of deferred tax  - (4,535)
     76,940 (45,956)

   Items that may be reclassified to unconsolidated
   statement of profit or loss subsequently  - -
     76,940 (45,956)

   Total comprehensive income for the year  4,099,714 4,681,846

   The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

  Balance as at July 01, 2023 7,400,594 -  8,252,059   24,418,724  32,670,783 40,071,377 

          

  Reclassification of reserves - (note 15.2)  -  23,000,000  -  (23,000,000) -  -

  Profit for the year -  -  -  4,727,802  4,727,802  4,727,802 

  Other comprehensive loss -  -  -  (45,956) (45,956)  (45,956)

  Total comprehensive income  -  -  -  4,681,846  4,681,846  4,681,846 

  for the year

  Balance as at June 30, 2024 7,400,594  23,000,000  8,252,059  6,100,570  37,352,629  44,753,223 

  Profit for the year -  -  -  4,022,774  4,022,774  4,022,774 

  Other comprehensive income -  -  -  76,940  76,940  76,940 

  Total comprehensive income  -  -  -  4,099,714  4,099,714  4,099,714 

  for the year  

  

  Balance as at June 30, 2025 7,400,594  23,000,000  8,252,059  10,200,284  41,452,343  48,852,937 

  The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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     2025 2024
Note   ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (5,371,400) (3,929,694)
 Payments for acquisition of intangible assets  (16,934) (28,535)
 Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  29,048  28,758 
 Long term investment made  (10,255) -   
 Short term investment made  -  (601,243)
 Short term investments redeemed  1,243  600,000 
 Dividend income received  -  1,462 
 Long term loans - net  (46,758) 52,587 
 Long term deposits  (645)  (12,648)
 Net cash used in investing activities  (5,415,701) (3,889,313)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Proceeds from long term financing 37.1 4,700,000  358,000 
 Repayment of long term financing 37.1   (3,283,119) (5,777,758)
 Increase in short term borrowings - net 37.1 12,815,653  8,403,987 
 Dividend paid  (475) (91)
 Net cash generated from financing activities  14,232,059  2,984,138 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,454,004  (3,354,381)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (4,766,370) (1,411,989)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37  (2,312,366) (4,766,370)

 The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For the year ended June 30, 2025

     2025 2024
Note   ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Profit before taxation  3,971,517 4,493,458

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 4.1.1 4,558,811  4,450,617 

 Amortisation of intangible assets 5.1 17,197  21,302 
 Expense recognised for defined benefit plan 18 264,743  238,199 
 Finance costs 31 6,075,629  5,426,456 
 Reversal of provision for slow moving - stores and spares 8.1 (60,103) (151,739)
 Levies 32 1,688,647  2,043,969 
 Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 9.1 (112,009) (78,792)
 Dividend income 30 - (1,462)
 Government grant recognised in income 30 (28,251) (32,088)
 Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 29 35,609  28,533 
 Expected credit loss on trade debts 10.4 (33,058) (229,760)
   12,407,215  11,715,235

Changes in working capital:
Store, spares and loose tools  (367,032) (383,725)

 Stock-in-trade  (11,785,788) (10,484,855)
 Trade debts  2,444,603  (915,464)
 Loans, advances and other receivables  (2,129,287) (570,332)
 Receivables from government  152,518  (404,820)
 Short term prepayments  (9,686) 108,893 
 Trade and other payables  (1,084,882) 2,023,519 
 Net decrease in working capital  (12,779,554) (10,626,784)

 Cash generated from operating activities  3,599,178  5,581,909 

 Payment made to defined benefit plan 18.1 (245,621) (81,236)
 Finance costs paid  (6,773,467) (6,524,443)
 Levies and taxes paid  (2,942,444) (1,425,436)
   (9,961,532) (8,031,115)

 Net cash used in operating activities  (6,362,354) (2,449,206)

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CASH FLOWS

Annual Report 2025   |   114113   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ 
 Chief Financial Officer

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ 
 Chief Financial Officer



For the year ended June 30, 2025

1 LEGAL STATUS AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on April 01, 1953 as a 

private limited company and subsequently converted into a public limited company on January 07, 

1955. The Company is a subsidiary of Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited (the Parent Company) and 

is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is principally engaged in the 

manufacturing and sale of textile products. The registered office is situated at Plot No. H-7, Landhi 

Industrial Area, Karachi.

 The Company has following wholly owned subsidiaries which are engaged in distribution / trading of 

textile related products while Ideas (Private) Limited also carries out production of finished goods.

1.2 Geographical locations and addresses of all premises obtained on rental basis are as follows:

Address
 Plot ST-17/1 and ST-17/3, Federal 'B' Area, Azizabad, Karachi;     
 Plot No. H-17 / A, Landhi Industrial area, Karachi;     
 Plot # HT/2 Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi;     
 Plot # HT/8, KDA Scheme 3, Landhi Industrial area, Karachi;     
 Plot W2/1-14, Western industrial zone, Port Qasim, Karachi;     
 Plot # H19/2-B Bin Qasim, Landhi Industrial area Karachi;     
 Survey # 613, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim town, Karachi;     
 Survey # 614, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim town, Karachi;     
 Survey # 615, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim town, Karachi; and     
 22nd Floor, Ocean Mall, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Block-9, Clifton, Karachi.     

 The above rental premises are used to carry out warehousing and administrative tasks.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION      
   

2.1 Basis of measurement
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except as otherwise stated in respective policy notes.

 These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which 
investments in subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented separately.

2.2 Statement of compliance
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the 
International
 Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.      
       

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Accounting Standards, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated financial 
statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the 
Company. The amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless stated otherwise.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of Subsidiaries

Gul Ahmed International Limited
FZC - UAE 

Country of IncorporationDate of Incorporation

United Arab Emirates

Principal place of business

Sharjah Airport International Free Zone, Government of
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

GTM USA Corporation United States of America 106 Lang Tree Village Dr, Suite 301 Mooresville, NC 28117,
United States of America.

Ideas (Private) Limited Pakistan Plot No. 65/I, Sector-30, Korangi Industrial Area,
Karachi, Pakistan.

Sky Home Corporation - USA United States of America 106 Lang Tree Village Dr, Suite 301 Mooresville, NC 28117,
United States of America.

Vantona Home Limited United Kingdom Grane Road Mill, Grane Road Haslingden,
Rossendale Lancashire BB4 5ET, United Kingdom.

JCCO 406 Limited United Kingdom Grane Road Mill, Grane Road Haslingden,
Rossendale Lancashire BB4 5ET, United Kingdom.

GTM (Europe) Limited United Kingdom

December 11, 2002

March 19, 2012

December 27, 2004
(Subsidiary since
January 01, 2021)

Gul Ahmed Ecotex
(Private) Limited Pakistan Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi,

Karachi, PakistanMarch 26, 2025

Gul Ahmed Ecofab
(Private) Limited Pakistan Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi,

Karachi, PakistanMarch 26, 2025

Gul Ahmed Circular Fabrics
(Private) Limited Pakistan Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi,

Karachi, PakistanMarch 26, 2025

February 28, 2017

April 22, 2013

September 29, 2017

April 17, 2003 Grane Road Mill, Grane Road Haslingden,
Rossendale Lancashire BB4 5ET, United Kingdom.

Omnify (Private) Limited PakistanMarch 12, 2025 Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan

Elegant Fashion (Private) Limited PakistanMarch 19, 2025 Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan

Fragrance Fusion (Private) Limited PakistanMarch 12, 2025 Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan

Direct Subsidiaries

Indirect Subsidiaries
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2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and 
reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affects the application of the Company's accounting policies and reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities,  

 income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making judgment about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 Information about estimates and judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effects on the amounts recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

 a) Operating fixed assets and Intangible assets (notes 3.2, 3.3, 3.8, 4 and 5)
  The Company reviews appropriateness of the method of depreciation / amortisation and useful lives 

used in the calculation of depreciation / amortisation of operating fixed assets and intangible assets 
respectively on an annual basis. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of 
assets is made for possible impairment at each reporting date.

 b) Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stores and spares (notes 3.6 and 8)
  Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stores and spares is based on parameters set out by the 

management of the Company, which includes ageing, expected use and realisable values.

 c) Stock-in-trade (notes 3.7 and 9)
  The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the 

respective carrying values at each reporting date. Net realisable value is determined with reference to 
estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sales.

         
 d) Impairment of financial assets (notes 3.9.4, 10 and 44.2)
  The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit loss (ECL) for trade debts. The 

provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historically observed rates. The Company 
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. 
At every quarter, the historically observed default rates are updated, and changes in the 
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

  
  The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The 

Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be 
representative of customers’ actual default in the future.

 e) Defined benefit plan (notes 3.14.2 and 18)
  The present value of defined benefit plan depends upon number of factors and is being calculated on 

actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of defined benefit plan.

 f) Taxation (notes 3.20, 24 and 33)
  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation 

authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax 
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of 
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingencies. 

 g) Levies (notes 3.21 and 32)
  The Company takes into account the current income tax law, legislations and decisions taken by the 

taxation authorities for determination of levies. These include determining the specific obligating 
event that triggers  levy recognition based on the relevant legislation, estimating the amount payable 
by considering applicable rates, and deciding the appropriate timing for recognising the levy liability. 
These estimates and judgements are periodically reviewed and updated as necessary.

 h) Contingencies (notes 3.17 and 24)
  The assessment of the contingencies and provision inherently involves the exercise of significant 

judgment as the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, 
based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent liabilities which 
may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

          
2.5 Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting 

and reporting standards
 (a) New standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025 are as 

follows:
  
  The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. These  amendments are 

either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the 
Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (annual periods  
  beginning on or after)

  - Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - Clarification on how seller-lessee  January 01, 2024
  subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

  - Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -   January 01, 2024
  Classification of liabilities as current or non-current along
  with Non-current liabilities with Covenants  

  
  - Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and     January 01, 2024

  'IFRS 7 'Financial instruments  disclosures' - 
  Supplier Finance Arrangements

 (b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards not yet 
effective The following standards and amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning 

  on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not relevant to 
the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements other than certain additional disclosures.
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  Effective date (annual periods  
   beginning on or after)

 - Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign January 01, 2025
  Exchange Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when
  there is long term lack of Exchangeability

 - IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and January 01, 2026
  December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17)

 - IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures July 01, 2025

 - Amendments IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 January 01, 2026
  'Financial instruments  disclosures' - Classification and
  measurement of financial instruments

 - Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards January 01, 2026
  (related to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7)

 - Amendments IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 January 01, 2026
  'Financial instruments  disclosures' - Contracts Referencing
  Nature-dependent Electricity    

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
 The material accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented
 in these unconsolidated financial statements.

3.1 Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Company

 at the exchange rates at the dates of transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at
 the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
 in a foreign currency are translated into functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
 determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Foreign currency differences are recognised in the
 unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment    
     

3.2.1 Operating fixed assets    
  
Initial recognition

 The cost of an item is recognised as an asset if and only if the future economic benefits associated with
 the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement    
Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated

 impairment losses except leasehold land which is stated at cost.

 When parts of an item of operating fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
 separate items (major components) of operating fixed assets.

Subsequent cost    
Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of operating fixed assets is capitalised
and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that

 future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the items can
 be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including normal repairs and maintenance) are recognised in
 the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense when these are incurred.

Depreciation
 Depreciation is charged using:
 - Reducing Balance Method on Plant & Machinery, Office Equipment (other than IT Equipment), Building  

 on Leasehold Land, Vehicles and Furniture & Fixtures; and

 - Straight Line Method on IT equipment, structure on leasehold land and major Component of Plant and  
 Machinery identifiable as a separate asset due to different useful life from the Plant and Machinery.

 Rates of depreciation on above are specified in the note 4 of the unconsolidated financial statements.

 Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the day the asset is available for use 
and no depreciation is charged on the day of disposal.   

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal
 The gain or loss on disposal of an item of operating fixed assets is determined by comparing the proceeds 

from disposal with the carrying amount of the operating fixed assets, and is recognised in the unconsolidated
 statement of profit or loss.    

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress
 Capital work in progress (CWIP) is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and consists of expenditure 
 incurred (including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction

and installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

3.3 Intangible assets
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment loss. Amortisation
 of intangible assets are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss by applying the straight line

method at the rates specified in note 5 of these unconsolidated financial statements after taking into account
 residual value, if any. Amortisation on additions to intangibles is charged from the day the asset is available
 for use and no amortisation is charged on the day of disposal.    

     
The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances

 indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, if any such indication exists and where the carrying
 values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 

3.4 Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost is recognised as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in

 which these are incurred except where such cost is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
 production of a qualifying asset in which case such cost is capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
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3.5 Investments in subsidiaries
 Subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost 

less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries is reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists the investment’s recoverable amount is estimated at higher of its value in use and its fair value less 
cost to sell. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.    
    

3.6 Store, spares and loose tools
 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of moving average cost and net realisable value, less 

provision for impairment, if any. Stores-in-transit is stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other 
incremental charges incurred thereon.

Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's best 
estimate regarding their future usability and is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.7 Stock-in-trade
 Stock of raw materials and finished goods are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realisable 

value. Cost of raw materials and trading stock comprises of the invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. Work-in-process is measured at weighted average cost. Cost of work-in-process and finished 
goods includes cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads. 
Waste products are valued at net realisable value. Stock-in-transit is stated at cost comprising invoice 
value and other incidental charges paid thereon up to reporting date.

 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less costs 
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether 

there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an 
expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

 The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. 
Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For 
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.9 Financial instruments
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in 
the Company’s 

 unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the unconsolidated statement 
of profit or loss.

3.9.1 Financial assets
 All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date 

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

 All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
 Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows; and

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets ‘at amortised cost’ are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the 
time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of 
profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired and when interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method.

 Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets at FVTOCI are carried on the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair value 
with gains or losses recognised in the unconsolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

 By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried on the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair value 
with gains or losses recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial assets
 The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained 
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues 
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

 On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.9.2 Financial liabilities
 All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method 

or at FVTPL. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that 
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised 
cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.9.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated 

statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to set-off the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

3.9.4 Impairment of financial assets
 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt 

instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade and other receivables, the Company applies the 
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables.

 The Company measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects (a) an unbiased and 
probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (b) the time 
value of money; and (c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort 
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

 The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the 
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 
information as described above. As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by 
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

 A default on a financial asset is considered when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments 
within 90 days of when they fall due.

 Financial assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where loans or 
receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt 
to recover the balance due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

3.10 Derivative
 Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement, each 

derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Derivatives with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are 
included in other assets and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are included in trade 
and other payables in unconsolidated statement of financial position.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents
 demand draft and running finance under mark-up arrangements. Running finances under mark-up 

arrangements are shown within short term borrowings under current liabilities in the unconsolidated 
statement of financial position. These are measured at amortised cost.

3.12 Share capital
 Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new 

shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

3.13 Government grant
 Government grants are transfers of resources to the Company by a government entity in return for 

compliance with certain past or future conditions related to the Company’s operating activities - e.g. a 
government subsidy. The definition of “government” refers to governments, government agencies and 
similar bodies, whether local, national or international.

 The Company recognises government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be 
received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associated with grants. Government 
grants are recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that the grants 
will be received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.

 Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognised on a systematic basis in the 
income for the year in which the related expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of 
an asset are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

 Loan is initially recognised at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9. The fair value of the loan would be 
the present value of loan proceeds received, discounted using prevailing market rate of mark-up for a 
similar instrument. The benefit of below-market mark-up (i.e. differential between the loan proceeds and 
fair value of the loan) is accounted for as deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20. In subsequent periods, 
the loan amount would be accreted using the effective interest rate method. The accretion would increase 
the carrying value of the loan with a corresponding effect on the interest expense for the year in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. As per IFRS 9, the loan liability and related mark-up shall be 
derecognised when it is extinguished i.e., these amounts are paid-off. While, the grant is recognised in 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest expense that the grant 
is compensating, in accordance with IAS 20.
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3.14 Staff retirement benefits
  
3.14.1 Defined contribution plan
 The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme for its eligible employees to which equal 

monthly contribution is made by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary. 
The Company's contribution is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.14.2 Defined benefit plan
The Company operates unfunded gratuity schemes for all its eligible employees. Benefits under the scheme are 
vested to employees on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under the scheme. The calculation 
of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in unconsolidated statement of other comprehensive income. The Company 
determines the net interest expense on the net defined liability for the period by applying the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net 
defined liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the year as a 
result of benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are 
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises gains or losses on the settlement of a defined benefit 
plan when the settlement occurs.

3.15 Accumulated employee compensated absences
 The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in the period in which these 

are earned. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences 
and are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.16 Unclaimed dividend
 The Company recognises unclaimed dividend which was declared and remained unclaimed by the 

shareholder from the date it was due and payable.

3.17 Provisions and contingencies
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, 
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.18 Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised on following basis:

 - Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the 
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

 - The Company recognises revenue when performance obligation is satisfied, at a point in time, when 
control of goods have been transferred to a customer either on dispatch / acceptance of goods for local 
sales or issuance of the bill of lading in case of export sales. Control, depending on contractual terms, is 
considered to be transferred either when the product is directly uplifted by customer from the 
Company premises or when it is delivered by the Company at customer premises.

 - Revenue from contracts with customers on services is recognised at the point in time when the 
performance obligation is satisfied i.e. control of the serviced goods is transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
those serviced goods. These services include sanforisation and mercerisation of fabric.

 - Export rebate (if any) on export sales is recognised on an accrual basis at the time of export sale.

 - Processing charges are recorded when processed goods are delivered to customers.

3.19 Other income
 Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the Company 

and the amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and recognised on following basis:

 - Profit on deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and rates applicable thereon.

 - Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established.

 - Interest on loans and advances to employees is recognised on the effective interest method.

 -  Income from sale of scrap is recorded on delivery of scrap to the customer. 

 -  The grant is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of 
interest expense that the grant is compensating, in accordance with IAS 20.

 -  Income from liabilities written back / provision are recorded when the chances of settlement of liability / 
provision is remote.

 - Markup from Term Finance Certificates is accounted for as income using the effective interest method.

 - Exchange gain from currency realisation and derivative financial instruments are described in note 3.1 
and 3.10 of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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3.20 Taxation

3.20.1 Current tax
 Current Tax comprises of expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
 year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
 current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or 
 received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
 enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
 authorities. Instances where the Company’s views differ from the income tax department at the 
 assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in
 accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

3.20.2 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
 arising at the reporting date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
 financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is
 recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, and tax
 credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such
 temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that
 it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at enacted tax rate that are expected to apply to the
 period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted
 or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

3.21 Levies
 The tax charged under ITO, which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid / payable in
 excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levies in the unconsolidated
 statement of profit or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 21 'Levies' or IAS 37 'Provisions,
 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'.

3.21.1 Revenue tax
Revenue tax include levies as per IFRIC 21, minimum tax on imported goods and export sales under ITO.

 A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is imposed by governments on
 entities in accordance with legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulations), other than:
  (a) those outflows of resources that are within the scope of other standards.
  (b) fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation.

3.21.2 Final tax
 Final tax includes tax charged / withheld / paid on certain income streams under various provisions of
 ITO. Final tax is charged / computed under the ITO, without reference to income chargeable to tax at
 the general rate of tax and final tax computed / withheld or paid for a tax year is construed as final tax
 liability for the related stream of Income under the ITO. 

3.22 Earnings per share
 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined 
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.23 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
 Final dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the unconsolidated 

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders 
at the Annual General Meeting, while the interim dividend distributions are recognised in the period in 
which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors (the Board). Appropriations of profit are reflected 
in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are 
approved.

3.24 Segment reporting
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment 

is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relates to transactions with any of the Company's 
other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker(s) i.e., Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment, 
assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly of finance cost, 
other operating cost, other income and income tax. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred 
during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The detailed results of 
the reportable segments are disclosed in the note 35 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
      
         
  2025  2024
 Note   ---------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------          

   
 Operating fixed assets 4.1 48,777,835  49,416,906 
 Capital work in progress (CWIP) 4.2  2,116,772   606,902 
    50,894,607   50,023,808 
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4.1 Operating fixed assets

As at 01 July 2023   
 Cost    7,924,915  14,409,911  43,470,287  299,996  893,079  581,458  67,579,646 
Accumulated depreciation   -  (4,265,932)  (14,665,006)  (99,975)  (313,849)  (365,041) (19,709,803)
Net book value as at  July 01, 2023  7,924,915   10,143,979   28,805,281   200,021   579,230   216,417   47,869,843 

Movement during year ended June 30, 2024

Transfers during the year   4.2.1   121,484   1,246,791   4,433,375   32,300   242,619   67,304   6,143,873 
Written off during the year   -     (70,070)  -     -     -     -     (70,070)
Reclassification to CWIP    -     -     (18,832)  -     -     -     (18,832)

Disposals during the year   4.1.2 
Cost      -     -     (144,675)  -     -     -     (144,675)
Depreciation    -     -     87,384   -     -     -     87,384 
Net book value    -     -     (57,291)  -     -     -     (57,291)
Depreciation charge for the year   4.1.1   -     (1,104,333)  (3,140,204)  (24,768)  (131,601)  (49,711)  (4,450,617)
Net book value as at June 30, 2024  4.4  8,046,399   10,216,367   30,022,329   207,553   690,248   234,010   49,416,906 

As at June 30, 2024
Cost     8,046,399   15,586,632   47,740,155   332,296   1,135,698   648,762   73,489,942 
Accumulated depreciation    -     (5,370,265)  (17,717,826)  (124,743)  (445,450)  (414,752)  (24,073,036)
     8,046,399   10,216,367   30,022,329   207,553   690,248   234,010   49,416,906

------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)  --------------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold
land

Note

 Buildings  and
structures on

leasehold
 land

 Plant and
machinery

Furniture and
fixtures

Office
equipment

Vehicles Total

As at 01 July 2024 
Cost     8,046,399   15,586,632   47,740,155   332,296   1,135,698   648,762   73,489,942 
Accumulated depreciation    -    (5,370,265) (17,717,826) (124,743) (445,450) (414,752) (24,073,036)
Net book value as at July 01, 2024    8,046,399   10,216,367   30,022,329   207,553   690,248   234,010   49,416,906 

Movement during year ended June 30, 2025
Transfers during the year   4.2.1   -     479,558   3,160,737   52,877   240,953   42,152   3,976,277 

Adjustments during the year
Cost     -     3,956   97,640   (154)  (71,154)  (30,178)  110 
Depreciation   -     (1,964)  (15,901)  -     25,297   578   8,010 
     -     1,992   81,739   (154)  (45,857)  (29,600)  8,120 
Disposals during the year  4.1.2 
Cost     -     -     (335,998)  -     -     -     (335,998)
Depreciation    -     -     271,341   -     -     -     271,341 
Net book value    -     -     (64,657)  -     -     -     (64,657)
Depreciation charge for the year   4.1.1   -     (1,067,637)  (3,269,016)  (25,005)  (153,730)  (43,423)  (4,558,811)
Net book value as at June 30, 2025    8,046,399   9,630,280   29,931,132   235,271   731,614   203,139   48,777,835

As at June 30, 2025
Cost     8,046,399   16,070,146   50,662,534   385,019   1,305,497   660,736   77,130,331 
Accumulated depreciation    -     (6,439,866)  (20,731,402)  (149,748)  (573,883)  (457,597)  (28,352,496)
Net book value as at June 30, 2025  4.4  8,046,399   9,630,280   29,931,132   235,271   731,614   203,139   48,777,835 

     ------------------------------------------------------ ( % ) ------------------------------------------------------
Depreciation per annum    -     10 to 33   10 to 33   10 to 12   10 to 33  20 

Transfers during the year   4.2.1   -     479,558   3,160,737   52,877   240,953   42,152   3,976,277 

Cost     -     3,956   97,640   (154)  (71,154)  (30,178)  110 
Depreciation   -     (1,964)  (15,901)  -     25,297   578   8,010 
     -     1,992   81,739   (154)  (45,857)  (29,600)  8,120 

Cost     -     -     (335,998)  -     -     -     (335,998)
Depreciation    -     -     271,341   -     -     -     271,341 
Net book value    -     -     (64,657)  -     -     -     (64,657)
Depreciation charge for the year   4.1.1   -     (1,067,637)  (3,269,016)  (25,005)  (153,730)  (43,423)  (4,558,811)
Net book value as at June 30, 2025    8,046,399   9,630,280   29,931,132   235,271   731,614   203,139   48,777,835

Cost     8,046,399   16,070,146   50,662,534   385,019   1,305,497   660,736   77,130,331 
Accumulated depreciation    -     (6,439,866)  (20,731,402)  (149,748)  (573,883)  (457,597)  (28,352,496)
Net book value as at June 30, 2025  4.4  8,046,399   9,630,280   29,931,132   235,271   731,614   203,139   48,777,835 

  ------------------------------------------------------ ( % ) ------------------------------------------------------
Depreciation per annum    -     10 to 33   10 to 33   10 to 12   10 to 33  20 

------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)  --------------------------------------------------------------------

Note
 Buildings  and
structures on

leasehold
 land

 Plant and
machinery

Furniture and
fixtures

 Office
equipment Vehicles TotalLeasehold

land

2025  2024

 Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

   
Cost of goods manufactured 26.1  4,338,904   4,265,756 

 Selling and distribution cost 27  87   100 

 Administrative cost 28  219,820   184,761  

    4,558,811   4,450,617 

4.1.3 Geographical locations and addresses of all immoveable properties owned by the Company are as follows;

Area Address
 25.07 Acres Plot No. HT-4, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi
 14.9 Acres Survey No. 82, Deh Landhi, Karachi
 18.56 Acres Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi
 44.04 Acres P.U. No. 48, 49, 50, & 51, Deh Khjanto Tapo Landhi, Karachi
 4.17 Acres Plot No. H-19, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi
 4,023.16 Sq. yards Plot No. H-19/1, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi
 6.83 Acres Plot 368, 369 & 446, Deh Landhi, Karachi 
 12 Acres Plot - HT 3/A, Landhi, Karachi
 51.1 Acres Plot No. H-5 and HT-6, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi

 Manufacturing facilities, warehouses, ancillary construction, administrative offices etc, are constructed on 
each of the above mentioned land.

4.1.2 Details of operating assets sold

Plant and Machinery
Waukesha Gas 37,809   2,454   1,139   (1,315) Bidding Ams Enterprise Plot # D-126. 
Third party 
Engine      Bawany Challi. Site Town,
      Karachi

Passenger Lift  6,283   6,283   3,077   (3,206) Bidding Awan Lift Company (Pvt) Ltd 
 Third party 
      11th Floor, Rimpa Plaza, M.A.
      Jinnah Road, Karachi

Machine Paper  2,883   1,129   1,000   (129) Bidding Badar Processing   
Third party 
Transfer Printing      Industries D-256, 273, Site,
      Karachi Pakistan

Waukesha Gas 43,177   2,852   3,000   148  Bidding R.A Engineering & Services 
 Third party 
Engine      2nd Floor, plot no-18, sector-47,
      korangi creek industrial area,
      Karachi

Air Jet Looms  191,708   49,019   14,294   (34,725) Bidding Valitex (Pvt) Ltd. A/36-A,  
Third party 
Tsudakoma      Mangopir Road, Site Karachi,
      Karachi West Site Town

Items with written   54,138   2,920   6,538   3,618  Bidding Various
down value below
Rs. 500,000

As on 30 June
 2025    335,998   64,657   29,048   (35,609)   
       
As on 30 June 
 2024    144,675   57,291   28,758   (28,533)

Particulars 
of assets Cost

Written down 
value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / (loss) on 
disposal

Mode of 
disposal

Relationship 
with buyerParticulars of buyer

------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------

4.1.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
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    4.2.1 The movement in capital work in progress is as follows:

 Opening balance  606,902  2,251,995 

 Capital expenditure incurred during the year

     Plant and machinery 4.2.2 3,959,158  3,309,671 

     Buildings and structures on leasehold land  1,181,689  696,859 

     Others  345,301  473,418 

    5,486,148   4,479,948 

 Transfers to operating fixed assets during the year    

     Plant and machinery   (3,160,737)  (4,433,375)

     Buildings and structures on leasehold land   (479,558)  (1,246,791)

     Others   (335,982)  (463,707)

  4.1  (3,976,277)  (6,143,873)

 Reclassification from operating fixed assets   -     18,832 

 Closing balance   2,116,772   606,902 

   4.2.2    This includes borrowing cost captalised during the construction period amounting to Rs. 123 million

   (June 30,  2024: Rs. 480 million). The effective rate of borrowing cost capitalised during the year was

   15.98% (June 30, 2024: 18.60%) per annum.

    4.3 The cost of fully depreciated operating fixed assets still in use:

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------   

 Buildings and structures on leasehold land  114,059  114,059 

 Office equipment  116,506  93,736 

 Plant and machinery  506,814  506,814 

 Vehicles  109  109 

    737,489  714,718 

    4.4     Plant and machinery, land and buildings are subject to first pari passu charge and a equitable 

  mortgageamounting to Rs. 38,574 million as on June 30, 2025 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 38,574 million). These

  charges are against different financing facilities obtained from various banks as disclosed in note 16 of

  these unconsolidated financial statements.

2025  2024

 Note       -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

     4.2 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

    Plant and machinery   1,335,351   536,930 

    Buildings and structures on leasehold land   762,391   60,261 

    Others   19,030   9,711  

  4.2.1 2,116,772  606,902

2025  2024
 Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------
 5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - ACQUIRED

  Cost  228,324   199,789 
  Accumulated amortisation   (182,840)  (161,538)
  Net book value as at  45,484   38,251 

  Movement during the year 
  Additions - cost  16,934   28,535 
  Amortisation charge for the year 5.1  (17,197)  (21,302)
  Net book value as at  45,221   45,484 

  As at June 30    
  Cost  245,258  228,324 

  Accumulated amortisation   (200,037)  (182,840)
  Net book value as at  45,221   45,484 

 5.1 The cost is being amortised using straight line method over a period of five years and the amortisation charge has  
 been allocated as follows:

2025  2024
 Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

   Cost of goods manufactured 26.1  3,241  1,793 
   Administrative cost 28 13,956  19,509 
   ` 17,197 21,302 

 5.2 The cost of fully amortised intangible assets still in use

   Software  169,125   101,562 

  6. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

   Investment in subsidiary companies at cost   
    - Gul Ahmed International Limited 6.1 58,450  58,450 
    - Ideas (Private) Limited 6.2 3,462,756  3,462,756 
    - Gul Ahmed Ecotex (Private) Limited 6.3 2,841  -   
    - Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Private) Limited 6.3 2,841  -   
    - Gul Ahmed Circular FabrIcs (Private) Limited 6.3 4,573  -   
     3,531,461 3,521,206
   Investment at amortised cost 
    - Term Finance Certificate (TFC) 6.4 70,000  70,000 
     3,601,461  3,591,206 

6.1 Gul Ahmed International Limited - FZC UAE, an unquoted company incorporated in United Arab Emirates (UAE), 
is a wholly owned subsidiary (the subsidiary) of the Company. The Company has accounted for the investment 
in subsidiary at cost as per IAS 27. Aggregate breakup value of the subsidiary as per its financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2025 is Rs. 1,334 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,265 million).

6.2 Ideas (Private) Limited, an unquoted company incorporated in Pakistan, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company. The company has accounted for the investment in this subsidiary at cost as per IAS 27. Aggregate 
breakup value of the subsidiary as per its financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 is Rs. 5,194 million 
(June 30, 2024: Rs. 5,081 million).
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 9. STOCK-IN-TRADE

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Raw material

  - In hand 26.2  38,516,922   30,975,136 

  - In transit   626,820   1,495,563 

  Work-in-process 26.1  11,176,902   8,967,188 

  Finished goods  26  10,591,231   7,688,200 

   60,911,875  49,126,087 

  Provision for slow moving - stock-in-trade / obsolete items 9.1  -     (112,009)

  9.2 60,911,875  49,014,078 

 9.1 Movement in provision for slow moving

  Opening balance   112,009   190,801 

  Reversal of provision for the year 26.1  (112,009)  (78,792)

  Closing balance   -     112,009 

 9.2 The stock includes inventory held with third party amounting to Rs. 5,179 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 7,171 million).

 10. TRADE DEBTS

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Secured

  Export debtors   4,918,658   2,999,337 

  Local debtors   2,302,712   6,893,301 

  10.5  7,221,370   9,892,638 

  Unsecured

  Export debtors   3,038,950   5,557,687 

  Local debtors   12,044,543   9,299,141 

    15,083,493   14,856,828 

    22,304,863   24,749,466 

  Expected credit loss 10.4  (149,301)  (182,359) 

   10.6  22,155,562   24,567,107 

  7. LONG TERM LOANS
  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------  
      

  Considered good   

   - Due from executives 7.2 128,615   87,256 
   - Due from non-executives  9,227   3,828 
   137,842   91,084 
  Current portion
   - Due from executives   (108,001)  (69,871)
   - Due from non-executives   (8,354)  (3,274)
  11  (116,355)  (73,145)
   21,487   17,939 

7.1 Loans and advances have been given for the purchase of cars and housing assistance in accordance with the 
terms of employment and are repayable in monthly installments. These loans are secured to the extent of 
outstanding balance of retirement benefit or guarantee by two employees. The loan tenor extends 
maximum upto 24 months.

 Included in these are loans of Rs. 110.63 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 48 million) to executives and Rs. 7.9 million 
(June 30, 2024 : Rs. 3 million) to non-executive which carry no mark-up. The loans amounting to Rs. 17.98 
million (June 30, 2024: 39.2 million) to executives and Rs. 1.3 million to non-executives (June 30, 2024: Rs. 0.8 
million) carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.08% to 20.14% ( 2024: 8.5% to 22.97%) per annum. 

7.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 129 
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 87 million).

 8. STORE, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
  2025  2024
 Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------
      

  Stores, spares and loose tools   2,755,637   2,380,844 
  Stores-in-transit   5,535   13,296  
    2,761,172  2,394,140 

  Provision for slow moving / obsolete items 8.1  (35,715)  (95,818)
   2,725,457   2,298,322 

 8.1 Movement in provision for slow moving / obsolete items
  Opening balance  95,818   247,557 
  Reversal of provision for the year - Cost of goods manufactured 26.1  (60,103)  (151,739)
  Closing balance  35,715   95,818

6.3 These unquoted entities are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, incorporated in Pakistan during the   
 year. These entities are intended to be established under the Special Economic Zone (the Zone) and is   
 presently in the approval phase of the zone.

6.4 This represents Rs. 70 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 70 million) invested in perpetual TFC issued by Habib Bank   
 Limited, which carries profit at the rate of 3Month KIBOR + 1.6% receivable on quarterly basis.
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 11. LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------
  Loans and advances - considered good
  Advances to suppliers  3,342,358   1,434,883 
  Current portion of loans to employees 7  116,355   73,145 
    3,458,713   1,508,028 

  Other receivables
  Letter of Credit and Bank Guarantee Margin 11.1  1,312,338   650,183 
  Forward contracts   -     332,315 
  Accrued markup on Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs)   24,299   -   
  Others 11.2  15,464   147,791 
    1,352,101   1,130,289 
    4,810,814   2,638,317 

 11.1 These include Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) of Soneri Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 979 million. (2024:
  Rs. 550 million) placed against bank guarantee margin. The guarantee margin carries mark up at the rate  

 of 10% to 11% (2024: 14.35% to 19.75%) per annum.    

 11.2 This includes balance receivable from Hub Liquid Terminal (Private) Limited, a related party amounting to  
  Rs. 9.13 million (2024: Nil)

 12. RECEIVABLE FROM GOVERNMENT
      
  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Sales tax refund  1,253,460   978,178 
  Income tax refund   2,417,771   428,713 
  Duty drawback and rebate   1,871,167   2,298,967 
    5,542,398   3,705,858 

 13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Cash in hand  10,879   11,387 
  Balances with banks in current accounts
  - Local currency   133,019   359,581 
  - Foreign currency   22,531   4,908 
    155,550   364,489 
  13.1 & 13.2  166,429   375,876 

 13.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 17.93 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 202.93 million) held by Shariah compliant banks.

 13.2 This includes balances held with related parties (associated banks due to common directorships)   
 amounting to Rs. 72.66 million (2024: Rs. 5.70 million).

10.5 Trade debts under irrevocable letter of credit, document acceptance, and other acceptable banking instruments 
are considered secured.

10.6 This includes receivables provided to bank under bill discounting arrangement with full recourse amounting to 
Rs. 1,639 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,598 million).

10.2 The amount outstanding is payable on demand and is subject to markup at the rate of KIBOR + 0.75% ( 2024: 
KIBOR + 0.75%). The markup charged during the year is disclosed in note 31.2.

    
10.3 The maximum aggregate month end balance during the year due from related parties was Rs. 5,941 million 

(June 30, 2024: Rs. 9,040 million).

10.4. Movement in expected credit loss against doubtful trade debts:

 10.1 Details and aging analysis of the gross amounts due from related parties is as follows:

2025

 Note 0 to 30 Days 31 to 180 Days    More than 181 days   Total 

 ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------
  Export debtors
  GTM USA Corporation  48,866   -     -     48,866 
  GTM (Europe) Limited   2,598,530   -     -     2,598,530 
  Sky Home Corporation - USA   257,439   -      -      257,439 
  Vantona Home Limited   77,970   -     -      77,970 
    2,982,805   -     -     2,982,805 

  Local debtor
  Ideas (Private) Limited 10.2  649,161   373,731   -     1,022,892 
    3,631,966   373,731  -     4,005,697 

 2024

  0 to 30 Days  31 to 180 Days More than 181 days Total

 ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------
  Export debtors
  GTM USA Corporation   78,799   10,295  -     89,094 
  GTM (Europe) Limited   168,495   681   -     169,176 
  Sky Home Corporation - USA   5,880   -     -     5,880 
   253,174   10,976   -     264,150 

  Local debtor
  Ideas (Private) Limited 10.2  643,842   81,466   4,951,647   5,676,955 
    897,016   92,442   4,951,647   5,941,105 

  2025  2024
Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Opening balance   182,359   412,119 
  Reversal for the year 28  (33,058)  (229,760)
  Closing balance   149,301   182,359 



 14.  SHARE CAPITAL

 14.1 Authorized capital

   

2025 2024    2025 2024

     

   ---------------(Number of Shares)---------------                                                ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

  5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each  50,000,000   50,000,000

 14.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2025 2024   2025 2024

     

   ---------------(Number of Shares)---------------                                                ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

   192,161,738  192,161,738   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each        1,921,617  1,921,617

   allotted for consideration  

   paid in cash   

  108,809,985   108,809,985  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each      1,088,100  1,088,100 

   allotted as fully paid shares under 

   scheme of arrangement for 

   amalgamation (note 15.1)

  439,087,735  439,087,735  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each     4,390,877  4,390,877 

   allotted as fully paid bonus shares

  740,059,458  740,059,458        7,400,594  7,400,594

14.2.1 As at June 30, 2025, Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited, the parent company of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills 

Limited, held 413,383,760 (June 30, 2024: 413,383,760) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, constituting 55.86% 

(June 30, 2024: 55.86%) of total paid-up capital of the Company. Number of shares held by the associated 

companies and undertakings, other than holding company, aggregated to 99,476,824 (June 30, 2024: 

99,476,824) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

14.2.2 As per the Honourable Sindh High Court's order, the Company held 3,471,541 (June 30, 2024: 3,471,541) out 

of the total bonus shares issued for the year 2015, 2019 and 2021 to Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited, 

parent company, and other parties, as these shareholders are part of the suit filed against the tax on bonus 

shares imposed through Finance Act, 2014.

14.2.3 All these fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and equal right to dividend.
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 15. RESERVES

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Capital reserves

  Amalgamation reserve 15.1  8,252,059   8,252,059 

   Against long term investments, capacity expansion and BMR 15.2  23,000,000   23,000,000 

    31,252,059   31,252,059 

  Revenue reserve

  Unappropriated profit   10,200,284   6,100,570  

     41,452,343   37,352,629 

 15.1 This represents reserves created under the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 05, 2021 involving the  

  Company, Ideas (Private) Limited, Worldwide Developers (Private) Limited (WWDL), Grand Industries  

  (Private) Limited and Ghafooria Industries (Private) Limited, which was sanctioned by Honourable High  

  Court of Sindh through order dated  October 29, 2021.

 15.2 The Board, in their meeting held on September 25, 2023, approved the creation of a reserve, for the   

 purpose of long term investments, Business Modernisation and capacity expansion, by transferring an   

 amount of Rs. 23 billion from unappropriated profit to this reserve. Based on this decision, the reserves  against  

 long-term investments, capacity expansions and BMR amounting to Rs. 23 billion have been separately disclosed  

 as capital reserve not available for distribution in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 16. LONG TERM FINANCING

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Secured

  From Banking Companies 16.1  13,662,456   10,983,212 

  From Non-Banking Financial Institutions 16.2  2,826,322   3,562,997 

  Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance 

   Scheme Facility - Net of Government Grant 16.3  2,781,877   3,279,314 

   19,270,655   17,825,523 

  Current portion shown under current liabilities 22  (3,128,180)  (3,233,936)

  16.10  16,142,475   14,591,587 



 16.1      Banking Companies - Secured

Islamic

        

Dubai Islamic Bank 16.5, 16.8 &  24 & 36  May 06 2032 173,079 Three months KIBOR ask 4,700,000 -

 Under LTL scheme 16.9  quarterly       rate + 0.3%  payable quarterly        

     

Faysal Bank Limited 16.5, 16.7 &  32 quarterly November 01 2030 28,128 2.75% - 3.9% p.a. payable   485,178  645,711  

 Under ILTFF scheme - 16.9    quarterly

 Diminishing Musharaka  

Meezan Bank Limited 16.6, 16.8 &  32 quarterly September 13 2032 91,054 3.5% - 5.5% p.a. payable  2,174,863  2,529,595 

 Under LTL and ILTFF 16.9    quarterly   

 scheme - Diminishing     

 Musharaka

Conventional

Askari Bank Limited 16.5, 16.8 &  20 and 32  August 12, 2027  25,163   2.75% - 3.5% p.a.   453,209   553,368 

 Under LTFF scheme 16.11 quarterly    payable quarterly 

Bank Al-Habib Limited 16.7 16 half yearly  October 22, 2027  13,519   2.75% p.a. payable half yearly  81,109   108,147 

 Under LTFF scheme

Bank Al-Falah Limited 16.4 &  16 half yearly December 26, 2032  58,964   3% - 5.5% p.a. payable half   550,482    668,409 

 Under LTFF and  16.8      yearly 

 LTL scheme

The Bank of Khyber 16.4 32 quarterly  August 17, 2032  15,625   5.5% - 8.5% p.a.   437,500   500,000 

 Under LTL scheme      payable quarterly 

The Bank of Punjab 16.4 & 16.8 28 quarterly December 02, 2030  71,429   3% p.a. payable quarterly  682,394  967,990 

 Under LTFF scheme

Habib Bank Limited 16.6 & 16.7 32, 36 and 39  August 09, 2032  50,655   2.80% - 3.25% p.a. payable   966,207  1,163,250 

 Under LTL and  quarterly    half yearly and quarterly 

 LTFF scheme

MCB Bank Limited 16.6 & 16.8 32 quarterly  February 23, 2031  9,596   4.00% p.a. payable half yearly    201,637  240,179 

 Under LTL scheme      and quarterly

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   Number of  Maximum Aggregate Mark-up /profit rate  
  Particulars Note installments Maturity  Installment per annum 2025 2024
    Date amount

National Bank of Pakistan 16.4,16.5, 20 and 32  May 26, 2030  85,313   2.75% - 2.80% p.a. payable  1,358,119  1,674,467 

 Under LTFF scheme 16.6 & 16.8 quarterly    half yearly and quarterly 

Soneri Bank Limited 16.4 & 16.8 16 half yearly  April 14, 2032  40,395   3.50% - 5.0% p.a. payable  743,684 876,346 

 Under LTFF scheme   and 32 Quarterly    half yearly and quarterly

United Bank Limited 16.5 & 16.8  16 half yearly  March 21, 2032  64,452   2.75% - 6.25% p.a. payable   754,021   912,670 

 Under LTFF scheme      half yearly and quarterly    

Samba Bank Limited 16.4, 16.8 & 10 and 16   December 27, 2028  35,501  3% p.a. payable   74,053  143,080 

 Under LTFF scheme 16.11 half yearly    half yearly   

         13,662,456  10,983,212 

 16.2 Non-Banking Financial Institutions - Secured

Pair Investment 16.4, 16.6  12 and 16  October 15, 2029  65,392  3.0% - 3.5% p.a. payable half  311,699 419,341 

Company Limited & 16.8 half yearly   yearly

 Under LTFF scheme

  

Pak Kuwait Investment 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly  September 25, 2032  62,189  3.0% - 8.5% p.a. payable  960,562   1,211,540 

Pvt.  Limited 16.8     quarterly

 Under LTFF scheme

Pak China Investment 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly  November 22, 2031  44,763  3.35% - 5.35% p.a. payable  1,079,118   1,261,065 

Pvt. Limited  16.8     quarterly

 Under LTFF scheme

Pak Brunei Investment  16.4, 16.5 &16.8 16 half yearly July 28, 2027  36,524   2.5% p.a payable  159,472  232,684 

Company Limited      quarterly 

 Under LTFF scheme

Pak Oman Investment  16.5 & 16.8 32 quarterly  September 13, 2027  30,724   2.75% p.a payable  315,471   438,367 

Company Limited       quarterly

 Under LTFF scheme

         2,826,322   3,562,997 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   Number of  Maximum Aggregate Mark-up /profit rate  
  Particulars Note installments Maturity  Installment per annum 2025 2024
    Date amount
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 17. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

   
  Opening balance   102,906   134,994 

  Amortised during the year 30  (28,251)  (32,088)

     74,655   102,906 

  Current portion shown under current liabilities 22  (24,035)  (28,251)

  Closing balance   50,620   74,655 

17.1 This represent government grant recognised on the concessionary refinance facility introduced by the 

State Bank of Pakistan under a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) for setting up of new 

industrial units and for undertaking Balancing, Modernisation and Replacement and / or expansion of 

projects / businesses. These have been accounted for as per the guidance issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) in respect of these loans.

 18 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - STAFF GRATUITY

      

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

 18.1 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit

     obligation and movement in net defined benefit liability

  Opening balance   523,996   329,018 

  Charge 18.2  264,743   238,199 

  Remeasurement (gain) / loss  18.3  (76,940)  41,421 

  Benefits paid   (245,621)  (81,236)

  Benefits due but not paid   -     (3,406)

  Closing balance   466,178   523,996 

 18.2 Charge for the year recognised in unconsolidated

     statement of profit or loss 

  Current service cost   205,666   191,611 

  Markup cost   59,077   46,588 

   28.1  264,743   238,199 

 16.3      Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance Scheme Facility - net of Government Grant

 Habib Bank Limited 16.5 & 16.8 16 half yearly September 23, 2030 59,375  2.25 % p.a. payable half yearly  637,854  750,163 

      

 MCB Bank Limited 16.6 & 16.8 32 quarterly February 23, 2031  13,841  3.00% p.a. payable quarterly   296,868   349,236 

 MCB Islamic Bank Limited  16.6 & 16.8 32 quarterly January 19, 2031  9,375  2.50% p.a. payable quarterly  201,416  236,889  

 Bank of Punjab 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly December 02, 2030  31,250  2.0 % p.a. payable quarterly  727,587   863,939 

  16.8    

 Pak Kuwait Investment 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly September 25, 2032  9,464  2.5% p.a. payable quarterly  187,579  223,491 

 (Private) Limited 16.8     

 Pak China Investment 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly November 22, 2031   17,738  2.50% p.a. payable quarterly  386,414  453,453 

 (Private) Limited 16.8    

 Saudi Pak Industrial And 16.4, 16.5 & 32 quarterly  April 27, 2031  15,357  2.50% p.a payable quarterly  344,159  402,143 

 Agricultural Investment  16.8     

 Company Limited 

        2,781,877   3,279,314 

16.4 These loans are secured by first pari passu charge over present and future operating fixed assets of the Company.

16.5 These loans are secured by charge over specified machinery.

16.6 These loans are secured by first pari passu charge over present and future operating fixed assets of the 
Company and equitable mortgage over land and building.

16.7 These loans are secured by charge over specified machinery of the Company and equitable mortgage over 
land and building.

16.8 The financing availed under the facility is repayable within a maximum period of ten years including 
maximum grace period of two years from the date when financing was availed.

16.9 These loans are obtained under Shariah compliant arrangements.

16.10 Loans are subject to compliance of certain covenants including Debt Service Coverage ratio, Current ratio, 
Debt to Equity ratio, Interest Cover, Maximum Gearing, Debt to EBITDA, Debt to Sales and are secured against 
the charge over assets of the Company.

16.11 These represent financing obtained from related parties (associated banks due to common directorships) 
of the Company.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   Number of  Maximum Aggregate Mark-up /profit rate  
  Particulars Note installments Maturity  Installment per annum 2025 2024
    Date amount
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 18.3 Remeasurement loss / (gain) charged in unconsolidated

  statement of other comprehensive income

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in financial assumptions   (1,683)  20,441 

  Experience adjustments   (75,257)  20,980  

     (76,940)  41,421 

 18.4 Significant actuarial assumptions used

  Following significant actuarial assumptions were used for the valuation by an independent valuer that  

  is "Nauman Associates":

  2025  2024

  Discount rate used for year end obligation  11.75% 14.75%

  Rate used for markup cost  14.75% 16.25%

  Expected increase in salary  10.00% 20.00%

  Mortality rates  SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

    Set back 1 Year Set back 1 Year

  Withdrawal rates  Age-Based Age-Based

  Retirement assumption  Age 60 Age 60

  The discount rate used in the last actuarial valuation as on June 30, 2024 was 14.75%. However, in the  

  current investment environment, where there is a downward trend in the interest rate structure, the  

  discount rate has been decreased to 11.75% per annum, in line with the specifications of the IAS-19. 

  Correspondingly, due to decrease in inflationary expectations, the rate of increase in eligible salary has  

  been decreased to 10.75% from 13.75% per annum.

 18.5 Associated risks

  (a) Final salary risk (Linked to inflation risk)

  The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Company   

 assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other  

 macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

  (b) Demographic risk     

  Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality.  

 This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

  Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal   

 probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits  

 of the beneficiaries.

 18.6 General description     

   

  The scheme provides retirement benefits to all its eligible employees of the Company who are not part  

  of the provident fund scheme and who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service (6   

  months). Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out periodically and latest actuarial valuation was  

  carried out at June 30, 2025. The disclosure is based on information included in that actuarial report. The  

  gratuity is measured on last drawn salary multiplied by number of years of service.

 18.7 Sensitivity analysis

  Reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding  

  other assumptions constant (± 100 bps), would have affected the defined benefit obligation:

  2025 2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------
  

 Discount Rate + 100 bps    6,502   7,098 

 Discount Rate - 100 bps    (6,754)  (7,366)

 Salary increase + 100 bps    (6,503)  (7,185)

 Salary increase - 100 bps    6,371   7,044 

  Although the analysis does not takes into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under

  the plan, it does provide approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions used.
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 18.8 Maturity Profile

   Maturity profile on Defined Benefit Obligation as presented by actuary in the report;

  2025  2024

          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  FY 2025  N/A   321,496 

  FY 2026   278,916   258,322 

  FY 2027   215,999   178,930 

  FY 2028   146,144   123,968 

  FY 2029   98,818   86,754 

  FY 2030   67,340   61,650 

  FY 2031   47,396   45,036 

  FY 2032   32,144   31,222 

  FY 2033   23,215   23,818 

  FY 2034   16,462   17,535 

  FY 2035   11,642   50,061 

  FY 2036 onwards   30,986   N/A 

  The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 1 year.

 18.9 Estimated expenses to be charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in financial year 2026:

  Current service cost   191,624 

  Mark up on defined benefit obligation   38,390 

     230,014 

 19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Creditors  13,058,018   12,398,328 

  Accrued expenses   7,237,324   6,386,921 

  Gas infrastructure development cess payable 19.1  3,686,367   3,686,367 

  Payable to banks under bill discounting arrangement   2,111,194   4,598,402 

  Due to related parties 19.2  228,104   216,692 

  Workers' profit participation fund 19.3  295,120   345,459 

  Workers' welfare fund 19.4  121,537   117,148 

  Payable to employees' provident fund trust   47,732   61,057 

  Fair value of forward contracts   64,902   -   

  Advance from customers 19.5  674,552   818,325 

  Taxes withheld   164,769   145,714 

  Others   1,340   1,428 

     27,690,959  28,775,841 

 19.1 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) that was levied through GIDC Act, 2015 (refer note 24.4).

 19.2 Due to related parties

  2025  2024

        -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Subsidiaries

  GTM Europe, UK   32,346   -   

  GTM USA Corp.   38,469   16,166 

  Sky Home Corporation - USA   104,203   105,369 

  Associates

  Win Star (Private) Limited   26,022   19,211 

  Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited   398   49,508 

  Grand Industries (Private) Limited   4,617   4,389 

  TPL Properties Limited   22,049   22,049 

     228,104   216,692 

 19.3 Workers' profit participation fund

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

   Movement of balance during the year:

   Opening balance   345,459   317,940 

   Allocation 29  295,120   345,459 

   Markup 31  22,867   3,954 

       663,446   667,353 

   Payments   (368,326)  (321,894)

   Closing balance   295,120   345,459 

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

 19.4 Workers' welfare fund

  Movement of balance during the year:

  Opening balance   117,148   91,498 

  Allocation 29  121,537   117,149  

     238,685   208,647 

  Payments   (117,148)  (91,499)

  Closing balance   121,537   117,148 

 19.5 This includes advance received from Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC), a related party, amounting  

  to Rs. Nil  (June 30, 2024: Rs: 1.4 million).
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 20. ACCRUED MARK-UP / PROFIT

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Long term financing   192,314   192,003 

  Short term borrowings   596,107   1,199,640  

   20.1 & 20.2  788,421   1,391,643 

20.1 This includes accrued markup of Rs. 102 million and Rs. 161 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 81.1 million and Rs.  

  358.7 million) accrued in long term financing and short term borrowings respectively under Shariah

  Compliant arrangements.

 20.2 This includes accrued markup pertaining to related parties (associated banks due to common directorships)  

  amounting to Rs. 4 million and Rs. 82 million in respect of long term financing and short term borrowings  

  respectively (2024: Rs. 5 million and Rs. 257 million).

 21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

  2025  2024

  Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Local currency

  Running finance   2,478,795   5,142,246 

  Export refinance scheme   22,161,400   20,761,400 

  Other short term finances   4,204,545   3,773,206 

     28,844,740   29,676,852 

  Foreign currency

  Export Facilitation Scheme   8,645,751   9,542,784 

  Foreign Currency Import Finance   783,043   -   

  Foreign Currency Export Finance   13,884,170   2,785,866  

   21.1 to 21.3  52,157,704   42,005,502 

21.1 This includes Istisna (Shariah Compliant) amounting to Rs. 14,844 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 9,949 million) 
in local currency.

21.2 Short term borrowings are secured by pari passu hypothecation charge over stores and spares, stock-in-trade, 
trade debts and other receivables. Unavailed facility at the year end was Rs. 15,242 million (June 30, 2024:
Rs. 2,874 million). 

21.3 Local currency borrowings markup ranges from 8% to 12.5% (June 30, 2024: 18% to 25%) per annum payable 
quarterly, whereas, foreign currency borrowings markup range from 2.5% to 5% (June 30, 2024: 2.5% to 
6%) per annum.

21.4 These include balances pertaining to related parties (associated banks due to common directorships) 
amounting to Rs. 8,796 million (2024: Rs. 14,579 million).

 22. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Current maturity of long term financing - secured  16  3,128,180   3,233,936 
  Current maturity of deferred income - government grant  17  24,035   28,251 
     3,152,215   3,262,187 

 23. UNPAID DIVIDEND 23.1  23,505   23,505

23.1 This represents amount held by the Company pertaining to the Petitioners of the suit filed in the Honourable  
 High Court of Sindh against the tax on bonus shares imposed through Finance Act 2014. The amount includes  
 Rs. 18 million and Rs. 0.8 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 18 million and Rs. 0.8 million) of parent company and   
 an associated company respectively.

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 The Company owns and possesses a plot of land measuring 44.04 acres in Deh Khanto which is duly registered 
in its name and appearing in the books at a cost of Rs. 83.86 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 83.86 million). Ownership 
of the land has been challenged in the Honourable Sindh High Court by Messrs. Karim Bux, Iqbal Rasheed 
and Mansoor Munawar who claim to be the owners, as this land was previously sold to them and subsequently 
resold to the Company. The legal consultant of the Company is of the view that the Company has a reasonable 
case and is expecting favourable outcome, therefore, no provision has been made there against. In respect 
of the same land, the Company has filed a suit in January 2021 for declaration and permanent injunction in 
the Honourable High Court of Sindh, seeking the declaration that the Company is lawful owner of the said 
property and that the undated notice issued by the Pakistan Railways for sealing and taking over the 
possession of the said property is of no legal effect. The matter is at hearing stage and the legal consultant 
of the Company is of the view that the title of the Company stands clear and there is no likelihood of 
unfavourable outcome.

24.2 The Company has filed a Petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court, dated 30 March 2008, against order passed 
by the Board of Trustees, Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) for upholding the unjustified additional 
demand of payment raised by EOBI for accounting years 2000-2001 and 2001-2002 amounting to Rs. 50.83 
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 50.83 million). This demand was raised after lapse of more than two years although 
the records and books of the Company were verified by the EOBI to their entire satisfaction and finalisation of 
all matters by EOBI. The Honourable Sindh High Court has restrained EOBI from taking any action or proceedings 
against the Company. The legal consultant of the Company is of the view that the Company has a reasonable 
case and is expecting favourable outcome therefore, no provision has been made there against.

24.3 The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide SRO 491(I)/2016 dated June 30, 2016 made amendments in SRO 
1125(I)/2011 dated December 31, 2011 for disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material. The Company 
has challenged the disallowance of input tax adjustments on packing material in the Sindh High Court through 
suit No. 2381/2016 dated November 10, 2016 against Federation of Pakistan and others. The matter is pending 
before the Honourable Court for final outcome, however provision has been made amounting to Rs. 431.88 
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 431.88 million) in these unconsolidated financial statements.

24.4 The Company's review petition challenging the decision of High Court against the GIDC Act, 2015 had been dismissed 
by the Supreme Court of Pakistan while also suspending the billing of levy from August 2020. The court had ordered 
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 to pay the GIDC dues under the GIDC Act, 2015 with retrospective effect from December 15, 2011, in 48 
monthly installments starting from August 2020. Total amount of the cess works out to Rs. 3.69 billion on 
the basis that Company has both Industrial and Captive connections having different GIDC rates. However, 
Oil and Gas Development Authority has ruled out that the consumers having supply of natural gas for 
industrial use and having in-house electricity generation facility for self-consumption do not fall under the 
definition of Captive as well as the Honourable Sindh High Court has also decided in favor of the Company 
on the issue of Captive connections for self consumption. Therefore, management, based on the legal advice 
believes that maximum liability of the Company in respect of GIDC will be Rs. 2.3 billion. The Company in 
September 2020 filed a suit in Honourable Sindh High Court challenging the chargeability of GIDC. The 
Honourable Sindh High Court granted stay order and restrained Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) from 
taking any coercive action against non-payment of installments of GIDC. However, the management on 
prudent basis has maintained a liability of Rs. 3.69 billion (June 30, 2024: Rs. 3.69 billion) in these unconsolidated 
financial statements.

24.5 The Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Appeals Inland Revenue against the Order-In-Original 
vide No. 04/176 of 2023 dated August 24, 2023 whereby demand of Rs. 30.5 million along with penalty and 
default surcharge on the issue of dual adjustment of input tax claimed during the tax periods from September 
2017 to May 2022. The Company has claimed the said invoices but FBR has already deferred the input tax 
amount against the said service invoices during the process of sales tax refund and the Company has not 
received any input tax amount against said service invoices. Department also validates / verify the same 
deferred invoices with FBR system. The matter is at hearing stage and the legal consultant of the Company 
is of the view that the title of the Company stands clear and there is no likelihood of unfavourable outcome.

24.6 For the tax year 2016, FBR issued income tax amended order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 on August 21, 2019, wherein certain provisions and expenses aggregating to Rs. 338.2 million (having 
tax impact of Rs. 108.2 million) were added back to the income and super tax of Rs. 42.8 million was also 
levied. The Company contested the matter in appeal and Commissioner Income Tax (Appeal) passed an 
order in favor of the Company allowing the expenses aggregating to Rs. 290 million. However, Department 
had filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal on September 17, 2019 against the order which is still pending. The 
legal consultant believes that the aforementioned matter will be ultimately decided in favor of the Company. 
Accordingly, no provision is required to be made in the provision for taxation, in excess of the adjustment 
of Rs. 8 million recorded, in these unconsolidated financial statements.

24.7 "The Federal Government, through the Finance Act, 2019, amended Section 65B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, reducing the rate of tax credit from 10% to 5% on investments made in the extension, expansion, 
balancing, modernization, and replacement (BMR) of plant and machinery for Tax Year 2019. Further, the 
availability of such tax credit was curtailed to June 30, 2019, whereas under the un-amended law, it was 
available up to June 30, 2021.

 The Company, along with other petitioners, challenged the aforesaid amendment before the Honourable 
Sindh High Court through constitutional petitions filed for Tax Years 2019, 2020, and 2021. The Honourable 
Court granted interim relief, allowing the petitioners to file their income tax returns in accordance with the 
un-amended provisions of Section 65B. Consequently, the Company claimed tax credit at the rate of 10% in 
its income tax returns for the above-mentioned tax years.

 On February 07, 2023, the Honourable Sindh High Court decided the matter, holding that tax credit under 
Section 65B at the rate of 10% was allowable, subject to the condition that the letter of credit for import of 
plant and machinery was established on or before June 30, 2019 and the installation was completed on or 
before June 30, 2021.

 The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) preferred an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court, contending 
that the applicable rate of tax credit should be restricted to 5% instead of 10%. Vide judgment dated 18 
September 2024, the Honourable Supreme Court upheld the allowance of 10% tax credit only in respect of 
plant and machinery imported and installed up to 30 June 2019, while disallowing the tax credit for Tax Year 
2020. Since the Company had derecognised the investment tax credit in previous years, now as a result of 
the aforementioned judgement of the Supreme Court, the Company has recorded adjustment of Rs. 470.177 
million, for the said judgement in these unconsolidated financial statements (refer note 33).

24.8 The Company, along with other petitioners, has challenged the retrospective increase of the rates of super 
tax for tax year 2023 in the Honourable Islamabad High Court through Constitutional Petition. The Honourable 
High Court has passed an interim order dated October 03, 2023 allowing the petitioners not to pay Super 
Tax in excess of the rate prescribed in the amendment under challenge and has restrained tax authorities, 
from taking any coercive action against the Company. On March 15, 2024, the Honourable Islamabad High 
Court decided the case in favour of the Company. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed an appeal before 
Divisional Bench of Islamabad High Court against the above judgment which is pending for hearing. The 
amount of super tax involved is Rs. 946 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 421 million).

 The Supreme court, vide Order dated March 23, 2025 directed that all the petitioners and appeal pending 
at different High court of the Country regarding Super Tax should be transferred to the Supreme Court of 
Pakistan. Accordingly, the above mentioned case has also been, transferred to the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

24.9 The Company along with several other petitioners had filed a Constitution Petition on January 16, 2020 
against Karachi Water & Sewerage Board (KWSB) and others in the Honourable Sindh High Court against 
notification dated October 30, 2019 issued by the KWSB whereby water charges were increased from Rs. 
242 to Rs. 313 per 1000 gallons. Subsequently, the Company along with other petitioners filed petition against 
KWSB notifications for the years 2021 to 2024 of water rate enhancement. The Honourable Sindh High Court 
has restrained KWSB from taking any coercive action against the Company and allowed the Company to 
pay the bills as per old rates. As required under the Order, the Company provided banker's verified Cheques 
each month aggregating to Rs. 337.89 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 211.72 million) for the rate difference. After 
detailed hearing now the judgment has been reserved. The company, however has maintained full provision 
in these unconsolidated financial statements, on prudence basis.

24.10 The Company, along with other petitioners, has challenged the imposition of Infrastructure Cess by the 
relevant Excise and Taxation Officer, Karachi through petition dated May 28, 2011. Furthermore, the Company 
has also filed petition against Sindh Infrastructure Cess levied through the Sindh Finance Act, 1994. During 
the year end June 30, 2018 the Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess Act, 2017 (the 
Act) was also enacted by the Province of Sindh against which the Company also had filed constitutional 
petition dated October 14, 2017 and Honourable High Court of Sindh had allowed interim relief to the 
Company till final judgment has been allowed in other similar petitions. However, based on the advice of 
legal consultant, full amount has been provided in these unconsolidated financial statements. During the 
year, no progress was made in court proceedings. The Bank Guarantee of Rs. 2,107 million as a security was 
given (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,477 million).

24.11 The Company along with several other companies filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High Court challenging 
the notification via SRO No. (I) / 2015 dated August 31, 2015 regarding increase in the gas tariff, on November 
16, 2015, which was decided by the Honourable Sindh High Court in favor of the Company and thereafter, 
the Government filed an appeal in the Divisional Bench of the Honourable Sindh High
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Court against the decision, which has also been decided in favor of the Company. As a matter of prudence, 
the Company has maintained a full provision of the said notification amounting to Rs. 159.9 million (June 30, 
2024: Rs. 159.9 million) in the unconsolidated financial statements. OGRA issued further notifications on 
December 30, 2016, September 17, 2018, October 23, 2020 enhancing the rates. The Company, along with others, 
has filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the said notifications.

 For notification dated December 30, 2016, Honourable Sindh High Court granted interim relief and instructed 
SSGC to revise the bills at previous rate and instructed the Company to deposit the differential amount 
cheques with Nazir Sindh High Court as security. During the year, the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh 
High Court has decided the case in favour of the Company vide judgment dated February 3, 2025. 
Simultaneously, the Divisional Bench of Sindh High Court vide Judgment dated March 10, 2025, ordered 
that the Nazir of Sindh High Court returns the cheques of Rs. 250.67 million which was deposited with 
Nazir, which have been received back by the Company. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against 
the judgment.

 For notification dated October 23, 2020, on February 18, 2024, the Honourable Sindh High Court decided 
the case against the Company. The Company filed an appeal in the Divisional Bench of the Honourable 
Sindh High Court against the decision, which has also been decided against the Company dated March 
28 2024. Now, the Company has filed appeal in the Supreme Court against the judgment passed by the 
Divisional Bench of Honourable Sindh High Court and the case is currently pending for hearing.

 On February 15, 2023, OGRA issued another notification revising the gas tariff with retrospective effect 
from January 01, 2023. The Company, along with several other companies, has filed a suit in the Honourable 
Sindh High Court challenging the increase in the gas tariff with retrospective effect. The Honourable Sindh 
High Court has restrained SSGC from taking any coercive action against the Company. As a matter of 
prudence, the Company has maintained a full provision of the said notification amounting to Rs. 174.4 
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 174.4 million) in the unconsolidated financial statements.

 On November 8, 2023, OGRA issued notification and increased the gas rate retrospectively from November 
1, 2023. The Company along with others filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the 
notification challenging the increase of gas tariff and its retrospective application from November 1, 2023. 
While the case is currently pending for hearing before the Honourable Sindh High Court, however, the 
Company has paid increased amount to SSGC with the understanding that incase the decision comes in 
favour of the Company, the SSGC will either refund the excess amount or it will adjust in future bills post 
favourable decision.

While awaiting the decision for above case, on February 15, 2024, SSGC issued another notification to further 
increase the gas tariff with retrospective application from February 1, 2024, where the Company again challenged 
its retrospective charge from February 1, 2024. Subsequently, the Honourable Sindh High Court decided the 
case of retrospective application under above notification in favour of the Company, which has been challenged 
by SSGC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan and is currently, pending for hearing.

24.12 The Company along with several other companies filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
challenging the notification via SRO No. (I) / 2015 dated August 31, 2015 for charging of captive power tariff 
instead of Industry tariff rate to the Company, as the Company is producing electricity entirely for its own 
consumption, on November 16, 2015, which was decided by the Honourable Sindh High Court in favor of 
the Company and thereafter, the Government filed an appeal in the Divisional Bench of the Honourable 
Sindh High Court against the decision, which has also been decided in favor of the Company. SSGC has 
filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgement. As a matter of prudence, the Company has 
maintained a full provision of the said notification amounting to Rs. 237.6 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 237.6 
million) in the unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company along with several other companies has filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
challenging the notifications dated December 30, 2016, September 17, 2018 and October 23, 2020 for 
charging of captive power tariff instead of Industry tariff rate to the Company, as the Company is producing 
electricity entirely for its own consumption. The Honourable Sindh High Court has passed the interim 
orders for not charging the Captive power tariff rates and consequently restrained SSGC from taking any 
coercive action against the Company.

 During the year, for OGRA Notification dated on December 30, 2016, the Divisional Bench of Honorable 
Sindh High Court has decided the case in favour of the Company vide judgment dated February 03, 2025. 
SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgment. Simultaneously, the Divisional Bench 
of Sindh High Court vide Judgment dated March 10, 2025, ordered that the Nazir of Sindh High Court 
returns the cheques of Rs. 388.57 million which was deposited with Nazir, which have been received back 
by the Company. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgment.

 OGRA issued another notification dated October 04, 2018 revising the tariff effective September 27, 2018, 
and subsequent to this notification, the Company paid the bills accordingly at the specified rates.

24.13 The Company along with other Companies, have challenged the vires of the Off the Grid (Captive Power 
Plants) Levy Ordinance, 2025 promulgated on January 30, 2025 and the notifications dated March 7, 2025 
issued by the Ministry of Energy in purported exercise of the powers conferred by section 3(1) of the 
Impugned Ordinance, which imposes a levy, to be notified by Ministry of Energy, on the consumption of 
natural gas or RLNG by captive power plants over and above the sale price of such natural gas or RLNG. 
The above case is still pending before the Honourable Islamabad High Court. The Company, along with 
others, filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the notification challenging with its 
retrospective implication from February 1, 2025. The Honourable Sindh High Court has passed the interim 
orders for not charging the relevant amount for the month of February 2025. The Bank Guarantee of Rs. 
138.59 million (June 30, 2024 Rs. Nil) as a security was given , while awaiting the decision for above case. 
      

24.14 Guarantees and others

 (a) Guarantees of Rs. 5,464 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,542 million) have been  issued by  banks on 
behalf of the Company which are secured by pari passu hypothecation charge over stores and 
spares, stock-in-trade, trade debts and other receivables. These guarantees include guarantees 
issued by related parties amounting to Rs. 2,980 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,154 million).

 (b) Post dated cheques of Rs. 30,298 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 25,580 million)  are issued to Custom Authorities 
in respect of duties on imported items availed on the basis of consumption and export plans.

 (c) Bills discounted of Rs. 11,220 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 13,451 million), including bills discounted 
from related parties amounting to Rs. 3,643 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,470 million). 

 (d) Corporate guarantees of Rs. 264 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 237 million), Rs. 1,129 million (June 30, 
2024: 1,106 million) and Rs. 256 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 251 million) have been issued to various 
banks in favor of subsidiary companies - GTM (Europe) Limited - UK, Gul Ahmed International FZC - 
UAE and Sky Home 

  Corp - USA respectively.
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 24.15 Commitments

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

   Capital expenditure for plant and machineries   3,892,512   761,382 

   Other than capital expenditure 24.15.1  22,222,457   14,543,122 

   Forward foreign exchange contracts 24.15.2  9,183,718   21,344,805 

  24.15.1 Other than capital expenditure includes commitments for purchase of raw materials and stores and spares.

 24.15.2 This includes forward foreign exchange contracts amounting to USD 30 million (2024: USD 33 million),  

 equivalent to Rs. 8,646 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 9,543 million) obtained under pre-shipment exports.  

 The Company is obligated to provide export documents against such amount. The above liability has  

 been appropriately recorded under Export Facilitation Scheme and is disclosed in note  21 of these   

 unconsolidated financial statements.

 25 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Export sales

  Direct   109,264,983   102,286,261 

  Indirect   43,991,770   35,374,474 

     153,256,753   137,660,735 

  Export rebate   -     573,777 

  Trade and other discount   (1,121,015)  (801,259)

  Commission   (2,329,273)  (2,655,325)

  Sales tax   (6,712,615)  (3,343,155)

     143,093,850   131,434,773 

  Local sales 25.1  17,996,290   14,299,504 

  Brokerage    (435,758)  (407,153)

  Sales tax   (2,749,663)  (2,181,280)

     14,810,869   11,711,071 

     157,904,719   143,145,844 

25.1 Local sales include revenue from in-house manufacturing services on behalf of third party of Rs. 1,178  
 million (2024: Rs. 772 million).

 25.2 Information with respect to disaggregration of revenue by internal segment and geographical location  
 is disclosed in note 35 and 36 respectively.

 25.3 All revenue earned is from shariah permissible business.

 26. COST OF SALES

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Opening stock of finished goods   7,688,200   6,883,952 

  Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 & 26.3  141,829,329   126,759,070 

     149,517,529   133,643,022 

  Closing stock of finished goods 9  (10,591,231)  (7,688,200)

     138,926,298   125,954,822 

 26.1 Cost of goods manufactured

   Raw materials consumed 26.2  95,926,405   86,694,918 

   Other material and conversion cost    9,768,021   8,515,916 

   Stores and spares consumed    143,443   384,074 

   Salaries, wages and benefits  28.1  17,421,083   15,676,029 

   Fuel, power and water    13,536,651   12,009,865 

   Insurance    265,317   212,099 

   Repairs and maintenance    2,037,827   2,277,364 

   Depreciation and amortisation 4.1.1 & 5.1  4,342,145   4,267,549 

   Reversal of provision for slow moving - stores and spares  8.1  (60,103)  (151,739)

   Reversal of provison for slow moving -  stock-in-trade  9.1  (112,009)  (78,792)

   Other manufacturing expenses    770,263   433,392 

       144,039,043   130,240,675 

   Work-in-process (WIP) 

   Opening stock - WIP    8,967,188   5,485,583 

   Closing stock - WIP  9  (11,176,902)  (8,967,188)

       (2,209,714)  (3,481,605)

       141,829,329   126,759,070 

 26.2 Raw materials consumed

   Opening stock - raw material    30,975,136   25,979,360 

   Purchases during the year    103,468,191   91,690,694 

   Closing stock - raw material  9  (38,516,922)  (30,975,136)

       95,926,405   86,694,918

26.3 The Company carries out certain manufacturing, administrative and other activities for Ideas (Private)

 Limited,   a subsidiary of the Company, which is reimbursed to the Company. During the year, manufacturing 

activity amounting to Rs. 61.01 million (2024: Rs. 57.96 million) was carrried out by the Company.
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27. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Salaries, wages and benefits  28.1  893,380   813,955 

  Freight and shipment expenses    2,138,940   1,730,054 

  Advertisement and publicity    419,272   319,255 

  Depreciation  4.1.1  87   100 

  Export development surcharge    282,183   283,219 

  Other expenses    71,854   100,882 

     3,805,716   3,247,465 

28. ADMINISTRATIVE COST

  Salaries, wages and benefits  28.1  1,730,278   1,588,148 

  Rent and ancillary charges  28.2  139,190   123,114 

  Repairs and maintenance    14,767   28,296 

  Vehicle up keep and maintenance    561,232   587,009 

  Utilities    4,154   3,992 

  Traveling and conveyance     647,031   413,072 

  Printing and stationery    78,647   86,438 

  Communication     247,361   251,264 

  Legal and consultancy fees    87,165   96,327 

  Depreciation and amortisation  4.1.1 & 5.1  233,776   204,270 

  Auditor's remuneration  28.4 17,578   22,641 

  Donations  28.5 & 28.6  119,047   62,095 

  Insurance    70,540   60,721 

  Expected credit loss  10.4  (33,058)  (229,760)

  Other expenses    187,401   173,840 

     4,105,109   3,471,467 

 28.1 Salaries, wages and benefits

Cost of  Selling and Administrative                          Total

 sales distribution costs costs

 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

 Salaries, wages   16,703,102   15,035,100   855,708   780,098   1,674,299   1,536,326   19,233,109   17,351,524

    and benefits         

      

Retirement benefits     

Gratuity (note 18.2)  264,743   238,199   -     -     -     -     264,743   238,199

 Provident fund  346,978   306,483   37,633   33,840   55,854   51,722   440,465   392,045 

   611,721   544,682   37,633   33,840   55,854   51,722   705,208   630,244

Staff compensated

    absences   106,260   96,247   39   17   125   100   106,424   96,364 

   17,421,083   15,676,029   893,380   813,955   1,730,278   1,588,148   20,044,741   18,078,132

 28.2 This represents rent expense which comprises of variable rents, rent of certain short term and low value  

  leases, ancillary and maintenance charges incurred in respect of lease premises.

 28.3 The Company carries out certain manufacturing, administrative and other activities for Ideas (Private)  

  Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, which is reimbursed to the Company. During the year, administrative  

  activity amounting of Rs. 11.53 million (2024: Rs. 65.63 million) was carried out by the Company.

    28.4 Auditor's remuneration

  2025  2024

          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

  Audit fee   10,800   10,800 

  Fee for review of condensed interim financial statements   2,160   2,160 

  Fee for audit of consolidated financial statements   1,560   1,560 

  Review fee of statement of compliance with code of corporate governance  200   480 

  Other certification fee   400   2,200 

  Out of pocket expenses   2,458   5,441 

     17,578   22,641 

 28.5 Donations include donations to the following organizations in which a director is a trustee:

 Name of Donee Interest in Donee Name of  Director 2025 2024

          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

 Habib University Foundation Common Directorship Mr. Mohomed Bashir  4,002  8,785

 Landhi Association Of  Patron in Chief Mr. Ziad Bashir 400   250

 Trade & Industry     

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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 31.2 The finance cost is exclusive of amount of Rs. 520.91 million (2024: Rs. 1,296.18 million) attributed to  

  Ideas (Private) Limited, a subsidiary company.

  2025  2024

          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------

 32. LEVIES          1,688,647   2,043,969 

 32.1 This represents minimum tax paid (2024: Final tax) under sections 154 and 113 of ITO, representing levy  

  in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/ IAS 37.

 33. TAXATION

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

 Current tax   438,490   27,890 

 Prior tax 24.7  (489,747)  -   

    (51,257)  27,890 

 Deferred tax income 33.3 -     (262,234)

  33.1  (51,257)  (234,344)

33.1 The Company is subject to Minimum Tax Regime under section 113 and section 154 of the Income Tax   

  Ordinance, 2001, (2024: Final tax under section 154) for local and export sales. Accordingly, the   

  relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these unconsolidated   

  financial statements.

 33.2 The aggregate of minimum tax and income tax, amounting to Rs. 2,127.137 million (2024: Rs. 2,071.859  

  million) represents tax liability of the Company calculated under the relevant provisions of the ITO, 2001.

 33.3 As per the guidelines issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan on application of IAS 12  

  'Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes', no deferred tax is required  

  to be booked as the Company, based on the projections of taxable income, is expected to be taxed  

  under Minimum Tax u/s 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the foreseeable future. Hence the  

  Company has not recorded any deferred tax liability as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024.

 34. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted  

Note          2025  2024

  Profit after taxation (Rupees in 000)   4,022,774   4,727,802 

   Weighted average outstanding shares (Number) 14.2  740,059,458   740,059,458 

  Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)   5.44   6.39 
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 28.6 During the year, the Company made donations amounting to Rs. 100 million to Indus Hospital & Health  
  Network (2024: Rs. 43 million to Saylani Welfare International Trust).

 29. OTHER EXPENSE

  2025  2024
Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF) 19.3  295,120   345,459 
  Workers' welfare fund (WWF) 19.4  121,537   117,148 
  Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 4.1.2  35,609   28,533 
      452,266   491,140 

 30. OTHER INCOME

  Income from non-financial assets and others
  Scrap sales   3,004   -   
  Government grant  17  28,251   32,088 
  Others   1,008   -   
     32,263   32,088 
  Income from financial assets
  Mark-up income on TFC 30.1  11,819   16,481 
  Dividend income   -     1,462 
  Other markup income 30.2  122,538   72,909 
  Exchange gain from currency realisation   848,806   1,217,615 
  Exchange gain from derivative financial instruments 30.3  105,037   642,378 
     1,088,200   1,950,845 
     1,120,463   1,982,933 

 30.1 This includes profit earned on Shariah Compliant investment on TFCs.

 30.2 This includes markup income earned on interest bearing loan to employees (note 7.1) and Term Deposit  
  Receipts (note 11.1).

 30.3 This includes unrealised exchange gain earned on coventional derivative instruments during the year  
  amounting to Rs. 64.9 million. (June 30, 2024: Rs. 332.31 million).

 31. FINANCE COSTS

  2025  2024
Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

  Markup / profit on:    
  - Short term borrowings 31.1 & 31.2  3,898,992   3,497,277 
  - Long term financing   710,319   1,013,013 
  - Workers' profit participation fund 19.3  22,867   3,954 
  Bank and other charges    1,443,451   912,212 
     6,075,629   5,426,456 

 31.1 Finance cost includes Rs. 790 million and 1,468 million (2024: Rs. 241.8 million and Rs. 1,183 million) in  
  long term financing and short term borrowing respectively under Shariah Compliant mode of financing.



34.1 There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Company, as the Company has no potential 
ordinary shares.

35. SEGMENT INFORMATION
 The Company's operations has been divided into three segments are given below based on the nature of 

process and internal reporting. Following are the reportable business segments:    
     

 a) Spinning: Production of different qualities of yarn using both natural and artificial fibres.

 b)  Home Textile: Production of different types and qualities of products falling under the definition
 of home textile.

 c)  Others: Weaving, Fiber Bleaching, Knitting, Apparel, Yarn dyeing and Dyed yarn fabric etc.

 Transactions among the business segments are recorded at cost.
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 38. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2025
  Chief Executive Director Executives Total
 ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------

 Managerial remuneration   16,000   12,000   1,496,804   1,524,804 
 Performance bonus   1,333   1,000   124,734   127,067 
 House rent allowance   6,400   4,800   598,722   609,922 
 Other allowances   1,600   1,200   408,045   410,845 
 Contribution to provident fund   1,333   1,000   119,402   121,735 
    26,666   20,000   2,747,707   2,794,373 
     
 Number of persons  1  1  598  600 

2024
  Chief Executive Director Executives Total
 ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------

 Managerial remuneration   16,000   12,000   1,285,743   1,313,743 
 Performance Bonus   1,333   1,000   84,436   86,769 
 House rent allowance   6,400   4,800   514,297   525,497 
 Other allowances   1,600   1,200   407,250   410,050 
 Contribution to provident fund   1,333   1,000   102,592   104,925 
    26,666   20,000   2,394,318   2,440,984 
     
  Number of persons  1  1  483  485 

 38.1 The Chief Executive and Directors are provided with Company maintained vehicles and are also   
  covered under Company's Health Insurance Plan along with their dependents. The Chief Executive is  
  also provided with free residential telephones. 

 38.2 Aggregate amount charged during the year in respect of meeting fee to Four Non-Executive Directors  
  and the Chairman was Rs. 8.6 million (2024: Four Non Executive Directors and Chairman amounting to  
  Rs. 7.7 million).

 38.3 Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary   
  exceeds Rs.1.2 million in a financial year.

 35.3 Unallocated items represent those assets and liabilities which are common to all segments and these  
  include investment in subsidiaries, long term deposits, other receivables, deferred liabilities, certain  
  common borrowing and other corporate assets and liabilities.

 35.4 Information about major customer
   Sales to major customer whose revenue exceeds 10% of gross sales is Rs. 41,963 million (2024: Rs. 34,250 million)

 36. INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

 Revenue Non-current assets  

2025 2024  2025 2024  2025 2024

---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------

 Pakistan   52,525,782   44,149,543   54,650,566   53,765,582 
 Germany   32,265,194   30,637,887   -     -   
 United States   13,090,843   13,903,167   -     -   
 United Kingdom   11,888,340   11,462,356   -     -   
 Italy   8,872,670   9,268,684   -     -   
 France   7,571,900   7,146,621   -     -   
 Netherlands   7,021,034   4,802,197   -     -   
 Denmark   6,020,894   5,228,578   -     -   
 Poland   5,469,602   5,058,486   -     -   
 Sweden   3,654,145   2,125,559   -     -   
 Spain   3,009,965   2,944,500   -     -   
 Other countries   10,400,396   9,708,226   58,450   58,450 
    161,790,765   146,435,804   54,709,016   53,824,032 

 37 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  2025  2024

Note          -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------- 

 Cash and bank balances 13  166,429   375,876 
 Running finance 21  (2,478,795)  (5,142,246)
     (2,312,366)  (4,766,370)

 37.1 Changes Arising From Financing Activities

 Note ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------

  Long-term finance and
  deferred government grant 16 & 17  17,928,429  4,700,000  (3,283,119) -     19,345,310 
  Short term borrowings - net 21  36,863,256   12,815,653   -     -     49,678,909 

Financing cash
inflows, net

Financing
cash outflows

Non-cash
changes 20252024

Note ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------
  Long-term finance and
  deferred government grant 16 & 17  23,348,187   358,000  (5,777,758)  -     17,928,429 
  Short term borrowings - net 21  28,459,269   8,403,987   -     -     36,863,256 

Financing cash
inflows, net

Financing
cash outflows

Non-cash
changes 20242023
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39. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES   

 Related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associated companies, companies where directors also hold directorship,   
 directors of the Company and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries   
 out transactions with various related parties as per agreed rates. Details of related party transactions other than those  
 disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

 Name of the related party  Relationship with Transactions  2025 2024
   related party during the year 

 -------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------

 Ideas (Private) Limited Subsidiary company Sale of goods and services  1,781,679   1,403,220 

 Gul Ahmed International Limited Subsidiary company Sale of goods  -     7,603 
 (FZC) - UAE

 GTM (Europe) Limited - UK Subsidiary company Sale of goods  4,273,298   3,029,350  
    Sales through subsidiaries acting as agents  5,285,156   3,234,764 
    Commission  191,888   92,968 

 Vantona Home Limited Subsidiary company Sales through subsidiaries acting as agents  169,910   127,431 

 GTM USA Corporation Subsidiary company Sale of goods  762,588   792,209 

 Sky Home Corp.  - USA Subsidiary company Sale of goods  659,905   497,444 
    Commission  380,082   377,096 

 Grand Industries (Pvt) Limited Associated company Rent expense  600   2,648 

 Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited Associated company Purchase of goods  106,868   196,859 
    Services rendered  -     15,000 

 Win Star (Private) Limited Associated company Purchase of goods  31,893   31,169 

 Haji Ali Mohammad Foundation Associated company Rent paid  960   960 

 The Pakistan Business Council Associated company Fees paid  2,500   2,500 

 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Associated company Bills discounted  17,804,583   23,026,343 
    Finance cost  203,159   252,719 

 Askari Bank Limited Associated company Bills discounted  4,554,017   2,361,162 
    Finance cost  269,052   414,904 

 Samba Bank Limited Associated company Bills discounted  420,155   169,874 
    Finance cost  58,251   81,167 

 Standard Chartered Pakistan Limited Associated company Bills discounted  3,915,018   1,696,905 
    Finance cost  432,123   468,738 

 Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited Associated company Company's contribution to provident fund  440,465   392,046 
 Employees Provident Fund

 International Cotton Association Associated company Fees paid  693   643 

 Pakistan Textile Council Associated company Membership fees  2,500   1,250 

 International Textile  Associated company Fees paid  2,172   2,222 
 Manufacturers Federation

 Landhi Association of  Associated company Fees paid  60   60 
 Trade and Industry

 39.1 There were no transactions with the directors of the Company and the key management personnel
  other than under the terms of employment. Loans and remuneration of the directors, key
  management personnel and executives are disclosed in notes 7 and 38 respectively.

 39.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have 
   arrangements /agreements in place.

 Company name Country of Incorporation Basis of relationship  % of shareholding
   

Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited Pakistan Parent company 55.86%
 Ideas (Private) Limited Pakistan Wholly owned subsidiary 100%
 Gul Ahmed Ecotex (Private) Limited Pakistan Wholly owned subsidiary 100%
 Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Private) Limited Pakistan Wholly owned subsidiary 100%
 Gul Ahmed Circular FabrIcs (Private) Limited Pakistan Wholly owned subsidiary 100%
 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (HMBL) Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Askari Bank Limited (ABL) Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Samba Bank Limited (SBL) Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Standard Chartered Pakistan Limited (SCPL) Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited Pakistan Common directorship 2.99%
 Arwen Tech. (Private) Limited Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Win Star (Private) Limited Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Hub Liquid Terminal (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary of Parent company - 
 TPL Properties Limited Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Habib University Foundation Pakistan Common directorship - 
 The Pakistan Business Council Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Pakistan Textile Council Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Ghafooria Industries (Private) Limited Pakistan Group company and common directorship 2.17%
 LITE Development and  Pakistan Common directorship - 
 Management Company
 Grand Industries (Private) Limited Pakistan Group company and major shareholders 7.86%
 Haji Ali Mohammad Foundation Pakistan Member of Foundation - 
 Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited Pakistan Holding company - 
 Gul Ahmed Textile Mills  Pakistan Parent company - 
 Limited Employees
 Provident Fund Trust Pakistan Employees fund 0.42%
 Gul Ahmed International  UAE Wholly owned subsidiary 100%
 Limited (FZC) - UAE
 GTM (Europe) Limited UK Wholly owned ultimate subsidiary 100%
 GTM USA Corp.  USA Wholly owned ultimate subsidiary 100%
 Sky Home Corp. USA Wholly owned ultimate subsidiary 100%
 Vantona Home Limited UK Wholly owned ultimate subsidiary 100%
 JCCO 406 Limited UK Wholly owned ultimate subsidiary 100%
 International Cotton Association United Kingdom Common directorship - 
 Mohomed Bashir - Director 0.07%
 Mohammed Zaki Bashir - Director 0.34%
 Zain Bashir - Director 0.34%
 Ziad Bashir - Director 0.00%
 Ehsan A. Malik - Director 0.00%
 Zeeba Ansar - Director 0.00%
 Kamran Y. Mirza - Director 0.00%

 Production is lower as compared to capacity due to variation in production mix and various technical and
market factors.

 The production capacity and its comparison with actual production of Processing, Home Textile and Apparel 
segments is impracticable to determine due to varying manufacturing processes, run length of order lots and 
various other factors.

40. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 

        2025        2024
                                                   

   Capacity Production Working Capacity Production Working

 Spinning Kgs. 98,277 92,433  3 shifts 98,277 93,227 3 shifts
  (20 Counts converted)

 Weaving Sq. meters  239,649  219,048  3 shifts 234,987 213,103 3 shifts
  (50 Picks converted)

---------------------------------------------------- (in ‘000) ----------------------------------------------------

Unit
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43. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

 Financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at June 30, 2025 are as follows:

2025
Interest/mark-up/profit bearing Non interest/mark-up/profit bearing

  Maturity upto Maturity  Sub total Maturity upto Maturity Sub total Total
   one year  after one year  one year after one year    

Note  ----------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------
 Financial assets

 At amortised cost
 Long term investments 6  -     70,000   70,000   -     -     -    70,000 
 Long term loans 7  8,087   11,198   19,285   108,268   10,289   118,557   137,842 
 Other receivables 11  1,019,464   -     1,019,464   332,637   -     332,637   1,352,101 
 Long term deposits   -     -     -     -     146,240   146,240   146,240  
 Trade debts 10  1,022,892   -     1,022,892   21,132,670   -     21,132,670   22,155,562 
 Cash and bank balances 13  -     -     -     166,429   -     166,429   166,429 

At Fair value through profit or loss
 Short term investments   -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Forward contracts   -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
    2,050,443   81,198   2,131,641   21,740,004   156,529   21,896,533   24,028,174 

 Financial liabilities
 At amortised cost
 Long term financing 16  3,128,180   16,142,475   19,270,655   -     -     -     19,270,655 

Trade and other payables (other than
fair value of forward contracts) 19  -     -     -     22,683,712   -     22,683,712   22,683,712 

 Accrued mark-up / profit   -     -     -     788,421   -     788,421   788,421 
 Short term borrowings 21  52,157,704   -     52,157,704   -     -     -     52,157,704 
 Unclaimed dividend   -     -     -     9,365   -     9,365   9,365 
 Unpaid dividend  23  -     -     -     23,505   -     23,505   23,505 

At Fair value through profit or loss
Fair value of forward contracts 19  -     -     -     64,902   -     64,902   64,902 

    55,285,884   16,142,475   71,428,359   23,569,905   -     23,569,905   94,998,264 

 41. NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED

2025 2024
           ------------ (Number) ------------ 

  As at  15,496   16,082 
  Average during the year   15,802   15,907 

 42. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 The investment out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218
 of the Act, and the conditions specified thereunder.

2024
Interest/mark-up/profit bearing Non interest/mark-up/profit bearing

  Maturity upto Maturity  Sub total Maturity upto Maturity Sub total Total
   one year  after one year  one year after one year  

Note  ----------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------
 Financial assets         

 At amortised cost
 Long term investments 6  -     70,000   70,000   -     -     -     70,000 
 Long term loans 7  23,434   16,125   39,559   49,711   1,814   51,525   91,084 
 Other receivables 

(other than forward contracts) 11  621,652   -     621,652   176,322   -     176,322   797,974 
 Long term deposits   -     -     -     -     145,595   145,595   145,595 
 Trade debts 10  5,676,955   -     5,676,955   18,890,152   -     18,890,152   24,567,107 
 Cash and bank balances 13  -     -     -     375,876   -     375,876   375,876 

At Fair value through profit or loss
 Short term investments   -     -     -     1,243   -     1,243   1,243 
 Forward contracts   -     -     -     332,315   -     332,315   332,315 
    6,322,041   86,125   6,408,166   19,825,619   147,409   19,973,028   26,381,194 
 Financial liabilities
 At amortised cost
 Long term financing 16  3,233,936   14,591,587   17,825,523   -     -     -     17,825,523 
 Trade and other payables 19  -     -     -     23,662,828   -     23,662,828   23,662,828 
 Accrued mark-up / profit   -     -     -     1,391,643   -     1,391,643   1,391,643 
 Short term borrowings 21  42,005,502   -     42,005,502   -     -     -     42,005,502 
 Unclaimed dividend   -     -     -     9,840   -     9,840   9,840 
 Unpaid dividend  23  -     -     -     23,505   -     23,505   23,505 

 At Fair value through profit or loss
 Fair value of forward contracts 19  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
    45,239,438   14,591,587   59,831,025   25,087,816   -     25,087,816   84,918,841

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

   Financial risk management objectives

   The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, markup risk   
   and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the   
   unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

   Risk Management is carried out under policies and principles approved by the Board. All treasury related transactions are  
   carried out within the parameters of these policies and principles.

   The information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risk, the Company's objectives, policies and   
   procedures for measuring and managing risk and the Company's management of capital are as follows:  

44.1 Market risks

   Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes  
   in market interest / markups rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,   
   change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the market. Market   
   risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, markup risk and other price risk. The Company is exposed to currency   
   risk and markup risk only.

a) Currency risk

   Foreign currency risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate   
   because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly from future economic transactions or   
   receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign exchange.    

   Exposure to foreign currency risk

   The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign exchange fluctuations due to the following financial assets and liabilities:

 Financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are as follows:
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  2025  2024
  --------- (Equivalent USD 000) ---------
  
  Trade debts  28,461   30,194 
  Cash and bank balances   81   17 
  Short term borrowing   (83,529)  (43,564)
  Trade and other payables   (627)  (429)
  Net exposure   (55,614)  (13,782)

 The Company manages foreign currency risk through close monitoring of the exchange rates, adjusting  
 net exposure and obtaining forward covers where necessary.

  2025  2024
    
  ------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------

  Foreign currency commitments and guarantees outstanding at year end are as follows:
  USD   124,871  96,879 
  EURO   500   500 
  AED  14,600   14,600 
  GBP   250   250 

  The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

  Rupee per USD
  Average rate (Selling / Buying)  279.6 / 279.1 283.4 / 283.0 
  Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  283.9 / 283.5 278.6 / 278.1

  Rupee per EURO
  Average rate (Selling / Buying)  304.1 / 303.7 306.7 / 306.2
  Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  333.1 / 332.6 297.8 / 297.4

  Rupee per GBP
  Average rate (Selling / Buying)  361.7 / 361.1 356.5 / 357.2
  Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  389.7 / 389.1 356.9 / 356.4

  Rupee per AED
  Average rate (Selling / Buying)  76.1 / 76.0 75.8 / 75.7
  Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  77.3 / 77.2 77.2 / 77.1

  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

  A five percent strengthening / weakening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2025 would have  
  increased / decreased the equity and profit / loss after tax by Rs. 778 million ( 2024: Rs. 195 million).  
  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular markups, remain constant. The analysis  
  is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2024.

  The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year.

 b) Interest rate risk

  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will   
  fluctuate due to change in the interest rates. The Company has long term finance and short term   
  borrowings at fixed and variable rates.

  The Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk on short term financing under variable rate   
  arrangements and these are covered by holding "Prepayment option" and "Rollover option", which can  
  be exercised upon any adverse movement in the underlying interest rates.

  Financial assets include balances of Rs. 2,132 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 6,408 million) which are subject  
  to interest rate risk. Financial liabilities include balances of Rs. 71,428 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 59,831   
  million) which are subject to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rates for financial assets and liabilities  
  are given in respective notes.

  Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

  At June 30, 2025, if markups on interest bearing financial instruments would have been 1% higher / lower with all other 
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 Note 2025  2024
  ----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------
  Long term investments 6  70,000   70,000 
  Other receivables   1,352,101   1,130,289 
  Long term loans   137,842   91,084 
  Long term deposits   146,240   145,595 
  Trade debts 10  22,155,562   24,567,107 
  Bank balances 13  155,550   364,489 
     24,017,295   26,368,564 

  variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 693 million (2024: Rs. 534 million) lower  
  / higher,  mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. 
  Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

  The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit  
  or loss. Therefore, a change in markup at the reporting date would not effect unconsolidated statement   
  of profit or loss of the Company.

 c) Other price risk

  Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate   
  because of  the changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest or currency rate risk) whether  
  those changes are caused by factors specified to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors   
  affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at June 30, 2025, the Company is not   
  exposed to other price risk.

 44.2 Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by   
  failing to discharge an obligation without considering the fair value of the collateral available there against.   
  Concentration of  credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities   
  or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly  
  affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

  Exposure to credit risk

  Company's operating activities exposes it to credit risks arising mainly in respect of long term investments,   
  loans and  other receivables, trade debts, long term deposits and bank balances. The maximum exposure to   
  credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

 The Company manages credit risk as follows:

Loans, advances and other receivables

 These are due from employees and are recovered in monthly installments deductible from their salaries.   
 Retirement balances are also available for these employees against which balance can be adjusted incase   
 of default. The Company actively pursues for the recovery of these loans and the Company does not expect  
  that these employees will fail to meet their obligations, hence the  management believes no impairment   
 allowance is required there against.

 Other receivables include bank guarantee margin Letter of Credit and miscellaneous receivables which are  
 neither past due nor impaired. The Company believes that based on past relationship, credit rating and   
 financial soundness of the counter parties chances of default are remote and also there is no material   
 impact of changes in credit risks of such receivables so no impairment   allowance is necessary in respect of  
 these advances and receivables.

Long term deposits

  These are mainly held for rental premises and utilities with the counter parties which have long   
 association  with the Company and have a good credit history. The management does not expect to incur   
 credit loss there against.

Trade debts

Trade debts are due from local and foreign customers. The Company manages credit risk inter alia by  setting out   
 credit limit in relation to individual customers, by obtaining advance against sales and / or  through letter of credits   
 and / or by providing impairment allowance for life time expected credit loss on trade debts.

 Trade debts under irrevocable letter of credit, document acceptance and other acceptable banking   
 instruments are considered secured. Further the majority of the customers have been transacting with the
 Company for several years. The Company actively pursues for the recovery of the trade  debt and based on   
 past experience and business relationship 
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 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the 
other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of 
credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar 
economic  features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by 
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of 
the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Company's exposure to a single 
customer exceeding 10% of the total exposure amounts to Rs. 2,436 million (2024: 2,790 million).

 Credit risk of the Company arises principally from long term investments, loans and other receivables, trade debts, 
long term deposits and bank balances.

44.3 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk represent the risk where the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities when they fall due. The exposure to liquidity risk along with their maturities is disclosed in 
respective notes and note 43.

 The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash in hand and at banks and ensuring the fund 
availability through adequate credit facilities. At June 30, 2025, the Company has Rs. 67,325 million (June 30, 2024: 
Rs. 44,880 million) available borrowing limit from financial institutions. Unutilised borrowing facilities of Rs. 15,167 
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,874 million) and also has Rs. 166 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 376 million) being cash in 
hand and balances at banks. Based on the above, management believes the liquidity risk is insignificant.

  2025  2024
 Note ------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------

 Total borrowings 16 & 21  71,428,359  59,831,025 
 Cash and bank 13  (166,429)  (375,876)
 Net debt    71,261,930  59,455,149 

 Total equity 14 & 15  48,852,937  44,753,223 
 Total equity and debt    120,114,867  104,208,372 
  -------------- (%) ---------------
 Gearing ratio   59  57 

44.4 Capital risk management

 The primary objectives of the Company when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of the changes in economic 
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to 
shareholders or issue new shares. 

 The Company's strategy is to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 
2024 were as follows;

   Less than More than Total carrying
  one year one year amount
  Note ---------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

 As at June 30, 2025
 Long term financing 16  3,128,180   16,142,475   19,270,655 
 Trade and other payables 19  22,748,614   -     22,748,614 
 Accrued markup   788,421   -     788,421 
 Short term borrowings 21  52,157,704   -     52,157,704 
 Unclaimed dividend   9,365   -     9,365 
 Unpaid dividend  23  23,505   -     23,505 
    78,855,789   16,142,475   94,998,264 
 Total as at June 30, 2024   70,327,254   14,591,587   84,918,841 

 Management believes that the unimpaired balances that are past due are still collectable in full, based on historical 
payment behavior and review of financial strength of respective customers. Further, certain trade debtors, which 
have been derecognised as a result of bills discounting, are secured by way of Export Letter of Credit and Inland 
Letter of Credit, which can be called upon if the counter party is in default under the terms of the agreement. 

Long term investment and bank balances

 The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank accounts and investing only with counter-parties 
that have stable credit rating.

 The long term investment and bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:v

  2025  2024
    
 Note ----------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

  Long term investment
  AAA 6.4 70,000 70,000
  Bank balances     
  AAA   74,783   41,773 
  AA+   61,844   5,700 
  AA   14,197   765 
  AA-   2,492   75,711 
  A+   1,834   180,254 
  A1   -     184 
  BBB-   400   60,102 
     155,550   364,489
    225,550 434,489 

2025 2024
  Gross Carrying Impairment Gross Carrying Impairment
  Amount Loss Allowance Amount Loss Allowance
 ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Secured  7,221,370   -     9,892,638   -   

 Unsecured    
 Current  9,942,688   4   11,471,259   17 
 1-30 Days  4,320,028   406   2,194,240   624 
 31-60 Days  628,499   5,909   700,840   9,973 
 61-90 Days  41,001   248   376,504   57,760 
 More than 90 Days  151,277   142,734   113,985   113,985 
   15,083,493   149,301   14,856,828   182,359 
   22,304,863   149,301   24,749,466   182,359 

 and credit worthiness of these customers, the Company does not expect these customers will fail to meet their obligations except 
for some past due trade debts against which adequate allowance for impairment has been made.

 The Company has established an allowance for expected credit losses against  trade debts that represent its estimate of expected 
losses based on actual credit loss experience in respect of trade debts based on the last 3 years. The allowance determined is then 
multiplied by the weighted average macroeconomic factors for the three developed scenarios namely "Base", "Best" and "Worst" to 
incorporate the forward-looking information in expected credit loss model. The macroeconomic factors used include GDP Forecast, 
Unemployment Forecast, Inflation Rate Forecast and Exchange Rate Forecast. The Company has aging of the trade debts of the 
Company outstanding as at year end is as follows:

 Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter party will fail to meet their obligations.
 Concentration of credit risk



The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view 
to maintain an appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimise risk and borrowing cost.

45 . FAIR VALUES

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market 
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique.

 The Company while assessing fair values uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
using relevant observable data as far as possible and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Fair 
values are categorised into following three levels based on the input used in the valuation techniques;

  - Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be assessed at
  measurement.
  - Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
  liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
 - Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability Inputs for the asset or liability that 
  are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

 If inputs used to measure the fair values of an asset or a liability fall into different levels then the fair value 
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

 Transfers, if any, between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognised at the end of the reporting period 
during which the transfer has occurred. The Company’s policy for determining when transfers between 
levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring of changes in market and trading activity and 
changes in inputs used in valuation techniques.

 As at year end, the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities approximates to their carrying values. 
The operating fixed assets is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any, except 
there is no free-hold land and lease-hold land which are stated at cost. Long term investments in subsidiaries 
represent the investment in unquoted shares of companies carried at cost. The Company does not expect 
that unobservable inputs may have significant effect on fair values.  The fair values of forward exchange 
contracts is determined based on the forward exchange rates at the reporting date included in the level 
2 of the fair value hierarchy.

46. GENERAL

46.1  Events occurring after reporting date
 On September 29, 2025, Board of Directors, approved the closure of the
 Company’s Export Apparel operations as part of its strategic review of operations. The closure will be
 implemented in the forthcoming financial year, with financial and operational impacts to be 

recognised in the financial statements of the ensuing year

46.2 Corresponding figures
 Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better 

presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these un-consolidated financial 
statements during the current year.

47. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in their meeting held on September 29, 2025

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ 
 Chief Financial Officer
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited  and its 

subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025 , 

and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 

ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy 

information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position 

of the Group as at June 30, 2025 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows 

for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit 

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 

with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 

adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

GROUP DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2025.

The Group

The Group comprises of; 

All these subsidiaries are engaged in trading/retail sales of textile and related products.

Group Results

 The Consolidated financial results of the group are given below: Rupees ‘000

 Profit before tax 6,556,367
 Taxation (2,101,948)
 Profit after tax 4,454,419
 Total Reserves brought forward 39,927,105
 Transferred to Capital Reserves  (3,248)
 Amount available for appropriation  44,378,276

 Appropriation 
 Amount carried to other comprehensive income 76,940
 Exchange difference on transactions of foreign subsidiaries (18,861)
 Transferred to Capital Reserves  3,248
 Amount available for appropriation  44,439,603
 Total Reserves carried forward 44,439,603

 Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 6.02

Pattern of Shareholding

Ideas (Private) Limited, Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC) – UAE, Gul Ahmed Ecotex (Private) 
Limited, Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Private) Limited and Gul Ahmed Circular Fabrics (Private) Limited are 
wholly owned subsidiary of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (Parent Company). GTM (Europe) Limited 
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC)- UAE whereas GTM USA 
Corp.-USA, Sky Home Corp.-USA, and JCCO 406 Limited-UK are wholly owned subsidiaries of GTM 
(Europe) Limited and Vantona Home Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of JCCO 406 Limited-UK. 
Elegant Fashion (Private) Limited, Fragrance Fusion (Private) Limited and Omnify (Private) Limited are 
wholly owned subsidiaries of Ideas (Private) Limited. Shareholding in each company is in the name 
of respective holding companies. 

Mohomed Bashir
Chairman

Mohammed Zaki Bashir
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi
September 29, 2025

 Ideas (Private) Limited (Pvt) limited, Pakistan;
 Gul Ahmed International Limited (FZC)-UAE; 
 GTM (Europe) Limited-UK;
 GTM USA Corp.-USA; 
 Sky Home Corp.-USA;
 JCCO 406 Limited-UK; and
 Vantona Home Limited-UK

 Gul Ahmed Ecotex (Pvt) Limited, Pakistan
 Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Pvt) Limited, Pakistan

Gul Ahmed Circular Fabrics (Pvt) Limited,
 Pakistan
 Elegant Fashion (Pvt) Limited, Pakistan
 Fragrance Fusion (Pvt) Limited, Pakistan
 Omnify (Pvt) Limited, Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited
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Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' 
Report Thereon
  
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in annual report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditors' 
reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to   
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Refer notes 3.19 and 28 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s net revenue for the year 
ended June 30, 2025 was Rs. 185,541 
million. The Group’s revenue is 
principally generated from the sale of 
textile goods and related processing 
services and consists of local and export sales.

We identified revenue as key audit 
matter because;
• revenue is one of the key performance
  indicators of the Group;
• there are large number of revenue
  transactions; and
• there are large number of revenue
  transactions; and

• there is inherent risk that revenue 
  could be recorded in an incorrect 
  accounting period in order to 
  achieve the financial targets and
  expectations. 

Refer notes 3.7 and 11 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

As at June 30, 2025, the Group held 
stock-in-trade of Rs. 72,901 million. Several 
estimates and judgments are involved in the 
valuation of stock-in-trade, in determining 
the net realizable values, and in assessing 
the appropriate level of provisioning 
required for the stock-in-trade. This includes 
the assessment of available facts and 
circumstances, the physical condition of the 
stock-in-trade, utilization, market selling 
prices, and the estimated selling cost of the 
stock-in-trade. 

Our audit procedures in this area, amongst others, 
included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the accounting 
  policy and Group’s accounting process for revenue
   recognition and tested the design and   
 implementation of relevant controls;

• Performed verification of sample of revenue
  transactions recorded during the year with   

underlying documentation including sales invoices   
 and other dispatch documents;

• Performed cut-off procedures on sample basis on
  revenue transactions recorded just before and after   
 the year end with the underlying goods delivery   
 notes, bill of lading, invoices and other relevant   

documents to assess whether the revenue has been   
 recognised in the appropriate accounting period

• Evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures in 
  the consolidated financial statements in accordance
  with the requirements of the accounting and 
  reporting standards applicable in Pakistan.; and  

Our audit procedures in this area, amongst others, 
included the following:

• Obtained an understanding of the Group’s policies
  and procedures with respect to valuation of
  stock-in-trade;

• Assessed appropriateness of the Group’s   
accounting policies for valuation of stock-in-trade   
and compliance of those policies with accounting   

 and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan;

• Assessed the adequacy of the allowance for
  obsolescence, by taking into consideration the   
 status of ageing conditions of the stock-in-trade   
 and historical usage pattern;

S. No.

1

Key audit matters

Revenue Recognition

2 Valuation of Stock-in-trade

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Following is the key audit matter: 

We have considered this matter as key 
audit matter because of the significance 
of the balance and due to the estimates 
and judgments involved in the valuation.

• Compared the net realizable value, on a sample   
basis, to the carrying value of stock-in-trade to assess

  whether any adjustments are required to value of 
  stock-in-trade in accordance with the applicable
  accounting framework; and

• Assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in
  the notes to the consolidated financial statements,   
 in accordance with the requirements of the   
 accounting and reporting standards as applicable
  in Pakistan.

S. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

Annual Report 2025   |   176175   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
 whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
 obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
 of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
 from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
 the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an  
 opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of    
 accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
 and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to   
 events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going  
 concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in   
 our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such  
 disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit   
 evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions   
 may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
 including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the   
 underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or   
 business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial   
 statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.   
 We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 were audited by 
another firm of Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report 
dated October 4, 2024. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil.

Date: October 3, 2025
Karachi
UDIN: AR202510091hlop8RqVb

Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
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As at June 30, 2025  

    2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4   55,384,267   54,341,947 
Right of use assets 5   4,247,834   2,818,151 
Intangible assets 6   181,206   182,858 
Long term investment 7  70,000   70,000 
Long term loans 8   21,487   17,939 
Long term deposits   512,483   518,467 
Deferred taxation - net 9   1,004,141   1,115,326 
Total non-current assets   61,421,418   59,064,688 

CURRENT ASSETS

Store, spares and loose tools 10   2,856,321   2,727,361 
Stock-in-trade 11   72,901,493   57,358,906 
Trade debts 12   21,520,605   20,719,045 
Loans, advances and other receivables 13   5,664,884   4,347,029 
Short term prepayments   184,658   145,872 
Receivables from government 14   5,729,576   3,493,969 
Short term investment  -     1,243 
Cash and bank balances 15   559,457   1,081,768 
Total current assets   109,416,994   89,875,193 

Total Assets   170,838,412   148,939,881 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES  

Share capital 16   7,400,594   7,400,594 
Reserves 17   44,439,603   39,927,105 
Total share capital and reserves   51,840,197   47,327,699 
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 18   18,392,475   14,591,587 
Lease liability against right of use assets 19   4,383,400   3,189,839 
Deferred income - government grant 20   50,620   74,655 
Defined benefit plan - staff gratuity 21   475,267   528,898 
Long term deposits   22,269   19,769 
Total non-current liabilities   23,324,031  18,404,748   

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 22   31,843,262   34,321,875 
Accrued mark-up / profit 23   886,790   1,403,751 
Short term borrowings 24   56,082,057   42,494,328 
Current portion of non-current liabilities  25   4,996,906   3,810,360 
Unclaimed dividend   9,365   9,840 
Unpaid dividend 26   23,505   23,505 
Taxation-net   1,832,299   1,143,775 
Total current liabilities   95,674,184  83,207,434  

Total Equity and Liabilities   170,838,412   148,939,881 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ
 Chief Financial Officer

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ
 Chief Financial Officer

    2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Revenue from contracts with customers 28  185,541,432   172,479,728 

 Cost of sales 29  (153,463,906)  (143,735,509)

 Gross profit  32,077,526   28,744,219 

 Selling and distribution cost 30  (11,321,307)  (10,000,783)

 Administrative cost 31  (6,835,488)  (5,946,963)

 Other expense 32  (573,947)  (572,192)

    (18,730,742)  (16,519,938)

 Operating profit   13,346,784   12,224,281 

   

 Other income 33  1,170,239   2,155,433 

 Finance costs 34  (7,960,656)  (7,664,182)

 Profit before levies and taxation  6,556,367   6,715,532 

 Levies 35  (1,692,863)  (2,235,322)

 Profit before taxation  4,863,504   4,480,210 

 Taxation 36  (409,085)  371,753 

 Profit for the year  4,454,419   4,851,963  

   

     2025  2024

                              ------------------ (Rupees) ------------------

 Earnings per share - basic and diluted 37  6.02   6.56  

 The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

For the year ended June 30, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

    2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Profit for the year   4,454,419   4,851,963 
    
Other comprehensive income / (loss)   
    

Items that will not be reclassified to consolidated statement of
profit or loss subsequently   

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 21.3  76,940   (41,421)
Reversal of deferred tax   -     (4,535)
Exchange loss on translation   (18,861)  (43,899) 
   58,079   (89,855) 
Items that may be reclassified to consolidated statement of  -    -   
profit or loss subsequently   

Total comprehensive income for the year   4,512,498   4,762,108 

     The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
    

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY

-------------------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)------------------------------------------------------

 Balance as at July 01, 2023  7,400,594   -     20,845   8,252,059   (258,307)  27,150,400   35,164,997   42,565,591 

Reclassification of reserves - (note 17.3)  -     23,000,000   -     -     -     (23,000,000)  -     -   

 Profit for the year  -     -     -     -     -     4,851,963   4,851,963   4,851,963 

 Other comprehensive loss  -     -     -     -     (43,899)  (45,956)  (89,855)  (89,855)

 Total comprehensive income 

    for the year  -     -     -     -     (43,899)  4,806,007   4,762,108   4,762,108 

 Balance as at 30 June 2024  7,400,594   23,000,000   20,845   8,252,059   (302,206)  8,956,407   39,927,105   47,327,699 

Reclassification of reserves - (note 17.2)  -     -     3,248   -     -     (3,248)  -     -    

 Profit for the year  -     -     -     -     -     4,454,419   4,454,419   4,454,419 

 Other comprehensive income  -     -     -     -     (18,861)  76,940   58,079   58,079 

 Total comprehensive income 

 for the year  -     -     -     -     (18,861)  4,531,359   4,512,498  4,512,498 

 Balance as at 30 June 2025  7,400,594   23,000,000   24,093   8,252,059   (321,067)  13,484,518   44,439,603   51,840,197 

  The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Capital Reserves Revenue
Reserves

Reserves

Share 
capital

Against long 
term 

investments, 
capacity 

expansion and 
BMR

Statutory 
reserve 

created by 
foreign 

subsidiary

Amalgamation 
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Unappropriated 
profit

Total reserves
Total equity

For the year ended June 30, 2025 For the year ended June 30, 2025

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ
 Chief Financial Officer

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ
 Chief Financial Officer
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2025  2024

 Note  ------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------

 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

 Profit before taxation   4,863,504   4,480,210 
      

Adjustments for non-cash items:
 Depreciation of operating fixed assets 4.1.1   5,114,568  4,967,334 
 Depreciation of right of use assets 5   993,728   706,250 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1   32,478   38,514 
 Expense recognised for defined benefit plan 21.2   268,770   236,932 
 Finance costs 34   7,960,656   7,664,182 
 Reversal of provision for slow moving - stores and spares 10.1   (51,249)  (148,345)
 Reversal of provison for slow moving -  stock-in-trade 11.1   (174,464)  (12,028)
 Levies 35   1,692,863   2,235,322 
 Unclaimed liabilities written back 33   (13,794)  (3,910)
 Dividend income 33   -     (1,462)
 Government grant recognised in income 33   (28,251)  (32,088)

Loss on reassessment of right of use asset and corresponding lease liability 32   46,930   9,902 
 Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 32   52,272   57,358 
 Expected credit loss on trade debts 12.1   (58,900)  (226,929)
    15,835,607   15,491,032 

 Changes in working capital:
 Store, spares and loose tools   (77,711)  (665,956)
 Stock-in-trade   (15,368,123)  (9,763,874)
 Trade debts   (742,660)  (3,870,569)
 Loans, advances and other receivables   (1,317,855)  (912,675)
 Short term prepayments   (38,786)  126,662 
 Receivables from government   (246,549)  187,888 
 Trade and other payables   (2,478,613)  4,339,813 
 Net decrease in working capital   (20,270,297)  (10,558,711)

 Cash generated from operating activities   428,814   9,412,531 

 Payment made to defined benefit plan 21.1  (245,621)  (83,420)
 Finance costs paid   (7,824,746)  (8,274,854)
 Levies and taxes paid   (3,292,766)  (1,812,551)
     (11,363,133)  (10,170,825)

 Net cash used in operating activities   (10,934,319)  (758,294)

2025  2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (6,118,696)  (4,175,596)
 Payments for acquisition of intangible assets   (18,477)  (28,535)
 Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets    35,463   37,515 
 Short term investment made    -     (601,243)
 Short term investment redeemed   1,243   600,000 
 Dividend income received  33  -     1,462 
 Long term loans   (3,548)  49,962 
 Long term deposits   8,484   (38,684)
 Net cash used in investing activities   (6,095,531)  (4,155,119)
      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
 Proceeds from long term financing  40.1   7,700,000   358,000 
 Repayment of long term financing  40.1   (3,283,119)  (5,777,758)
 Payments against lease liabilities  19   (1,477,737)  (1,044,823)
 Increase in short term borrowings-net    12,893,950   8,499,688 
 Dividend paid   (475)  (91)
 Net cash generated from financing activities   15,832,621   2,035,016 

 Exchange loss on translation    (18,861)  (43,899)

 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (1,216,090)  (2,922,296)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    (4,453,603)  (1,531,307)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  40   (5,669,693)  (4,453,603)

 The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2025

MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR
 Chief Executive Officer

MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman

MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ
 Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended June 30, 2025

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
As at June 30, 2025 'the Group' comprise of the Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and the

 following subsidiaries that have been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.

   Shareholding
2025  2024

   ------------- (%) ------------
Ideas (Private) Limited  100 100

 Gul Ahmed International Limited FZC - UAE  100 100
 Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Private) Limited  100 100
 Gul Ahmed Ecotex (Private) Limited  100 100
 Gul Ahmed Circular Fabrics (Private) Limited  100 100

The following companies also fall in the definition of subsidiary as per the criteria given in IFRS 10 -

 Consolidated Financial Statements' and Section 2(68) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and are therefore, 

 consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.

   Shareholding
2025  2024

   ------------- (%) ------------
 GTM (Europe) Limited  100 100
 GTM USA Corporation  100 100
 Sky Home Corporation - USA  100 100
 JCCO 406 Limited  100 100
 Vantona Home Limited   100 100
 Fragrance Fusion (Private) Limited  100 100
 Elegant Fashion (Private) Limited  100 100
 Omnify (Private) Limited  100 100

1.1 Holding Company   

 Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on April 01, 1953 as 

 a private limited company and subsequently converted into a public limited company on January 07, 

 1955. The Holding Company is a subsidiary of Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited (the Parent 

 Company) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The Holding Company is principally 

 engaged in the manufacturing and sale of textile products. The registered office is situated at Plot No. 

 H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi.

The Holding Company has following wholly owned subsidiaries which are engaged in distribution / 

 trading of textile related products while Ideas (Private) Limited also carries out production of finished goods.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gul Ahmed International 
Limited FZC - UAE

Ideas (Private) limited

Gul Ahmed Ecotex 
(Private) Limited

Gul Ahmed Ecofab (Private) 
Limited

Gul Ahmed Circular Fabrics 
(Private) Limited

GTM USA Corporation

Sky Home Corporation - USA

Vantona Home Limited

JCCO 406 Limited

GTM (Europe) Limited

Omnify (Private) Limited

Elegant Fashion (Private) 
Limited

Fragrance Fusion (Private) 
Limited    

December 11, 
2002 

December 27, 
2004 (Subsidiary 
since January 01, 
2021) 

March 26, 2025

March 26, 2025

March 26, 2025

March 19, 2012

February 28, 2017

April 22, 2013

September 29, 
2017

April 17, 2003

March 12, 2025

March 19, 2025

March 12, 2025

Trade of textile, garments 
and related products

Manufacturing and sale of 
textile good and other 
products

Manufacturing and 
distuibution of textile 
related products

Manufacturing and 
distuibution of textile 
related products

Recycling of textile waste for 
production of yarns and 
fabrics 

Commission agent service 
and trading of textile related 
products

Import and wholesale of 
home textile products

Trading and distribution of 
textile related products

Trading and distribution of 
textile related products

Trading and distribution of 
textile related products

Technology related services 
and e-commerce business 
solutions

Industrial undertaking for 
manufacturing and stitching 
garmants and textile related 
products

Trading of fragrance and 
cosmetic related products

Sharjah Airport International Free 
Zone, Government of Sharjah, United 
Arab Emirates.  

Plot No. 65/I, Sector-30, Korangi 
Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan.

Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan.

Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan.

Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan.

106 LangTree Village Dr, Suite 301 
Mooresville, NC 28117, United States of 
America. 

106 LangTree Village Dr, Suite 301 
Mooresville, NC 28117, United States of 
America. 

Grane Road Mill, Grane Road 
Haslingden, Rossendale Lancashire 
BB4 5ET, United Kingdom. 

Grane Road Mill, Grane Road 
Haslingden, Rossendale Lancashire 
BB4 5ET, United Kingdom.

Grane Road Mill, Grane Road 
Haslingden, Rossendale Lancashire 
BB4 5ET, United Kingdom. 

Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan. 

Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan.

Plot No. 65/1, Korangi Industrial Area, 
Karachi, Pakistan.
  

Indirect subsidiaries

Direct subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries Date of 
incorporation

Nature of business Principle place of business
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 Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the 
amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets 
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the 
excess is recognised as gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

 Transactions with non-controlling interests
 The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest that do not result in loss of control as 

transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchase of interest from non-controlling interests, 
the difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the 
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to 
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

 When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the equity is 
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the profit or loss. The fair 
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest 
as an associate, joint venture or financial assets. In addition, any amount previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income in respect to that entity is accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed 
off the related assets and liabilities.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of measurement
 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

except as otherwise stated in respective policy notes.

2.2 Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the International 
   Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Accounting Standards, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the Group operates. These consolidated financial statements 
are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Group. The 
amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless stated otherwise.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
 The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and 

reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affects the application of the Group's accounting policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis 

1.2 Geographical locations and addresses of all premises obtained on rented basis by the Holding 
 Company are as follows;

Address
Plot ST-17/1 and ST-17/3, Federal 'B' Area, Azizabad, Karachi;

 Plot No. H-17 / A, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi;
 Plot # HT/2 Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi;
 Plot # HT/8, KDA Scheme 3, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi;  
 Plot W2/1-14, Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi;
 Plot # H19/2-B Bin Qasim, Landhi Industrial Area Karachi;  
 Survey # 613, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim Town, Karachi; 
 Survey # 614, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim Town, Karachi;  
 Survey # 615, Deh Jorejee, Bin Qasim Town, Karachi; and
 22nd Floor, Ocean Mall, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Block-9, Clifton, Karachi.

 The above rented premises are used to carry out warehousing and administrative tasks.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and
 its subsidiaries, here-in-after collectively referred to as the Group.

Subsidiaries
 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Holding Company. The Holding Company controls an investee
 when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the 
 ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line
 basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the
 subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in these consolidated financial statements.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Holding 
 Company, using consistent accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group 
 transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition or incorporation, being the date on which the
 Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 

 The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
 Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at 
 their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the 
 periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Any contingent consideration to be
 transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
 to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is an asset or liability are recognised in profit or loss.

 Non-controlling interest in the acquiree, which represents ownership interests and entitle their holders 
 to a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree are recognised on the acquisition date at either fair
 value or the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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h) Contingencies (notes 3.18 and 27)
    The assessment of the contingencies and provisions inherently involves the exercise of judgment 
    as the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the
    availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent liabilities which may differ
    on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s). 

i) Leases (notes 3.16 and 19)
    The Group uses judgements and estimates in measurement of right of use assets and    

 corresponding lease  liabilities with respect to discount rates, lease terms including exercise of   
 renewal and termination options etc, in accordance with IFRS 16.

2.5 Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
 accounting and reporting standards
 (a) New standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025 
    are as follows:

 The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. These amendments are either 
  not relevant to the Group's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group's financial 
  statements other than certain additional disclosures.

         Effective date (annual periods  
     beginning on or after)

  Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - Clarification on how seller-lessee  January 01, 2024
  subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions.

  Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -  January 01, 2024
  Classification of liabilities as current or non-current along with 
  Non-current liabilities with Covenants.

  Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and  January 01, 2024
  'IFRS 7 'Financial instruments  disclosures' -  Supplier 
  Finance Arrangements.

 (b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards not yet   
 effective 

  The following standards and amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date 
  mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are
 not expected to have significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than certain 
  additional disclosures.

 of making judgment about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
 other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting 
 estimates are recognised in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
 period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 Information about estimates and judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most 
 significant effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

a) Operating fixed assets, Right of use assets and Intangible assets (notes 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.8, 4, 5 and 6)
   The Group reviews appropriateness of the method of depreciation / amortisation and useful lives  

  used in  the calculation of depreciation / amortisation of operating fixed assets, right of use assets 
   and intangible assets respectively on an annual basis. Further, where applicable, an estimate of
   recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment at each reporting date.

b) Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stores and spares (notes 3.6 and 10) Provision for 
   obsolescence and slow moving stores and spares is based on parameters set out by the   

  management of the Group, which includes ageing, expected use and realisable values.

c) Stock-in-trade (notes 3.7 and 11)
   The Group reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the
   respective carrying values at each reporting date. Net realisable value is determined with 
   reference to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sales.

d)  Impairment of financial assets (notes 3.9.4, 12 and 47.2)
   The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit loss (ECL) for trade debts. The provision
   matrix is initially based on the Group’s historically observed rates. The Group calibrates the matrix to
   adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every quarter, the
   historically observed default rates are updated, and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

  The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The  
  Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be   
  representative of customers’ actual default in the future. 

e) Defined benefit plan (notes 3.14.2 and 21)
   The present value of defined benefit plan depends upon number of factors and is being calculated on 
   actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the  

  carrying amount of defined benefit plan. 

f)  Taxation (notes 3.21, 27 and 36)
  The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation   

  authorities.  Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax   
  department at the assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material  
  nature is in accordance  with law, the amounts are shown as contingencies.

g) Levies (notes 3.22 and 35)
   The Group takes into account the current income tax law, legislations and decisions taken by the   

  taxation  authorities for determination of levies. These include determining the specific obligating   
  event that triggers  levy recognition based on the relevant legislation, estimating the amount payable  
  by considering applicable rates, and deciding the appropriate timing for recognising the levy liability.  
  These estimates and judgements are periodically reviewed and updated as necessary.
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Subsequent cost
 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of operating fixed assets is capitalised 

and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the items 
can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including normal repairs and maintenance) are recognised 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense when these are incurred.

Depreciation
 Depreciation is charged using:
 - Reducing Balance Method on Plant and Machinery, Office Equipment (other than IT Equipment), Building
  on Leasehold Land, Vehicles and Furniture and Fixtures; and

 - Straight Line Method on IT equipment, structure on lease hold land and major Component of Plant and
  Machinery identifiable as a separate asset due to useful life different from the Plant and Machinery.

 Rate of depreciation on above are specified in the note 4 of these consolidated financial statements.

 Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the day the asset is available for use 
and no depreciation is charged on the day of disposal.

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of operating fixed assets that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal
 The gain or loss on disposal of an item of operating fixed assets is determined by comparing the proceeds 

from disposal with the carrying amount of the operating fixed assets, and is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress
 Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditures incurred 

(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended 
use.

3.3 Right of use assets
 Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct 

costs, any lease payments made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives 
received. These are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

 Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the lease term unless the ownership of the asset transfers 
to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost of the asset reflects that the Group will exercise the 
purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset.

3.4 Intangible assets
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment loss. Amortisation 

of intangible assets is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method 
at the rates specified in note 6 of these consolidated financial statements after taking into account residual 
value, if any.  Amortisation on additions to intangibles is charged from the day the asset is available for 
use and no depreciation is charged on the day of disposal.

 The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable, if any such indication exists and 
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to 
their recoverable amount.

  Effective date (annual periods  
   beginning on or after)

  Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange  January 01, 2025
  Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term 
  lack of Exchangeability

  IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December 2021  January 01, 2026
  Amendments to IFRS 17)

  IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures July 01, 2025

  Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial  January 01, 2026
  instruments  disclosures' - Classification and measurement of 
  financial instruments

  Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards (related to  January 01, 2026
  IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7)

  Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial  January 01, 2026
  instruments  disclosures' - Contracts Referencing 
  Nature-dependent Electricity

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 The material accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these 
 consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Group at the

 exchange rates at the dates of transactions.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency
 at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

value in a foreign currency are translated into functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are

 translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Foreign currency difference are recognised in
 consolidated statement of profit and loss.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are retranslated into presentation currency 
i.e. Pakistan Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses 
are translated using the average of exchange rates for the period. The exchange differences arising on 
such translations are recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating fixed assets

Initial recognition
 The cost of an item is recognised as an asset if and only if the future economic benefits associated with the item
 will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement
 Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
 losses except leasehold land which is stated at cost.

 When parts of an item of operating fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
 items (major components) of operating fixed assets.
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3.5 Borrowing cost
 Borrowing cost is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
 which these are incurred except where such cost is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
 production of a qualifying asset in which case such cost is capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

3.6 Store, spares and loose tools
 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of moving average cost and net realisable value, less
 provision for impairment, if any. Stores-in-transit is stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other
 incremental charges incurred thereon.

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based on management's
 best estimate regarding their future usability and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
 loss.

3.7 Stock-in-trade
 Stock of raw materials and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable

value. Cost of raw materials and trading stock comprises of the invoice value plus other incremental charges
 incurred thereon. Work-in-process is measured at weighted average cost. Cost of work-in-process and

finished goods includes cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads.
 Waste products are valued at net realisable value. Stock in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice
 value and other incidental charges paid thereon up to reporting date.

 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less costs
 necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there
is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to

 determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the
 consolidated statement of profit or loss.

 The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use
 is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable

 cash flows (cash generating units).

 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
 amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
 the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
 loss had been recognised. 

3.9 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

 or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

 of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other

 than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
 from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
 through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.9.1 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

 Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
 the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

 All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
 value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
 Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
  collect contractual cash flows; and

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
  payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets ‘at amortised cost’ are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the 
time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired and when interest is recognised using the effective 
interest method.

 Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting  
 contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely  
 payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets at FVTOCI are carried on the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with 
gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

 By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried on the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with 
gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
 The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

 On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

3.9.2 Financial liabilities
 All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method 

or at FVTPL. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that 
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised 
cost of a financial liability.
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 Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different

 terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the

 respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.9.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
 statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to set-off the recognised amounts 
 and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.9.4 Impairment of financial assets 
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt

 instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
 been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified
 approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
 recognition of the receivables. 

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects (a) an unbiased and
 probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (b) the time

value of money; and (c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
 at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
 the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and 
 loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As 
 for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
 the reporting date.

A default on a financial asset is considered when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 
 90 days of when they fall due. 

 Financial assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectations of recovery. Where loans or 
 receivables have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
 recover the balance due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in the consolidated statement 
 of profit or loss.

3.10 Derivative
Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement, each derivative

 instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated 
 statement of profit or loss. Derivatives with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are included in other assets 
 and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are included in trade and other payables in
 consolidated statement of financial position.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, with banks in current accounts, demand draft and
 running finance.

3.12 Share capital
 Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
 shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

3.13 Government grant
 Government grants are transfers of resources to the Group by a government entity in return for compliance 

with certain past or future conditions related to the Group’s operating activities - e.g. a government subsidy. 
The definition of “government” refers to governments, government agencies and similar bodies, whether 
local, national or international.

 The Group recognises government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be received 
and the Group will be able to comply with conditions associated with grants. Government grants are 
recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be 
received and the Group will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are recognised on a systematic basis in the income 
for the year in which the related expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are 
recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

 Loan is initially recognised at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9. The fair value of the loan would be 
the present value of loan proceeds received, discounted using prevailing market rate of mark-up for a 
similar instrument. The benefit of below-market mark-up (i.e. differential between the loan proceeds and 
fair value of the loan) is accounted for as deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20. In subsequent periods, 
the loan amount would be accreted using the effective interest rate method. The accreditation would 
increase the carrying value of the loan with a corresponding effect on the interest expense for the year in 
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As per IFRS 9, the loan liability and related mark-up shall be 
derecognised when it is extinguished i.e., these amounts are paid-off. While, the grant is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest expense that the grant is 
compensating, in accordance with IAS 20.

3.14 Staff retirement benefits

3.14.1 Defined contribution plan 
 The Holding Company and its subsidiary, Ideas (Private) Limited, operate a recognised provident fund
 scheme for its eligible employees to which equal monthly contribution is made by the Holding 
 Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary. The Companys' contribution is
 charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.14.2 Defined benefit plan
 The Holding Company operates unfunded gratuity schemes for all its eligible employees. Benefits under 

the scheme are vested to employees on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under 
the scheme. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. 

 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The Parent Company 
determines the net interest expense on the net defined liability for the period by applying the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net 
defined liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the year as a 
result of benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss. The Parent Company recognises gains or losses on the settlement of a defined 
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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3.15 Accumulated employee compensated absences
The Holding Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in the period in which

 these are earned. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated
 absences and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.16 Lease liabilities against right of use assets
 Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental
 borrowing rate is used. Subsequently these are increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and
 remeasured for lease modifications, if any.

 Liabilities in respect of certain short term and low value leases are not recognised and payments against
 such leases are recognised as expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.17 Unclaimed dividend
The Group recognises unclaimed dividend which was declared and remained unclaimed by the shareholder

 from the date it was due and payable.

3.18 Provisions and contingencies
 Provisions are recognised when the Group has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
 event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
 settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
 reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
 existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
 that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
 sufficient reliability.

3.19 Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits

 will flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
 the consideration received or receivable and is recognised on following basis: 

 -  Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Group expects to be entitled
   to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

 -  The Group recognises revenue when performance obligation is fulfilled, at a point in time, when control of
   goods have been transferred to a customer either on dispatch / acceptance of goods for local sales or  

issuance of the bill of lading in case of export sales. Control, depending on contractual terms, is considered  
 to be transferred either when the product is directly uplifted by customer from the Group premises or  
 when it is delivered by the Group at customer premises.

-  Revenue from contracts with customers on services is recognised at the point in time when the performance
   obligation is satisfied i.e. control of the serviced goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
   the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those serviced goods. These
   services include sanforisation and mercerisation of fabric.

-  Export rebate (if any) on export sales is recognised on an accrual basis at the time of export sale.

 -  Processing charges are recorded when processed goods are delivered to customers.

3.20 Other income
 Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the Company 

and the amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and recognised on following basis:

 - Profit on deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount  
 outstanding and rates applicable thereon.

 - Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established.

 - Interest on loans and advances to employees is recognised on the effective interest method.

 -  Income from sale of scrap is recorded on delivery of scrap to the customer.

 -  The grant is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest  
 expense that the grant is compensating, in accordance with IAS 20.

 -  Income from liabilities written back / provision are recorded when the chances of settlement of liability /
  provision is remote.

 - Markup from Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) are accounted for as income using the effective interest method.

 - Exchange gain from currency realisation and derivative financial instruments are described in note 3.1  
 and 3.10 of these consolidated financial statements.

3.21 Taxation

3.21.1 Current tax
 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 

and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that 
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

 The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. 
Instances where the Group’s views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and 
where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts 
are shown as contingent liabilities.

3.21.2 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on all temporary differences arising at the reporting 

date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, and tax credits, if any, to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences 
and tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at enacted tax rate that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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3.22 Levies
 The tax charged under Income tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO), which is not based on taxable income or any 

amount paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levies in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 21 'Levies' or IAS 37 
'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'.

3.22.1 Revenue tax
 Revenue tax include levies as per IFRIC 21, minimum tax on imported goods and export sales under ITO. 

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is imposed by governments on entities 
in accordance with legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulations), other than:

 (a)  those outflows of resources that are within the scope of other standards. 

 (b)  fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation. 

3.22.2 Final tax
 Final tax includes tax charged / withheld / paid on certain income streams under various provisions of ITO. 

Final tax is charged / computed under the ITO, without reference to income chargeable to tax at the 
general rate of tax and final tax computed / withheld or paid for a tax year is construed as final tax liability 
for the related stream of Income under the ITO. 

3.23 Earnings per share
 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
 Final dividend distributions to the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the consolidated 

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders at 
the Annual General Meeting, while the interim dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which 
the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors (the Board). Appropriations of profit are reflected in 
the consolidated statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.

3.25 Segment reporting
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is 

a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses including revenues and expenses that relates to transactions with any of the Group's other 
components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker(s) i.e., Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment, 
assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly of finance cost, 
other operating cost, other income and income tax. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred 
during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The detailed results of 
the reportable segments are disclosed in the note 38 to these consolidated financial statements.

As at 01 July 2023   
 Cost     9,543,110   18,733,368   43,844,658   572,001   1,999,350   783,041   75,475,528 
 Accumulated depreciation    -     (6,581,024)  (14,986,458)  (174,463)  (876,050)  (552,282)  (23,170,277)
 Foreign currency translation    -     3,143   -     13,863   267   18,149   35,422 
 Net book value as at July 01, 2023    9,543,110   12,155,487   28,858,200   411,401   1,123,567   248,908   52,340,673 

 Movement during year ended June 30, 2024     
 Additions / transfers during the year    121,484   1,439,504   4,442,899   84,437   345,561   87,252   6,521,137 
 Written off during the year    -     (70,069)  -     -     -     -     (70,069)
 Reclassification to CWIP    -     -     (18,832)  -     -     -     (18,832)

 Disposals during the year 
 Cost      -     (74,751)  (144,675)  (654)  (1,277)  (4,251)  (225,608)
 Depreciation    -     39,123   87,384   134   649   3,444   130,734 
 Net book value    -     (35,628)  (57,291)  (520)  (628)  (807)  (94,874)

 Depreciation charge for the year  4.1.1   -     (1,475,532)  (3,146,312)  (51,850)  (226,335)  (67,305)  (4,967,334)
 Foreign currency translation    -     -     (111)  (596)  (17)  (1,081)  (1,805)
 Net book value as at June 30, 2024    9,664,594   12,013,762   30,078,553   442,872   1,242,148   266,967   53,708,896 

As at 01 July 2024
 Cost     9,664,594   20,028,052   48,124,050   655,784   2,343,634   866,042   81,682,156 
 Accumulated depreciation    -     (8,017,433)  (18,045,386)  (226,179)  (1,101,736)  (616,143)  (28,006,877)
 Foreign currency translation    -     3,143   (111)  13,267   250   17,068   33,617 
 Net book value as at June 30, 2024    9,664,594   12,013,762   30,078,553   442,872   1,242,148   266,967   53,708,896  

      
 Movement during year ended June 30, 2025
 Additions / transfers during the year    -     743,196   3,180,668   91,914   676,160   46,674   4,738,612 

 Adjustments during the year 
 Cost      -     3,956   97,640   (154)  (71,154)  (30,178)  110 
 Depreciation    -     (1,964)  (15,901)  -     25,297   578   8,010 
 Net book value    -     1,992   81,739   (154)  (45,857)  (29,600)  8,120 

 Disposals during the year 
 Cost         -     (52,873)  (335,998)  (207)  (3,371)  (2,914)  (395,363)
 Depreciation   -     32,467   271,341   8   1,723   2,089   307,628 
 Net book value    -     (20,406)  (64,657)  (199)  (1,648)  (825)  (87,735)

 Depreciation charge for the year   4.1.1   -     (1,446,346)  (3,274,532)  (57,706)  (280,662)  (55,322)  (5,114,568)
 Foreign currency translation    -     1,089   (6,663)  2,896   (1,473)  7,212   3,061 
 Net book value as at June 30, 2025    9,664,594   11,293,287   29,995,108   479,623   1,588,668   235,106   53,256,386 

 As at June 30, 2025   
 Cost     9,664,594   20,722,331   51,066,360   747,337   2,945,269   879,624   86,025,515 
 Accumulated depreciation    -     (9,433,276)  (21,064,478)  (283,877)  (1,355,378)  (668,798)  (32,805,807)
 Foreign currency translation    -     4,232   (6,774)  16,163   (1,223)  24,280   36,678 
 Net book value as at June 30, 2025    9,664,594   11,293,287   29,995,108   479,623   1,588,668   235,106   53,256,386

     ------------------------------------------------------ ( % ) ------------------------------------------------------
Depreciation per annum    -     10 to 33   10 to 33   10 to 12   10 to 33  20 

4.1 Operating fixed assets

------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in 000) ------------ -------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold
land

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
     2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------       
   
 Operating fixed assets 4.1  53,256,386    53,708,896 
 Capital work in progress (CWIP) 4.2  2,122,881   633,051 
 Advance against purchase of land   5,000   -   
    55,384,267   54,341,947 

 Buildings  and 
structures on 

leasehold land

 Plant and 
machinery

Furniture and 
fixtures

 Office
equipment  Vehicles  Total

Note

Annual Report 2025   |   200199   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



4.1.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

     2025 2024
     

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------       

   
Cost of goods manufactured 29.1  4,394,570   4,290,564 

 Selling and distribution cost 30  481,684   384,733 
 Administrative cost 31  238,314   292,037 
    5,114,568   4,967,334

4.1.2 Details of operating assets sold

Particulars of 
assets Cost

Written 
down 
value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Mode of 
disposal

Relationship 
with buyerParticulars of buyer

--------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------

Buildings and structures on leasehold land

Structural Costs  22,525   7,661   170   (7,491) Bidding Jamaal Third party

Structural Costs  2,940   2,201   313   (1,889) Bidding Salaam Third party

Structural Costs  3,487   581   413   (168) Bidding Shahid Third party

Civil, Electric and  17,084   5,106   725   (4,381) Bidding Salaam Third party
   Allied Works

Plant and machinery
Waukesha Gas Engine  37,809   2,454   1,139   (1,315) Bidding Ams Enterprise  Third party 
      Plot # D-126 .Bawany 
      Challi .Site Town, Karachi

Passenger Lift   6,283   6,283   3,077   (3,206) Bidding Awan Lift Company (Pvt) Ltd  Third party 
      11th Floor, Rimpa Plaza, 
      M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi

Machine Paper   2,883   1,129   1,000   (129) Bidding Badar Processing Industries  Third party 
   Transfer Printing      D-256, 273, Site, 
      Karachi Pakistan

Waukesha Gas  43,177   2,852   3,000   148  Bidding R.A Engineering & Services Third party 
   Engine      2nd Floor ,plot no-18,
      sector-47,korangi creek 
      industrial area, Karachi

Air Jet Looms   191,708   49,019   14,294   (34,725) Bidding Valitex (Pvt) Ltd.  Third party 
   Tsudakoma      A/36-A, Mangopir Road, 
      Site Karachi, Karachi 
      West Site Town

Items with written 
down value below 67,467   10,449   11,333   884  Bidding Various
Rs. 500,000   
       
As on 30 June
 2025   395,363   87,735   35,463   (52,272)

       
As on 30 June 
2024  225,608   94,874   37,515   (57,359)

4.1.3 Geographical locations and addresses of all immoveable properties owned by the Company are as follows:

Area Address
 25.07 Acres  Plot No. HT-4, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi.

 14.9 Acres  Survey No. 82, Deh Landhi, Karachi.      

 18.56 Acres  Plot No. H-7, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi.    
   
 44.04 Acres  P.U. No. 48, 49, 50, & 51, Deh Khjanto Tapo Landhi, Karachi.   
    
 4.17 Acres  Plot No. H-19, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi.    
   
 4,023.16 Sq. yards  Plot No. H-19/1, Landhi Industrial Area, Landhi, Karachi.   
    
 6.83 Acres  Plot 368, 369 & 446, Deh Landhi, Karachi.     
  
 12 Acres  Plot - HT 3/A, Landhi, Karachi.      

 51.1 Acres  Plot No. H-5 and HT-6, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi.   
    
 1.997 Acres  Plot No. 65/I, Deh Dig, Sector-30, Korangi Industrial Area (Eastern), Karachi. 
      
 0.306 Acres  24/A, Block C/3, Gulberg-III, Lahore.      

 0.082 Acres  Shop No. 5 & 6, Bahadurabad, Karachi.     

Manufacturing facilities, warehouses, ancillary construction, administrative offices etc, are constructed 
on each of the above mentioned land. 

     2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------      

4.2 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Plant and machinery   1,462,781   536,930 
 Buildings and structures on leasehold land   532,099   81,063 
 Others  128,001   15,058 

   4.2.1  2,122,881   633,051

Annual Report 2025   |   202201   |   Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited



5. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
 The carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised in respect of rented premises and movement there in during 
 the year is as follows:

    2025 2024
Note   ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------------    

Opening balance  2,818,151   2,860,182 

 Assets recognised during the year  2,356,426   528,589 
 Adjustments during the year   66,796   135,921 
 Depreciation expense
 - Charged to cost of goods manufactured 29.1  (14,463)  (22,451)
 - Charged to selling and distribution cost 30  (946,012)  (629,673)
 - Charged to administrative cost 31  (33,253)  (54,126)
      (993,728)  (706,250)

 Foreign currency translation   189   (291)
 Net book value  4,247,834   2,818,151 

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Note Computer  Trade Marks Goodwill Total
  Software
                                                                                                                                                                                     ------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------
 At 01 July 2023    
 Cost  143,979   162,768   15,405   322,152 
 Write-off  -  -     (15,405)  (15,405)
 Accumulated amortisation   (88,207)  (79,589)  -     (167,796)
 Foreign currency translation  1,233   57,708   -     58,941 
 Net book value as at July 01, 2023  57,005   140,887   -     197,892 

 Movement during the year ended June 30, 2024    
    
 Additions - cost  28,535  -     -     28,535 
 Amortisation charge for the year 6.1  (26,940)  (11,574)  -     (38,514)
 Foreign currency translation  (43) (5,012)  -     (5,055)
 Net book value as at June 30, 2024   58,557 124,301   -     182,858 

 At 01 July 2024
 Cost  172,514  162,768   15,405   350,687 
 Accumulated amortisation and write-off  (115,147)  (91,163)  (15,405)  (221,715)
 Foreign currency translation  1,190 52,696   -     53,886 
 Net book value as at July 01, 2024  58,557 124,301   -     182,858 

 Movement during the year ended June 30, 2025    
   
 Additions - cost   18,477  -     -     18,477 
 Amortisation charge for the year 6.1  (21,882) (10,596)  -     (32,478)
 Foreign currency translation  3  12,346   -     12,349 
 Net book value as at June 30, 2025  55,155  126,051   -     181,206 

 Gross carrying value
 Cost  190,991 162,768   15,405   369,164 
 Accumulated amortisation  (137,029) (101,759)  (15,405)  (254,193)
 Foreign currency translation  1,193 65,042   -     66,235 
 Net book value as at June 30, 2025  55,155 126,051   -     181,206  
  
                                        -------------------------------------- ( % )  --------------------------------------  
 Amortisation rate per annum   20 to 50 10 to 50 20 

    2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------    

    2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------    

4.2.1 The movement in CWIP is as follows:

 Opening balance   633,051   2,409,507 

 Capital expenditure incurred during the year

    Plant and machinery 4.2.2   4,086,588   3,309,671 

    Buildings and structures on leasehold land   1,194,232   841,594 

    Others   948,412   559,475 

          6,229,232   4,710,740 

 Transfers to operating fixed assets during the year

    Plant and machinery    (3,160,737)  (4,433,375)

    Buildings and structures on leasehold land    (743,196)  (1,439,504)

    Other   (835,469)  (633,149) 

    (4,739,402)  (6,506,028)

 Reclassification from operating fixed assets 4.1   -     18,832 

 Closing balance    2,122,881   633,051 

4.2.2 This includes borrowing cost captalised during the construction period amounting to Rs. 123 million 

(June 30, 2024: Rs. 480 million). The effective rate of borrowing cost capitalised during the year was 

15.98% (June 30, 2024: 18.60%) per annum.     

4.3 The cost of fully depreciated operating fixed assets still in use:

       
        

 Buildings and structures on leasehold land   168,880   168,880 

 Office equipment    156,389   133,618 

 Plant and machinery   506,814   506,814 

 Vehicles    2,919   2,919 

         835,002   812,231 

4.4 Plant and machinery, land and buildings are subject to first pari passu charge and a equitable mortgage

 amounting to Rs. 43,154 million as on June 30, 2025 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 38,574 million). These charges are

 against different financing facilities obtained from various banks as disclosed in note 18 of these

 consolidated financial statements.

 Opening balance   633,051   2,409,507 

    Plant and machinery 4.2.2   4,086,588   3,309,671     Plant and machinery 4.2.2   4,086,588   3,309,671 

    Buildings and structures on leasehold land   1,194,232   841,594     Buildings and structures on leasehold land   1,194,232   841,594 

    Others   948,412   559,475     Others   948,412   559,475 

          6,229,232   4,710,740 

    Plant and machinery    (3,160,737)  (4,433,375)    Plant and machinery    (3,160,737)  (4,433,375)

    Buildings and structures on leasehold land    (743,196)  (1,439,504)    Buildings and structures on leasehold land    (743,196)  (1,439,504)

    Other   (835,469)  (633,149)     Other   (835,469)  (633,149) 

    (4,739,402)  (6,506,028)

 Reclassification from operating fixed assets 4.1   -     18,832 

 Closing balance    2,122,881   633,051 

 Buildings and structures on leasehold land   168,880   168,880 

 Office equipment    156,389   133,618 

 Plant and machinery   506,814   506,814 

 Vehicles    2,919   2,919 

         835,002   812,231 
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9. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
     2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------  

Deferred tax asset of direct and indirect subsidiaries 9.1  1,004,141   1,115,326 

9.1 Deferred tax asset of direct and indirect subsidiary companies

 The breakup of the balance is as follows:

 Deductible temporary differences in respect of;
 Accelerated tax depreciation allowance   158,481   364,490 
 Provisions  50,427   32,978 
 Excess of lease liabilities over carrying value of right of use assets  479,867   358,940 
 Minimum tax carried forward  315,366   358,918 
         1,004,141   1,115,326 

9.1.1 Deferred tax has been computed using effective rate of 39% consequent to levy of super tax at 10% on the 
 taxable income.       

10 STORE, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
     2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------  
    
 Stores and spares  2,953,496   2,866,890 
 Stores-in-transit  5,535   13,296 
      2,959,031   2,880,186 

 Provision for slow moving / obsolete items 10.1  (102,710)  (152,825)
         2,856,321   2,727,361 

10.1 Movement in provision for slow moving / obsolete items

 Opening balance  152,825   302,702 
 Reversal of provision for the year - Cost of goods manufactured 29.1  (51,249)  (148,345)
 Foreign currency translation   1,134   (1,532)
 Closing balance   102,710   152,825 

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE

 Raw material
 - In hand 29.1  40,054,692   31,297,840 
 - In transit   682,520   1,495,563 
 Work-in-process 29.2  12,166,591   9,921,938 
 Finished goods  29  20,046,894   14,867,005 
         72,950,697   57,582,346 

 Provision for slow moving - stock-in-trade / obsolete items 11.1  (49,204)  (223,440)
         72,901,493   57,358,906 

6.1 The amortisation charge on intangible assets has been allocated as follows:

     2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 

Cost of goods manufactured 29.1  3,241  1,793 
 Selling and distribution cost 30  2,082   1,727 
 Administrative cost 31  27,155   34,994 
         32,478   38,514 

6.2 The cost of fully amortised intangible assets still in use are as follows:
 Software   181,274  101,562 

7. LONG TERM INVESTMENT
      
     2025 2024

Note   ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 
    

Investment in Term Finance Certificate (TFC) - at amortised cost 7.1  70,000   70,000   

7.1 This represents Rs. 70 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 70 million) invested in perpetual TFC issued by Habib Bank 
 Limited, which carries profit at the rate of 3Month KIBOR + 1.6% receivable on quarterly basis.
    
8. LONG TERM LOANS
   

     2025 2024
Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Considered good
 - Due from executives   134,508   87,256 
 - Due from non-executives   9,227   3,828 
       8.2  143,735   91,084 
 Current portion
 - Due from executives  (113,894)  (69,871)
 - Due from non-executives  (8,354)  (3,274)
       13  (122,248)  (73,145)
         21,487   17,939 

8.1 Loans and advances have been given for the purchase of cars and housing assistance in accordance with

 the terms of employment and are repayable in monthly installments. These loans are secured to the

 extent of outstanding balance of retirement benefit or guarantee by two employees. The loan tenor 

 extends maximum upto 24 months.

Included in these are loans of Rs. 110.63 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 48 million) to executives and Rs. 7.9

 million (June 30, 2024 : Rs. 3 million) to non-executive which carry no mark-up. The loans amounting to 

 Rs. 17.98 million (June 30, 2024: 39.2 million) to executives and Rs. 1.3 million to non-executives (June 30,

 2024: Rs. 0.8 million) carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.08% to 20.14% ( 2024: 6.5% to 22.9%) per annum.

8.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was 

 Rs. 129 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 87.2 million).
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11.1 Movement in provision for slow moving
     2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------  

Opening balance  223,440   236,395 
 Reversal of provision for the year 29.1  (174,464)  (12,028)
 Foreign currency translation   228   (927)
 Closing balance   49,204   223,440 

11.2 The stock includes inventory held with third party amounting to Rs. 6,168 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 8,126 million).

12 TRADE DEBTS
     2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------    

 Secured
 Export debtors   4,912,822   4,378,812 
 Local debtors   1,279,820   1,216,345 
       12.2  6,192,642   5,595,157 
 Unsecured
 Export debtors   3,231,152   5,743,154 
 Local debtors   12,267,506   9,610,205 
         15,498,658   15,353,359 
      21,691,300   20,948,516 
 Expected credit loss 12.1  (170,695)  (229,471)
      21,520,605   20,719,045 

12.1 Movement in expected credit loss against doubtful trade debts

 Opening balance   229,471   457,152 
 Reversal for the year 31  (58,900)  (226,929)
 Foreign currency translation   124   (752)
 Closing balance  170,695   229,471 

12.2 Trade debts under irrevocable letter of credit, document acceptance, and other acceptable banking 
 instruments are considered secured.
   
12.3 This includes receivables provided to bank under bill discounting arrangement with full recourse
 amounting to Rs. 1,639 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,598 million).

13 LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
     2025 2024

 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------   

Loans and advances
 Advances to suppliers   3,535,776   1,656,835 
 Current portion of loans to employees 8  122,248   73,145 
 Others 13.1  451,726   1,134,981 
      4,109,750   2,864,961 

Other Receivables
 Letter of Credit and Bank Guarantee Margin 13.2  1,322,051   650,183 
 Deposits  49,183   28,082 
 Forward Contracts  -     332,315 
 Accrued markup on Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs)  24,299   -   
 Others 13.3 & 13.4  159,601   471,488 
         1,555,134   1,482,068 
         5,664,884   4,347,029 

13.1 This include an interest bearing unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 438 million (June 30, 2024: Nil) to a 
business associate with a interest rate of 10% per annum, and repayable within the next 12 months. 
During the year, the Group has recorded an ECL provision amounting to Rs. 38.79 million (June 30, 2025: 
Nil) on above loan. 

13.2 These include Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) of Soneri Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 979 million. (June 
30, 2024: Rs. 550 million) placed against bank guarantee margin. The guarantee margin carries mark up 
at the rate of 10% to 11% (June 30, 2024: 14.35% to 19.75%) per annum.

13.3 This includes balance receivable from Hub Liquid Terminal (Private) Limited, a related party amounting 
to Rs. 9.13 million (June 30, 2024: Nil).

         
13.4 Sky Home Corp has factoring agreement with CIT group Inc. and by virtue of this agreement the 

Company assigns all of its trade receivables to factoring agent. At the year end, the balance 
outstanding with the factoring agent amounts to Rs. 113 million (2024: Rs. 32 million).

         
 All its assigned receivables for which the credit limit is approved by the factoring agent, either on credit 

limit basis or order to order basis, are without recourse.        
   

 However, receivables which are either not assigned or credit limit is not approved and; receivables from 
related parties are not covered under the factoring agreement and the; credit risk lies with the 
company itself.

              
14 RECEIVABLES FROM GOVERNMENT

     2025 2024
 Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------  

Sales tax refund    1,440,638   766,289 
 Income tax refund  2,417,771   428,713 
 Duty drawback and rebate   1,871,167   2,298,967 
      5,729,576   3,493,969   
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Cash in hand
 - Local currency   93,291   186,919 
 - Foreign currency   5,376   1,270 
         98,667   188,189 
 Balances with banks in current accounts
 - Local currency  216,594   424,685 
 - Foreign currency  244,196   468,894 
       15.1 & 15.2  460,790   893,579 
      559,457   1,081,768 

15.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 17.93 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 205.26 million) held by Shariah 
compliant banks.

15.2 This includes balances held with related parties (associated banks due to common directorships) 
amounting to Rs. 72.66 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 5.70 million).
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17 RESERVES   

     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Capital reserves

    Amalgamation reserve 17.1  8,252,059   8,252,059 

    Statutory reserve 17.2  24,093   20,845 

    Against long term investments, capacity expansion and BMR 17.3   23,000,000   23,000,000 

    Foreign currency translation reserve 17.4   (321,067)  (302,206)

       30,955,085   30,970,698 

 Revenue reserve

    Unappropriated profit   13,484,518   8,956,407 

         44,439,603   39,927,105 

17.1  This represents reserves created under the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 05, 2021 involving the 

holding company, Ideas (Private) Limited, Worldwide Developers (Private) Limited, Grand Industries (Private) 

Limited and Ghafooria Industries (Private) Limited which has been sanctioned by honourable High Court 

of Sindh through order dated October 29, 2021.

17.2  As required by Emiri decree No. 2 of 1995, issued by the Ruler of Sharjah, and the Article of Association of 

Gul Ahmed International (FZC), 10% of the profit for the year has to be transferred to legal reserve until it 

is equivalent to 50% of paid-up capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.

17.3  The Board of the Holding Company, in its meeting held on September 25, 2023, approved the creation of 

a reserve, for the purpose of long term investments, Business Modernisation and capacity expansion, by 

transferring an amount of Rs. 23 billion from unappropriated profit to this reserve. Based on this decision, 

the reserves against long-term investments, capacity expansions and BMR amounting to Rs. 23 billion 

have been separately disclosed as capital reserve not available for distribution in these consolidated 

financial statements.

17.4  The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the 

translation of the consolidated financial statements of foreign operations.

18 LONG TERM FINANCING  

     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Secured

 From Banking Companies 18.1  16,662,456   10,983,212 

 From Non-Banking Financial Institutions 18.2  2,826,322   3,562,997 

 Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance 

    Scheme Facility - net of Government Grant 18.3  2,781,877   3,279,314 

      22,270,655   17,825,523 

 Current portion shown under current liabilities 25  (3,878,180)  (3,233,936)

       18.10  18,392,475   14,591,587 

16 SHARE CAPITAL

16.1 Authorized capital

2025   2024  2025 2024

 -------------(Number of Shares)------------                                      -----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

   5,000,000,000   5,000,000,000   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each  50,000,000   50,000,000

16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2025  2024   2025 2024

     -------------(Number of Shares)------------                                        -----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

    192,161,738   192,161,738  Ordinary shares of Rs.10   1,921,617   1,921,617 

   each allotted for consideration 

   paid in cash 

 108,809,985   108,809,985  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each   1,088,100   1,088,100 

   allotted as fully paid shares 

   under scheme of arrangement 

   for amalgamation (note 17.1)  

   439,087,735   439,087,735  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each   4,390,877   4,390,877 

   allotted as fully paid bonus shares  

   740,059,458   740,059,458     7,400,594   7,400,594 

16.2.1 As at June 30, 2025, Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the Group,

 held 413,383,760 (June 30, 2024: 413,383,760) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, constituting 55.86% (June 30, 2024:

55.86%) of total paid-up capital of the holding company. Number of shares held by the associated companies

and undertakings, other than holding company, aggregated to 99,476,824 (June 30, 2024: 99,476,824) ordinary

 shares of Rs. 10 each.

16.2.2 As per the Honourable Sindh High Court's order, the Group has held 3,471,541 (June 30, 2024: 3,471,541) out

 of the total bonus shares issued for the year 2015, 2019 and 2021 to Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited, an

 associated company and other parties respectively, as these shareholders are part of the suit filed against

 the tax on bonus shares imposed through Finance Act, 2014.

16.2.3 All these fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and equal right to dividend.
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Number of   Maximum Aggregate Mark-up /profit per    
  Particulars Note   installments Maturity Installment annum rate 2025 2024
      Date amount  

18.1 Banking Companies - Secured

Islamic
Holding company
Dubai Islamic Bank 18.5, 18.8  24 and 36  May 06, 2032  173,079  Three months   4,700,000   -   
Under LTL scheme & 18.9 quarterly   KIBOR ask rate + 0.3% 
       payable quarterly 

Faysal Bank Limited 18.5, 18.7  32 quarterly November 01, 2030 28,128  2.75% - 3.9% p.a.   485,178   645,711 
Under ILTFF scheme -  & 18.9        payable quarterly 
- Diminishing Musharaka    

Meezan Bank Limited 18.6, 18.8   32 quarterly  September 13, 2032 91,054  3.5% - 5.5% p.a.     2,174,863   2,529,595 
Under LTL and ILTFF scheme -  & 18.9    payable quarterly   
- Diminishing Musharaka

Subsidiary company
Meezan Bank Limited 18.11 12 monthly December 31, 2026  125,000  One month   1,500,000   -   
Under Diminishing Musharaka  (after 1 year   KIBOR ask rate + 0.05%
    grace period)   payable monthly

Bank Al-Falah Limited 18.11 4 quarterly April 30, 2027  375,000  Three months   1,500,000   -   
Under Diminishing Musharaka     KIBOR ask rate + 0.25%     

     payable quarterly 

Conventional
Askari Bank Limited 18.5, 18.8  20 and 32  August 12, 2027  25,163   2.75% - 3.5% p.a.   453,209  553,368 
Under LTFF scheme & 18.12 quarterly    payable quarterly 

Bank Al-Habib Limited 18.7 16 half yearly  October 22, 2027  13,519   2.75% p.a.   81,109    108,147 
Under LTFF scheme     payable half yearly 

Bank Al-Falah Limited 18.4 & 18.8 16 half yearly December 26, 2032  58,964   3% - 5.5% p.a.   550,482   668,409 
Under LTFF and LTL scheme     payable half yearly 
        
The Bank of Khyber 18.4 32 quarterly  August 17, 2032  15,625  5.5% - 8.5% p.a.   437,500  500,000 
Under LTL scheme     payable quarterly 
        
The Bank of Punjab 18.4 & 18.8 28 quarterly December 02, 2030  71,429  3% p.a.   682,394   967,990 
Under LTFF scheme     payable quarterly 

Habib Bank Limited 18.6 & 18.7 32, 36 and 39  August 09, 2032  50,655  2.80% - 3.25% p.a. payable   966,207   1,163,250 
Under LTL and LTFF scheme   quarterly  half yearly and quarterly 

MCB Bank Limited 18.6 & 18.8 32 quarterly  February 23, 2031  9,596  4.00% p.a. payable half     201,637  240,179 
Under LTL scheme     yearly and quarterly 

National Bank of Pakistan 18.4, 18.5,  20 and 32 May 26, 2030  85,313  2.75% - 2.80% p.a.   1,358,119   1,674,467 
Under LTFF scheme 18.6 & 18.8 quarterly   payable half yearly and
       quarterly 

Soneri Bank Limited 18.4 & 18.8 16 half yearly   April 14, 2032  40,395  3.50% - 5.0% p.a.   743,684   876,346 
Under LTFF scheme  and 32 quarterly    payable half yearly and
       quarterly

United Bank Limited 18.5 & 18.8  16 half yearly  March 21, 2032  64,452  2.75% - 6.25% p.a.   754,021   912,670 
Under LTFF scheme     payable half yearly and 
       quarterly 

Samba Bank Limited 18.4, 18.8 &  10 and 16   December 27, 2028  35,501  3% p.a. payable   74,053   143,080 
Under LTFF scheme 18.12 half yearly    half yearly
         16,662,456   10,983,212 

18.4 These loans are secured by first pari passu charge over present and future operating fixed assets of the 
Holding Company.

18.5 These loans are secured by charge over specified machinery.

18.6 These loans are secured by first pari passu charge over present and future operating fixed assets of the 
Holding Company and equitable mortgage over land and building.

18.7 These loans are secured by charge over specified machinery of the Group and equitable mortgage over 
land and building.

18.8 The financing availed under the facility is repayable within a maximum period of ten years including 
maximum grace period of two years from the date when financing was availed.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

   Number of   Maximum Aggregate Mark-up /profit per     
  Particulars Note   installments Maturity Installment annum rate 2025 2024

    Date amount  

18.2 Non-Banking Financial Institutions - Secured

Pair Investment Company  18.4 ,18.6 &  12 and 16 October 15, 2029  65,392   3.0%- 3.5% p.a.  311,699  419,341 
Limited  18.8  half yearly      payable half yearly    
           Under LTFF scheme   
        
Pak Kuwait Investment  18.4 ,18.5  32 quarterly September 25, 2032 62,189  3.0%- 8.5% p.a.   960,562   1,211,540 
Pvt.  Limited & 18.8           payable quarterly    
Under LTFF scheme

Pak China Investment  18.4 ,18.5  32 quarterly  November 22, 2031  44,763   3.35% - 5.35% p.a.  1,079,118   1,261,065 
Pvt. Limited & 18.8        payable quarterly
Under LTFF scheme

Pak Brunei Investment  18.4 ,18.5 & 18.8 16 half yearly July 28, 2027  36,524    2.5% p.a.  159,472   232,684 
Company Limited          payable quarterly 
Under LTFF scheme

Pak Oman Investment  18.5 & 18.8 32 quarterly  September 13, 2027  30,724    2.75% p.a.  315,471   438,367 
Company Limited         payable quarterly 
Under LTFF scheme
             2,826,322   3,562,997 

18.3 Financing under Temporary Economic Refinance Scheme Facility - net of Government Grant

Habib Bank Limited 18.5 & 18.8 16 half yearly September 23, 2030  59,375   2.25 % p.a. payable half yearly  637,854   750,163 

MCB Bank Limited 18.6 & 18.8 32 quarterly February 23, 2031  13,841   3.00% p.a. payable quarterly  296,868   349,236 

MCB Islamic Bank Limited 18.6 & 18.8 32 quarterly January 19, 2031  9,375   2.50% p.a. payable quarterly  201,416   236,889 

Bank of Punjab 18.4 ,18.5 & 18.8 32 quarterly December 02, 2030  31,250   2.0 % p.a. payable quarterly  727,587   863,939 

Pak Kuwait Investment 18.4 ,18.5 & 18.8 32 quarterly  September 25, 2032  9,464   2.5% p.a. payable quarterly  187,579  223,491 
(Private) Limited

Pak China Investment 18.4 ,18.5 & 18.8 32 quarterly  November 22, 2031  17,738   2.50% p.a. payable quarterly  386,414   453,453 
(Private) Limited

Saudi Pak Industrial And 18.4 ,18.5 & 18.8 32 quarterly  April 27, 2031  15,357   2.50% p.a. payable quarterly  344,159   402,143 
Agricultural Investment 
Company Limited
             2,781,877   3,279,314 
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20 DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT

     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 

 Opening balance   102,906   134,994 

 Amortised during the year 33  (28,251)  (32,088)

         74,655   102,906 

 Current portion shown under current liabilities 25  (24,035)  (28,251)

 Closing balance   50,620   74,655 

20.1 This represent government grant recognised on the concessionary refinance facility introduced by State
 Bank of Pakistan under a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) for setting up of new industrial
 units and for undertaking Balancing, Modernisation and Replacement and / or expansion of projects /
 businesses. These have been accounted for as per the guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered
 Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) in respect of these loans.

21 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - STAFF GRATUITY

     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

21.1 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit

obligation and movement in net defined benefit liability

Opening balance   528,898   337,549 

 Charge 21.2  268,770   236,932 

 Remeasurement (gain) / loss  21.3  (76,940)  41,421 

 Benefits paid   (245,621)  (83,420)

 Benefits due but not paid  -     (3,406)

 Foreign currency translation   160   (178)

 Closing balance   475,267   528,898

21.2 Charge for the year recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss

 Current service cost  205,666   191,611 

 Mark-up cost   59,077   46,588 

      264,743   238,199 

 Charge / (reversal) in respect of obligation of the subsidiary company  4,027   (1,267)

      268,770   236,932

21.3 Remeasurement loss / (gain) charged in consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income

 Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in financial assumptions   (1,683)  20,441 

 Experience adjustments   (75,257)  20,980 

      (76,940)  41,421 

Opening balance   528,898   337,549 

 Charge 21.2  268,770   236,932 

 Remeasurement (gain) / loss  21.3  (76,940)  41,421 

 Benefits paid   (245,621)  (83,420)

 Benefits due but not paid  -     (3,406)

 Foreign currency translation   160   (178)

 Closing balance   475,267   528,898

 Current service cost  205,666   191,611 

 Mark-up cost   59,077   46,588 

      264,743   238,199 

 Charge / (reversal) in respect of obligation of the subsidiary company  4,027   (1,267)

      268,770   236,932

 Actuarial (gain) / losses from changes in financial assumptions   (1,683)  20,441 

 Experience adjustments   (75,257)  20,980 

      (76,940)  41,421 

18.9 These loans are obtained under Shariah compliant arrangements. 

18.10 Loans are subject to compliance of certain covenants including Debt Service Coverage ratio, Current ratio, 
Debt to Equity ratio, Interest Cover, Maximum Gearing, Debt to EBITDA, Debt to Sales and are secured 
against the charge over assets of the Group.

18.11 Loans are secured by first equitable mortgage charge over the subsidiary company's property. 

18.12 These represent financing obtained from related parties (associated banks due to common directorships) 
of the Group.

19 LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Opening balance  3,738,012   3,601,520 

 Additions during the year   2,356,426   528,589 

 Interest expense 34  747,487   507,171 

 Adjustment during the year   113,726   145,823 

 Payments during the year   (1,477,737)  (1,044,823)

 Foreign currency translation   177   (268)

 Closing balance   5,478,091   3,738,012 

 Current portion shown under current liabilities 25  1,094,691   548,173 

 Non-current portion   4,383,400   3,189,839 

 Closing balance   5,478,091   3,738,012

19.1 Maturity profile of minimum lease payments

2025
   Minimum lease Interest   Present value of   
   payments    minimum lease  
       payments

                        
 Less than one year   1,826,863 (732,172)  1,094,691 
 Between one and five years   4,791,033 (581,176)  4,209,857 
 More than five years   1,207,514 (1,033,971)  173,543 
    7,825,410   (2,347,319)  5,478,091 

    2024
  Minimum lease Interest  Present value of   
   payments   minimum lease  
       payments

                     
 Less than one year   1,004,616   (456,443)  548,173 
 Between one and five years   3,852,324   (1,222,390)  2,629,934 
 More than five years   944,132   (384,227)  559,905 
    5,801,072   (2,063,060)  3,738,012 
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21.4 Significant actuarial assumptions used   

 Following significant actuarial assumptions were used for the valuation by an independent valuer that is 

 "Nauman Associates":

       2025 2024

 Discount rate used for year end obligation   11.75% 14.75%

Rate used for markup cost   14.75% 16.25%

Expected increase in salary   10.00% 20.00%

Mortality rates   SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

       Set back 1 Year Set back 1 Year

Withdrawal rates   Age-Based Age-Based

Retirement assumption   Age 60 Age 60

 The discount rate used in the last actuarial valuation as on June 30, 2024 was 14.75% per annum. However, 

 in the current investment environment, where there is an downward trend in the interest rate structure,

 the discount rate has been decreased to 11.75% per annum, in line with the specifications of the IAS-19.

Correspondingly, due to decrease in inflationary expectations, the rate of increase in eligible salary has been

 decreased to 10.75% from 13.75% per annum.

21.5 Associated risks  

 (a)  Final Salary risk (Linked to inflation risk)      

  The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what has been

   assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and

   other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

  

(b)  Demographic Risk      

  Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This  

 effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

   Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal  

 probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled   

 benefits of the beneficiaries.

21.6 General Description   

The scheme provides retirement benefits to all its eligible employees of the Holding Company who are not

 part of the provident fund scheme and who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service.

 Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out periodically and latest actuarial valuation was carried out

 at June 30, 2025. The disclosure is based on information included in that actuarial report. The gratuity is

 measured on last drawn salary multiplied by number of years of service.    

    

21.7 Sensitivity Analysis  

 Reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding 

 other assumptions constant ( ± 100 bps ), would have affected the defined benefit obligation:

     2025 2024

    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

  Discount Rate + 100 bps  6,502   7,098 

  Discount Rate - 100 bps   (6,754)  (7,366)

  Salary increase + 100 bps   (6,503)  (7,185)

  Salary increase - 100 bps   6,371   7,044 

 Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, 
it does provide approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

21.8 Maturity profile

Maturity profile on defined benefit obligation as presented by actuary in the report;   

      

     2025 2024

 FY 2025  N/A   321,496 

 FY 2026   278,916   258,322 

 FY 2027   215,999   178,930 

 FY 2028   146,144   123,968 

 FY 2029   98,818   86,754 

 FY 2030   67,340   61,650 

 FY 2031   47,396   45,036 

 FY 2032   32,144   31,222 

 FY 2033   23,215   23,818 

 FY 2034   16,462   17,535 

 FY 2035   11,642   50,061 

 FY 2036 onwards   30,986   N/A 

 The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 1 year.    

21.9 Estimated expenses to be charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in financial year 2026:

 Current service cost  191,624 

 Mark up on defined benefit obligation  38,390 

   230,014
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

     2025 2024
 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Creditors   16,511,384   14,773,722 
 Accrued expenses   7,812,355   6,809,442 
 Gas infrastructure development cess payable 22.1  3,686,367   3,686,367 
 Payable to bank under bill discounting arrangement  2,111,194   7,149,819 
 Advance from customers  691,091   831,454 
 Workers' profit participation fund 22.2  331,048   391,652 
 Workers' welfare fund 22.3  143,045   129,235 
 Taxes withheld  164,939   151,588 
 Payable to employees' provident fund trust  47,732   69,600 
 Liability under forward cover  64,902   -   
 Due to related parties 22.4  53,086   95,157 
 Others 22.5 & 22.6  226,119   233,839 
      31,843,262   34,321,875

22.1 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) that was levied through GIDC Act, 2015
 (refer note 27.4).

     2025 2024
 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
22.2 Workers' profit participation fund

Movement of balance during the year:
 Opening balance  391,652   342,711 
 Allocation 32  331,048   361,927 
 Markup  22,867   8,908 
      745,567   713,546 
 Payments   (414,519)  (321,894)
 Closing balance   331,048   391,652 

22.3 Workers' welfare fund

Movement of balance during the year:
 Opening balance  129,235   122,667 
 Allocation 32  143,045   129,236 
        272,280   251,903 
 Payments  (129,235)  (122,668)
 Closing balance  143,045   129,235 

22.4 Due to related parties

 Win Star (Private) Limited   26,022   19,211 
 Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited  398   49,508 
 Grand Industries (Private) Limited  4,617   4,389 
 TPL Properties Limited  22,049   22,049 
      53,086   95,157 

22.5 This includes withheld taxes payable of Rs. 65.217 million (2024: Rs. 95,186 million) and Rs 54.266 million
 (2024: Rs. 39.286 million) in respect of unutilised gift cards.

22.6 This includes amount of Rs. 84.055 million on account of credits errorneously made by payment gateway.

23 ACCRUED MARK-UP / PROFIT
     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 

Long term financing  192,314   192,003 
 Short term borrowings  694,476   1,211,748 
       23.1 & 23.2  886,790   1,403,751 

23.1 This includes accrued markup / profit of Rs. 132.8 million and Rs. 161.0 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 81.1 
 million and Rs. 358.7 million) accrued in long term financing and short term borrowings respectively
 under Shariah Compliant arrangements.
     
23.2 This includes accrued markup pertaining to related parties (associated banks due to common
 directorships) amounting to Rs. 4 million and Rs. 82 million in respect of long term financing and short
 term borrowings respectively (June 30, 2024: Rs. 5 million and Rs. 257 million).

24 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Local currency

 Running finance   5,593,672   5,286,695 
 Export refinance scheme  22,161,400   20,761,400 
 Other short term finances  4,204,545   3,868,906 
      31,959,617   29,917,001 

Foreign currency
 Export facilitation scheme   8,819,749   9,542,784 
 Foreign currency export finance  13,884,170   2,785,867 
 Foreign currency import finance  783,043   -   
 Running finance  635,478   248,676 
         24,122,440   12,577,327 
       24.1 to 24.5  56,082,057   42,494,328

24.1 This includes Istisna Financing (Shariah Compliant) amounting to Rs. 14,844 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 
9,949 million) in local currency. This also includes Running Musharika (Shariah Compliant) amounting to 
Rs. 1,750 million (June 30, 2024: Nil).

24.2 Short term borrowings are secured by pari passu hypothecation charge over stores and spares, 
stock-in-trade, trade debts and other receivables. Unavailed facility at the year end was Rs. 16,753 million 
(June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,734 million). 

24.3 This includes revolving short term borrowing amounting to Rs. 203 million @ 9.5% (June 30, 2024: Rs. 73 
million @ 9.5%) obtained by Sky Home Corp from Habib American Bank. This is secured against corporate 
guarantee of the Holding Company, personal guarantee of a director, promissory note of USD 900,000 in 
favour of the bank and charge over current assets of respective subsidiary. Revolving loans against factored 
receivables of Sky Home Corporation use for payment of import bills, purchases and to meet other operating 
expenses. Payment of principal and interest on realisation of receivables.

  
24.4 Local currency borrowings markup ranges from 8% to 12.5% (June 30, 2024: 18% to 25%) per annum payable 

quarterly, whereas, foreign currency borrowings markup range from 2.5% to 5% (June 30, 2024: 2.5% to 
6%) per annum.

24.5 These include balances pertaining to related parties (associated banks due to common directorships) 
amounting to Rs. 8,796 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 14,579 million).
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25 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 

Current portion of:
 Long term financing - secured 18  3,878,180   3,233,936 
 Lease liability against right of use asset 19  1,094,691   548,173 
 Deferred income - government grant 20  24,035   28,251 
      4,996,906   3,810,360 

26 UNPAID DIVIDEND 26.1  23,505   23,505 

26.1 This represents amount held by the Group pertaining to the Petitioners of the suit filed in the Honourable
 High Court of Sindh against the tax on bonus shares imposed through Finance Act 2014. The amount
 includes Rs. 18 million and Rs. 0.8 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 18 million and Rs. 0.8 million) of Gul Ahmed
 Holdings (Private) Limited and an associated company respectively.

27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited - Holding Company
27.1 The Holding Company owns and possesses a plot of land measuring 44.04 acres in Deh Khanto which i
 duly registered in its name and appearing in the books at a cost of Rs. 83.86 million (June 30, 2024: 
 Rs. 83.86 million). Ownership of the land has been challenged in the Honourable Sindh High Court by 
 Messrs. Karim Bux, Iqbal Rasheed and Mansoor Munawar who claim to be the owners, as this land was
 previously sold to them and subsequently resold to the Holding Company. The legal consultant of the
 Holding Company is of the view that the Holding Company has a reasonable case and is expecting
 favourable outcome, therefore no provision has been made there against. In respect of the same land, the
 Holding Company has filed a suit in January 2021 for declaration and permanent injunction in the
 Honourable High Court of Sindh, seeking the declaration that the Holding Company is lawful owner of
 the said property and that the undated notice issued by the Pakistan Railways for sealing and taking over
 the possession of the said property is of no legal effect. The matter is at hearing stage and the legal
 consultant of the Holding Company is of the view that the title of the Holding Company stands clear and
 there is no likelihood of unfavourable outcome.

27.2 The Holding Company has filed a Petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court, dated March 30, 2008,
 against order passed by the Board of Trustees, Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) for
 upholding the unjustified additional demand of payment raised by EOBI for accounting years 2000-2001
 and 2001-2002 amounting to Rs. 50.83 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 50.83 million). This demand was raised
 after lapse of more than two years although the records and books of the Holding Company were verified 
 by the EOBI to their entire satisfaction and finalisation of all matters by EOBI. The Honourable Sindh High
 Court has restrained EOBI from taking any action or proceedings against the Holding Company. The legal
 consultant of the Holding Company is of the view that the Holding Company has a reasonable case and is
 expecting favourable outcome therefore, no provision has been made there against.

27.3 The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide SRO 491(I)/2016 dated June 30, 2016 made amendments in SRO
 1125(I)/2011 dated December 31, 2011 for disallowance of input tax adjustment on packing material. The
 Holding Company has challenged the disallowance of input tax adjustments on packing material in the
 Sindh High Court through suit No. 2381 / 2016 dated November 10, 2016 against Federation of Pakistan
 and others. The matter is pending before the Honourable Court for final outcome and the legal
 consultant of the Holding Company do not foresee any liability that is likely to arise, however provision
 has been made amounting to Rs. 431.88 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 431.88 million) in these consolidated
 financial statements.

27.4 The Holding Company's review petition challenging the decision of High Court against the GIDC Act, 2015 
had been dismissed by the Supreme Court of Pakistan while also suspending the billing of levy from 
August 2020. The court had ordered to pay the GIDC dues under the GIDC Act, 2015 with retrospective 
effect from December 15, 2011, in 48 monthly installments starting from August 2020. Total amount of the 
cess works out to Rs. 3.69 billion on the basis that the Holding Company has both Industrial and Captive 
connections having different GIDC rates. However, Oil and Gas Development Authority has ruled out that 
the consumers having supply of natural gas for industrial use and having in-house electricity generation 
facility for self-consumption do not fall under the definition of Captive as well as the Honourable Sindh 
High Court has also decided in favor of the Company on the issue of Captive connections for self 
consumption. Therefore, management, based on the legal advice believes that maximum liability of the 
Company in respect of GIDC will be Rs. 2.3 billion. The Company in September 2020 filed a suit in Honourable 
Sindh High Court challenging the chargeability of GIDC. The Honourable Sindh High Court granted stay order 
and restrained Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) from taking any coercive action against non-payment of 
installments of GIDC. However, the management on prudent basis has maintained a liability of Rs. 3.69 billion 
(June 30, 2024: Rs. 3.69 billion) in these consolidated financial statements (refer note 22.1). 

27.5 The Holding Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Appeals Inland Revenue against the 
Order-In-Original vide No. 04/176 of 2023 dated August 24, 2023 whereby demand of Rs. 30.5 million along 
with penalty and default surcharge on the issue of dual adjustment of input tax claimed during the tax 
periods from September 2017 to May 2022. The Holding Company has claimed the said invoices but FBR 
has already deferred the input tax amount against the said service invoices during the process of sales tax 
refund and the Holding Company has not received any input tax amount against said service invoices. 
Department also validates the same deferred invoices with FBR system. The matter is at hearing stage 
and the legal consultant of the Holding Company is of the view that the title of the Holding Company 
stands clear and there is no likelihood of unfavourable outcome. 

27.6 For the tax year 2016, FBR issued income tax amended order under section 122(1) of the ITO, 2001 on August 
21, 2019, wherein certain provisions and expenses aggregating to Rs. 338.2 million (having tax impact of 
Rs. 108.2 million) were added back to the income and super tax of Rs. 42.8 million was also levied. The 
Holding Company contested the matter in appeal and Commissioner Income Tax (Appeal) passed an 
order in favor of the Holding Company allowing the expenses aggregating to Rs. 290 million, However, 
Department had filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal on September 17, 2019 against the order which is 
still pending. The legal consultant believes that the aforementioned matter will be ultimately decided in 
favor of the Holding Company. Based on the advice of legal advisor, no provision is required to be made 
in the provision for taxation in these consolidated financial statements, in excess of the adjustment of Rs. 
8 million recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

27.7 The Federal Government, through the Finance Act, 2019, amended Section 65B of the ITO, 2001, reducing 
the rate of tax credit from 10% to 5% on investments made in the extension, expansion, balancing, 
modernization, and replacement (BMR) of plant and machinery for Tax year 2019. Further, the availability 
of such tax credit was curtailed to June 30, 2019, whereas under the un-amended law, it was available up 
to June 30, 2021.

 The Holding Company, along with other petitioners, challenged the aforesaid amendment before the 
Honourable Sindh High Court through constitutional petitions filed for Tax years 2019, 2020, and 2021. The 
Honourable Court granted interim relief, allowing the petitioners to file their income tax returns in 
accordance with the un-amended provisions of Section 65B. Consequently, the Holding Company claimed 
tax credit at the rate of 10% in its income tax returns for the above-mentioned tax years.

   
On February 07, 2023, the Honourable Sindh High Court decided the matter, holding that tax credit under 
Section 65B at the rate of 10% was allowable, subject to the condition that the letter of credit for import of 
plant and machinery was established on or before June 30, 2019 and the installation was completed on or 
before June 30, 2021.
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 The (FBR) preferred an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court, contending that the applicable rate 
of tax credit should be restricted to 5% instead of 10%. Vide judgment dated September 18, 2024, the 
Honourable Supreme Court upheld the allowance of 10% tax credit only in respect of plant and machinery 
imported and installed up to June 30, 2019, while disallowing the tax credit for Tax Year 2020. Since the 
Holding Company had derecognised the investment tax credit in previous years, now as a result of the 
aforementioned judgement of the Supreme Court, the Holding Company has recorded adjustment of Rs. 
470.177 million, for the said judgement in these consolidated financial statements (refer note 36).

27.8 The Holding Company, along with other petitioners, has challenged the retrospective increase of the rates 
of super tax for tax year 2023 in the Honourable Islamabad High Court through Constitutional Petition. 
The Honourable High Court has passed an interim order dated October 03, 2023 allowing the petitioners 
not to pay Super Tax in excess of the rate prescribed in the amendment under challenge and has restrained 
tax authorities, from taking any coercive action against the Holding Company. On March 15, 2024, the 
Honourable Islamabad High Court decided the case in favour of the Holding Company. The FBR has filed 
an appeal before Divisional Bench of Islamabad High Court against the above judgment which is pending 
for hearing. The amount of super tax involved is Rs. 946 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 421 million).

   
 The Supreme court, vide Order dated March 23, 2025 directed that all the petitioners and appeal pending 

at different High court of the Country regarding Super Tax should be transferred to the Supreme Court of 
Pakistan. Accordingly, the above mentioned case has also been, transferred to the Supreme Court of 
Pakistan.

   
27.9 The Holding Company along with several other petitioners had filed a Constitution Petition on January 

16, 2020 against Karachi Water & Sewerage Board (KWSB) and others in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
against notification dated October 30, 2019 issued by the KWSB whereby water charges were increased 
from Rs. 242 to Rs. 313 per 1000 gallons. The Honourable Sindh High Court has restrained KWSB from 
taking any coercive action against the Holding Company and allowed the Holding Company to pay the 
bills as per old rates. As required under the Order, the Holding Company provides banker's verified Cheques 
each month aggregating to Rs. 337.89 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 211.72 million) being the difference between Rs. 
313 and Rs. 242 per 1000 gallons and based on the advice of the legal consultant, as a matter of prudence, 
maintained full provision in these consolidated financial statements.

    
27.10 The Holding Company along with other petitioners have challenged the imposition of Infrastructure Cess 

by the relevant Excise and Taxation Officer, Karachi through petition dated May 28, 2011. Furthermore, the 
Holding Company has also filed petition against Sindh Infrastructure Cess levied through the Sindh Finance 
Act, 1994. During the year ended June 30, 2018 the Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure 
Cess Act, 2017 (the Act) was also enacted by the Province of Sindh against which the Holding Company 
also had filed constitutional petition dated October 14, 2017 and Honourable High Court of Sindh had 
allowed interim relief to the Holding Company till final judgment has been allowed in other similar petitions. 
However, based on the advice of legal consultant, full amount has been provided in these consolidated 
financial statements. During the year, no progress was made in court proceedings. The Bank Guarantee 
of Rs. 2,107 million as a security was given (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,477 million).

27.11 The Holding Company along with several other companies filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
challenging the notification via SRO No. (I) / 2015 dated August 31, 2015 regarding increase in the gas tariff, 
on November 16, 2015, which was decided by the Honourable Sindh High Court in favor of the Holding 
Company and thereafter, the Government filed an appeal in the Divisional Bench of the Honourable Sindh 
High Court against the decision, which has also been decided in favor of the Holding Company. As a matter 
of prudence, the Holding Company has maintained a full provision of the said notification amounting to 
Rs. 159.9 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 159.9 million) in the consolidated financial statements.

 OGRA issued further notifications on December 30, 2016, September 17, 2018, October 23, 2020 enhancing 
the rates. The Holding Company, along with others, has filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
against the said notifications.

 For notification dated December 30, 2016, Honourable Sindh High Court granted interim relief and 
instructed Sui Southern Gas Company (SSGC) to revise the bills at previous rate and instructed the Holding 
Company to deposit the differential amount cheques with Nazir Sindh High Court as security. During the 
year, the Divisional Bench of Honorable Sindh High Court has decided the case in favour of the Holding 
Company vide judgment dated February 03, 2025. Simultaneously, the Divisional Bench of Sindh High 
Court vide Judgment dated March 10, 2025, ordered that the Nazir of Sindh High Court returns the cheques 
of Rs. 250.67 million which was deposited with Nazir, which have been received back by the Holding 
Company. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgment.

 For notification dated October 23, 2020, on February 18, 2024, the Honourable Sindh High Court decided 
the case against the Holding Company. The Holding Company filed an appeal in the Divisional Bench of 
the Honourable Sindh High Court against the decision, which has also been decided against the Holding 
Company dated March 28 2024. Now, the Company has filed appeal in the Supreme Court against the 
judgment passed by the Divisional Bench of Honourable Sindh High Court and the case is currently 
pending for hearing.

   
 On February 15, 2023, OGRA issued another notification revising the gas tariff with retrospective effect 

from January 01, 2023. The Holding Company, along with several other companies, has filed a suit in the 
Honourable Sindh High Court challenging the increase in the gas tariff with retrospective effect. The 
Honourable Sindh High Court has restrained SSGC from taking any coercive action against the Holding 
Company. As a matter of prudence, the Holding Company has maintained a full provision of the said 
notification amounting to Rs. 174.4 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 174.4 million) in the consolidated financial 
statements.

    
 On November 08, 2023, OGRA issued notification and increased the gas rate retrospectively from November 

01, 2023. The Holding Company along with others filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against 
the notification challenging the increase of gas tariff and its retrospective application from November 01, 
2023. While the case is currently pending for hearing before the Honourable Sindh High Court, however, 
the Holding Company has paid increased amount to SSGC with the understanding that incase the decision 
comes in favour of the Holding Company, the SSGC will either refund the excess amount or it will adjust 
in future bills post favourable decision.

    
 While awaiting the decision for above case, on February 15, 2024, SSGC issued another notification to 

further increase the gas tariff with retrospective application from February 1, 2024, where the Holding 
Company again challenged its retrospective charge from February 01, 2024. Subsequently, the Honourable 
Sindh High Court decided the case of retrospective application under above notification in favour of the 
Holding Company, which has been challenged by SSGC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan and is currently, 
pending for hearing.

27.12 The Holding Company along with several other companies filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High Court 
challenging the notification via SRO No. (I) / 2015 dated August 31, 2015 for charging of captive power tariff 
instead of Industry tariff rate to the Holding Company, as the Holding Company is producing electricity 
entirely for its own consumption, on November 16, 2015, which was decided by the Honourable Sindh 
High Court in favor of the Holding Company and thereafter, the Government filed an appeal in the Divisional 
Bench of the Honourable Sindh High Court against the decision, which has also been decided in favor of 
the Holding Company. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgement. As a matter 
of prudence, the Holding Company has maintained a full provision of the said notification amounting to 
Rs. 237.6 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 237.6 million) in the consolidated financial statements.   
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 The Holding Company along with several other companies has filed a suit in the Honourable Sindh High 

Court challenging the notifications dated December 30, 2016, September 17, 2018 and October 23, 2020 

for charging of captive power tariff instead of Industry tariff rate to the Holding Company, as the Holding 

Company is producing electricity entirely for its own consumption. The Honourable Sindh High Court has 

passed the interim orders for not charging the Captive power tariff rates and consequently restrained 

SSGC from taking any coercive action against the Holding Company.

    

 During the year, for OGRA Notification dated on December 30, 2016, the Divisional Bench of Honorable 

Sindh High Court has decided the case in favour of the Holding Company vide judgment dated February 

03, 2025. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgment. Simultaneously, the Divisional 

Bench of Sindh High Court vide Judgment dated March 10, 2025, ordered that the Nazir of Sindh High 

Court returns the cheques of Rs. 388.57 million which was deposited with Nazir, which have been received 

back by the Holding Company. SSGC has filed the appeal in Supreme Court against the judgment.

   

 OGRA issued another notification dated October 04, 2018 revising the tariff effective September 27, 2018, 

and subsequent to this notification, the Holding Company paid the bills accordingly at the specified rates.

   

27.13 The Holding Company along with other Companies, have challenged the vires of the Off the Grid (Captive 

Power Plants) Levy Ordinance, 2025 promulgated on January 30, 2025 and the notifications dated March 

07, 2025 issued by the Ministry of Energy in purported exercise of the powers conferred by section 3(1) of 

the Impugned Ordinance, which imposes a levy, to be notified by Ministry of Energy, on the consumption 

of natural gas or RLNG by captive power plants over and above the sale price of such natural gas or RLNG. 

The above case is still pending before the Honourable Islamabad High Court. The Holding Company, along 

with others, filed petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the notification challenging with 

its retrospective implication from February 01, 2025. The Honourable Sindh High Court has passed the 

interim orders for not charging the relevant amount for the month of February 2025. The Bank Guarantee 

of Rs. 138.59 million (June 30, 2024 Rs. Nil) as a security was given, while awaiting the decision for above case.

      

27.14 Guarantees and others
 (a) Guarantees of Rs. 5,464 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,542 million) have been  issued by  banks on

   behalf of the Group which are secured by pari passu hypothecation charge over stores and spares,  

  stock-in-trade, trade debts and other receivables. These guarantees includes guarantees issued by  

  related parties amounting to Rs. 2,980 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,154 million).

 (b) Post dated cheques of Rs. 30,298 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 25,580 million)  are issued to Custom Authorities in  

  respect of duties on imported items availed on the basis of consumption and export plans.

 (c) Bills discounted Rs. 11,220 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 13,451 million), including bills discounted from  

  related parties amounting to Rs. 3,643 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,470 million).  

 (d) Corporate guarantee of Rs. 264 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 237 million), Rs. 1,129 million (June 30,  

  2024: 1,106 million) and Rs. 256 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 251 million) have been issued to various  

  banks in favor of subsidiary companies - GTM (Europe) Limited, Gul Ahmed International FZC and  

  Sky Home Corp. respectively.

27.15 Commitments
     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

   Capital expenditure for plant and machineries  3,892,512   761,382 

   Other than capital expenditure 27.15.1  22,897,749   15,429,528 

   Forward foreign exchange contracts 27.15.2  9,183,718   21,344,805 

27.15.1  Other than capital expenditure includes commitments for purchase of raw materials and stores and spares.

27.15.2  This includes forward foreign exchange contracts amounting to USD 30 million (2024: USD 33 million),
  equivalent to Rs. 8,646 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 9,543 million) obtained under pre-shipment exports.
  The Group is obligated to provide export documents against such amount. The above liability has been
  appropriately recorded under Export Facilitation Scheme and is disclosed in note 24 of these consolidated
  financial statements.

Pension Commitments
  GTM (Europe) Ltd.  operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held 
  separately from those of GTM (Europe) Ltd. in an independently administered fund. The pension cost
  charge represents contributions payable by GTM (Europe) Ltd. to the fund and amounted to Rs. 2.0 million
  (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1.8 million).

28 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Export sales
 Direct   111,903,310   104,134,670 
 Indirect  43,991,771   35,374,474 
         155,895,081   139,509,144 
 Export rebate   -     567,346 
 Trade and other discount   (1,190,366)  (856,537)
 Commission   (1,769,346)  (2,277,994)
 Sales tax   (6,712,615)  (3,343,155)
         146,222,754   133,598,804 

 Local sales 28.1  47,196,733   45,760,881 
 Brokerage    (435,757)  (407,153)
 Sales tax   (7,442,298)  (6,472,804)
      39,318,678   38,880,924 
         185,541,432   172,479,728 

28.1 Local sales include revenue from in-house manufacturing services on behalf of third party of Rs. 1,178 million 
 (2024: Rs. 772 million).

28.2 Information with respect to disaggregration of revenue by internal segment and geographical location is
 disclosed in note 38 and 39 respectively.

28.3 All revenue earned is from shariah permissible business.
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30 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST
     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Salaries, wages and benefits 31.1  3,374,873   2,709,337 
 Freight and shipment expenses   2,394,813   1,731,190 
 Advertisement and publicity   1,506,772   1,439,929 
 Rent and ancillary charges 30.2  692,133   720,972 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4.1.1 & 6.1  483,766   386,460 
 Depreciation on right of use assets 5  946,012   629,673 
 Utilities   707,074   689,375 
 Communication   329,215   330,581 
 Export development surcharge   282,183   316,177 
 Royalty, markdown allowance and damage chargeback 30.1 & 30.3  41,830   1,652 
 Other expenses   562,636   1,045,437 
      11,321,307   10,000,783

30.1 Royalty charges being 6% of the net sales of Sky Home Corp pertains to Joint Trademark Holdings LLC, 
 a Delaware Limited Liability Company, having registered office at 1450 Broadway, 3rd Floor, New York,
 NY10018 and Portico Brands, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, with a registered place of
 business at 156 Fifth Avenue, 10th Floor,New York, New York 10010. 

30.2 These represent variable rents, rents of short term leases and other ancillary charges related to leased premises.

30.3 This includes markdown allowance, which is a rebate from manufacturer to retailer to cover losses from
 clearance or promotional pricing. Further, it includes a damage chargeback, which is a fee a retailer or vendor 
 pays to a marketplace, for damaged goods that cannot be resold.

     2025 2024
 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
31 ADMINISTRATIVE COST
 Salaries, wages and benefits 31.1  2,755,410   2,682,505 
 Rent and ancillary charges 31.2  192,179   275,299 
 Repairs and maintenance   37,800   262,748 
 Vehicle up keep and maintenance   942,173   600,314 
 Utilities   13,127   34,609 
 Traveling and conveyance   766,240   507,196 
 Printing and stationery   99,212   107,530 
 Communication  256,884   303,732 
 Legal and consultancy fees   183,065   231,164 
 Fees and subscription  260,391   94,693 
 Depreciation and amortisation 4.1.1 & 6.1  265,469   327,031 
 Depreciation on right of use assets 5  33,253   54,126 
 Auditors' remuneration 31.3  26,095   28,636 
 Donations 31.4 & 31.5  119,047   62,095 
 Insurance    241,149   188,708 
 Expected credit loss on trade debts 12.1  (58,900)  (226,929)
 Expected credit loss on other receivables 13.1  38,792   -   
 Other expenses   664,102   413,506 
        6,835,488   5,946,963

29 COST OF SALES

     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Opening stock of finished goods  14,867,005   14,774,304 

 Cost of goods manufactured 29.1  149,072,268   134,595,936 

 Purchase of finished goods  9,571,527   9,232,274 

         173,510,800   158,602,514 

 Closing stock of finished goods 11  (20,046,894)  (14,867,005)

      153,463,906   143,735,509

29.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw materials consumed 29.2  100,360,089   91,207,219 

 Other material and conversion cost  11,691,729   10,914,792 

 Stores and spares consumed  143,443   384,074 

 Salaries, wages and benefits 31.1  18,022,557   16,426,653 

 Fuel, power and water  13,571,818   12,048,844 

 Insurance  279,643   226,843 

 Repair and maintenance  2,062,373   2,305,168 

 Depreciation and amortisation 4.1.1 & 6.1  4,397,811   4,292,357 

 Depreciation on right of use assets 5  14,463   22,451 

 Reversal of provision for slow moving - stores and spares 10.1  (51,249)  (148,345)

 Reversal of provision for slow moving -  stock-in-trade 11.1  (174,464)  (12,028)

 Other manufacturing expenses   998,708   599,852 

         151,316,921   138,267,880 

 Work-in-process (WIP)

 Opening stock - WIP  9,921,938   6,249,994 

 Closing stock - WIP 11  (12,166,591)  (9,921,938)

      (2,244,653)  (3,671,944)

         149,072,268   134,595,936

29.2 Raw materials consumed

 Opening stock - raw material  31,297,840   26,502,764 

 Purchases during the year   109,116,941   96,002,295 

 Closing stock - raw material 11  (40,054,692)  (31,297,840)

      100,360,089   91,207,219 
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31.1 Salaries, wages and benefits     

31.2 This represents rent expense which comprises of variable rents, rent of certain short term and low value 
 leases, ancillary and maintenance charges incurred in respect of lease premises.

31.5 During the year, the Group made donations amounting to Rs. 100 million to Indus Hospital and Health
 Network (2024: Rs. 43 million to Saylani Welfare International Trust).

Cost of 
sales

Distribution 
costs

Administrative 
costs Total

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Salaries, wages and 
benefits

Retirement benefits

Gratuity (note 21.2)
Provident fund

Staff compensated 
absences

 17,272,819 

 268,770 
 374,708 
 643,478 

 106,260 

18,022,557 

 15,771,973 

 236,932 
 321,501 

 558,433 

 96,247 

16,426,653 

 3,337,169 

-
 37,665 
 37,665 

 39 

 3,374,873 

 2,699,431 

-   
 55,854 
 55,854 

 125 

 2,755,410 

21,024,456 

 236,932 
 460,743 
 697,675 

 96,364 

 21,818,495 

31.3 Auditors' remuneration
     2025 2024

    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Holding Company

 Audit fee   10,800   10,800 
 Fee for review of condensed interim financial statements  2,160   2,160 
 Fee for audit of consolidated financial statements   1,560   1,560 
 Review fee of statement of compliance with code of 
 corporate governance  200   480 
 Other certification fee   400   2,200 
 Out of pocket expenses  2,458   5,441 
      17,578   22,641 

 Local Subsidiary   1,288   1,080 
 Foreign Subsidiaries - Audit fee (multiple audit firms)   7,229   4,915 
      26,095   28,636 

31.4 Donations include donations to the following organizations in which a director is a trustee:

Name of Donee

Habib University 
Foundation

Landhi Association of 
Trade & Industry

Interest in Donee

Common Directorship 

Patron in Chief 

Name of  Director

Mr. Mohomed Bashir 

Mr. Ziad Bashir 

 4,002 

 400 

 8,785 

 250 

--------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------------------------------------------

32 OTHER EXPENSE
     2025 2024

 Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF) 22.2  331,048   361,927 
 Workers' welfare fund (WWF) 22.3  143,045   129,236 
 Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 4.1.2  52,272   57,358 
 Loss on reassessment of right of use asset and    46,930   9,902 
    corresponding lease liability
 Others   652   13,769 
         573,947   572,192 

33 OTHER INCOME

 Income from non-financial assets and others  
 Scrap sales   3,004   -   
 Government grant  20  28,251   32,088 
 Unclaimed liabilities written back   13,794   3,910 
 Others   55,488   136,477 
      100,537   172,475 
 Income from financial assets
 Mark-up income on TFC 33.1  11,819   16,481 
 Dividend income   -     1,462 
 Other markup income 33.2  154,514   103,193 
 Exchange gain from currency realisation   798,332   1,219,444 
 Exchange gain from derivative financial instruments 33.3  105,037   642,378 
         1,069,702   1,982,958 
      1,170,239   2,155,433 

33.1 This includes profit earned on Shariah Compliant investment on TFCs.

33.2 This includes markup income earned on interest bearing loan to employees (note 8.1) and TDRs (note 13.2). 

33.3 This includes unrealised exchange gain earned on conventional derivative instruments during the year
 amounting to Rs. 64.9 million. (2024: Rs. 332.31 million).

34 FINANCE COSTS
     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
 Markup / profit on: 
 - Short term borrowings  4,789,985   4,956,070 
 - Long term financing  710,319   1,013,013 
 - Workers' profit participation fund 22.2  22,867   8,908 
 Bank and other charges    1,689,998   1,179,020 
 Interest expense on lease liabilities against right of use assets  19  747,487   507,171 
       34.1  7,960,656   7,664,182

34.1 Finance cost includes Rs. 790 million and Rs. 1,646 million (2024: Rs. 241.8 million and Rs. 1,183 million) in 
long term financing and short term borrowing respectively under Shariah Compliant mode of financing.

     2025 2024
Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

35 LEVIES 35.1 1,692,863  2,235,322

     2025 2024
    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
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35.1 This represents minimum tax paid (2024: Final tax) under sections 154 and 113 of ITO, representing levy in 

terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/ IAS 37.

36 TAXATION

     2025 2024

    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Current tax   787,381   275,114 
 Prior tax   (489,991)  (22,160)
      297,390   252,954 
 Deferred tax income   111,695   (624,707)
      409,085   (371,753)

36.1 The Holding company being majority of the Group is subject to Minimum Tax Regime under section 113
 and section 154 of the ITO, (2024: Final tax under section 154) for local and export sales. Accordingly, the 
 relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these consolidated
 financial statements.

36.2 The aggregate of minimum tax and income tax, amounting to Rs. 2,480 million (2024: Rs. 2,510 million)
 represents tax liability of the Group calculated under the relevant provisions of the ITO.

36.3 For the Holding Company as per the guidelines issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
 on application of IAS 12 'Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes', no
 deferred tax is required to be booked as the Holding Company, based on the projections of taxable
 income, is expected to be taxed under Minimum Tax u/s 113 of the ITO for the foreseeable future. Hence
 the Holding Company has not recorded any deferred tax liability as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024.

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

  Note          2025 2024

 Profit after taxation (Rupees in '000)   4,454,419   4,851,963 

 Weighted average outstanding shares (Number)  740,059,458   740,059,458 

  Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 37.1  6.02   6.56 

37.1 There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Group, as the Group has no potential ordinary shares.

38  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operations have been divided in four segments based on the nature of process and internal 

reporting along with subsidiaries. Following are the reportable business segments:

a) Spinning: Production of different qualities of yarn using both natural and artificial fibres. 

b) Home textile: Production of different types and qualities falling under the definition of home textile.

 c) Retail:  Sale of textile goods and other products through retail and online channels.

 d) Others: Weaving, Fiber Bleaching, Knitting, Yarn dyeing and Dyed yarn fabric etc.

   

 Transactions among the business segments are recorded at cost.   
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41 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES    

41.1 The Chief Executive and Directors are provided with Holding Company maintained cars and are also 
covered under Holding Company's Health Insurance Plan along with their dependents. The Chief Executive 
is also provided with free residential telephones.

41.2 Aggregate amount charged during the year in respect of meeting fee to Four Non-Executive Directors 
and the Chairman was Rs. 8.6 million (2024: Four Non Executive Directors and Chairman amounting to 
Rs. 7.7 million).

41.3 Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds 
Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year.

2025

Chief 
Executive Director Executives Total

Managerial remuneration 
Performance bonus 
House rent allowance 
Other allowances 
Contribution to provident fund 

Persons 

 16,000 
 1,333 

 6,400 
 1,600 
 1,333 

 26,666 

1

 12,000 
 1,000 
 4,800 
 1,200 
 1,000 

 20,000 

1

 2,263,177 
 142,053 
 598,722 
 408,045 
 154,788 

 3,566,785 

776

 2,291,177 
 144,386 

 609,922 
 410,845 

 157,121 

 3,613,451 

778

------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------

2024

Chief 
Executive Director Executives Total

Managerial remuneration 
Performance bonus 
House rent allowance 
Other allowances 
Contribution to provident fund 

Persons 

 16,000 
 1,333 

 6,400 
 1,600 
 1,333 

 26,666 

1

 12,000 
 1,000 
 4,800 
 1,200 
 1,000 

 20,000 

1

 2,263,177 
 142,053 
 598,722 
 408,045 
 154,788 

 3,566,785 

776

 2,291,177 
 144,386 

 609,922 
 410,845 

 157,121 

 3,613,451 

778

------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------

39 INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA  

Revenue   Non-current assets

2025 2024 2025 2024

                                                                                                                                                                     ---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------
 Pakistan  77,033,592   71,319,396   61,236,422   58,870,793 
 Germany  32,265,194   30,637,887   -     -   
 United States  14,693,413   14,807,071   -     596 
 United Kingdom  20,468,011   11,820,996   165,005   131,513 
 Italy  8,872,670   9,268,684   -     -   
 France  7,571,900   7,146,621   -     -   
 Denmark  6,020,894   5,228,578   -     -   
 Poland  5,469,602   5,058,486   -     -   
 Netherlands  7,021,034   4,802,197   -     -   
 Spain  3,009,965   2,944,500   -     -   
 Sweden  3,654,145   2,125,559   -     -   
 Other Countries  2,856,481   10,294,091   19,990   61,786 
   188,936,901   175,454,066   61,421,417   59,064,688 

40 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
     2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Cash and bank balances 15  559,457   1,081,768 
 Running finance 24  (6,229,150)  (5,535,371)
      (5,669,693)  (4,453,603)

40.1 CHANGES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Long-term finance and 
deferred government grant 
  
Short term borrowings - net

18 & 20

24 

17,928,429 

36,958,957 

 7,700,000 

 12,893,950 

(3,283,119)

-   

-   

-   

22,345,310 

 49,852,907 

--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------Note

Long-term finance and 
deferred government grant 

Short term borrowings - net 

18 & 20

24 

23,348,187 

 28,459,269 

 358,000 

 8,499,688 

(5,777,758)

-   

-   

-   

 17,928,429 

 36,958,957 

---------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------Note

Financing cash
inflows, net

Financing
cash outflows

Non-cash
changes 20252024

Financing cash
inflows, net

Financing
cash outflows

Non-cash
changes 20242023
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42.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have arrangements 
/ agreements in place.

Name of the related party

Gul Ahmed Holdings (Private) Limited 

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (HMBL) 

Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited

Arwen Tech. (Private) Limited 

Win Star (Private) Limited 

Samba Bank Limited 

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited 

Askari Bank Limited 

Hub Liquid Terminal (Private) Limited

TPL Properties Limited 

Habib University Foundation

The Pakistan Business Council

International Cotton Association 

Pakistan Textile Council 

Ghafooria Industries (Private) Limited 

LITE Development and management company 

Grand Industries (Private) Limited

Haji Ali Mohammad Foundation 

Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited Employees 

   Provident Fund Trust

Ideas (Private) Limited Employees 

   Provident Fund Trust

Mohomed Bashir 

Mohammed Zaki Bashir

Zain Bashir 

Ziad Bashir 

Ehsan A. Malik

Zeeba Ansar

Kamran Y. Mirza

Country of Incorporation

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

United Kingdom

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Basis of relationship

Ultimate Holding Company 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Subsidiary of Parent company 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Group Company & Common 

   Directorship 

Common Directorship 

Group Company & Major    

   Shareholders 

Member of Foundation

Employees Fund 

Employees Fund 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director

% of shareholding

55.86%

 - 

2.99%

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

2.17%

 - 

7.86%

 - 

0.42%

-

0.07%

0.34%

0.34%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

42 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties comprise associated companies, companies where directors also hold directorship, directors

 of the Group and key management personnel. The Group in the normal course of business carries out
transactions with various related parties. Details of related party transactions and balances other than those

 disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

42.1 There are no transactions with directors of the Group and key management personnel other than under
 the terms of employment. Loans and remuneration of the directors, key management personnel and
 executives are disclosed in notes 8 and 41 respectively of these consolidated financial statements.

Name of the related party

Associated companies

Grand Industries (Private) Limited

Swisstex Chemicals (Private) Limited

Win Star (Private) Limited

Arwen Tech. (Private) Limited

Haji Ali Mohammad Foundation

The Pakistan Business Council

Habib Metropolitan Bank

Askari Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Standard Chartered (Pakistan) Limited

Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited Employees 

Provident Fund Trust

International Cotton Association

Pakistan Textile Council

Landhi Association of Trade and Industry

International Textile Manufacturers Federation

Ideas - Employees Provident Fund Trust

Transactions during the period

Rent expense

Purchase of goods

Services rendered

Purchase of goods

Services rendered

Rent paid

Fees paid

Bills discounted

Finance costs

Bills discounted

Finance costs

Bills discounted

Finance costs

Bills discounted

Finance costs

Holding Company's contribution to

provident fund

Fees paid

Membership fees

Fees paid

Fees paid

Subsidiary Company's Contribution to

Provident fund

2025

 600 

 106,868 

 -   

 31,893 

 197,927 

960

 2,500 

 17,804,583 

 203,159 

 4,554,017 

 269,052 

 420,155 

 58,251 

 3,915,018 

 432,123 

 440,465 

 693 

2,500

 60 

 2,172 

 74,676 8

2024

 2,648 

 196,859 

 15,000 

 31,169 

 182,171 

 960 

 2,500 

 23,026,343 

 254,419 

 2,361,162 

 434,005 

 169,874 

 81,167 

 1,696,905 

 468,738 

 392,046 

 643 

 1,250 

 60 

 2,222 

 68,698  

------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------
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Production is lower as compared to capacity due to variation in production mix and various technical and market factors.

The production capacity and its comparison with actual production of Processing, Home Textile and Apparel segments
 is impracticable to determine due to varying manufacturing processes, run length of order lots and various other factors.

   
44 NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED
    2025 2024

 As at  17,113   18,466 
 Average during the year   17,377   18,242 

45 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES
 The investment out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the
 Act and the conditions specified thereunder.

46 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at June 30, 2025 are as follows;

43 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Spinning

Weaving 

Unit

            Kgs. 
(20 Counts 
converted)
Sq. meters
(50 Picks 

converted)

 98,277 

 239,649 

 92,433 

 219,048 

 3 shifts 

 3 shifts 

 98,277 

 234,987 

 93,227 

 213,103 

3 shifts 

 3 shifts 

Capacity Production Working Capacity Production Working

2025 2024

--------------------------------------------------- (in ‘000) ---------------------------------------------------

Financial assets

At amortized cost
Long term investment
Long term loans
Other receivables
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Cash and bank balances

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Short term investment
Forward contracts

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Long term financing
Lease Liability
Trade and other payables
(other than fair value
  of forward contracts)
Accrued mark-up / profit
Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Fair value of forward contracts

-   
 13,980 

 1,019,464 
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   

 1,033,444 

3,878,180 
 1,094,691 

-   

-   
 56,082,057 

-   
-   

 -   

61,054,928 

7
8 
13 
   

12   
15   

   
13   

18 
19 
22  

23  
 24 

   
   

22   

 70,000 
 11,198 

-    
-   
-   
-    

-   
-   

 81,198 

 18,392,475 
 4,383,400 

-   

-   

-   
-   

-   

22,775,875 

  70,000 
 25,178   

1,019,464 
-   
-   
-     

-   
-   

 1,114,642 

22,270,655 
 5,478,091 

-   

-   
 56,082,057 

-   
-   

-   

83,830,803 

  -   
 108,268 
 535,670 

 -   
 21,520,605 

 559,457 

-   
-   

 22,724,000 

-
-

 26,761,870 

 886,790 

 9,365 
 23,505 

 64,902 

27,746,432 

-   
 10,289 

-   
 512,483 

-   
-   

-   
-   

 522,772 

-  
-   

-   
-   
-   
-   

-   

-   

-   
 118,557 

 535,670 
 512,483 

 21,520,605 
 559,457 

-   
-   

 23,246,772 

-    
-  

26,761,870  

886,790
-   

 9,365 
 23,505 

64,902 

27,746,432 

 70,000 
 143,735 

 1,555,134 
 512,483 

 21,520,605 
 559,457 

-   
-   

 24,361,414 

22,270,655 
 5,478,091 

 26,761,870 

 886,790 
 56,082,057 

 9,365 
 23,505 

 64,902 

111,577,235 

Note ---------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------

Total

2025
 Non interest/mark-up/  

profit bearing
 interest/mark-up/

profit bearing

Maturity
 up to one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year

Sub 
total

Maturity
 up to one

 year

Maturity 
after one

 year

Sub 
total

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES   
Financial risk management objectives     

 The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, markup risk and
 price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of 
 financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk Management is carried out under policies and principles approved by the Board of Directors. All treasury related
 transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies and principles.

 The information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risk, the Group's objectives, policies and procedures for 
 measuring and managing risk and the Group's management of capital is as follows:

47.1 Market risks
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes
in market interest / markup rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change

 in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the market. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, markup risk and other price risk. The Group is exposed to currency risk and

 markup risk only.

Financial assets

At amortized cost
Long term investment
Long term loans
Other receivables
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Cash and bank balances

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Short term investment
Forward contracts

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Long term financing
Lease Liability
Trade and other payables
(other than fair value
  of forward contracts)
Accrued mark-up / profit
Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend

At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Fair value of forward contracts

-   
 23,434 

 621,652 
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   

 645,086 

 3,233,936 
 548,173 

-   

 -   
 42,494,328  -   

-   

-   
 46,276,437 

7
8
13

12
15

13

18
19
22

23
24

22

  70,000 
 16,125 

-   
-   

-   

-   
-   

 86,125 

 14,591,587 
 3,189,839 

-   

-   
-   
-   
-   

-   
 17,781,426 

  70,000 
 70,000 
 39,559 

 621,652 
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   

 731,211 

17,825,523 
 3,738,012 

-   

-   
 42,494,328 

-   
-   

-   
 64,057,863 

-   
 49,711 

 528,101 
-   

 20,719,045 
 1,081,768 

 1,243 
 332,315 

 22,712,183 

-   
-   

 29,131,579 

1,403,751 
-   

 9,840 
 23,505 

-   
 30,568,675 

-   
 1,814 

-   
 518,467 

-   
-   

-   
-   

 520,281 

-   
-   
-   

-   
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   

-   
 51,525 

 528,101 
 518,467 

 20,719,045 
 1,081,768 

 1,243 
 332,315 

 23,232,464 

-   
-   

 29,131,579 

 1,403,751 
-   

 9,840 
 23,505 

-   
 30,568,675 

  70,000 
 91,084 

 1,149,753 
 518,467 

 20,719,045 
 1,081,768 

 1,243 
 332,315 

 23,963,675 

 17,825,523 
 3,738,012 
 29,131,579 

1,403,751 
 42,494,328 

 9,840 
 23,505 

-   
 94,626,538 

Note ---------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------

Total

2024
 Non interest/mark-up/  

profit bearing
 interest/mark-up/

profit bearing

Maturity
 up to one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year

Sub 
total

Maturity
 up to one

 year

Maturity 
after one

 year

Sub 
total
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
 A five percent strengthening / weakening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2025 would have increased 

/ decreased the equity and profit / loss after tax by Rs. 814 million (2024: Rs. 334 million). This analysis 

assumes that all other variables, in particular markups, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the 

same basis for June 30, 2024.

 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year.

b) Interest / mark-up rate risk      
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to change 

in the interest rates. The Group has long term finance and short term borrowings at fixed and variable rates.

 The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate risk on short term financing under variable rate arrangements 

and these are covered by holding "Prepayment option" and "Rollover option", which can be exercised 

upon any adverse movement in the underlying interest rates.

    

 Financial assets include balances of Rs. 1,115 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 731 million) which are subject to 

interest  rate risk. Financial liabilities include balances of Rs. 83,835 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 64,058 

million) which are subject to interest rate risk. Applicable interest / mark-up rates for financial assets and 

liabilities are given in respective notes.

     
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
At June 30, 2025, if markups on interest bearing financial instruments would have been 1% higher / lower with 

all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 827 million (2024: Rs. 603 

million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 

and loss account. Therefore, a change in markup at the reporting date would not effect consolidated 

statement of profit or loss of the Group.

c) Other Price risk      
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of the changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest or currency rate risk) 

whether those changes are caused by factors specified to the individual financial instrument or its issuer 

or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at June 30, 2025, the Group 

is not exposed to other price risk. 

47.2 Credit risk        

 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party 

by failing to discharge an obligation without considering the fair value of the collateral available there 

against. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar 

business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 

obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

a) Currency risk
 Foreign currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
 will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly from future
 economic transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign exchange.

Exposure to foreign currency risk       

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign exchange fluctuations due to the following
 financial assets and liabilities:

     2025 2024
   (Equivalent USD 000s) 

 Trade debts  29,127   36,371 
 Cash and bank balances  893   1,685 
 Short term borrowings  (86,429)  (45,112)
 Trade and other payables  (1,757)  (623)
 Net exposure  (58,166)  (7,679)

 The Group manages foreign currency risk through due monitoring of the exchange rates, adjusting net 
 exposure and obtaining forward covers where necessary.

     2025 2024

    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Foreign currency commitments and guarantees outstanding at year end are as follows:

 USD   128,191    100,058 
 EURO  500    500 
 AED  14,600    14,600 
 GBP  250    250 

 The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupee per USD
 Average rate (Selling / Buying)  279.6 / 279.1 283.4 / 283.0
 Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  283.9 / 283.5 278.6 / 278.1  
  

Rupee per EURO
 Average rate (Selling / Buying)  304.1 / 303.7 306.7 / 306.2
 Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  333.1 / 332.6 297.8 / 297.4  
  

Rupee per GBP
 Average rate (Selling / Buying)  361.7 / 361.1 356.5 / 357.2
 Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  389.7 / 389.1 356.9 / 356.4

Rupee per AED
 Average rate (Selling / Buying)  76.1 / 76.0 75.8 / 75.7
 Reporting date rate (Selling / Buying)  77.3 / 77.2 77.2 / 77.1
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Exposure to credit risk       
  

The Group's operating activities exposes it to credit risks arising mainly in respect of loans and advances, trade debts,
depositsand other receivables and cash at bank. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

     2025 2024
Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Long term investment  70,000   70,000 
 Other receivables   1,555,134   1,149,753 
 Long term loans  143,735   91,084 
 Long term deposits   512,483   518,467 
 Trade debts 12  21,520,605   20,719,045 
 Bank balances 15  460,790   893,579 
      24,262,747   23,441,928 

The Group manages credit risk as follows:   

Loans, advances and other receivables   
 These loans are due from employees and are recovered in monthly installments deductible from their

salaries. Retirement balances are also available for these employees against which balance can be adjusted
incase of default. The Group actively pursues for the recovery of these loans and the Group does not expect

 that these employees will fail to meet their obligations, hence the management believes no impairment 
 allowance is required there against.

Other receivables include bank guarantee margin Letter of Credit and miscellaneous receivables which are
neither past due nor impaired. The Group believes that based on past relationship, credit rating and financial

 soundness of the counter parties chances of default are remote and also there is no material impact of
 changes in credit risks of such receivables so no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
 advances and receivables.

Long Term Deposits
These are mainly held for rental premises and utilities with the counter parties which have long association with the

 Group and have a good credit history. The management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

Trade debts
 Trade debts are due from local and foreign customers. The Group manages credit risk inter alia by setting out
 credit limit in relation to individual customers, by obtaining advance against sales and / or through letter
 of credits and / or by providing impairment allowance for life time expected credit loss on trade debts. 

 Trade debts under irrevocable letter of credit, document acceptance and other acceptable banking
instruments are considered secured. Further the majority of the customers have been transacting with the
Group for several years. The Group actively pursues for the recovery of the debt and based on past experience

 and business relationship and credit worthiness of these customers, the Group does not expects these
 customers will fail to meet their obligations except for some past due trade debts against which adequate
 allowance for impairment has been made.

 The Group has established an allowance for expected credit losses against  trade debts that represent its
 estimate of expected losses based on actual credit loss experience in respect of trade debts based on the

last 3 years. The allowance determined is then multiplied by the weighted average macroeconomic factors
 for the three developed scenarios namely "Base", "Best" and "Worst" to incorporate the forward-looking
 information in expected credit loss model. The macroeconomic factors used include GDP Forecast,

Unemployment Forecast, Inflation Rate Forecast and Exchange Rate Forecast. The Group has aging of the
 trade debts of the Group outstanding as at year end is as follows: 

  Gross Carrying  Impairment Gross Carrying Impairment

  amount Loss Allowance amount Loss Allowance

                    

Secured  6,192,642   -     5,595,157   -   

Unsecured
Current  10,188,308   4   11,909,590   17 

1-30 Days  4,320,028   406   2,207,805   3,101 

31-60 Days 628,499   5,909   700,840   9,973 

61-90 Days  41,001   248   376,504   57,760 

More than 90 Days  310,929   164,128   158,620   158,620 

  21,681,407   170,695   20,948,516   229,471 

 Management believes that the unimpaired balances that are past due are still collectable in full, based on historical 

payment behavior and review of financial strength of respective customers. Further, certain trade debtors, which 

have been derecognised as a result of bills discounting, are secured by way of Export Letter of Credit and Inland 

Letter of Credit, which can be called upon if the counter party is in default under the terms of the agreement. 

Long term investment and bank balances
 The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank accounts and investing only with counter-parties 

that have stable credit rating.

 The long term investment and bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

    2025 2024

Note  ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Long term investment

 AAA 7  70,000   70,000 

 Bank balances

 AAA   158,027   106,780 

 AA+   61,844   5,700 

 AA   14,197   765 

 AA-   2,492   75,711 

 A+   1,893   180,351 

 A1   221,937   464,170 

 BBB-   400   60,102 

    460,790   893,579 

    530,790   963,579 

Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter party will fail to meet their obligations.

 AAA 7  70,000   70,000 

 AAA   158,027   106,780 

 AA+   61,844   5,700 

 AA   14,197   765 

 AA-   2,492   75,711 

 A+   1,893   180,351 

 A1   221,937   464,170 

 BBB-   400   60,102 

    460,790   893,579 

    530,790   963,579 

2025 2024

-------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------- -------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------
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The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a 
view to maintain an appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimise risk and borrowing cost.

48 FAIR VALUES
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions 
(i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique.

The Group while assessing fair values uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
using relevant observable data as far as possible and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Fair values 
are categorised into following three levels based on the input used in the valuation techniques;

- Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be assessed at 
 measurement.

- Level 2  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset 
 or liability,  either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

- Level 3  Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability Inputs for the asset or liability   
 that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

 If inputs used to measure the fair values of an asset or a liability fall into different levels then the fair value 
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

 Transfers, if any, between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognised at the end of the reporting period during 
which the transfer has occurred. The Group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy 
have occurred includes monitoring of changes in market and trading activity and changes in inputs used in 
valuation techniques.

 As at year end, the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities approximates to their carrying values. The 
operating fixed assets and right of use asset is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if 
any, except there is no free-hold land and lease-hold land which are stated at cost. The Group does not expect 
that unobservable inputs may have significant effect on fair values.  The fair values of forward exchange contracts 
is determined based on the forward exchange rates at the reporting date included in the level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy.

49 GENERAL   

49.1 Events occurring after reporting date   
 On September 29, 2025, Board of Directors, approved the closure of the Group’s Export Apparel operations 
as part of its strategic review of operations.  The closure will be implemented in the forthcoming financial 
year, with financial and operational impacts to be recognised in the consolidated financial statements of 
the ensuing year.

49.2 Corresponding figures
 Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better 
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these consolidated financial 
statements during the current year.  

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Group in 
their meeting held on September 29, 2025.

Concentration of credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause 
the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration 
of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar 
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by 
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity 
of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Group exposure to a 
single customer exceeding 10% of the total exposure amounts to Rs. 2,436 million (2024: Rs. 2,790 million).

 Credit risk of the Group arises principally from long term investments, long term loans and other receivables, 
trade debts, long term deposits and bank balances.

47.3 Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk represent the risk where the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities when they fall due. The exposure to liquidity risk along with their maturities is disclosed 
in respective notes and note 46.

 The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash in hand and at banks and ensuring the fund 
availability through adequate credit facilities. At June 30, 2025, the Group has Rs. 71,760 million (June 30, 
2024: Rs. 45,368 million) available borrowing limit from financial institutions. Unutilised borrowing facilities 
of Rs. 16,753 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 4,734 million) and also has Rs. 558 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 1,082 
million) being cash in hand and balances at banks. Based on the above, management believes the liquidity 
risk is insignificant.

 Less than  More than Total
   one year one year carrying amount

            Note -------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------
As at June 30, 2025  
Long term financing 18  3,878,180   18,392,475   22,270,655 
Lease liability against right of use assets 19  1,826,863   5,998,547   7,825,410 
Trade and other payables 22  26,826,772   -     26,826,772 
Accrued mark-up / profit 23  886,790   -     886,790 
Short term borrowings 24  56,082,057   -     56,082,057 
Unclaimed dividend  9,365   -     9,365 
Unpaid dividend 26  23,505   -     23,505 
   89,533,532   24,391,022   113,924,555 
Total as at June 30, 2024   81,508,809   19,388,043   100,896,852 

47.4 Capital risk management   
 The primary objectives of the Group when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure.

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. 

The Group's strategy is to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 were as follows:

     2025 2024

Note    ---- --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

 Total borrowings  78,352,712   60,319,851 
 Cash and bank   (559,457)  (1,081,768)
 Net debt   77,793,255   59,238,083 

 Total equity   51,840,197   47,327,699 
 Total equity and debt   129,633,452   106,565,782 
  
  --------------- (%) ---------------

 Gearing ratio  60   56 
MOHAMMED ZAKI BASHIR

 Chief Executive Officer
MOHOMED BASHIR

Chairman
MUHAMMAD KASHIF RIAZ

 Chief Financial Officer
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